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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NRIE R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Liwei

Mr. Shang Yongtian (ceased to be an executive director of the Company

since 30 October 2020)
Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Li Shenlin (appointed as an executive director of the Company since

30 October 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Onward, CPA

Mr. Wang Liping

Mr. Chen Liping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Onward, CPA (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Liping (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Mr. Chen Liping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Liping (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Mr. Wang Liping
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since 26
March 2021)

Mr. Wang Deshan (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 26
March 2021)

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, CPA

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Li Chunyan
Mr. Li Bo, CPA

AUDITORS

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (ceased to be the auditor of
the Company since 23 June 2020)
Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

(appointed as the auditor of the Company since 23 June 2020)

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:

Reed Smith Richards Butler

As to PRC law:

Grandall Law Firm (Beijing)

INVESTORS AND MEDIA RELATION CONSULTANT

Unicorn Financial Company Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China

Beijing Guanghua Road Branch
4 Guanghua Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing, PRC

Bank of Beijing

Jiulongshan Branch
117th Building
Jinsong Dongkou Nongguang Lane

Beijing, PRC

H SHARES REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Block No. 45
XinYuan Street
Chaoyang District
Beijing, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

17th Floor

One Island East

Taikoo Place

18 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

FEFERET
PEIEHEERT
AR IT
REE R T
5@
JEEEFRAGR

b RERT
NEEILZTT
HEHE R T
YMEALNE
E1175RE

HERRHETBFE

ERRREBLSELBRAA
BABELF

SR ARER1835
BRRTE

PEEMPB AR T EL R R

aal=1
dtmm
Hi5E
FTRET465%

BEBEXME
e
HBIBORERIK 185
At
BERFPD

1718



COMPANY WEBSITE

www.jkl.com.cn

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES CONTACT
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Department of Investor Relations
Tel: 0086-10-64688238

Fax: 0086-10-64611370

Email: jingkelong@jkl.com.cn

Address: Block No. 45, XinYuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

STOCK CODE

814
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GROUP STRUCTURE
SREZRIE

As at the date of this report, the shareholders and the principal subsidiaries of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited were as

follows:
RARER @ AR EEEEEEROBRATZRRELREEZEMNBATAT

Beijing Chaofu State-owned

Assets Administration Other domestic shareholders H shareholders
Company Limited i on
LIS EREEETE HtAE R R HERARER
BRAT]
40.61% 15.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited

LR EEAEZEERNEBR A

100.00% 55.66% 79.85% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Chaopi Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Chaoyang Beijing Lianchao
Shouchao Commercial Facilities Trading Company (Langfang) Supermarket Chain Jingkelong Vocational Company Limited
Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Skills Training School
ERREE LRRIGE DR ERER R E RS ERREE (RRY5) ERREE MR B R Bt o E S
HEEEERAR REFRDA BRATF BRAR BIEHEARAE TSR AT I BAR BRAHF
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting
Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, with the global outbreak and spread of COVID-19, the international
and domestic economy were facing unprecedented challenges, which
profoundly affected consumers’ psychology, behavior and expenditure.
In 2020, the consumption expenditure per capita fell by 4.0%, after
deducting the price factor, to RMB21,210. However, at the same time, the
pandemic brought new development opportunities and structural changes
to the wholesale and retail industry, with more consumers choosing an
increasingly safe and portable digital lifestyle such as online shopping,
various suppliers and brands are going digital. The Group continues
to stick to the principle of “goods + services”, and through continuous
improvement in store operation and management abilities, enhancing
fresh produce management capabilities, tapping into the incremental
value of own brands and enabling the use of advanced technology,
the Group continuously pursued development opportunities even in
times of risks and challenges. The Group has been benefited from the
solid foundation of supply chain system, logistics distribution system,
commodity and service system laid down in the past few years, and all
the staff have spared no effort in the control of the pandemic and being
on the frontlines of goods supply. The Group’s business performance

has not been much affected by the pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERME

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

° Revenue from principle business was RMB11,004,132,335,
representing an increase of approximately 4.3% as compared to

2019;

o Gross profit was RMB1,291,939,661, representing a decrease of

approximately 9.0% as compared to 2019;

° Gross profit margin was approximately 11.7%, representing a

decrease of approximately 1.7% as compared to 13.4% in 2019;

o Total profit was RMB165,878,731, representing a decrease of

approximately 7.2% as compared to 2019;

° Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was
RMB56,304,490, representing an increase of approximately 6.4%
as compared to 2019;

° Basic earnings per share was RMB0.14 (2019: RMBO0.13); and

o The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.10 (2019:
RMBO0.08).
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OUTLOOK

In 2021, alongside the normalisation of COVID-19 epidemic prevention
and control work which leads to a full resumption of production, and
under the newly constructed development pattern which comprises
domestic circulation as the theme and the domestic and international
dual cycle as mutual drivers, the Group will actively deal with internal and
external economic environment changes, rely on good urban development
foundation and profound consumption potential of Beijing, the capital,
focus on the new consumption trend of customization, intellectualization,
quality, safety, strengthen the operation mode such as the multiple
business models in offline stores and the online and offline stores
integrated operation to meet the consumer demand of different shopping
scene. Adhering to “goods + services” as the core principle, the Group
will optimize its supply chain management, and through measures such
as expanding source merchandising, building own brand, developing
technical support, risk control, and opening up channels for members,
the Group will continuously progress and self-innovate, and achieve
high-value transformation in order to maintain sustainable competitive

advantage.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

APPRECIATION £ &

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to ~ AAZMRAREFFRHMZIUBREREENE
our shareholders for their trust and support; to all investors, business  FEX# - R SR EE - SERH - HER
partners, suppliers and customers for their trust and support, and our KREAXBEMNETESE @ ANbDRNEEZE
appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work EBILREBEREGERE—FHNHDBEIREE

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period. B RRBR DA 3200 R

Li Jianwen FTEX

Chairman EFER

Beijing, PRC E bR

26 March 2021 202143 F26H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, in light of the severe and complex environment at home and
abroad, especially the severe impact brought by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Chinese government coordinated epidemic prevention and control
and economic work, actively restored the order of production and life,
and spared no effort to ensure the supply of livelihood products. As a
result, China’s economic recovery is showing a sound trend. In 2020,
the Consumer Price Index (the “CPI”) rose by 2.5%, which is only 0.4
percentage points lower than that in 2019 before the epidemic; GDP
exceeded RMB100 trillion for the first time, an increase of 2.3% compared
to the previous year. During the Reporting Period, the Group insisted on
“goods + services” and actively responded to the calls of the government
and industry associations to “ensure safety, supply, quality, and prices”
during the epidemic, to ensure supply and price stability and ensure
that Beijing people’s needs for “vegetable baskets” and “rice bags” as
well as epidemic prevention and sanitation products are met, and the
people’s basic livelihood needs are stabilized by making full use of the
Group’s coordinated retail and wholesale development strategy as well
as fresh food bases and the advantages of in its own logistics distribution
system. Meanwhile, the Group strictly implemented various epidemic
prevention and control measures to provide customers with a safe
shopping environment and employees with a safe working environment,

thus our corporate social responsibility was fulfilled.

B E & o M AT

E 3 C)

2020%F - EHBRREHNBEANINRRFRN I
MAREBENBREEE - FREBNRSHEERZED
BEAEELE  BEREEEEERT - 2R
ERAEEREE  FELCEETERREEEER
4F ° 2020%F - CPIL#R2.5% - SRIBIELLZIE 2 Al
#2019F M5&0.4 A N E AL EEER AR
BWA100BIBTT « th FFIEBR23% - MEHA - &
EE B A B P RIS | TR IBHIR TR
BERBFMITEHERE S - REE - RE
2 BYEINTEE  AoNRAEETEHER
P2 REBLES LA R A BRI A B YRR X R E
Z o 2 NLGMRERE  BRBE eSSBS XE
FITRETFIURBEFERRER  BEEAR
EFE B AEEBREEESBEEBHER
W REERHZENEYIRE REIRHER
2HTIERE  BITRENTSRE -

2020 F#f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

RETAIL BUSINESS

Excellent performance in epidemic prevention and control and

people’s livelihood guarantee

During the Reporting Period, the Group, as an entity that caters for
the security of people’s daily needs in particular at the initial period
of the outbreak of the COVID-19, insisted on opening for business,
maintaining prices, strict product price management and quality control,
and endeavored to guarantee the sourcing and supply of various epidemic
prevention products such as masks, disinfectants and hand sanitizers,
which has ensured the basic livelihood needs of the people in Beijing. In
order to meet the surge in the demand for livelihood commodities such
as meat, eggs, vegetables, milk, rice, noodles, grains and oils during the
epidemic, the Group increased the reserve and inventory of commodities
for civilian needs and increased the delivery frequency from distribution
centers by utilizing the advantage of its source and supply procurement
and its own logistics distribution system’s emergency reserve, to ensure
that stores have sufficient variety of goods and sufficient supply, and can
maintain stable prices. During the Reporting Period, the Group was highly
recognized by the government and citizens of Beijing, and won many
honors such as the “Outstanding Contribution Unit for the COVID-19
Prevention and Control” and the “Outstanding Unit on Epidemic Prevention

in 2020” issued by government departments and industry associations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Further improving core business capabilities focusing on “goods

+ services”

During the Reporting Period, the Group paid close attention to changes
in market conditions and consumer shopping habits, further sped up
product iteration, actively developed new products and deepened
cooperation with suppliers. Through understanding of the consumption
habits of target customers, the Group obtained further knowledge of
the consumption potential and consumption characteristics of the target
customer base, thereby making precise positioning and planning of the
brand accelerated the development of cost-effective private brands
and customized products creating the self-owned “Longzhixian (i<
#)” brand, which has further enhanced the Group’s fruit and vegetable
image and the competitive advantage of its own brand. The Group
continued to improve its vegetable processing system and vegetable
base construction. The ten largest vegetable bases established have not
only helped the Group realize the integration of vegetable planting and
sales, and improved the gross profit level, but also played a strong role

in maintaining supply and stabilizing price during the epidemic.

In particular, under the normalization of the epidemic, the Group, on the
one hand, timely implemented epidemic prevention and control measures
to ensure the safety of the store environment, narrowed the distance
with customers, regularly conducted satisfaction questionnaires, and on
the other, paid attention to online evaluations or suggestions and taken
customer feedback as a breakthrough to strengthen service management,
improve customer online and offline experience and improve service

standards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Adjusting strategies of store opening and closing to promote

the transformation and upgrade of stores

During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated and upgraded four
stores (including one supermarkets and three convenience stores), and
opened five franchise-operated retail stores. Due to the expiration of
leases and modifications to the operation strategy, during the Reporting
Period, the Group closed down one hypermarket, two supermarkets,
seven directly-operated convenience stores and thirteen franchise-

operated convenience stores.

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 160 as at 31 December
2020. The following table sets out the number and net operating area of

the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2020:

TGS R - HEEEREREAR

HEHATK T4REBHRESRETE(E 1R
ST RIEENE)  2FHHATEMBAETHS
B o AENBMUREERBERAEERRE - #HE
HERARE T1RAES - 2HFEaET @ 7TRIEE
B R ABRIINEERE -

HE2020F12F31H » AEBZEEHASA
160f] + NRFMAETIANEEHK2020F12F31H
MEZEMEEE MFLEmE

Department Convenience
Stores  Hypermarkets  Supermarkets stores Total
BE®S rES REEm ERE A%

Number of retail outlets: TEMEYE

Directly-operated BB 1 10 55 80 146

Franchise-operated RN E - - 1 13 14
Total CHI 1 10 56 93 160
Net operating area (square

metres): FEBERR (FHK) ¢

Directly-operated L 27,800 69,010 124,366 16,312 237,489

Franchise-operated RN E - - 880 3,674 4,554
Total CH 27,800 69,010 125,246 19,986 242,043
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Home consumption demand boosting online business

During the Reporting Period, the outbreak and the gradual normalization
of the epidemic accelerated the development of the “home economy”,
and the shift of consumers’ shopping habits to online contactless and
mobile shopping channels. In 2020, the sales of online retail nationwide
increased by 10.9% over that of the previous year. During the Reporting
Period, to meet the significantly increased demand for home consumption
by customers, the Group, leveraging its online and offline integrated
operating advantages, utilized its physical stores, as well as Jingkelong
APP, mini-programs, third-party platform functions, and upgraded system
functions and the ability of order fulfilment by optimizing the inventory
transmission mechanism and the logistics dispatch mechanism, and in
turn, diverted the operating advantages of offline fresh products, daily-
made products, and staple kitchen products online, enriched the types
products online, and delivered them promptly through the store-to-
home delivery model. Through unremitting efforts, the Group achieved
a year-on-year increase of approximately 40.7% in online sales during

the Reporting Period.

Enhancing marketing to stimulate consumption

During the Reporting Period, the Group was committed to building a
marketing model centered on user experience, and launched a series
of promotional activities such as “Help Hubei” through a number of
customized special sales promotion activities. The Group’s promotional
posters are positioned to strengthen the “Help Hubei” section. One to two
special products were used for each period as the fulcrum to introduce
Hubei specialty products, so that customers’ emotions and the Group’s
service concept of “all goods as one wished, saving money every day”
and “connecting hearts while making profits with chain stores” resonate
with our corporate values. During the Reporting Period, the Group actively
participated in activities such as the use of city normalization consumer
vouchers jointly launched by local governments and online payment
platforms, combining offline store promotion with online promotion, to

help release consumption potential.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Paying high attention to food safety management

The Group continued maintain a high-standard and normalized food
safety management. In addition to adhering to routine food safety
management, it formulated prevention and control plans, disinfection
guidelines and other guidance documents in a timely manner during the
epidemic to set standards for store epidemic prevention and control.
According to the trend of the epidemic, food safety management has
been implemented from all aspects from food cold chain management,
product shelf life management, fresh product quality control, etc., to
strengthen the food safety awareness of front-line operators. Knowledge
of food safety, hygiene and epidemic prevention and price management
was integrated into specific work scenarios through the organization of
trainings on cloud and development of fresh food daily scenario-based
practical competitions, so that training content and actual operations are
closely integrated, and the food safety management level of employees is
effectively improved. During the epidemic, the Group strictly implemented
various prevention and control measures to ensure customers’ safety
through comprehensive on-site disinfection, customer temperature
measurement and code scanning before entering the store, installation
of one-meter lines, regular nucleic acid testing of all store employees

and environmental monitoring.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Continuously optimizing logistics and distribution resources

During the Reporting Period, the efficiency of logistics distribution of the
two distribution centers was improved through continuous optimization
of the process: the operation mode of automatic sorting of goods in the
normal temperature distribution center effectively reduced the equipment
idling rate and increased product input success rate; the operation mode
of automatic boxes sorting is changed from the original unified delivery to
the allocation area, to the pick-and-deliver mode, which greatly reduces
the standby time of the sorting machines and improves sorting efficiency.
The standardization of processing procedure for different products and
speed up the tracing of differences contributed to the significant drop in
difference ratio. The fresh food distribution center strictly implemented
the commodity traceability code management of the Beijing cold chain
food traceability platform, and strictly implemented procedures such
as requesting certificates and tickets, checking nucleic acid testing,
disinfection certificates, vehicle temperature, sanitation and epidemic
prevention, etc. for the acceptance of imported cold chain goods.
Commodities in and out of the warehouse were disinfected with alcohol
on the outer packaging, and the requirements for storage of imported
cold chain foods, disinfection of delivery vehicles, and protection of
personnel in contact with imported foods in cold chain were implemented
to ensure the safe and stable operation of logistics and distribution under

the normalization of the epidemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Operation results of retail business

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience
stores, department stores and online retail business and the gross profit

margin is set out as follows:

TRENNAEHEELKRES KO8T - EHE
FAEESNTEIERAREMNENDOTER :

For the 12 months ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—HL+=M@A

Increase/
2020 2019 (Decrease)
—B-BF —TNF ZE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBTFT
Retail business TEEK:
Hypermarkets AES 1,161,619 1,145,451 1.4%
Supermarkets fRE™ 2,732,459 2,583,997 57%
Convenience stores BRI 380,195 347,959 9.3%
Department stores BEWES 13,165 27,457 (52.1%)
(including commissions) Hep : falA 9,784 22,311 (56.1%)
Total retail principal operating ZE&X&XHKWAE
income 4,287,438 4,104,864 4.4%
Gross profit margin of directly- HEAES  HAEBmk
operated hypermarkets, FEREEFE (%)
supermarkets and convenience
stores (%) 17.0% 17.2% (0.2pp)

During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income of the
Group increased by approximately 4.4%. This was mainly attributable to
(i) during the Reporting Period, especially in the first quarter, consumers
mostly cook at home instead of eating out. The sales of commodities
of inelastic demand such as meat, eggs, fruits, vegetables, milk, grains,
oils, and condiments increased significantly; and (i) the integrated
online and offline omni-channel network of the Group met the surge in
online shopping demand. The above two factors brought an increase of
approximately 5.22% in same-store sales during the Reporting Period. As
the epidemic has been brought under control and entered into normalized
management, all industries have resumed work and production, especially

catering services, and sales of the Group have stabilized.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail
business (excluding department stores) was 17.0% during the Reporting

Period, which was basically the same as 17.2% in the last period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Further advancing the operating system

During the Reporting Period, the Group relied on the four-in-one

development support system of “funds, information, logistics, and

talents”, adhering to the management concept of “commodities +
services”, the Group actively adjusted business measures in light of
market changes, broadened business models and logistics service
capabilities to effectively respond to the epidemic and achieve sustainable
development; further strengthened the operation of its own brand, and
strengthened the operation of its own brand products in categories such
as snacks, condiments, goods, and daily chemicals by adopting a parallel
model of independent research and development and cooperation and
customization. The Group continuously expanded online business and
actively expanded the upstream suppliers and the downstream customer
channels of the e-commerce business while ensuring the maintenance of
the depth of cooperation of the existing e-commerce platform. The online
business of the Group continues to grow. Besides, the Group also further
improved its management level, deepened the construction of customer
channels, expanded the development of cross-border business, and

actively built overseas supply chains to further consolidate market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Steadily promoting the development of logistics and strengthening

competitiveness in the market

During the Reporting Period, withstanding the pressure of logistics and
transportation during the epidemic, the Group focused on “ensuring
people’s livelihood, stabilizing goods supply, keeping transportation flow”,
implementing precise epidemic prevention and control measures, and
other measures to ensure the smooth transportation of materials by
understanding road traffic condition promptly, coordinating resources
from the relevant government departments, industry organizations and
transportation companies. The Group also promoted the socialized
division of labor and coordination of logistics, and cooperated with third
parties transportation companies in logistics distribution operations,
conducted in-depth data analysis and precise control of transportation
operations by making full use of the advanced technology of professional
companies to improve the economic benefits and competitiveness in
logistics services; and further promoted the construction of the Fangshan
automated storage and retrieval system logistics project in an orderly
manner. During the Reporting Period, various shelves, sorting equipment,
and steel picking platforms of the project were installed in an orderly
manner to provide logistics support for the expansion of the wholesale
business and enhance the Group’s competitiveness in the logistics

market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

Operation results of wholesale business B REEE
The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are  AEBEH# T T EEBWAREFRHDFTAT ¢
analyzed as follows:

For the 12 months ended

31 December
BE+t-—A=+—HL+=@A

Increase/
2020 2019 (Decrease)
—E-EF TN o w
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Wholesale principal operating IR EEIR AR E
income recognized by Chaopi @A
Group* 7,102,042 6,842,393 3.8%
Less: Intersegment sales W DEEIEE (403,265) (433,286) (6.9%)
Sales to franchisees $HE T INEEJE 4 2,669 2,652 0.6%
Total wholesale principal B ETEERBAGT
operating income 6,701,446 6,411,759 4.5%
Gross profit margin**(%) FERE> (%) 7.9% 10.1% (2.2pp)

* Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (the — * M EEEILRAREERMBER QR EHE
“Chaopi Trading”) and its subsidiaries. B REKMBAR
** This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Group including  ** & EFRIEFANEEMBLEGEENEFNR(BS

intersegment sales. DEBEHE)

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income — M&EHIA - HBEEK T LWALENLI5% @ £
recognized by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 4.5% and MR : ()IREHAEREFEMAMBESOEES
was mainly due to (i) the development of the business of cross-border — HRIFER AR : RHZTHTEBTE - BhiE
e-commerce beauty cosmetics products which resulting in the growth of ~ B SRIHEE M °

sales revenue during the Reporting Period; and (ii) the growth of sales of

grain and edible oil due to the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of Chaopi Group was
7.9%, representing a decrease from 10.1% for the gross profit margin of
the corresponding period; the reduction is mainly because of: (i) in order
to optimize the inventory structure and speed up inventory turnover, the
Group had adjusted marketing strategies for beauty business in time,
increased the proportion of offline distribution channels, and strengthened
sales promotion, which resulting in a decline in gross profit rate; and (i)
affected by the epidemic, the sales of snack foods declined and the return
of unsold goods increased during the Spring Festival, which resulted in

a decrease in gross profit margin.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBRA
Gross profit E7

Gross profit margin (%) FEFE (%)
Earnings before interest and tax B FATFE

Net profit b ZlbE

Net profit margin (%) SHFER (%)

Net profit attributable to BEERERAAFEF B

shareholders of the
parent company
Net profit margin attributable BERSRARIEANEE (%)
to shareholders of the parent
company (%)
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For the 12 months ended
31 December

BE+ZA=+—-HL+=@EA

Increase/
2020 2019 (Decrease)
—ECEF —E-NF a0, w
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
11,004,132 10,555,190 4.3%
1,291,940 1,419,323 (9.0%)
11.7% 13.4% (1.7pp)
338,381 374,200 (9.6%)
85,970 97,087 (11.5%)
0.8% 0.9% (0.1pp)
56,304 52,935 6.4%

0.5% 0.5% -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
increased by approximately 4.3%, of which retail principal operating
income increased by approximately 4.4%, and wholesale principal

operating income increased by approximately 4.5%.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group decreased by
approximately 9.0% compared to the last corresponding period. During

the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin was 11.7% (2019: 13.4%).

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income mainly comprises of income from promotional
activities, rental income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and

counters.

The Group’s other operating income decreased from RMB1,103,032,165
in 2019 to RMB979,665,600 during the Reporting Period by approximately
11.2%, mainly due to (i) during the COVID-19 epidemic, in accordance
with national policies, the rent income of tenants has been reduced or
exempted; and (i) under the epidemic control measures, offline promotional
activities have been reduced in order to reduce the concentration of

personnel.

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, depreciation
and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses software service fees, packing

expenses, and advertising and promotion expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

The Group’s selling expenses were RMB1,742,320,397 during the
Reporting Period, representing an decrease of approximately 5.2%
compared to the corresponding period in 2019. The decrease was
primarily due to (i) due to the influence of COVID-19, the decreased in
advertisement fees and promotional fees targeted at the terminals of
the wholesale business, along with the adjustment of the composition
of e-commerce commodities; (i) the adjustment of leasing guideline
which caused the sales expenses decreased while the financial expenses

increased; (iii) the closure of stores during the reporting period resulted

in a decrease in depreciation and amortization.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), and entertainment

expense.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB250,296,132 during
the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 16.9%
compared to the corresponding period in 2019. The decrease was mainly
because: the government reduced the insurance fees payable related to
wage expenditure during the COVID-19 epidemic, such as endowment
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance and

medical insurance by 50% for the period from February to June 2020.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses decreased from RMB196,678,193 in
2019 to RMB171,561,580 in 2020. The main reasons for the decrease
are that (i) during the Reporting Period, the Group received loan interest
discount from key enterprises in the prevention and control of the epidemic
to reduce interest expenditures in Beijing City and (ii) due to the impact
of the national monetary policy, the cost of borrowing for the Group’s

decreased over the same period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Company Limited
(the “Maolisheng Hong Kong”), Hong Kong Asia Company Limited (the
“Chaopi Hong Kong”) and Chaopi International Trading (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (the “International Trading Hong Kong”) are registered
and established in Hong Kong. In accordance with Hong Kong taxation

law, the relevant corporate income tax rate is 16.5%.

Except for Maolisheng Hong Kong, Chaopi Hong Kong and International
Trading Hong Kong, other members of the Group were subject to
corporate income tax at a rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on
their respective taxable profit pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws

and regulations.

Income tax expense decreased from RMB81,715,652 in 2019 to
RMB79,908,305 in 2020, primarily due to the decrease in 2020 taxable
profits.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
increased by approximately 6.4% from RMB52,935,436 in 2019 to
RMB56,304,490 in 2020.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately RMBO0.14
for 2020, which was calculated on the basis of the number of 412,220,000
shares. The basic earnings per share for 2019 was RMBO0.13. The
increase in earning per share was mainly due to the increase of net profit

attributable to shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations

through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and debentures.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB3,172,651,010 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land use rights of RMB1,270,770,096), and non-current liabilities of
RMB1,378,530,626(comprising of bonds payable of RMB402,932,044).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
RMB4,895,980,459. Current assets mainly comprised of cash and cash
equivalents of RMB1,032,858,751, inventories of RMB1,503,939,573,
accounts receivable and notes receivable of RMB982,096,991 and
prepayments and other receivables of RMB1,090,636,349. The Group
had current liabilities of RMB4,511,640,021. Current liabilities mainly
comprised of accounts payable and notes payables of RMB1,170,399,783,
short-term borrowings of RMB2,334,237,881, contract liabilities of

RMB462,447,201 and other payables of RMB264,625,097.

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank loans of RMB2,334,237,881,
which consisted of accounts receivable factored bank loans of
RMB13,392,510 unsecured bank loans of RMB2,314,320,471. pledged
loan is that Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading, provided a pledge guarantee to Bank of Beijing Co.,
Ltd. Shanghai Branch with a time deposit certificate of RMB8,000,000
under its name, and the loan amount obtained was USD1,000,000,
which was converted into RMB6,524,900 at the exchange rate of USD
to RMB6.5249 on 31 December 2020. All the Group’s bank loans bear

interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 4.75%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Certain of the Group’s margin deposits of RMB116,101,904 were pledged
for notes payable of RMB449,442,574 as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
72.9%, which is lower than that of 74.3% as at 31 December 2019 due

to reduction in interest beaning liabilities.

* Represented by: Total Debt/Total Asset

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally denominated

in RMB

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 5,300 employees in the
PRC (31 December 2019: 5,669). The total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB710,525,591 (2019: RMB750,557,336).
The staff emolument (including directors and supervisors) of the Group
are based on position, duty, experience, performance, and market rates,

in order to maintain their remunerations at a competitive level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates
in the retirement benefit contribution retirement benefits scheme for
its employees operated by the relevant local government authorities
in the PRC. The Group is required to make contributions for those
employees who are registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a
rate of 16% (2019: 20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances. The Group has no further obligation associated with the
said defined contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the above
mentioned annual contributions. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes amounted to approximately

RMB39,766,572 for the Reporting Period (2019: RMB66,757,466).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings in various format
and topics for its employees to improve their skills and professional
knowledge. The Group held more than 80 seminars during the year, and

all employees have benefited from them.

CAPITAL INJECTION
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

INTO TWO NON-WHOLLY

On 26 August 2020, Chaopi Trading (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) contributed an additional capital of RMB28,000,000, which
has been fully paid by Chaopi Trading into its wholly owned subsidiary,
Beijing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Company Limited (“Chaopi
Zhaoyang”), increasing the registered capital of Chaopi Zhaoyang from
RMB44,000,000 to RMB72,000,000. After the increase of registered
capital, the Company continued to be a holder of an indirect equity

interest of approximately 79.85% in Chaopi Zhaoyang.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 27 August 2020, Chaopi Trading (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) contributed an additional capital of RMB28,000,000, which
has been fully paid by Chaopi Trading into its wholly owned subsidiary,
Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Zhongde”),
increasing the registered capital of Chaopi Zhongde from RMB65,000,000
to RMB93,000,000. After the increase of registered capital, the Company
continued to be a holder of an indirect equity interest of approximately

79.85% in Chaopi Zhongde.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 9 September 2020, the Group, through its non-wholly-owned
subsidiary, Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Chaopi International
Trading (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“International Trading Hong
Kong”), to mainly engage in trading related business. The registered
capital of International Trading Hong Kong was HKD5,000,000, which has
been fully paid up by Chaopi Trading. The Company held an indirect equity

interest of approximately 79.85% in International Trading Hong Kong.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

QUALIFIED OPINION ON THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), the
auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) has issued a qualified opinion
(the “Qualified Opinion”) on the independent auditor’s report on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. For details of the Qualified Opinion, please refer to the

Auditor’s Report on pages 121 to 132 of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

MANAGEMENT’S VIEW ON THE QUALITIED OPINION

The financial information of Jinan Chaopi Company was included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 based on the information currently available to the
management of the Group (the “Management”). However, due to the
insufficiency in appropriate audit evidence provided to the Auditor as the
result of the said misappropriation of corporate documents and books
of Jinan Chaopi Company by the minority shareholder of Jinan Chaopi
Company (the “Minority Shareholder”), the Auditor could not ascertain
the completeness and accuracy of such information and therefore issued
the qualified opinion as shown above (the “Qualified Opinion”). Based on
the information currently available to the Management, the total assets
and net assets of Jinan Chaopi Company as at 31 December 2020
were RMB89.4850 million and RMB-4.0681 million, which account for
1.11% and -0.19% of the corresponding amounts in the Company’s
2020 consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, respectively;
the operating income and net profit of Jinan Chaopi Company for
2020 were RMB29.0561 million and RMB-9.5358 million respectively,
which account for 0.24% and -11.09% of the corresponding amounts
in the Company’s 2020 consolidated income statement, respectively.
Considering that the financial results of Jinan Chaopi Company was
relatively insignificant compared to the consolidated financial results of
the Group, and after discussion with the Auditor, the Management is of
the view that notwithstanding that the Auditor’s scope of review of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is restricted, the magnitude and materiality
of the adjustment(s) or disclosure(s) that would have been made thereto
without such audit scope restriction on the Company’s financial position

are expected to be limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ACTION PLAN OF THE GROUP TO ADDRESS THE
QUALIFIED OPINION

In response to the said misappropriation of corporate documents and
books of Jinan Chaopi Company by the Minority Shareholder, the Group
has strived to resolve the disputes and has taken various steps and
measures, including seeking advice from its legal advisers as to the laws
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC Legal Advisers”) on the
possible legal actions and remedies against the Minority Shareholder. In
December 2019, Jinan Chaopi Company, as the plaintiff filed a lawsuit
with the People’s Court in Jinan City against the Minority Shareholder
for the return of Jinan Chaopi Company’s corporate documents and
books withheld by him. The first instance judgement was handed down
in October 2020, dismissing the claims of Jinan Chaopi Company. After
consulting with the PRC Legal Advisers, Jinan Chaopi Company further
appealed to Jinan Intermediate People’s Court in Shandong Province
and it is expected that the second instance trial will be held no later
than the end of 2021, the detail of the time schedule is subject to the

arrangement of the second-instance court.

The Management will keep cooperating with the PRC Legal Advisers in
collecting the relevant evidence in support of the legal proceedings against
the Minority Shareholder, and closely monitoring the progress so as to
take appropriate measures in a timely manner. If Jinan Chaopi Company is
granted with favourable judgement for such legal proceedings, the Group
will promptly apply to the court for mandatory enforcement to retrieve the
misappropriated documents and items from the Minority Shareholder, and
ensure the provision of sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to the
Auditor for performing all the relevant audit procedures for the purpose of
removing the Qualified Opinion from the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2021. However, if the legal
proceedings against the Minority Shareholder has yet been concluded
before the audit work for the next year’s annual report, the Group will
make further effort to liaise with the Minority Shareholder on the provision
of the relevant financial information of Jinan Chaopi Company to the

extent that is sufficient for performing the relevant audit work.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S VIEW ON THE QUALIFIED
OPINION

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had critically
reviewed the Qualified Opinion, the Management’s view thereon and the
action plan of the Group to address the Qualified Opinion, and also had
discussions with the Auditor in relation thereto. Based on the information
available, the Audit Committee concurs with the Management’s view
with respect to the Qualified Opinion and is also of the view that the
Management should continue its efforts in implementing the actions and
measures set out in the action plan with the intention of removing the

Qualified Opinion.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group had following significant

events:

1. Acquisition of the Property located in Huairou District,
Beijing City, the PRC
Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 12
December 2020 in relation to the Acquisition (as defined below)
and the announcement of the Company dated 11 January 2021 in
relation to the voting results of the extraordinary general meeting

of the Company held on 11 January 2021 (the “EGM”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 30 November 2020, Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial
Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) with Beijing
Shoulian Commercial Group Co., Ltd. (the “Vendor”) pursuant to
which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell, a property (the “Property”)
located at No. Bing 46, Kaifang Road, Huairou District, Beijing
City, the PRC at the total consideration (the “Consideration”) of
RMB101,735,130 (the “Acquisition”). The Property has been leased
by the Group from the Vendor since January 2009 to carry out the

Group’s supermarket operation.

At the EGM, the resolution in relation to the approval of the
Acquisition was duly passed by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, all conditions precedent to the Acquisition were fulfilled

and completion of the Acquisition took place on 11 January 2021.

As at the date of this report, the title transfer and registration
procedures in relation to the Property are in progress, and the
Purchaser has paid RMB40,694,040, being 40% of the Consideration,
in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. RMB61,041,090,
being the remaining 60% of the Consideration, will be paid by the
Purchaser in cash within 10 business days following the completion

of the property title transfer and registration procedures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

2. Change in the composition of connected persons at the

issuer level

The Company was informed by Beijing Chaofu State-owned Assets
Administration Company (“Chaofu Company”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, that upon completion of the relevant
equity transfers, Beijing Hongchao Weiye State-owned Assets
Management Co., Ltd (“Hongchao Weiye”) and Beijing Jin Chaoyang
State-owned Capital Operation Management Co., Ltd. (“Jin
Chaoyang”) has become subsidiaries of Chaofu Company, hence
connected persons of the Company. As a result, certain continuing
transactions under the existing leases with Hongchao Weiye and
Jin Chaoyang have become the connected transactions of the
Company. For further details, please refer to the announcement of

the Company dated 5 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant events
occurred that materially affect the Group’s financial condition or operation

subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

In 2021, although there remains many uncertain factors in respect of the
COVID-19 epidemic and the external environment, with the construction
of a new development pattern with the domestic cycle as the main focus
and the mutual promotion of the international and domestic cycles, the
Chinese consumer market will remain resilient, vigorous and will show

new growth, and the trend of recovery growth will continue in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of retail business, the Group will focus on improving commodity
efficiency and service capabilities, accelerating the iteration of commodity
circulation by optimizing the new product introduction mechanism, and
continuing to strengthen the development of its own brand and customized
buyout products, and continue to refine store management projects and
the family food product line for customers to meet customer needs in terms
of ready-to-eat, convenience and diversity of products, and to continue to
expand the automatic replenishment of daily products to further reduce
out-of-stock situation in stores, strengthen the management of the fresh
product supply chain and enhance the market competitiveness of the
fresh commodity by taking measures such as direct sourcing from the
origin and bidding mechanism for key commodities, and strengthen online
and offline linkage marketing by virtue of online and offline integrated
operation advantages, and keep abreast of changes in customer demand

in a timely manner by using big data for precise marketing.

In terms of wholesale business, the Group will further strengthen the
planning and analysis and management of supplier brands, establish
a sound supplier pipeline, product access and evaluation system, and
maintain the safe and benign development of the Group’s business
brands and own brand development. The Group will continue to develop
the international market, deepen cooperation with high-quality overseas
suppliers, increase brand concentration and the depth of cooperation;
orderly promote the construction, equipment procurement and migration,
full process joint commission and the trial operation of the second phase
of the Fangshan Automated Storage and Retrieval System logistic project,
S0 as to build a modern logistics demonstration base and promote market
competitiveness of the wholesale business through the improvement of

logistics service capabilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N
TEEBWME

The Group recognizes the importance of a robust governance framework
to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the Company and long
term sustainable value for the shareholders. The Group has adopted the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with the objective of enhancing the quality
of corporate governance of the Group and the conduct of its business
in a fair, transparent and ethical way. This corporate governance report
describes the corporate governance practices of the Group and explains

the applications of the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles of
and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the Reporting

Period, save for the directors’ retirement by rotation as explained below.

Code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that
every director (including those appointed for a specific term) of a listed
issuer shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulate that each
director shall be elected by the general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and be eligible for re-election upon
the expiry of the term. Having taken into account the continuity of the
Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s Articles of
Association contain no express provision for the director’s retirement
by rotation and thus deviate from the aforementioned provision of the

Corporate Governance Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All the directors with whom specific
enquiries have been made confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and code of
conduct regarding their securities transactions throughout the Reporting

Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for safeguarding
the best interest of the Group and accountable to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”). Matters that are required to be
determined or considered by the Board include overall group strategies
of the Group, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and other
substantial operational and financial matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s management
include the preparation of financial accounts for the Board’s approval,
execution of business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board,
implementation of an adequate system of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with the relevant statutory

requirements, rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REAEE

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2018 annual general
meeting (the “2018 Annual General Meeting”) held on 24 May 2019, each
of Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Ms. Zhang Yan,
Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward
has been re-elected as a director, and Mr. Zhang Liwei has been elected
as an executive director of the Company. The aforementioned directors
(including all non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) were appointed for a three-year term, and such term will
expire upon the end of the annual general meeting for the year ended

31 December 2021 (the “2021 Annual General Meeting”).

Due to work adjustment, Mr. Shang Yongtian has ceased to be an
executive director of the Company with effect from the conclusion of
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30 October
2020 (the “EGM”). Following the approval of the Shareholders at the
EGM, Mr. Li Shenlin has been appointed as an executive director for
the term from the conclusion of the EGM to the conclusion of the 2021
Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the Board currently consists of four
executive directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Zhang Liwei, Ms. Li Chunyan
and Mr. Li Shenlin), two non-executive directors (Ms. Zhang Yan and
Mr. Li Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors (Mr.
Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr. Li Jianwen
serving as the chairman of the Board. All of the directors have fulfilled

their responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting Period.
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Each of Mr. Zhang Liwei, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Li Shenlin and Mr. Shang
Yongtian (ceased to be director on October 2020) does not receive a
director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive
duties and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company.
Each of them is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary, a performance
based bonus (to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results) and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable
PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salaries for
each of the forthcoming term shall be approved by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Board. The chairman of the Board is entitled to remuneration (including
an annual basic salary and a performance-based bonus to be determined
by reference to the Company’s annual financial results, granted and
approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the Beijing Chaoyang District Government), and other
allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law and
regulations. The non-executive directors will not receive any remuneration.
Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive director is entitled to
receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive).
Each of the other two independent non-executive directors is entitled to
receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive).
The aforesaid remunerations of the directors of the Company have been
considered and approved by an ordinary resolution passed at the 2018

Annual General Meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REAEE

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of having
at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.
Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met the requirement of
having at least one independent non-executive director (Mr. Choi Onward)
who has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received
from each of the three independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation in respect of their independence. The Company is of the
opinion that all the independent non-executive directors are independent

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Reasonable notice periods and sufficient relevant information have been
given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board meetings
and make appropriate decisions in relation to matters to be discussed.
All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern in the agenda
of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to inspect all relevant

corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 89 to 93

of this annual report.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company, is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Zhang Liwei, acting as the general manager (appointed as the general
manager of the Company with effect from 28 July 2020) and executive
director of the Company, is responsible for daily business development
and management of the Company. (Mr. Shang Yongtian ceased to be
the general manager of the Company since 28 July 2020, and ceased

to be an executive director of the Company since 30 October 2020.)

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Li Shenlin,
are responsible for the financial affairs, construction and security of the

Group, respectively.
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Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position so

as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code,

the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover potential

legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code provision,

the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the

directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate activities.

During the Reporting Period, seven Board meetings (not including written

Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the directors

attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) FTEXGE(EFR)
Mr. Zhang Liwei R EEA

Ms. Li Chunyan ==t

Mr. Li Shenlin* FIEMRFE L

Mr. Shang Yongtian** PR oK B ST A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan REXT

Mr. Li Shunxiang IS A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIKHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRESE

Mr. Chen Liping fR S A

Mr. Wang Liping FAFEAE

* Mr. Li Shenlin has been appointed as an executive director of the Board

with effect from 30 October 2020.

ke

Mr. Shang Yongtian has ceased to be an executive director of the Board
with effect from 30 October 2020.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTOR AT THE GENERAL
MEETING

During the Reporting Period, two general meetings, which comprise an
annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting, were held
and the attendance records of the directors attending such meetings in

person are set out below:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) ETENEE(EFELR)
Mr. Zhang Liwei SRAESE
Ms. Li Chunyan EX-5 3

Mr. Li Shenlin® FIEMSE £
Mr. Shang Yongtian** P& oK H SE A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan sREX L

Mr. Li Shunxiang FER A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Choi Onward BEREEAE

Mr. Chen Liping BRI SE A

Mr. Wang Liping F AT A

Mr. Li Shenlin has been appointed as an executive director of the Board
with effect from 30 October 2020.

* Mr. Shang Yongtian has ceased to be an executive director of the Board
with effect from 30 October 2020.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged to
attend external forums or training courses on relevant topics which may

count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated in in-house
training courses and workshops in respect of corporate governance
and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and responsibilities,
the relevant directors have participated in appropriate continuous
development activities. All the directors have provided a record of the

training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the management of the Company also provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect
of the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
development in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.

The participation by individual directors in the professional development

programs in 2020 is recorded in the table below.
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Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) FENEE(EFER)
Mr. Zhang Liwei AR

Ms. Li Chunyan FEBLL

Mr. Li Shenlin* FIEMSAE

Mr. Shang Yongtian** oK E S A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan sREX T

Mr. Li Shunxiang FERESE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIkHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRERE

Mr. Chen Liping PR

Mr. Wang Liping FAFRAE

* Mr. Li Shenlin has been appointed as an executive director of the Board

with effect from 30 October 2020.

ke

Mr. Shang Yongtian has ceased to be an executive director of the Board
with effect from 30 October 2020.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Li Jianwen is the chairman of the Board. Mr. Zhang Liwei (appointed
on 28 July 2020) is the general manager of the Company. Mr. Shang
Yongtian had been the general manager of the Company and he resigned
from the position on 28 July 2020. The chairman of the Board and the
general manager of the Company are two clearly defined positions. The
chairman is responsible for the effective operation of the Board while the
general manager is in charge of the Group’s daily business development
and management. The Company’s Articles of Association set out the
respective duties and powers of the chairman and the general manager

in detail.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

There are currently three Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee, to assist the

Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the sixth session
of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly consists of
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi Onward who was
appointed as the chairman and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping

who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line with
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
provides an important link between the Board and the external auditors
in matters falling within the scope of the audit of the Group, and is
responsible for the review of financial information of the Company, the
oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, and exercises the corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external audit, internal
controls and risk evaluation, and provides comments and suggestions

to the Board.
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Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to develop
and review the policies and practices of the Company on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the directors and employees; and to review
the compliance by the Company with the Corporate Governance Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2019 annual
report and the 2020 quarterly and interim results, and discussing relevant
matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans of 2020 and
corporate governance. The attendance records of the members of the

Audit Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (Chairman) BLEEE(FE)
Mr. Chen Liping PR A
Mr. Wang Liping FAFHRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee had

performed the following work:

1. Reviewed annual and interim financial statements and the related
results announcements, documents and other matters or issues

raised by external auditors;

2. Reviewed the findings of external auditors; Da Hua Certified Public
Accountants LLP has been the auditor of the Company during the
Reporting Period, and the Board agreed to propose the appointment

of the auditors recommended by the Audit Committee;

3. Reviewed the independence of the external auditors and the

engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4. Reviewed and supervised financial reporting and risk management

and internal control systems of the Group;

5. Reviewed annual audit plan of the Group;

6. Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report of the Group;

7. Other governance functions granted by the Board

Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee shall be kept by Secretary to

the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2020 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors on
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, internal

control and financial reporting matters.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the Remuneration Committee of the sixth session of the Board was
established, in which Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive
director) was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive
director) and Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive director)

were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in line
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for the Directors’
and senior management of the Company, and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for determining remuneration policies;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. In accordance
with the code provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Remuneration Committee has been delegated with responsibilities by
the Board, and is responsible for determining the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, and to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held for discussing and considering the remuneration of the
Company’s newly elected executive director. The attendance records
of the members of the Remuneration Committee attending such meeting

in person are set out below:
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Mr. Wang Liping (Chairman) TR (ERE)
Mr. Chen Liping BRI SE A
Mr. Li Jianwen FENXEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee

had performed the following work:

Determine the remuneration of a newly elected executive director and

approve the relevant director’s service contract.

In accordance with code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, by 31 December 2020, the remuneration list of senior management

classified by remuneration band is as follows:

Remuneration band (RMB/month) FHEARI (A ¥ T)

0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000

Minutes of meetings of Remuneration Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
sixth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen Liping
(an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Wang Liping (an

independent non-executive director) were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential candidates
for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments, reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
(in particular the chairman of the Board and the general manager) for
directors. The Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board was adopted
at the Board meeting on 23 August 2013, pursuant to which all the
nominations of any member of the Board should be made in accordance
with the Diversity Policy by taking into account certain objective criteria
(including without limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) and having due regard to the benefits of a diversified Board.
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During the Reporting Period, three meetings of the Nomination Committee
had been held for discussing and recommending the candidates for
the election/appointment of the general manager, discussing and
recommending candidate for the election/appointment of director(s),
reviewing relevant matters including the structure and composition of
the Board of the Company and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. The attendance records of the
members of the Nomination Committee attending such meetings in

person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (Chairman) PR A (FE)
Mr. Wang Liping F A A
Mr. Li Jianwen TEXEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee had

performed the following work:

1. Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, and
proposed suggestions on changes of the Board according to
development strategy of the Group the Nomination Committee
assessed the current structure of the Board from diversification
policies on the size and composition, skills, knowledge, experience
and other respects of its members and compared it with listed
companies in the same industry. As for the current structure of
the Board, the composition conforms to the Company’s business
development and each director has the required skills and
experience, diversified opinions and perspectives; the combination
of executive directors, non-executive directors, and independent
non-executive directors are also kept in balance. Among the
three independent non-executive directors, one is a professional
accountant with accounting management experience. Each director
has sufficient experience and the ability necessary to fulfill his duties,
regularly checks the Company’s business and financial position,
and participates in the training on directors’ continuing professional

development.
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2.  Reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive director: each independent director should sign written
documents to confirm with the Company that none of the conditions
in paragraph 3.13 of the Listing Rules existed. If there are any

questions, the independent directors should promptly inform the

Company.

3. Adopted the Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board and took
various factors into consideration, including educational background,

age, knowledge, skills etc., when making the nominations.

Minutes of meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board of Directors.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee of the Company
(the “Supervisory Committee”) consists of two shareholder-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu and Mr. Yang Baoqun), two independent
supervisors (Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun) and two staff-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves

as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
auditors’ independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the auditing
process. It receives letter from the auditors confirming their independence
and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of the auditors to
consider the scope of their audit, approve their fees, and the scope and

appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by them.

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) (KZE &
TR B S FT(IF R B A #)) (“Da Hua”) has been appointed as the auditors
of the Company for the period from the conclusion of the 2019 annual
general meeting of the Company (the “2019 Annual General Meeting”)
to the conclusion of the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company agreed to pay Da
Hua RMB1,100,000 as the 2020 auditing fees and RMB200,000 for non-
audit services in respect of reviewing the Group’s 2020 interim financial
statements. Da Hua also undertook the audits of the subsidiaries of the
Group for the year 2020, and accordingly, the total audit expenses paid

by the Group is disclosed in note (V)41 on page 303 of this report.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF
ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable accounting

standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 121 to 132

of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The clear-cut governance structure, policy and procedure, and report
mechanism of the Group’s risk management and internal control system

enables the Group to conduct the relevant risk management.

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
system, the Board should review the effectiveness of the system. The
management is responsible for designing and executing the internal
control system in order to manage the risks that the Company is faced
with to recognize and manage risks to minimize, relieve, transfer or
avoid these risks. The Board elaborates on the above risk management
and internal control system to make clear that it aims to manage risks
rather than eliminate the risks leading to failure of achieving business
objectives. Thus, the system can only make reasonable, rather than

absolute, guarantee against material misrepresentation or loss.

Risk management structure

The risk management structure is composed of the Board, the Audit
Committee, an internal control department and the leading group for

the construction of the rule of law (the “Internal Control Department”).

The Board undertakes the responsibility of continuous supervision of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group. It will annually

review the effectiveness of the system through the Audit Committee.
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The Internal Audit Department, established in 2009, which has been
reorganized into the Internal Control Department in 2018, assists the
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
of the Group, recognizing shortcomings of the design and operation of
internal control and proposing suitable improvement suggestions. If major
risks or serious internal control mistakes are discovered, the Internal
Audit Department should report to the Audit Committee and the Board
in a timely manner, and it should make correction plans and identify the

responsible persons, and follow up to ensure improvement in the situation.

The Group has established a leading group for the construction of the
rule of law in 2020. The group is mainly responsible for coordinating and
deploying the construction of the rule of law in the corporate, studying
and formulating relevant systems to promote the rule of law, guiding
and advancing the construction of the Group’s legal risk prevention, and
comprehensively improving the level of legal construction in operation

and management of the Group.

Each functional departments are responsible for executing risk
management procedures and internal control measures in daily operation
and management, and report the risks within their operation and functions

to the management.

The management assists the Board in implementing policies and
procedures related to risks and control to identify and evaluate risks
faced. In addition, it participates in the design, operation and supervision

of suitable internal control measures to minimize and control those risks.

The Group has formulated and adopted a “Legal Risk Management and
Reporting System”, to provide effective policies in identifying, evaluating
and managing major risks. The risk management group identify the risks
affecting the Group’s business objectives at least once annually, and
make risk mitigation plans and designate certain persons to address

these risks through standard evaluation and ranking mechanism.
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Risk management procedure

All functional departments are responsible for streamlining their business
process. They should recognize and evaluate the risks within their
business and propose and implement risk management solutions and

should annually report recognized major risks to the management.

The Audit Committee annually inspect and discuss possible risks and
major strategic risks that may have significant impact on the future of
the Group, and review the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control system.

Each functional departments should identify and evaluate financial
risks and other risks in aspects such as investment audit, financial
management, legal compliance etc., forming a regular risk evaluation
mechanism. They should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in
the operation and development, and track and monitor the risk trend

changes and their control progress and effectiveness in a timely manner.

Conducting comprehensive risk evaluation and assessment before major
events such as acquisition of equity interest and disposal of major asset

can effectively control business risks.

Conducting annual risk review can institutionalize and standardize internal

audit.

Internal control

The Internal Control Department annually evaluates and reviews the internal
control and risk management system, and evaluates the effectiveness
and adequacy of the internal control and risk management system from
perspectives of controlling environment, risk assessment, internal control

activity, monitoring measure as well as information and communication.
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The Company established an organizational structure with clear-cut
responsibilities and specific reporting procedures, the Group defines
clearly the powers, rights and liabilities of all business and operation
departments, and ensures the effective check and balance through

approval and review procedures.

The Company also conducts internal control through comprehensive
budget management, management of new and additional budget,
financial reporting and analysis and business and operation analysis
meetings. In particular, the Company can recognize risks, and monitor
implementation of correction measures through data mining, collection

and comparison.

Control environment

The Company focuses on institutionalization and standardization
construction, and regularly clarifies, revises and optimizes business
procedures and regulations. In particular, the Company improves relevant
systems to address new problems emerging in risk management in a
timely manner, strengthens training and education of relevant procedures,
and achieves management objectives through implementing various

procedures and systems.

Risk assessment

The Internal Control Department regularly clarifies and recognizes
systematic risks; relevant functional departments recognize and evaluate
business risks within their responsibilities, and they recognize, evaluate
and analyze risks in finance and other fields from such perspectives
as investment examination and approval, financial management, laws
and regulations, and form a regular risk evaluation mechanism. They
should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in the operation and

development.
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Supervision measures

The Audit Committee continues to conduct regular internal compliance

inspection and risk management and internal control review.

The securities and legal department, the external legal professional
team, the audit team, and the company secretary ensure observation
of the Listing Rules and supervise compliance of applicable laws and

regulations.

The Internal Control Department independently reviews risk management

and internal control.

Information and communication

The Company continuously develops and maintains information
management systems, including Store MIS System, Logistics Management
System, Human Resources Management System, Financial Management
System, Fixed Assets Management System, Capital Management System,
to support the business, operation, financial reporting and information

disclosure of the Group.

Timely communication and exchange can be achieved through the

intranet, OA Office System and the Email system.

Shareholders can acquire the Company’s information through the

Company’s official website and the investor relations department.

5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BB
ERZEEREETANARRELETA
BRMA RS ERET

o

;?J}
i

BRI  SNEHEEMEK - BEEEK 2
AWERRET ETRREBABERERE
HHARER -

NEFEEHRBRERE RN EEETELER

EEEER

HEMPTHEEECEERRR  BFEMEMSEK
BOMRERRSE ANBREERRS  WBE
BRG ETEETERK  EBBERRS -
U HRRMNERELEE  VBEERRESRE

%

i
B
S
Ef
>

M OABMIREMRBEHRSL - MEE

a0
i
ct
S
izt

REEBRBEERRRESER

e
&
P
o
e
i

!
el
s
i
clt



Internal audit

The Internal Control Department annually makes internal audit priorities
and internal audit plans according to corporate strategy, operation and
management needs and annual work plan of the Company. Matters of

internal audit include the following:

Audit types Audit contents
ELE ok

Corporate operation audit
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Economic responsibility audit Term and departure performance audit of outgoing heads of business units
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Post-evaluation audit Comprehensive post-evaluation on investment and economic benefits after
BREEET completion of projects
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Review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal

control system

According to the above risk management and internal control system, the
Internal Control Department conducts regular review (one to three months)
and reports from three aspects, namely risk management, internal control
and internal audit. After discovering shortcomings of internal control, the
Internal Control Department will communicate with relevant functional
departments in a timely manner, and propose correction measures
and improve regulations and procedures after discussion with the
management. The Internal Control Department regularly (one to three
months) reports the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control system to the Audit Committee.
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In 2020, the Audit Committee and the Internal Control Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system, including
finance, operation and compliance control, with a focus on the formulation
and implementation of internal control system in areas including major
decisions, major projects, major personnel appointment and removal,
whether the operation of large amount of funds has fulfilled the collective
decision-making and approval procedure, asset management, financial
management, contract management, budget management; all functional
departments streamlined and optimized business procedures, discovered
and assessed risks within their business scope, and controlled risks
through standardization of risk control construction. The annual review
included Group resources in accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting, whether employees have sufficient qualifications and experience,
and whether staff training courses and their respective budget related
are sufficient. The Audit Committee and the Board discovered no major
internal control shortcoming that could pose serious impact on the
financial position and operation performance of the Group. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system (including the financial, operational and compliance control) of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 by mean of the internal
audit report and holds the opinion that the risk management and internal
control is adequate and effective for the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of the annual report and financial report, and it can
fully safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, employees as

well as the assets of the Company.
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Procedures and internal control measures of treatment and

disclosure of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the

information falls within any of the safe harbors as provided in the SFO.

The Board manages inside information of the Company. The chairman
of the Board is the main responsible person in respect of of inside
information management. The chairman of the Board and other directors
are responsible for management and disclosure of inside information. The
Company requires that all departments and individuals should keep all
inside information confidential, and no one is allowed to disclose and
report any content related to inside information without permission of the
Board. If the Board decides to disclose inside information (if necessary),
the information disclosure of inside information should be undertaken by

the securities and legal department.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of a material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Group has bought liability insurance for Directors and senior executives

in respect of legal actions against such Directors and senior executives
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28 and 3.29
of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the company
secretary supports the Board, ensures good information flow within the
Board and that Board policies and procedures are followed; advises
the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates induction of
the directors and, monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors. He has attained not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the Reporting Period. His biography is
set out in the “Profiles of Directors, Supervisor and Senior Management”

section of this annual report.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

In view of (i) the amendments to the Company Law of the PRC, (ii) the
requirements of and to implement the spirit of “the Official Reply of the
State Council on Adjusting the Notice Period for the General Meetings of
the Company and Other Matters Applicable to Companies Listed Abroad”
(Guo Han [2019] No.97)* ( { Bi%Pr B AR E R /N LT AR BFRK
RASBAHREEFRENRE) BH[2019]975%)), and (i) to reflect
the actual circumstance and development needs of the Company, the
Board proposed to amend the Articles of Association of the Company.
For details of the relevant amendments to Articles of Association of the
Company, please refer to resolution numbered 9 in the notice of 2019
Annual General Meeting dated 29 April 2020 (which was published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company). As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 June 2020, the aforementioned
resolution was duly passed at the 2019 Annual General Meeting held
on 23 June 2020, and accordingly, the relevant articles in the Articles

of Association of the Company were amended.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 October
2020, to reflect the change of name of the state-owned domestic
shareholder of the Company which is also one of the promoters of the
Company, the Board proposed to amend the relevant articles of the
Articles of Association of the Company and the resolutions in relation
to the aforementioned amendments were duly passed at the EGM. For
details of the aforementioned amendments, please refer to the notice of
the EGM dated 12 October 2020 (which was published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where
shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the Company’s
issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote request(s) in
writing for the convening of an extraordinary general meeting, the Board

shall convene an extraordinary general meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying the
right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose new motions
to the general meeting by submitting the same to the convener in writing.
The Company shall include in the agenda for the meeting the matters
in the motions that fall within the scope of duties of the shareholders’
general meeting. The above qualified shareholders may at any time send
motions to the Secretary to the Board of the Company at Room 327,
3th Floor, Block No.45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, The
People’s Republic of China.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AL At S/ 2
TEEARE

AR QB R2020F 10 128 M A EFRET
BB ARMALRZEAERNERKRE - R
RBADBBEBAZ —HEBEE  EFTFERE
FIARERMMEBGR - B BT A IRE
REOERRFHIAGRERA - G4 FlEETHE
& - FE2 2020510 A 128 1M RERIX
GRS (GREDER A RADAA F8M) .

R SRAEF

ARABARERESSIFRTE @ EBAEESFF
BRBIBEITEINNBRRENBRMDI10% A E(E
10%) K IRRAEBME A BREMAGRREAS
B EESREA2EANGHERRERERE

NEIZERFC0EETE - Al dRAKREARE - 555
FEAIRARRARREORNBEI% (&
3%)MARE - AENEEFAAQRRLFTNIE
B AREESRETEARAASHBREDSER
MBIE - JIAZREZMFR - BlBERREA
BREBRRZEAQNGDESSWE - it APE
AR HFE AL R &R 455718 = 8327

i

2020 F#f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REAEE

Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting:
(1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more (including 10%)
of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting proposed to be held
for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or more written request(s),
the form and substance of which are the same, to propose to the Board
for holding an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall
list out clearly the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Board shall,
upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, convene the extraordinary
general meeting or the class general meeting as soon as possible. The
shareholdings mentioned above shall be calculated on the date when the
shareholders make such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve
a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote at
the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or
more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the same,
to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding an extraordinary
general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of
the meeting in the request. The Supervisory Committee shall, upon receipt
of the aforesaid written request, convene and preside the extraordinary
general meeting or the class meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the
Supervisory Committee does not serve a notice of such meeting within
30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, the shareholders
making such request may convene the meeting by themselves within
two months upon receipt of the request by the Supervisory Committee,
and the procedures for convening such meeting shall be as similar to
those for convening a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any
reasonable cost incurred in connection with the convening and holding
of the meeting by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure
on the part of the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such
meeting as required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall
be deducted from the amount due to the directors and supervisors of

the Company who are in default.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy with the aims to set out the general
principles and guidelines that the Company intend to apply in relation
to the payment of dividend to the Shareholders. The Board has full
discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders, and
any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the approval by
the Shareholder in the annual general meeting. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account of the following factors
such as the Group ‘s financial results, financial position, liquidity position,
expected future operations and earnings, capital requirements, interests
of the Shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends and any
other factors the Board may consider relevant. Meanwhile, any payment
of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under
the Company Law of the PRC, the Articles of Association of the Company

and all applicable laws and regulations.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhering to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclosing the required information
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

- delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements and shareholders’ circulars on the
websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules; on the Group’s
website, investors can enquire about the Group’s basic information,
public announcements and other the information since the Company
became listed, including annual reports, interim reports, quarterly
results, price-sensitive information, circulars, announcements
and notices. All the information above is available in the “Investor

Relations” section on the Company’s website;
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arranging general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and its

shareholders;

the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is responsible
for liaising with investors and analysts by answering their questions,
organizing field trips to the stores and distribution centers of the
Group, and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments
from analysts and investors on the operation of the Group, and

selectively adopting them in the Group’s operation; and

communicating actively with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one meetings with

institutional investors upon the announcement of results and material

investments.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of the shareholdings of the senior

management of the Group is as follows:
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Total number of
domestic shares

Name Capacity held
FIERE R

HE &1 R&

Zhang Hongbo Personal 100,000

SRADR EA

Wang Hong Personal 186,696

T4 fEA

Li Bo Personal 0

] fEA

Pan Xuemin Personal 0

B EA
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Approximate
percentage of total
issued domestic

Approximate
percentage of total

shares issued shares
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Batt Bkt

0.04 0.02

0.08 0.05

0 0

0 0



The details of the classified shareholder and the number of total equities

are as follows:

The Group issued a total of 412,220,000 shares of domestic shares
and H shares respectively:

Domestic shares: 230,060,000

H shares: 182,160,000

On 23 June 2020, the Company held the 2019 Annual General Meeting
to consider issuance of shares, repurchase of shares, issuance of short
term debentures and other resolutions (please refer to the circular of the
Company’s annual general meeting dated 29 April 2020). Except for the
repurchase of shares, the other resolutions as mentioned above have
been duly passed.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and input sincerely.
Shareholders may, at any time, send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of

the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 4 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the

B35

audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

The business review, major risks, performance analysis using financial key
performance indicators and future prospects of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Chairman’s Statement on pages
7 to 10, the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 11 to 35

and the Corporate Governance Report on pages 36 to 67 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Detail information on the ESG practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 98

to 120 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and

operation of the Company.

The Company persists in governing, operating and managing in accordance
with law and drew out a 2020 annual work plan for the construction of
the rule of law, spurring the progress of operating enterprises according
to the law and implement of all kind of related works. The Group has
been vigorously promoting the modernization of the rule of law system

and governance, ensuring the sustainable development of the Group.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 133 to 375.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.10
(2019: RMBO0.08) per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31 December
2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at 4:30 p.m., the end of Thursday, 3 June 2021. Subject
to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the 2020 annual
general meeting on the payment of the final dividend, the said final

dividend is expected to be paid on or before 20 July 2021.

The dividends to be distributed will be denominated and declared in
Renminbi. Distribution of cash dividends for domestic shareholders will be
paid in Renminbi, while cash dividends for H-shareholders will be declared
in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the average of the
exchange rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as announced by
the People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date
of the 2020 annual general meeting at which the final dividends would

be approved by the shareholders).

EEEWE

%I“E & Bﬁ /%i\

REBRFEHAZ T R A QB M EBR
2020F 12 A31 B 2 Bk R SR B 15 3R R 55 133
23758 o

EEGEEMN2021F6 A3E (2B ) &R
T B E IR AR R R A 2 AR R # A
Z£2020F12 31 B IEFE 2 KRR EBRARE
0.107t(&®) (20194 : ARM0.087T) » Ll
BREPEAFARAN _E_TERRBERS
FERFABETAER - SiER - REKREH
2021567 A20H 3 2 ATEE ©

PR RSB AANREFTEMNEIR - MAERBKER
IRENRSREBAARESA » AHERRRIRES
BEMEAARBEIR - BB (KR H E
ARBRITAMHNR T _TFREBFAE LR
RAERE RSS2 BATHETER BB EA
RUEE R LEEN FIOEE) ©

2020 F#f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EFEWRE

Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic
enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise shareholder
(i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting periods beginning
from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax for
such shareholder. Since the Company is a H-share listed company in
Hong Kong, the proposed 2020 final dividend distribution will be subject
to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws. In order to properly carry out the
withholding and payment of income tax on dividends to non-resident
enterprise shareholders, the Company will strictly abide by the law and
identify those shareholders who are subject to the withholding and
payment of income tax based on the register of H-shareholders as at
the end of Thursday, 3 June 2021. In respect of all shareholders whose
names appear on the register of H shareholders kept at Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar
and Transfer Office in Hong Kong as at the end of Thursday, 3 June 2021
who are not individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate
nominees or trustees, and other entities or organizations that are all
considered as non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will

distribute the 2020 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.
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Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) (KBB4 B B H B 14 38 (1993104558 ST % 1E12 B RAE A PR
BRAERENBA) (BHEK[2011]3485%) ) (the “SAT Notice”) dated
28 June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends
Paid to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”)
dated 4 July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the
individual income tax in respect of the 2020 Final Dividends paid to
the Individual H Shareholders whose names appear in the register of
H-Shares Registrar of the Company (the “Individual H Shareholders”)
when distributing the 2020 final dividends in accordance with the
law, as a withholding agent on behalf of the same. However, the
Individual H Shareholders may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the
countries in which the Individual H Shareholders are domiciled and the
tax arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau).
The Company will finally withhold and arrange for the payment of the
withholding tax pursuant to the above the SAT Notice and the Stock
Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and regulation, (including
the “Public Notice on the Administrative Measures on Non-resident
Taxpayers Claiming Tax Treaty Benefits” (STA Public Notice [2019] No.
35) (ERHBEBANEMGEE RMWAZZHKGEFBEIERE
A% (BREFEBRE2019F 5E355%) (the“Tax Treaties Notice”)).
The Company will determine the country of domicile of the Individual H
Shareholders based on the registered addresses as recorded on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 3 June 2021 (the
“Registered Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility
and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or
tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims
arising from any delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status
or tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over
the withholding mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements

are as follows:
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(i)

(i)
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For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%,
the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at

the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder;

For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold
and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the
Individual H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders
would like to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax
withheld and paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder
to handle the application for the underlying preferential tax benefits
pursuant to the tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder
shall submit to the Company the information required under the Tax
Treaties Notice on or before the fifteen days of the month following
the actual payment date of the final dividend. Upon examination
and approval by competent tax authorities, the Company will assist

in refunding the additional amount of tax withheld and paid;

For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less than 20%, the Company
will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the actual tax

rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty; and
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(iv)  For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances,
the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at
the rate of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the
domicile of an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the
Registered Address or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to
apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally withheld
and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify and provide
relevant supporting documents to the Company on or before the
fifteen day of the month following the actual payment date of the
final dividend. Upon examination of the supporting documents by
the relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance
given by the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding
provisions and arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may either
personally or appoint a representative to attend to the procedures
in accordance with the requirements under the Tax Treaties Notices
if they do not provide the relevant supporting documents to the

Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out on page 376 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note

(VI) 9, 10 and 11 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period

and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Group during the Reporting Period are set
out in note (VI) 36, 37 to the financial statements and in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves were
RMB445,150,402.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 37 to the financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BONDS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set out

in note (VI) 19, 28 and 29 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted
to RMB50,428 (2019: RMB57,317).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income from the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 27% (2019: 28%) of the
total operating income for the year and operating income from the largest
customer accounted for approximately 14% (2019: 13%). Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 29%
(2019: 23%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 9% (2019: 7%) during the
Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
close associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of
the directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:
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Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Liwei

Mr. Shang Yongtian (ceased to be an executive director of the Company
since 30 October 2020)

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Li Shenlin (appointed as an executive director of the Company since
30 October 2020)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun (ceased to be a supervisor of the Company since
26 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Deshan (appointed as a supervisor of the Company since
26 March 2021)

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 89 to 97 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with the directors,
including Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Zhang
Liwei, Ms. Zhang Yan, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.Chen
Liping, Mr. Choi Onward, each of the directors pursuant to which they
have agreed to act as directors of the Company for a three-year term with
effect from the 2018 Annual General Meeting were held at 24 May 2019,
in which they were re-elected or elected as director of the Company and
expiring at the conclusion of 2021 Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the 2020 Extraordinary General Meeting,
Mr. Shang Yongtian ceased to be an executive director of the Company,
whereas Mr. Li Shenlin has been elected as an executive director with
such term expiring upon the conclusion of the 2021 Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Li Shenlin has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr.
Zhang Liwei and Mr. Li Shenlin have entered into service contracts with
the Company. Each of the executive directors, Mr. Zhang Ziwei, Ms. Li
Chunyan and Mr. Li Shenin (other than the chairman of the Board, Mr. Li
Jianwen), will not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration
based on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being
a director) in the Company which comprises a fixed annual basic salary,
a performance-based bonus which is determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results and other allowance and benefits in
kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed
annual basic salary and performance-based bonus for each of their
term shall be approved by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Li Jianwen, the Chairman of the Board, is entitled
to remuneration (including an annual basic salary and a performance-
based bonus to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results) which granted an approved by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the Beijing Chaoyang
District Government, and other allowance and benefits in kind under the

applicable PRC law and regulations.
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Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Li Shunxiang and Ms. Zhang
Yan, has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant
to which they have agreed to act as the non-executive director of the
Company with effect from the 2018 Annual General Meeting and expiring
at the conclusion of the 2021 Annual General Meeting. They will not

receive any remuneration.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward, Mr.
Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service contract with
the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act as independent
non-executive directors for a three-year term with effect from the 2018
Annual General Meeting, which will expire at the conclusion of the 2021
Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service contracts are identical
in all material respects and they are entitled to receive fixed directors’
fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is RMB154,758 per annum
(tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive) for each of

Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baogun, Mr. Chen
Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun, has entered into a service contract or an
appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each has agreed
to act as a supervisor for a three-year term with effect from the 2018
Annual General Meeting, and expiring at the conclusion of the 2021
Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to a resolution passed at the meeting
of representative of employees 2019 of the Company held on 29 March
2019, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi have been elected entered
into a service contract with the Company. Pursuant to a resolution passed
at the meeting of representative of employees of the Company held on
27 October 2017, Ms. Wang Hong has ceased to be a supervisor of the
Company, whereas Ms. Li Chunyi has been elected as the supervisor with
three-year term expiring upon the end of the meeting of representatives
of employees of 2022. Each of them has entered into a service contract
with the Company. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2021, Ms. Fu Yanjun ceased
to be a supervisor of the Company, whereas Mr. Wang Deshan has been
elected as a supervisor with such term expiring upon the conclusion of
the 2021 Annual General Meeting. Mr. Wang Deshan has entered into a
service contract with the Company. The terms of the service contracts

or appointment letters are identical in all material respects save that:
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Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

ii. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun receives a fixed

supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi
is entitled to remuneration based on their executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance-based bonus
which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial
results and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable

PRC law and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed to enter
into, any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. The Company has established
a remuneration committee to formulate compensation policies and to
determine and manage the compensation of the Company’s senior
management. Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are

disclosed in note (X)3(2) to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors or supervisors or any entities connected with
them had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
controlling shareholder, or any of their subsidiaries was a party during

or at the end of the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, and any of the controlling shareholders or any of

their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into

or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and supervisors and other body corporate to

acquire such rights.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Total number of
domestic shares

EEEWE
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Approximate
percentage of total
issued domestic

Approximate
percentage of total

Name Capacity held shares issued shares
HEBRTRER HERTERE
HE g4 FisRERRE BRBEDE BHED
(%) (%)
Li Jianwen Personal 2,022,579 0.88 0.49
FEX & A
Zhang Liwei Personal 150,000 0.07 0.04
RILIE (EPN
Shang Yongtian Personal 989,451 0.43 0.24
oK EA
Li Chunyan Personal 505,992 0.22 0.12
FEEK & A
Li Shenlin Personal 430,100 0.19 0.10
FEM & A
Li Shunxiang Personal 5,210,428 2.26 1.26
ZIER EUN
Yang Baogun Personal 1,042,086 0.45 0.25
b= (EPN
Liu Wenyu Personal 365,151 0.16 0.09
2135 (EPN
Niu Hongyan Personal 70,000 0.03 0.02
H-41 % EA
Li Chunyi Personal 50,000 0.02 0.01
FER & A
2020 F#f
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates
and any interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than a director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:
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Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Total number of
domestic shares

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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ERBANERZEFR

Approximate
percentage of total
issued domestic

Approximate
percentage of total

Name Capacity held shares issued shares
HEBRITAER 1EE BITRRAR

®E 287 FERERNRE BMOED BMABED
(%) (%)

Beijing Chaofu Stated-owned Beneficial owner 167,409,808 72.77 40.61

Assets Administration
Company Limited*

IRHAEREEEERARAR EaEAA
* "Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company” before renamed

Positions in the H shares of the Company

Name

=L

China Galaxy International Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited (note 1) (Mi5E1)

China Galaxy International SPC (acting for and on behalf of
China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) (note 2) (Fft5t2)

(L) - Long Position

Notes:

1. These 24,970,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International Asset 1.

Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in its capacity as an investment

manager.

2. These 24,970,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International SPC 2.
(acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) in its capacity

as an investment manager.

Y BERRAMEEMEEAIRAERT]

RABHR ZF &

Approximate
Total number percentage of Approximate
of H shares total issued H percentage of

held shares total

HERTHR (HERITHE

FrisE e 81T BBMBA BRAHBH

HER B & Bt Bt

(%) (%)

24,970,000 (L) 13.71 6.06

24,970,000 (L) 13.71 6.06
L —5&

s -

1t 5524,970,000A%HA% R China Galaxy International
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited A #%
BB AER -

It %5 24,970,0000 & H f% B China Galaxy
International SPC (acting for and on behalf of
China Galaxy Value Fund | SP)LARE IR 5 1)
BB -
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Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2020, no other
persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements of

the Listing Rules from 1 January 2020 and up to the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, or had any

other conflict of interests with the Group during the Reporting Period.
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AUDITORS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 April 2020,
the Company considers that a change of auditor after an appropriate
period of time could enhance the independence of the auditor and
maintain good corporate governance, and it would be in the interest of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Board did not propose
the re-appointment of Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (“Ruihua”)
as the auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
and Ruihua retired as the auditor of the Company with effect from the
conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting held on 23 June 2020.
Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) (“‘Da
Hua”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company for the period from
the conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting to the conclusion
of the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company. For details of
the aforementioned changes, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 June 2020 (which was published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company).

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Da Hua whose term of appointment
will expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming 2020 annual general

meeting of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
26 March 2021
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To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and obligations
loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to safeguard the interests

of the shareholders and the Company.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the 2018 Annual General Meeting
or the worker’s congress (as the case may be), Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr.
Yang Baoqgun, Mr. Chenzhong, Ms. Fu Yanjun, Ms Niu Hongyan and Ms
Li Chunyi were re-elected or appointed as supervisors for a three-year
term, with effect from 2018 Annual General Meeting or the worker’s
congress and will expire at the end of 2021 Annual General Meeting or
the worker’s congress. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2021, Ms. Fu Yanjun ceased to
be a supervisor of the Company, whereas Mr. Wang Deshan has been
elected as a supervisor with such term expiring upon the conclusion of

the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, four meetings of the Supervisory Committee
were held for reviewing the 2019 annual report, the report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2019, the 2020 quarterly and interim results.

The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) Rzt (FE)

Ms. Niu Hongyan EAR R
Ms. Li Chunyi THE BT
Mr. Chen Zhong BRéE LA

Mr. Yang Baogun HEETE
Ms. Fu Yanjun (E:37 iy
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The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made by
the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant laws
and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, safeguarding
the interest of the Company and shareholders. The Supervisory
Committee has also reviewed the performance of the directors and
senior management in their daily operation activities by various means,
and examined the Group’s financial affairs and connected transactions.

As a result of our work, the Supervisory Committee concluded that

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2020 financial statements reflected a fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Group in material

aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions conducted in the Reporting
Period between the Group and its connected persons were in the
ordinary course of business and carried out pursuant to the terms
of the agreements for the transactions, and no act that prejudiced

the interests of the Company and shareholders has been found.
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4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the Reporting

Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports of
the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory Committee

during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Liu Wenyu

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
26 March 2021
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
55 EEkSNEEERN

The following sets forth the profile of the directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and up to the

date of this report:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Board and an executive
director of the Company. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang
Sha (“Jingkelong Shang Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Company Limited (“Jingkelong Supermarket”) (the
predecessor of the Company) as the deputy general manager from 1998
to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a director and the deputy general
manager of Jingkelong Supermarket. From November 2004 to June
2013, he was the managing director of the Company. He has been the

Chairman of the Board of the Company since June 2013.

Mr. Zhang Liwei, aged 43, is an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Zhang is an intermediate engineer. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor’s
degree from Tianjin University of Commerce. From August 2000 to
December 2013, Mr. Zhang had been appointed as the office clerk,
the assistant to officer, the manager, the Committee Secretary, the
assistant to the manager and the deputy manager of Beijing Xinyang
Tongli Commercial Facilities Company Limited (“Xinyang Tongli”), an non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. From December 2013 to May
2015, he was the manager of the Equipment or Materials Purchasing
Department and the manager of the Equipment Division of the Company.
From June 2015 to March 2017, he was the assistant to the general
manager, the team leader for “Xi Hong Men” and the manager of the
Operation Division of supermarket of the Company. Since April 2017, he
has been the assistant to the general manager and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Company. From August 2017 to July 2020, he has been
the assistant general manager of the Company. Since July 2020, he
has been the general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also the
Chairman of Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited, an approximately
79.85% directly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been

an executive director of the Company since 24 May 2019.
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B BEEKaAEEEMN

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 59, was an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Shang acted as the manager of several retail outlets and
the department manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary from 1991 to 2004. From
2005 to 2009, he was the manager of Operation Division of supermarket
of the Company and the manager of Operation Division of hypermarket
of the Company. From January 2010 to April 2013, he was the assistant
to the manager of the Company. From April 2013 to May 2015, he was
the assistant general manager of the Company. From May 2015 to July
2020, he was the general manager of the Company. Mr. Shang ceased

to be an executive director of the Company since 30 October 2020.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 48, is an executive director of the Company.
Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’s
degree in private international law from China University of Politics & Law
of China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong
Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of the
Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of directors of Jingkelong
Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004, she has been
one of the executive directors of the Company. She has been appointed
as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy general manager

since December 2008.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 57, is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Li graduated from the People’s Liberation Army Chemical Defense
Command Engineering Institute (B AR REHLIEIE T220),
specializing in Economics and Management. From November 1981
to January 1995, Mr. Li had been appointed as the officer of Beijing
Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company (now known as Beijing Chaofu
State-owned Assets Administration Company Limited). From January
1995 to October 2008, Mr. Li acted as the manager of Shuguang
Department Store, Jixiang Department Store, Jiulongshan Department
Store, Wangjing Supermarket, the deputy manager of the Operation
Division of the Company and the manager of the Operation Division
1 of the Hypermarkets. From October 2008 to July 2009, he was the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant
to the manager of the Company. Mr. Li is a deputy general manager of
the Company since July 2009 and a director, the chairman and the legal
representative of Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Facilities Co., Ltd.
(a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Li has been an

executive director of the Company since 30 October 2020.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B EFELSREEEGN

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 40, is a non-executive Director of the Company.
She graduated from the bt REEZRT (Beijing Broadcasting Institute)
(now known as A E{ELE KE (Communication University of China))
specializing in finance and accounting. From July 2003 to October 2008,
Ms. Zhang successively served as a sales assistant of the Marketing
Department, an officer and the head of the Comprehensive Management
Department of Beijing Lizheng Software Design and Research Institute
(It R IE #8142 E TR 5T B). From November 2008 to December 2016, Ms.
Zhang successively served as an officer of the Finance and Accounting
Department, an officer and the head of the Party Committee Office,
and the deputy manager of the General Office of Beijing Chaoyang
Auxiliary Food Company. Since December 2016, Ms. Zhang has been
the manager of the General Office of Beijing Chaofu State-owned Assets
Administration Company Limited. Since October 2018, Ms. Zhang has

been a non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 68, is a non-executive director of the Company.
From 2000 to 2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 64, is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Economics and a
PhD in Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor at the
Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human Resources
Management at Renmin University of China. Since June 2010, he has

been an independent non-executive director of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 59, is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation
from Aichi University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from
Circulation University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently a
professor and master student supervisor of the faculty of Marketing in the
Institute of Business Management at Capital University of Economics and
Business of China. Since June 2010, Mr Chen has been an independent

non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Onward Choi, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Choi holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi was the acting chief financial officer of
NetEase, Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, from July 2007 to June 2017.
Mr. Choi currently serves as an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of Tongdao Liepin Group (formerly
named as Wise Talent Information Technology Company Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Choi also serves
as the independent director and the chairman of the audit committee
of Tuniu Corporation and Ucloudlink Group Inc., both are Nasdag-listed
companies. Mr. Choi is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been an independent non-

executive director of the Company since June 2010.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEKaAEEEMN

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 49, is the chairman of the Company’s supervisory
committee. Ms. Liu is an intermediate political engineer. Ms. Liu obtainted
her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University of China. During the period
from 1999 to 2008, Ms. Liu has been appointed as the vice-chairman
of the labour union of Chaoyang Auxiliary and the Company, the deputy
manager of the First Operation Division and the officer of the Office of
the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Center coordination team of the
Company. Since October 2008, she has been the chairman of the labour
union of the Company. Since May 2010, she has been the deputy party
secretary of the Company. Since June 2010, she has been the chairman

of the Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 68, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 57, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Chen
obtained his doctorate degree from Peking University in 1989. He is
currently a professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and
Computer Science, the Head of the Advanced Financial Information
Research Centre at Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010,
he had been a professor and the Head of the School of Software and
Microelectronics, Peking University. Since January 2005, he has been a

supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 41, was a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Fu
obtained her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University of China. She
is a Chinese certified public accountant. She had previously worked in
Ernst & Young Hua Ming and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Since
December 2014, Ms. Fu joined China Resources Healthcare Holdings
Company Limited. She is currently an executive director and a vice
president of that company. From May 2017 to March 2021, she was a

supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Deshan, aged 57, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Wang
graduated and obtained a master’s degree in law from China University
of Political Science and Law (FBIBUEAREZ), specializing in civil and
commercial Law. Since March 1994, Mr. Wang has served in the School
of Law of Capital University of Economics and Business (& #4775 & 5
KE) as a professor and master supervisor, and teaches contract law,
corporate law, commercial law and other courses for graduate and
undergraduate students. Mr. Wang’s main research fields are contract
law and company law. He has written and edited more than 20 books
such as “Contract Law”, “Company Law”, “Contract Validity Study” and
“Company Law Training Course”. Mr. Wang also serves as the vice
president of Beijing Aging Law Research Association (15 & #4572

I3T&). Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Niu Hongyan, aged 48, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Niu
is an intermediate economist. From September 1992 to July 2017, Ms.
Niu has served as the director, deputy manager and manager of several
retail outlets of the Company. Since July 2017, she has been appointed
as the manager of the Party Committee Office of the Company. Since

August 2017, she has been a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyi, aged 48, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Li is an
intermediate economist. Between August 1995 and March 2008, Ms.
Li had worked in Beijing Hardware Machinery Company Limited, Beijing
Jinyu Da Sha and Beijing Shoulian Company Limited. From April 2008
to June 2009, she had been the deputy manager of the Labor Ministry.
From July 2009 to Apirl 2018, she has been the deputy manager of the
Human Resources Department of the Company. Since Apirl 2018, she
has been appointed as the manager of the Human Resources Department
of the Company. Since October 2017, she has been a staff-appointed

supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEKaAEEEMN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hongbo, aged 51, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. From November 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy officer of Executive Office of the Silk Import & Export Group
Company of Hubei. From October 1997 to March 2003, he served as
the general manager of the Information Department of Shenzhen Huarun
Supermarket Company. From March 2003 to March 2006, he was the
Chief Information Officer and the Officer of the Information Center of the
Company. From June 2006 to August 2015, he was the assistant to the
manager of the Company and the Chief Information Officer. Since August

2015, he has been the assistant general manager of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 50, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Ms. Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida
Frozen Foods Company Limited for about nine years and was appointed
as the assistant to general manager before joining the Company. Since
September 2003 to March 2011, she had been appointed as the deputy
officer of the Office of Managers, the purchase manager of the In-house
Brand Division of Purchase Center and the manager of the Marketing
Department of the Company. From March 2011 to July 2012, she had
been appointed as the deputy manager and the manager of the Human
Resources Department. Since August 2012, she has been the Chief
Human Resources Officer and the manager of the Human Resources
Department. From June 2010 to October 2017, she was a staff-appointed
supervisor of the Company. Since August 2017, she has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bo, aged 42, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with a
bachelor’s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master degree
of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004. Mr. Li is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Certified Practicing Accountant of Australia, Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand, and Governance Institute of Australia. Mr. Li
worked for Bank of Beijing, Deloitte Beijing office, the Audit Office of New
South Wales in Australia, Sinolink securities and Yunnan Water Industry

Investment Company Ltd. Mr. Li joined the Company on 18 March 2011.

Ms. Pan Xuemin, aged 33, is the board secretary of the Company. She
graduated from law school of Inner Mongolia University of Finance and
Economics with a bachelor of law degree in 2011 and obtained a master’s
degree in civil and commercial law from Capital University of Economics
and Business in 2014. Since June 2014, Ms. Pan served as a legal clerk
in the Company’s securities and legal department. Since November 2015,
she served as director and deputy manager in the Company’s securities
and legal department. Since January 2019, she has been appointed as
the manager of the Company’s securities and legal department. Since

August 2016, she was appointed as board secretary of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R g REAmE

INTRODUCTION

As a player in the retail and wholesale industry of fast-moving consumer
goods, the Group has always valued corporate social responsibility as
one of the core values of its sustainable development, and has strived
to maintain a high standard of food safety. The Group also maintains
a constant awareness of the needs of society and has proactively
participated in community care activities, and has placed emphasis on
environmental protection by implementing low-carbon operation and
cutting energy consumption and emissions, so as to fulfill corporate

social responsibility.

This report is prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules,
and is strictly adhered to the four reporting principles - materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency. This report sumarised the key
areas of operation of the Group in respect of environment and society,
and the implemented policies and strategies of the Group’s (i) operational
practices, (i) employment policies; and (i) environmental protection

measures.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has been responsible for the overall coordination of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance issues, the various departments
of the Group and its subsidiaries work together to identify and report

environmental, social and governance risks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Based on the prevailing structure and the business activities of the
Group, the Group has identified six different groups of stakeholders that
are related to the Group’s principal businesses including government/
regulatory authorities, shareholders/investors, employees, customers,
suppliers and community. The Group believes that stakeholder
engagement is an important measure to improve environmental, social
and corporate governance. The Group attaches great importance to
continuous and effective communication with stakeholders and develops
diversified channels of communication to understand stakeholders’
concerns and respond to their feedback in a timely manner. The Group
communicates with stakeholders through participating in and holding
meetings to communicate, discuss and share information, as well as
through telephone, mails, correspondences etc.. The following table set

out the details of stakeholder engagement:

Stakeholders
BinE

Communication channels

BERE

Government/regulatory Supervision, monitor, inspection

authorities and investigation
BT/ BB s EE BER KB - E
Information disclosure
= ERE

Daily communication and report
HEBR - Bk
Visitor Reception

REDE

RE -HELE

ATE

BFhEBRE
REAEBENRTRBERLLEEY  AEEXC
BABANETRENNEERSNE - BERN &
EHRE O BRR/REE  EE - HEE  HE
AR - AKERA  EREOFEBBREAN
SERE  HEROEEANERER  ~&5H
SEEREKNERE ARNER  TERZ
TALEBRBIABRBIRMOEMEIORE - X

HEMNENRBELBELNEZRE - AEHEBBRSH

W 2R AR

I T H i EBBIEEK

Issues of concern

B RIRE

Compliance management
BHRER

Law-based corporate governance

forat
Operation according to law
HOERE

Implementation of laws, regulations,

rules and policies

ER ORI BE - BERFITIER

Risk management and control
[ B

Safety Production

TEEE

Food safety

Bm&d

Epidemic prevention and control

RIEpE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - L8 RERWE

Stakeholders
BoE

Shareholders/investors

R EE

Employees

"B
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Communication channels

BERE

Annual general meetings and
extraordinary general meetings

BEBFRE BREEIAE

Information disclosure

EEWER

Company websites

UNGIEER

Telephone

==
B h

Performance assessment and feedback

BREZ KR E

Staff training

8T

Congress of workers and Staff

BIRKKE

Consulting and communicating with the
human resource department and other
functional departments of the Group

MEBA N EIREB S E A IR BE FOFT AR -
R

Internal website (OA)

PIEBAE L (OA)

Daily communication and discussion

B &R &R

Staff activity

BTEE)

Welfare distribution

B

Enterprise journal

EERNETIY

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Issues of concern

B RIRE

Compliance management
BREE

Development strategy
BERBIM

Return on investment

K& DR

Corporate governance
hEER

Quality of goods and services

7% an M IR 75 an &

Protection of employee rights

B THEmRE

Remuneration and welfare
7 L4 A

Occupational health and safety
BEERETD

Professional training

B

Personal professional development

BABEE R



Stakeholders
BE

Customers

HEE

Suppliers
HER

Community
o

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Communication channels
BERE

Daily operation and promotion

HERE REH

Customer service center

AR

Service hotline and the comment and
complaints on Wechat, App and third-
party platform

BRISEAR S A ~ /MEFF
E=FTaiTmkEFER

Company website

NSIEE

Business communication and interview

BRI

Contract/agreements

&R,/

Process of bid, quotation, procurement
and provision

B RIE - RE KB - HERER

Communication in industry channels
and activities

TEREBRIEE

Company website

NGIFERT

Community communication

=R

Provide community service and hold
community activities

R ERTE - BPtEES

Company website

YNSIEE

B LB REARE

Issues of concern

BB

Service for the convenience and benefit of
customers and sales promotions

BER  -EZR - REEH

Goods/foods quality and safety

i RREERS

Quiality of goods and services

2 am M R

Feedback of complaints, advice and suggestions

w2 ERARE

Privacy protection

BALIRE

Contract performance

BAIIEMR

Mutual benefit and long term cooperation
ERHE  RE&HE

Supplier management

HrEmER

Community care to special communities
HEFHRAS@IE

Goods supply during festival periods and epidemic
BmEnE - EIBRHIfE

Enterprise social responsibility

TEMEERE
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ENVIRONI\/IENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - g MEamE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection and
strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s

Republic of China and the principle of green operation.

Emissions

The Group is not a manufacturing enterprise and therefore does not
consume resources including gases, oil, packaging materials and other
raw materials. No hazardous or non-hazardous substances are produced
or emitted to water or land, and there is no emission of greenhouse
gases. Therefore, no laws and regulations in these respects have a
significant impact on the Group that requires special compliance; and
the Group’s business activities do not have a significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not prosecuted for any violation of the relevant regulations

on environmental protection.

Use of Resources and Emissions

The Group supports environmental protection and strives to enforce
sustainable development and advocates resources conservation. It adopts
an information-based operation to and promotes low-carbon office. The
Group has also prepared “Energy Management Handbook” and “Carbon
Emission Management Handbook” to strengthen the management of
energy resources and the harmless disposal of hazardous wastes and
reduce carbon emission. As a result, the impact of our operation on the
environment can be minimized. In terms of energy conservation and
carbon reduction, the Group performed well and received awards from

the government during the Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Water Usage

Water consumption of the Group in 2020 was approximately 268,552

tons.

Water supply to the Group is sufficient and there is no problem in
obtaining suitable sources. The Group actively carries out water
conservation measures and encourages reutilization of water to reduce
water consumption. Furthermore, it spares no efforts in conserving
water and minimizing water usage, so as to avoid unnecessary usage
of water resources. During the Reporting Period, the Group paid more
attention to the health of employees and consumers, strengthened
the hygiene, cleaning and disinfection of office areas and stores, and
advocated frequent hand washing and disinfection. Therefore, the water

consumption slightly increased compared with the same period last year.

Electrical Installations

Total power consumption of the Group was approximately 7,201 million

kWh in 2020.

The Group attaches great importance to energy conservation and
emission reduction, reduces energy consumption, and promotes green
management. The Group has continuously improved the management
of energy conservation and environmental protection and achieved
remarkable energy conservation and emission reduction with great
economic benefit by enhancing the refrigeration and the exhaust fume
evacuation equipment, the energy-saving renovation for elevators and
lighting, etc. Due to the efforts of the Group, electricity consumption of

about 152 kWh was reduced as compared to last year.
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Garbage Classification

During the Reporting Period, with the aid of the “Patriotic Health
Campaign” and “Build an Advanced Clean City”, the Group started
comprehensive clean-up, carried out disinfection and sterilization of stores
promptly, and kept the environment of the stores clean by continuous
inspection of the store environment improvement. In addition, according
to the Beijing Municipal Household Waste Management Regulations, the
Group strictly enforced garbage classification and jointly promoted the
improvement of store hygiene, which promise consumers a clean and

tidy shopping environment.

According to the requirements of Beijing Municipal Household Waste
Management Regulations implemented since 1 May 2020, the Group,
in view of the actual situation, promulgated its Waste Management Plan,
which guided the headquarters, subsidiaries and stores of the operation
department to complete the classification and management of household
waste. Meanwhile, through advocacy, implementation, strengthening
inspection and rectification, the Group has brought garbage classification

into the normal work.

Implementation of Limiting the Use of Plastic

According to the order of limiting the use of plastic, the Group
accelerates the elimination of traditional plastic products and promote
the use of environmentally friendly plastic products. In accordance with
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations, the Group actively
carries out preparation work for the replacement of plastic products, and
promotes plastic reduction and plastic limit work in strict accordance

with the time prescribed by the laws and regulations.
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EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Working Environment

The Group is strictly in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
including the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour Contract Law
of the PRC” to create a fair and legitimate working environment as well
as a healthy and safe working environment. Reasonable working hours
and resting time are arranged for our employees. The Group has also

established a labour union to protect various rights of all its employees.

Employment Policy

In accordance with the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, the Group established the “Staff Management
Mechanism”, the “Objective Management System” and the “Education
and Training Administration System” in respect of employees’ recruitment,
promotion and dismissal policies. The Group will adjust employee
compensation in strict accordance with the position, responsibilities,
experience, achievement and performance of employees, and refer to
the market rate to maintain the competitiveness of salary. Further, the
Group will arrange training courses and promotion plans, and offer pre-
job training and on-the-job training courses, so as to fully utilize and

stimulate staff’s potential to maintain the competitiveness of the Group.
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Welfare Policy

The Group respects and safeguards the rights of female employees. It
arranges positions for female employees reasonably according to the
job nature, so that female employees can enjoy equal and competitive
remuneration and benefits as well as equal opportunities to develop their
career. The Group also provides a “mothers’ room” especially for the
convenience of female employees in need, thereby embodying caring
corporate culture. The Group also provides “Special Disease Mutual
Security Scheme for Working Female Employees” for female employees
and settle claims in a timely manner. Specialized body check plans are
also provided to female employees, along with health seminars focusing

on the body check results to raise their safety awareness.

The Group has built a “reading corner” for the staff to encourage them
to learn culture, acquire knowledge and organized a variety of group

activities from time to time to enrich their spare-time.

The Group encourages and supports its staff to participate in physical
exercise, by occasionally hosting sports programs such as table tennis,
basketball and badminton competitions and provides its staff with fitness

equipment for exercise.

The Group attaches great importance to the provision of assistance
to employees in need and keeps improving the assistance system.
Emergency assistance is available to employees in need and education
subsidy is provided to employees with difficulties in supporting their

children’s education.

The Group has set up its own staff canteen to provide the staff with
safe and convenient breakfast and lunch. All staff are entitled to the

food subsidies.
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Employee Structure

The Group is mainly engaged in the wholesale and retail business of
fast-moving consumer goods. Therefore, a robust and stable team of
employees is the key to maintain a regular and stable operation. As of

31 December 2020, the Group had 5,300 employees.

Staff of the Group are of the different genders and different ages. The
Group recruits graduates and the professionals with relevant work
experience through campus recruitment, social recruitment and online
recruitment, so as to enrich the composition of staff. The Group cultivates
the professional skills of staff by work-study program and specialized
training courses, and to inject fresh blood into the short-handed positions

and specialized positions.

The Group upholds the idea of providing a fair working environment. As
at 31 December 2020, the number of male to female employees was
respectively 2,069 and 3,231. The principle of “equal pay for equal work”

has been strictly implemented as well.

Health and Safety

In accordance with the “Food Safety Law of the PRC” and relevant laws
and regulations referring to the health management for the employees
responsible for distributing food, the Group has established a “Health
Management System for Employees” to ensure the health of employees

and to purchase medical insurance for employees.
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During the Reporting period, in view of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group
has introduced emergency plans, prevention and control measures,
rules for returnings to work and staff management process of epidemic
normalisation, to carry out the government regulations on epidemic
prevention and control. The Group organized its employees for nucleic
acid testing, making sure the nucleic acid testing are available for
Group’s staff to maintain the health of employees. Meanwhile, the Group
communicates the epidemic prevention and control system to employees
through online courses, publicizes epidemic prevention knowledge,
ensures that employees comprehend relevant content, improves their
awareness and skills of epidemic prevention, and tests their level of
understanding of epidemic prevention. In order to protect the health
of employees, the Group provides employees with personal protective
equipment, including masks, disinfectant, disposable protective gloves
and hand sanitizer for free during the epidemic, the Group also disinfects
the workplace and take the temperature of employees before they enter

the office area to protect employees.

Healthcare seminars on occupational hazards and disease prevention

are regularly held to keep employees healthy.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety laws and regulations
including the “Safety Production Code of the PRC”, the “Law on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the PRC” and
the “Rules on Supervision Labor Protection Articles”, designed the
“Administrative measures for Distributing Labour Protection Appliances”
for all the employees, builds and keeps a high standard of healthy
and safe working environment that does not jeopardize the health of
employees, regularly inspects and maintains mechanical equipment in
use and provides protection equipment and protective clothing to secure
the occupational safety of employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was never prosecuted for any violation of the relevant regulations

on occupational safety.
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Training and Development of Employees

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “connecting hearts while
making profits with chain stores” and the corporate value of “integrity
before interest, give before taking”. The Group views its employees as
family members and focuses on their long-term development to help

them realize their individual value.

With continuous innovation on the market-oriented of recruitment system
and improvement on remuneration and benefits, the Group adapts to the
keen competition of the labour market to achieve the goal of recruiting

and retaining talents.

The Group provides various specified trainings for frontline staff,
headquarters staff, middle-ranking management and senior management
according to the development plan of the Company, so as to provide
a clear ladder of promotion for employees. Any employees can realize
their value and achieve better development. The promotion mechanism
of the Group is linked with performance assessment. By enhancing
the management system of human resources and offering room for
employees to further develop, the Group can inspire employees to be
enthusiastic at work, thereby enhancing their professional and career

development.

In order to meet the needs of the functional departments, the Group
broadens the employees’ horizons, encourages employees to participate
in external training, enhances their professional competence, and equips
them with advanced concepts and skills in the industry to improve their

working performance.

During the Reporting Period, all the store managers obtained store
manager permit through training, thereby becoming the backbone of
the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s training statistics are as follows:

Internal training times: 80

External training times: 5
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Labour Standards

During the Reporting Period, there is no child and forced labour in the
Group as it strictly complies with the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations such as the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour

Contract Law of the PRC”.

To avoid employing child labour, the Human Resources Department of
the Group would strictly examine valid identity cards of job applicants to

verify their actual ages, resolutely putting an end to use of child labor.

To safeguard the employees’ right, the Group has strictly complied
with relevant labour laws and regulations regarding the working hours
of the employees. Employees’ working hours, duty hours, resting time
and holidays are well respected and are strictly arranged in accordance
with relevant labour law and regulations. Any necessary arrangements of
overtime work must be mutually agreed between the management and
employees on a voluntarily basis and any extra workload shall be fairly

rewarded. There is no forced labour in the Group.

To ensure the employment conduct in its compliance with the laws and
regulations, guarantee the employees’ full entitlement to the right to be
informed, to participate, express and supervise and to prevent, the Group
has publicized the current labour management system and established
various channels to gather and integrate the feedback and complaint

from staff, handled and resolved employees’ problems in a timely manner.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

In the course of selecting suppliers, the Group would strictly abide by
the company’s series of introduction systems, such as the “Supplier
Classification Management Measures”, the “Certificate of Claims and
Purchase Accounts”, the “Channel Introduction Supervision Standards”,
etc. and would consider a range of factors including the product quality,
the supply capacity, reasonableness of price, service quality and business
reputation while strictly reviewing information such as operational
qualifications, licenses and testing reports on product quality in order to
ensure that all products introduced by us are safe and reliable. We have
entered into an agreement for sale and purchase with each supplier that
we introduce, specifying the rights, obligations and related responsibilities
of the suppliers explicitly and requesting the suppliers to provide regular

testing reports of the products that they offer.

The Group is concerned about the use of environmentally friendly
products and services by its suppliers. Environmental considerations
are taken into account in the selection of suppliers, and suppliers are
assessed through review the documents and field surveys of production

facilities and work processes.

The Group attaches great attention to the production environment of
the supply chain. For suppliers involving in food production, we strictly
abide by the provisions of the Food Safety Law of the PRC to ensure a

safe and reliable production environment.
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Food Safety/Product Responsibility

The Group spares no efforts in promoting the knowledge of food safety
and offering trainings to procurement staff, store managers and relevant
employees on the relevant laws and regulations including the “Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)". To better enforce the
food safety management work and to eliminate the hidden risks of food
safety issues, the Group strictly monitors the quality of the products
pursuant to the “Food Safety Law of the PRC”, the “Product Quality
Law of the PRC” and the requirements of other relevant laws and
regulations. New channels and new products are reviewed and approved
strictly according to the Group’s quality standards. On-site inspections
on newly introduced channels and high risk channels are carried out to
ensure that disqualified channels will not be introduced. The operation
headquarters have enhanced food safety inspections and paid close
attention to shelf life of goods, to ensure that consumers are provided

with safe and reliable food.
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In July 2020, the Group organised a specific service training of “improve
service action plan” for the relevant staff and store management of
operation department focusing on the implementation, potential problems
and obtaining results of “improve service action plan” as the main line of
the training, stressing on the importance such as the implementation of
the first asking responsibility system, standardized staff grooming and
service with a smile, promote civilization terminology, ban the use of
service taboo, to improve service content. The training combine cases
about customer complaint and stores’ actual problems to strengthen the
staff’s understanding of the core concept of service quality, effectively
guiding employees to improve service consciousness, promote the
ascension of the service specification, to improve the whole service

level of the group and laid a solid foundation.

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the “Food Safety Law
of the PRC” and provides accurate and complete information such as

product labels.

The Group is also in compliance with the provisions of the “Advertising

Law of the PRC”, and there is no false advertising.

The Group has already established a series of product management
systems including the management instructions for the expiry date of
commodities and quality manuals, so as to guarantee the quality and
safety of the commaodities to be sold. If the consumer intends to return the
goods, the retail store shall follow the specific rules related to return and

refund operation methods for relevant goods formulated by the Group.
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As a wholesale and retail service provider, the Group does not manufacture
any products. Therefore, no products were recalled for safety and health
reasons during the Reporting Period. If there is actual evidence that the
products sold by the Group have quality problems, the Group will directly
return the defective products to the supplier through retail or wholesale
channels, thereby restricting their access to the market circulation. As for
the quality problems of the products that have been sold, the products
will be destroyed directly by the regulatory authorities or by the suppliers,

and will not enter the market again.

During the reporting period, the number of complaints received by
the Group regarding products and services is 2,116, and the above
complaints have all been resolved by the functional departments of the
Group. The Group accepts the supervision of the society. As for the
complaints from all walks of life regarding the Group’s products and
services, it will handle them immediately, timely receive, transfer, reply
and supervise the handling of the mass appeals related to the Group,

and handle them in accordance with the law and regulations.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has been determined to actively maintain and protect the
intellectual property, and respecting the achievement of intellectual
property. Legal authorization has been obtained in respect of all types

of intellectual property rights.
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Consumer Right and Interest Protection

The Group strictly adheres to the requirements under the “the Protection
of the Rights and Interests of Consumers of the PRC” and other relevant
laws and regulations, and pays attention to the protection of the consumers
legal rights. The Group also set up a special functional department to

handle issues with consumers.

The Group is highly concerned about the protection of consumers’
privacy and constantly improves the data protection system. Any person
who has access to personal or the Group data is required to fulfill the
obligation of confidentiality. The Group undertakes that the relevant data
obtained through normal consumption will not be disclosed or used for

other purposes.

Anti-corruption

The Group expects all staff to remember and strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations including the “Anti-corruption and Bribery
Act of the PRC”, the “Anti- Money laundering Law of the PRC” and the
“Discipline Inspection and Supervision Law of the PRC”, and requires all
employees to be self-disciplined and upright that they would not accept
any corruption and kickback. No one is allowed to take advantage of
their position to misappropriate funds and property or abuse power for

personal gains.
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The Group monitors and prevents illicit transactions such as bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering through the following measures:

1. The Group has established the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department to accept reports, conduct investigations, and
investigate and handle certain cases, in an attempt to prevent the

staff from corruption.

2. Implement national laws, regulations and rules on anti-corruption,
strengthen publicity and education for employees to consciously

resist all kinds of corruption.

3. Cooperate with suppliers or partners to supervise employees’
behaviors by signing anti-corruption agreement or relevant
supplementary agreement, and provide reporting channels to

receive evidence and being supervised.
4. Internal audit

During the Reporting Period, the Group to carry out many trainings about
anti-corruption, such as the case warning education exhibition named

» o«

“Learn from the cases and keep the beginning of the heart”, “obey the

bottom line, adhere to the integrity, grass-roots management personnel

» o«

of Jingkelong warning education training”, “investigate false accusation
for the cadres to clarify the name, grass-roots management personnel

of Jingkelong warning education training”, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees are not involved

in any lawsuits involving corruption, bribery and money laundering.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Engagement

The Group has constantly paid attention to the needs of society. It cares
for people in the community through setting up convenience stores in
the community, contributing to society and thereby fulfilling the corporate
social responsibility. During the Reporting Period, the Group had 43

Community Fresh Stores and 24 Community Convenience Stores.

In order to improve the store service supervision and control mechanism,
broaden social supervision channels, further strengthen the exchange
and communication with customers, and constantly improve the service
quality of the enterprise, the Group has formulated the supervision
mechanism of voluntary supervisors to give full play to the role of voluntary
supervisors in social supervision. During the Reporting Period, the Group
conducted vigilantes seminar by a variety of forms, for example, in
March 2020, the Group through WeChat started collecting the opinion
for the activity in relation to the protection of the rights and interests of
consumers day with the theme of “concentrate the power of you and
me” from the volunteer vigilantes, sorted, summarised and submitted the
related department to improve in order to further improve the service
level, provide consumers with more convenient service and high-quality

goods, and improve customer satisfaction.

To cooperate with the government organization, and promote, complete
and improve the quality of lifestyle services, and meet rigid demand
of law-frequency of consumer services such as laundry services and
maintenance services, enhance the level of shop convenient service,
in the Reporting Period, the Group in its five supermarkets and 12
stores, introduced through two different ways, namely “embedded” or
“independent”, community convenient service center, with more than ten
services related to residents’ daily life such as laundry service, lock and
key, collection maintenance, fast hair cutting, etc., created the “1 + N”
new convenient service mode and promote the carrying of the operation
of class B non-prescription drugs and class Il medical devices 4 stores,
to better meet the needs of the surrounding people, improve the brand

image, and increase customer cohesion.
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B LB REARE

In order to provide the community with fresh and high-quality products,
let the people in the community eat without worrying about the quality
of food, and implement the “vegetable basket” project for them, the
Group strived to create a model supermarket for reassuring meat and
vegetables. During the Reporting Period, a total of six stores of the
Group were named as “Exemplary Supermarket for Reassuring Meat

and Vegetables”.

The Group has been distributing the “Red Heart Service Card (/0 IRT%
+)” to the needy in the community for ten years, such as home delivery
for free, hairdressing, birthday celebration, bills and living expenses
payment, housekeeping, postal and other services. They will also obtained
its blessing and gifts during festivals. In 2020, the Group provided home
delivery service for over 100 people with the “red heart service card” in

59 communities over 290 times.

The Group has formulated special promotional activities for specific
consumer groups in the community on proper occasions, such as the
“Silver Hair Month (8822 A)” promotional activities for elderly and “Respect
Elderly and Enjoy Shopping Season in Double Ninth Festival”, which not
only meets the shopping needs of the elderly, but also enables consumers

to respect the elderly through shopping.

The Group encourages employees to care for people in need in society,

promotes its corporate culture and fulfills corporate social responsibility.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Battling disease

In the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 caused a shortage
of epidemic prevention supplies. Protective masks were hard to find and
supplies of disinfectant, disposable gloves and other epidemic prevention
supplies were tight. The group broke through the limitation of channels
and categories, and actively contacted cooperation channels to find
supply sources, so as to ensure the supply of epidemic prevention
supplies. During the Reporting Period, the Group paid close attention
to the epidemic situation, adjusted the commodity structure, ensured
the supply of epidemic prevention commodities and daily necessities,
stabilized prices, did a good job in disinfection, continued to provide high-
quality commodities, and coordinated the work of the government health
department to do a good job in the normal management of epidemic

prevention and control.

Poverty alleviation and agricultural assistance

The Group actively responded to an appeal by the government on
poverty alleviation and pushed forward precise poverty alleviation work,
intensify its efforts to introduce the development for poverty alleviation
goods and help connect the manufacturers in Xinjiang, Inner Mongolia,
Hebei and other areas. In the Reporting Period, there was an increase of
nine channels for the poverty alleviation goods and 92 types of goods,
and successively in 102 stores, the Group focused on poverty relief
goods publicity, and arranged the specialist is responsible for poverty
relief goods promotion, tally, replenishment, such as daily operation and
maintenance, to ensure good results for the sale of the poverty relief
goods could be achieved. During the Reporting Period, the total sales

of poverty alleviation products reached nearly RMB5 million.

The Group was actively assisting Mazhuanger Village, Tang County,
Baoding City, Hebei Province in the targeted poverty alleviation action
of “Ten thousand enterprises help ten thousand villages (&1 & &)
of Chaoyang District, set up the party to promote poverty alleviation
mechanism promoted by the party, combined with local reality, support
small agricultural products processing factory project for its construction
as planned, equipment installation and debugging in place and the factory

will formally start operation.

RIE - g MEamE

EhHvE

2020 7)) - A ARIENESE  NEDER
R EAS MK BEER  —AMFE
EHMERMEERER - AEBERBERE - RER
H o EBRBES SHER  UWRERED
BWHE - REmEHE - AEETBERIEMN
N AEBERREE  RERERBEGREELFSR
HE - REME - MIFERIE - SERHRE
BrmEm - RS BUFELRFTIH ITE - af
REMEFRICER -

1 /E

KE - BEBRIHF

AEERBERBFRERA @ BRAREER
BT MAKEBMAEIENE @ BiREHN
B ARG T EE O KRS E
B oRWEHE - HEKEAMAREMF  mE
921E » WHREREI02HERHE K EBmMETEF
YTLZHFEANBBKREBMAEH
CHERKEERIUSR

HEITH

]

BEREESGRIECEEN I HOREKTHHY

ERBHEMNNAHERGTE  BEERRKE
TS EAEHER - ElaNERM/NE

BER T BR A R R A MR - RAET

KRAABINII BN IE P TH&ETT »

>¢H

2020 i%ﬁ& 119
FEBESEROARD
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B LB REARE

During the epidemic period, the Group purchased fruits and vegetables in
excess of demand in the suburbs of Beijing to solve farmers’ difficulties
in selling. The self-picking method did not only solve the commodities of
farmers in excess of demand, but also reduced the transportation time
of fresh commodities to the greatest extent because of the reduction
of intermediate links; and on the condition that the freshness and taste
of commodities, being ensured it provides consumers with cheap and

high-quality commodities.

Aiming at poverty alleviation, agricultural and marketing assistance, the
Group help strengthen the confidence of villagers to become rich, solve
the urgent need for farmers to sell, take up the responsibility as a state-

owned enterprise, and lay a solid foundation for sustainable development.
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Da Hua Shen Zi [2021] No. 005361

To The Shareholders Of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited:

QUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Jingkelong Company”),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets and the
balance sheets of the Company as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated income statement and the income statement of
the Company, the consolidated cash flow statement and the
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
and the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2020, and other certain explanatory notes.

In our opinion, except for the possible impact of matters
described in the section “Basis for qualified opinion”, the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2020 and the
consolidated and Company’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year ended 2020 in accordance with the Accounting

Standards for Business Enterprises.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
TS
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As stated in the Note “XIV. Other important matters 5. Matters
concerning Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company Limited”:
‘due to the minority shareholder of Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading
Company Limited (refers to Jinan Chaopi Company), who was the
former general manager of Jinan Chaopi Company and Beijing
Chaopi Trading Company Limited, (a subsidiary of Jingkelong
Company, refers to Chaopi Trading) the major shareholder of
Jinan Chaopi Company has unresolved disputes, Since November
2019, minority shareholders have refused to hand over items and
materials such as the company’s business license, bank account
opening permit, company seal, special financial seal, financial
account book and vouchers that they originally controlled.’
Thus, Jingkelong’s financial statements for 2019 were audited
with qualified opinions by the accountant who audited its annual
report. As of the date of this annual report, Chaopi Trading has
adopted legal means to require minority shareholders to return
the above-mentioned illegally possessed items and materials. The

proceedings are still in progress.

As Jingkelong’s qualified opinions in the 2019 annual report and
its impact have not been eliminated, Jinan Chaopi Company’s
financial information control is still in the hands of minority
shareholders. Its refusal to accept audit and provide relevant
information has caused our scope of audit of Jingkelong’s

financial statements in to be restricted.

If the scope of the aforementioned review is not limited, we may
find matters that need to be adjusted in the financial statements

and matters that need to be disclosed but not disclosed.
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AUDITOR’'S REPORT
Bt

We performed our audit in accordance with the Chinese Auditing BB M AEERIE T
Standards for Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor’s TTEETIIE o FFH SO M Eaan L
Responsibility for Auditing Financial Statements section of the BWMEBNEE IR E—TER T RME
audit report further explains our responsibilities under these BEHERTHEMT - RBH M
standards. In accordance with the Code of Ethics for Chinese FEEH BRMBUAREERR - TR
Certified Public Accountants, we are independent of the Company TTHREEEFENEMEET - HPIEE
and fulfill other responsibilities in terms of professional ethics. We BMERNETSBERERD  BEMN - 2%
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and RIREE R T ER -

appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS = BRETEE
Key audit matters are those matters that we based on the FARETEEESRMBEBRELE @ RAeY
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of N SRERBARAEENSTIH - BLE
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were TE B JE 3 DA ¥ B FS Sk B BRI TT /AT W AK
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements B BERAES  BRMTHELIHEERHR
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not =ER
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Except for the matters described in the section “Basis for BIFERREEROER oM EIEBEIN -
Qualified Opinion”, we determine the following matters as key BMEE T EEEREAETREPES
audit matters that need to be discussed in the audit report. KIFBRETFIE -
1. Confirmation and measurement of wholesale and retail 1. HEBERZEWRAHERNGTE
income
2. Measurement of accounts receivable credit loss allowance 2. [EUWERFTEHERBXLRITE
3.1 Confirmation and measurement of wholesale and (m)MBREERANERAGTE
retail income
Refer to IV (20) and VI (38) of Notes to the Consolidated HEEEREFRM B RERWNTE -
Financial Statements /9.20417<.38
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3.1.1Description 1 FHEHL

As stated in Note VI (38) “Operating Income and
Operating Costs” in Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Company’s wholesale
income is RMB6,701.4455 million, constituting 60.90%
of operating income. Retail income is RMB4,287.4377
million, constituting 38.96% of operating income
(wholesale income was RMB6,411.7587 million in the
year 2019, which was 60.75% of operating income;
retail income was RMB4,104.8645 million, which was
38.89% of operating income). Adding to the fact that
wholesale and retail revenue are key components
of the Company’s operating income comprising
a significant amount, revenue is also one of the
Company’s key performance indicators. So there is
an inherent risk that management might manipulate
the timing of revenue recognition in order to achieve
specific goals or expectations. Therefore, we identify
confirmation and measurement of wholesale and retail

income as key audit matters.

3.1.2How our audit addressed the key audit matters

In terms of confirmation and measurement of wholesale
and retail income, our primary audit procedures

include:

(1) We checked accounting policies related to
confirming wholesale and retail income of the
Company, evaluated the relevant design of
internal controls for the revenue cycle, and tested

the effectiveness of key internal controls;
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For wholesaling business, along with an analytic
review, we also checked signed sales contracts,
delivery records, customer acceptance records,
relevant accounting vouchers and their supporting
documents (including Notice of Delivery, Invoices,
Bank receipts, etc.), and we also sampled some
customers to send confirmation letters, affirming
whether the record of sales revenue is true and

complete.

For retailing business, in addition to a solid
analytic review, we selected several stores
according to their distribution and operation
performances and observed their operation
condition on the spot. In addition, we checked
their sales list daily reports and commodity sales
financial accounting vouchers against their bank

statement;

Our internal IT experts conducted a company-
level IT audit, including IT general control tests
and application control tests. In accordance
with the significance of information systems in
wholesaling and retailing business, our internal
IT experts performed a detailed check on the

revenue related stock movement data.

Based on the audit work performed, we believe that

the management’s confirmation and measurement of

wholesale and retail income are reasonable.
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3.2 Measurement of accounts receivable credit loss

allowance

Refer to IV (9) and VI (3) of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements

3.2.1Description

As stated in Note VI (3) “Accounts receivable” in
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
Company’s net consolidated accounts receivable is
RMB975.4797 million on 31 December 2020, mostly
consisting of wholesale business, accounting for
12.09% of total assets. The net wholesale business
accounts receivable on 31 December 2020 is
RMB933.3325 million (the net consolidated account
receivables is RMB1,197.3825 million on 31 December
2019, constituting 14.08% of total assets. It includes
RMB1,157.5628 million of net wholesale business).
Because the accounts receivable has a relatively large
balance, consists a significant proportion of total
assets, and is also subjected to market uncertainties,
the evaluation of account receivable credit loss
allowance involves comprehensive management
analysis of all reasonable and reliable information
and decision-making based on this analysis. For
this reason, we identify measurement of accounts

receivable credit loss allowance as a key audit matter.
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3.2.2How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of measurement of accounts receivable credit

loss allowance, our primary procedures include:

We inquired, evaluated, and tested how effectively
management evaluates the recoverability of
account receivable, as well as how they designed
and executes relevant controls for account
receivable credit loss allowance, including the
justification for confirming account receivable
portfolios and regular assessment of aging
analysis and recoverability of account receivable

balances.

For account receivable credit loss allowance
whose confirmation and measurement is
determined based on credit risk characteristics,
we reviewed management’s establishment of
credit risk characteristics combination and the

accuracy of account receivable age division.

We performed detailed tests on the basis and
payment record of major receivables to check
the accuracy of account receivables’ year-end

balance.

We drew samples from account receivables and
payments after the balance sheet date to perform

confirmation procedures.
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(5) We obtained the expected credit loss list of
Company’s accounts receivable, check whether
the confirmation and measurement methods
are implemented in accordance with the
expected credit loss policy; recalculate whether
the expected credit loss confirmation and

measurement amount are accurate;

Based on the audit work performed, we believe that the
management’s overall assessment of the provision for credit

losses on accounts receivable is acceptable.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management of the Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 2020 annual report of other than the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion to financial statements does not cover other
information and we do not declare any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that
there is a material misstatement of this other information we
are required to report that fact. As mentioned in the above
section “Basis for Qualified Opinions”, we are unable to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the possible impact
of the financial data of Jinan Chaopi Company for 2020 on the
consolidated financial statements for 2020. Thus, we are unable

to determine whether there is a material misstatement of other

information related to this matter.
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VI.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Management of the Company (“the Management”) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the CASs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
TS

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

6.1 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

6.2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company'’s internal control.

6.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.
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6.4 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in these financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

6.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

6.6 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards (If applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants

(Special General Partnership)

Chinese Certified Public Accountants (The Project Partner):
Liu Xuechuan

Chinese Certified Public Accountants:

Wang Kaili

Beijing, China

26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
NV s ==
BHEESE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 12531H

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN - RREEEREERNARAR

Amount unit: RMB
SREMN  ARET

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
Notes —ECEHF —E—NF
ltem =R F¥ |+=ZA=+—-8 | t—A=+—H
Current Assets: REEE :
Cash and bank balances E¥Es VI 1,190,302,319 949,420,994
Notes receivable R E i VI2 6,617,315 -
Accounts receivable JFEUTAR X VI3 975,479,676 | 1,197,382,479
Prepayments FEFRIE Vi4 890,477,970 | 1,124,980,836
Other receivables H b e R VI5 200,158,379 191,243,003
Inventories FE Vi 1,503,939,573 | 1,564,435,396
Other current assets Htms&E VI7 129,005,227 135,917,567
Total current assets REBEESR 4,895,980,459 | 5,163,380,275
Non-current Assets: ERBEE :
Other non-current financial assets HtIEmsheméE VI8 131,508,869 42,272,786
Investment properties KEEFHE VI9 170,223,635 178,914,199
Fixed assets EEEE VI10 854,541,694 922,254,233
Construction in progress ERTRE VI11 138,005,745 141,980,011
Right-of-use assets FREEE vii2 | 1,008,151,388 | 1,137,662,287
Intangible assets | EE VI13 280,216,222 289,748,102
Goodwill S Vi14 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses REIFHER VI15 298,550,451 331,353,470
Deferred tax assets RIEFTS R & EE VI17 20,880,124 10,523,930
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE VI8 183,899,094 196,794,890
Total non-current assets FRBEESE 3,172,651,010 | 3,338,177,696
TOTAL ASSETS BEA 8,068,631,469 | 8,501,557,971
Current Liabilities: FREAE
Short-term borrowings EEMER V9 | 2,334,237,881 | 2,232,003,496
Notes payable DL VI20 449,442,574 433,117,591
Accounts payable FE{FEREX VI21 720,957,209 907,047,722
Payments received in advance e R TE VI22 7,094,294 8,710,509
Contract liabilities ARAE VI23 462,447,201 428,557,184
Payroll payable JFEE A<} B8 T 35 M VI24 1,621,215 1,735,030
Taxes payable ERTE VI25 46,799,947 101,920,932
Other payables E bR VI26 264,625,097 255,464,331
Including: Interest payable Hrh o EAFB VI26 - 2,859,433
Dividends payable FE & T VI26 6,389,222 5,251,507
Non-current liabilities due within one —FRIHEERBAE
year vI27 158,537,320 196,274,668
Other current liabilities HEMRBaE VI28 65,877,283 328,520,621
Total current liabilities REBEEES 4,511,640,021 | 4,893,352,084
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

aHBEERE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020 12531H

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

Prepared by: BEIUING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Amount unit: RMB

REBA IR RREEEEERNDBRAA RN AREETT
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
Notes —ECEF —E-NF
ltem IHH = | +t=ZA=+—-8 | +t=—A=+—8
Non-current Liabilities: FREBEME :
Bonds payable B ES VI29 402,932,044 402,326,607
Leases liabilities HEBE VI30 911,131,824 977,428,757
Deferred income BT VI32 34,039,487 35,950,018
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMSHARE VI16 30,427,271 8,142,767
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBEE 1,378,530,626 | 1,423,848,149
TOTAL LIABILITIES =Lty 5,890,170,647 6,317,200,233
Shareholders’ equity: BRERER
Share capital [N VI33 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BRANE VI34 605,043,091 605,043,091
Other comprehensive income Eira s VI35 309,414 309,414
Surplus reserves BN VI36 169,059,880 160,727,215
Undistributed profits FOBAE VI37 565,257,886 550,263,661
Total equity attributable to BERELATIRRESST
shareholders of the parent company 1,751,890,271 1,728,563,381
Minority interests DERE R R 426,570,551 455,794,357
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BRERERS 2,178,460,822 2,184,357,738
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EENBRRESEG

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

8,068,631,469

8,5601,557,971

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 133 to 148 have been

signed by

Li Jianwen
Legal Representative:
JEEREA -
TEX
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAEERRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 12531H
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN - RREEEREERNARAR

Amount unit: RMB
SREMN  ARET

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
Notes —EEHF —E-NF
ltem HE # | +t=ZA=+—-8 | +=—A=+—8~
Current Assets: REEE
Cash and bank balances E¥Es 288,671,813 186,411,639
Accounts receivable FEYBR X XV1 65,313,274 79,981,805
Prepayments TEfTFRIA 395,433 1,705,589
Other receivables H e XV2 501,300,499 550,830,771
Inventories By 230,249,302 292,264,291
Other current assets Hib B & = 559,413,223 569,098,951
Total current assets REBEES 1,645,343,544 | 1,680,293,046
Non-current Assets: IREBEE :
Long-term equity investment REARIERE XV3 1,246,991,571 | 1,246,991,571
Investment properties RE S EHE 44,076,640 47,313,072
Fixed assets BEE&E 620,909,700 672,527,910
Construction in progress EEIR 106,158,024 108,874,334
Right-of-use assets HREEE 529,065,785 566,751,247
Intangible assets EmEE 76,112,422 81,465,430
Long-term prepaid expenses REBFEBER 193,639,402 243,386,592
Deferred tax assets IRIEFTS T E E 12,327,517 3,299,953
Other non-current assets HtEmo&EE 6,875,277 4,076,924
Total non-current assets kREBEESS 2,836,156,338 | 2,969,687,033
TOTAL ASSETS EER 4,481,499,882 | 4,649,980,079
Current Liabilities: REBEE
Short-term borrowings RHEER 840,577,906 650,000,000
Notes payable ERRE 17,369,805 -
Accounts payable FERTARRR 548,476,923 650,139,694
Payments received in advance TEWRIR 4,841,385 6,171,631
Contract liabilities ARAE 309,982,898 340,636,812
Payroll payable 1< Bk T 7 1,272,989 1,307,163
Taxes payable JERTE 3,190,287 871,536
Other payables HAun 113,980,031 115,962,740
Including: Interest payable Hrh o EARE - 612,425
Dividends payable FERT AR 55,022 18,907
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREIHINIEREEE 84,267,448 94,696,356
Other current liabilities HEhnEhafE 35,626,490 315,053,032
Total current liabilities RBEBEET 1,959,586,162 | 2,174,838,964
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY

NEIBEBRER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 12531H

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BEIUING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Amount unit: RMB

REBA IR RREEEEERNDBRAA LB ARET
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
Notes —ECEF —E-NF
ltem T8 B =+8 |+t=ZA=+—-8 | t—A=+—H
Non-current Liabilities: FRBERE
Bonds payable FEES 402,932,044 402,326,607
Leases liabilities HEGE 473,857,261 478,351,796
Deferred income FEIE W 27,177,846 26,865,191
Total non-current liabilities FREBEESE 903,967,151 907,543,594
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEEF 2,863,553,313 | 3,082,382,558
Shareholders’ equity: IREER
Share capital A&7 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BEARNTE 615,293,521 615,293,521
Surplus reserves B ATE 145,282,646 136,949,981
Undistributed profits FHEFE 445,150,402 403,134,019

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

RREF ST

1,617,946,569

1,567,597,521

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

BEMRRESRATT

4,481,499,882

4,649,980,079

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 133 to 148 have been

signed by

Li Jianwen
Legal Representative
EEREA
TEX
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Prepared by: BELING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
RREN : LR RFEAXEERIERAA

ltem

| Total operating income
Including: Operating income
Il Total operating costs
Including: Operating cost
Tax and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Add:  Other Income
Investment income
Gains or losses on changes in fair value
Impairment losses on credits
Gains or losses on disposal of assets
IIl. Operating profit
Add:  Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
IV. Total profit
Less: Income tax expense
V. Net profit
() Classified by business continuity
1. Net profit from continued operations
2. Net profit from discontinued operations
(I} Classified by ownership
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the
parent company
2. Profit or loss attrioutable to minority interests
VI. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax

15H

CERBIA

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Hen s BRHA

Hep: BERA
ne ki
HEER
ERER
HHER
i A
RARE(BEIA - [5851)
RABESHNE (RN - 5FE3)
ERRERR (AKX - J5E3)
BERERE(RRIU - 5HE5))

EXHBUSIRA - J3F85)

0 £
i 2R

HIBEE(BREFA - 13FE5))

B FEHER

- BHECRERN - I3Es)

15 %

(—REERE
(AN - 55831
2 RIHEEEE (SR - 5EE5))
(Z)EMERRENR
1 EERBARARRNFNEFERA
[ 5i5831)
2 PERRBZ(FERM - 553

A AR RERRKEE

Notes

sz
iTiE

VI38

VI38
VI39
V40
Vi41
Vid2
Vi43
Vid4
iz
VI46
Vid7

Vi48
V149

VIS0

2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31
20205

11,983,797,935
11,983,797,935
11,930,202,653
9,720,906,586
45,117,958
1,742,320,397
250,206,132
171,561,580
24,506,275
1,197,882
89,236,083
(16,856,248)
7,184,727
158,864,001
17,412,428
10,397,698
165,878,731
79,908,305
85,070,426

85,970,426

56,304,490
29,665,936

Amount unit; RMB
SHEA ARET

2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
2019%%

1,608,221,930
1,608,221,930
1,531,612,765
9,147,693,786
48,879,944
1,837,292,733
301,068,109
196,678,193
18,295,011
1,468,632
27,689,141
(8,242,579)
515,005
166,334,375
22,372,295
9,904,427
178,802,243
81,715,652
97,086,591

1
1
1

97,086,591

52,935,436
44,151,185
437,915
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED Amount unit; RMB
BREN I RRREREEERAERAT SEEN: ARET
Notes 2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31 2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
ltem B i 20205 20195
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to FERRARRNEMEA NENTR
shareholders of the parent company after tax 38 - 227,289
Other comprehensive income which can be RENRERRN MG NA
reclassified into profit or loss subsequently - 227,289
Balancing arising from the translation of foreign NEHBRENTEEE
currency financial statements - 227,289
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to BERDHRRNE A Enik
minority interests after tax et - 210,626
VIl. Total comprehensive income o RAEEE 85,970,426 97,524,506
() Total comprenensive income attributable to (-)EERERERRNGANREE
shareholders of the parent company 56,304,490 53,162,725
(I Total comprehensive income attributable to minority (DIEBRV BRENGE YR LEE
interests 29,665,936 44,361,781
VIl. Earnings per share N Bl
() Basic earmings per share () ERERE(T/B) V49 0.14 0.13
(I) Diluted earnings per share (Z)hREREE(T/R) - -

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of A FE 14908 £ £ 3758 KB ISR % W3 2 A8 7%

the financial statements R BB D

The financial statements as set out from page 133 to 148 have been $133EEF148ENIMBEREBIUTATEE .

signed by
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERFKA FEEISILIFERA - EEEBEREEA
TEX THRK FHEM
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Prepared by: BEIING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
BREMN  ARREEBEEERNERAA

ltem

| Total operating income
Less: operating cost
Tax and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Add:  Other Income
Investment income
Gains or losses on disposal of assets
Il Operating profit
Add:  Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
lll. Total profit
Less: Income tax expense
V. Net profit
1. Net profit from continued operations
2. Net profit from discontinued operations
V. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax
VI. Total comprehensive income

INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NCIRRIVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020F &

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

CERNA

o BRRA
Ra kA
HEER
ERER
HHER
pIIREY
BN (BAI - 585))
BERE e (BRI - 5H89)

FEXAE 2 (BSIRLAT - ISR

M EEMIA
RE-E 35!

- MRER(BRET - 3E5)

B EHER

ERRCERR - 587))

Sl
(D&

i

A(FEERMA - 5231
@ EOFBRA - 5EES))

 Afpfs e Wi hE R
RAREEE

Notes

i

iTrE

XV4
XV4

XV5

2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31
20205

431,677,997
3,396,391,476
21,518,927
673,614,924
146,581,357
33,165,756
17,307,295
32,608,613

90,321,465
12,351,296

2,773,356
99,899,405
16,572,757
83,326,648
83,326,648

83,326,648

Amount unit; RMB
SHEA ARET

2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
2019F

4,185,689,695
3,241,006,981
20,971,139
673,135,435
168,212,833
50,200,472
13,515,407
33,263,682

50
78,751,974
13,294,262
3,008,944
89,037,292
13,024,080
76,013,212
76,013,212

76,013,212

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 133 to 148 have been

signed by

Li Jianwen
Legal Representative
SEERFHA -
FEX

Li Chunyan
Ch/ef Financial Officer

ETECFIIEEEA -
TEHMH
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BB HRERANATALRE

Wang Panzhou

Chief Accountant
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
A\ [ ANy i —

EHIREeRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is CNY) (BR#EIEEBES) - BB BARET)

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED Amount unit: RMB
BHEN LR RREREEEARNER AT SEE ARET
Notes 2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31 2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
Item JEH B 20205 20195
I. Cash flows from operating activities - REEBELNESRE:
Cash received from selling goods and rendering HEWR  RELBRINRES
services 13,755,918,377 13,632,629,803
Other cash received relating to operating WEHEpRCEEDERNRS
activities VI53 223,214,819 251,164,019
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities TLIHRS TN 13,979,133,196 13,783,793,822
Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving BEAR EXSKIANES
services 11,392,586,653 11,543,961,201
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees IRAABTURBR TSRS 710,639,406 750,563,475
Taxes and surcharges paid FRNEERE 288,192,123 315,280,973
Other cash paid related to operating activities INEMESETHERNE S VI53 732,085,896 755,707,437
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating BEFHRE ML/t
activities 13,123,504,078 13,365,513,086
Net cash flow from operating activities BETHELNELRETE 855,629,118 418,280,736
II. Cash flows from investing activities Z REFDELNRLRE:
Cash received from interest income WEREREINE S 22,500,000 683,575,508
Cash received from investment income DEREUERINES 6,692,935 5,337,249
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETEE  BVEAENENRBEENR
and other long-term assets BMRLFE 1,111,726 2,177,837
Other cash received relating to investing WEIEpELEESEENR S
activities VI53 75,229,714 91,621,277
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities RETHE RN 105,534,375 782,611,781
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, FEETEE  EREENERREEEY
construction in progress, intangible assets LR
and other long-term assets 41,164,975 63,345,156
Net cash paid for investment RELMOES 22,500,000 683,520,000
Other cash paid relating to investing activities XEMEREESERNAS VI53 101,200,025 43,410,184
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing REGHRS MM NG
activities 164,865,000 790,275,340
Net cash flow from investing activities RETHELNBELREFE (59,330,625) (7,663,469)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EHEEREXR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is CNY) (BR#FIEBES) » £EBELBARKT)

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED Amount unit: RMB
RUEN : AR EEREEERAERAR SREN : ARET
Notes 2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31 2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
ltem B HE 2020%[E 2019FF
IIl. Cash flows from financing activities = EEEBELNTERE:
Cash received from investments RUEREWE B £ - 3,000,000
Including: ~ Cash received from capital He: FRRRG O SRERE NGRS
contribution from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries - 3,000,000
Cash received from borrowings BEETWENES 4,029,981,428 4,405,129,517
Cash received from other financing activities uy IEtBEEEYEENAS VI53 - 1,095,649,057
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EETHRET NG 4,029,981,428 5,503,778,574
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities ERERIANEE 3,931,341,933 4,930,775,490
Cash paid for dividends, profits or interest SERF - FIESEMTETFHES
payments 206,579,153 193,016,506
Including:  Dividends and profits paid o FARAR AR DHRENRA - FE
by subsidiaries to minority
shareholders 44,850,926 27,262,325
Cash paid for other financing activates YRAMBEEEHEANES VI53 521,843,310 940,630,713
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing ERTHRLTL N
activities 4,659,764,396 6,064,422,709
Net cash flow from financing activities SEEYEANRENETE (629,782,968) (560,644,135)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to CEREBURSRELSENNYE
change in foreign currency exchange rate 1,493,422 648,748
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & - B4 RESLEYERMNE 168,008,947 (149,378,120)
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at n: PR RELEENHE
the beginning of the year 864,849,804 1,014,227,924
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the 7 > BIAE4RELZENSLE
end of the year 1,032,858,751 864,849,804

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of  EH N F149E EEI75 8 M A HK W 51 2 A 75

the financial statements WERBEKE D
The financial statements as set out from page 133 to 148 have been F133EEF148EHMIBMERAUNTALESE
signed by
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERFA FEEIITIEEEA : BIHEREA -
FTEX ZERK EHM
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NARRETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BEIING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BHEMN  LRRREARXEERNERAF

[tem

. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from selling goods and rendering
services

Other cash received relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving
services

Cash payments to and on behalf of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid related to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from investment

Cash received from investment income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment

Other cash paid relating to investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

Notes
i

- BEEBELHRERE

HERR  RESBUINRE

R EpRALEHERNRE
BEEHRERAG
BEAM BRSBTS

XNEBTARARIXNES
XMEERE
IEMESEEHARNRS
BEERHRD R
BEFHELNREREFE

Z RERBELHRLRE:

W Bl R &

DEKERENEINE S

REETAE BVAENABRYE
ENENEEEE

WEEMEREEBABNRE

RERBRRRANG

BRETEE  BVEENAMRYE
EXfnRe

REXMHAS
XEMEREEBAENRE
RERBRR AL/
REFBELNRRRERE

2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31
20205

4,702,033,598
139,654,556
4,841,688,154

3,831,000,461
375,935,842
98,297,970
239,391,658
4,544,625,931
297,062,223

650,000,000
76,995,775

383,802
300,061,017
1,027,440,594

20,860,250
900,000,000

920,860,250
106,580,344

Amount unit: RMB
SBEN: ARET

2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
20195

4,647,217,751
142,845,181
4,790,062,932

3,814,291,424
382,660,858
80,445,078
247,284,075
4,524,681,435
265,381,497

820,400,000
81,606,804

547,874
501,878,830
1,404,433,508

39,792,701
325,400,000
1,000,000,000
1,365,192,701
39,240,807
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

Prepared by: BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

RHEEN  HRREEEXKERDARLA)

Amount unit: RMB
SREN : ARET

Notes 2020.1.1 - 2020.12.31 2019.1.1 - 2019.12.31
ltem EH B 20205 20195
IIl. Cash flows from financing activities = EETBELMESRE:
Cash received from borrowings BEEZRENES 939,783,548 900,000,000
Cash received from other financing activities WHEREEEEHERNE S - 1,095,649,057
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities ELTHRETANE 939,783,548 1,995,649,057
Cash paid for repayments of liabilties BEEB MRS 750,000,000 1,450,000,000
Cash paid for dividends, profits or interest AR - MERERFIEZANERS
payments 91,275,530 84,496,999
Cash paid for other financing activates YNEWREETHEENE S 401,814,140 804,143,817
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities SREHRML NG 1,243,089,670 2,338,640,816
Net cash flow from financing activities EERPELANRLTETE (303,306,122) (342,991,759)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to EXSHHRSRALSENNYE
change in foreign currency exchange rate 177,529 75,845
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents I BeRBESSENTENE 100,513,974 (38,293,610)
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the m: BIRERALEENLEE
beginning of the year 186,411,639 224,705,249
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the < AR S RELLEBUHE
end of the year 286,925,613 186,411,639

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 133 to 148 have been

N E149 B EEI75ANM B MAM T RAT

HERAEKE D

F133EEF148EMHEMERANTALESE -

signed by
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERFA FEEFILIEBEA : BEHEEREEA
FEX =83 EHEM
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

BrtlREREDR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by: BELING JNGKELONG COMPANY LIMTED
FRE0 I RREEBREERNARLT

Item i

| Baance at the end of the prior period  — + FEEREE
Add: Changes in accounting policies 1 €5tH5%
Correction of prior errors HBEREE
Business combinaton under AT REAM
common control
Others i
Il Balance at the beginning of the period = + AEEAE
Il norease or decrease amount nthe = REEREHSE(H O -
year &)
) Total comprehensive income (-)sAkaER
(1) Contrbution and reduction of (ZIRRRATEL &R

shargholders' capital
1. Ordinary shares contibution 1 RRRAREER

from shareholders

2. Capita contrbution rom 2 ApERTAREER
holders of other equty \BA
instruments

3. Dhidends payments recognized 3 B RRES
in Shareholders' equty ki

4, Others 4K

(1) Proft contrbution (Z)HEAR

1. Appropriation to surplus 1 RREBDE

Teserves
2. Appropriation to general isk 2 RO-REREE
feserve
3. Distbution to shareholders 3 HRRIAR
4, Others 4 Efy
(V) Intemal ransler within shereholders’ (MR ATEE
equiy
1. Capltlreserves transfered to 1 ERLREEER(
capial (o shares) iy
2. Surplus resenves ransfered to 2 BRLEELEN(R
capial (o shares) iy
3, Surplus reserves made up for 3 BRLEAREE
losses
4, Changes in defned benefi L EERBEAERE
plens carried forwerd fo e
retained eamings
5. Other comprehensiv income 5 Eflsahiteat
caried forward to retained Y&
gamnings
6. Other 6 £t
(V) Specia resene (R)2BRE
1. Apropriaton in the period 1 KEER
2. Usage in the period 2 KRR
V) Other ()Ef
IV, Balance at the end of the year M REERHE

Amount unit. RMB
BB \RHT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
NNEE
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
BENELIRFRE
Other Total
Share Capital ~ comprehensive Surplus — Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders’
capital reserves income Teserves profits Subtotal interests equity
i EA0E  HpRAGE BRLE  AAEAE Nt JERRRE  RREESH
412,220000 605,043,091 09414 160727215 550263661 1728563381 465794357 2,184,367,738
412,20000 605,043,091 09414 160721215 550263661 1728563381 465794357 2,184,367,738
- - - 8,332,605 14,994,205 23,326,890 (29,223,806) (5,896,916)
- - - - 56,304,490 56,304,490 29,665,936 85,970426
- - - 8,332,665 (@310.205 (32,077,600 (58,889,742 (91,867,342
- - - 8,332,665 (8,332,665) - - -
- - - - (329776000 (32,077,600 (58,889,742 (91,867,342)
412,220,000 605,043,091 300414 169059880 565,267,886  1,751,890.271 426,570,851 2,178,460,822
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
AR R R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIzE855) » 8B BA R T)

Prepared by BEING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED Amount unit RMB
RREN L AREEER R ARAERAR SHBEN: ARET
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (unaucited)
N9ER
Equity attributable to hareholde f the parent company
EERGATREER
Other Total
Share Capttal  comprenensive Surplus Undlistributed Minory ~ shareholders’
capta Tesees ~income feserves profts Subtotal inferests equty
fiem %R e ERDE  Efbeda N ROEHE Mt JERREE  REEASH
| Balanoe at the end of the prior period  — » FEERES 412,220,000 605,043,091 82,126 153,125,804 537,907,146 1,708,378,256 468,621,449 2,176,999,70
Add: ~ Changes in accounting poliies 11+ S5 HIREE - - - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors JHMEEET - - - - _ - _ _
Business combination under AT eRAH
common control - - - - - - - -
Others ifp - - - - - - - -
[l Balance at the beginning of the period = Mﬂﬂﬁ% 412,220,000 605,043,001 8,12 163,125,804 531907,146 1708378206 468,621,449 2,176,999,70
Il Ioresse r decease amowtn he = - BEEHESSB(HIN -
year fi §\J) - - 21,289 7,601,321 12,366,515 20,185,125 (12,827,092) 7,368,033
() Total comprehensive income ~|gAlEEE - - 201,089 - 52,080,436 53,162,725 44,361,781 97,604,506
(I Contrbution and reduction of ( Hﬁ&/\m VER
shareholders’ capital - - - - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
1. Orcinary shares confrbution 1 RERANESR
from shareholders - - - - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
2. Capital contrbution from 2 EMBATEREER
holders of other equty MET
nstruments - - - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized 3 R RRER
in sharefolders' equiy k2 - - - - - - - -
4. Others 42l - - - - - - - -
m Prof it conouton (2)ilEsE - - SRR [0 (RO OIS @316647
1. Appropriation to surplus 1 RRERLE
Tesenves - - 7,601,321 (7,601,321) - - -
2. Appropriation to generalrsk 2 RR-RERER
fesene - - - - - - - -
3. Distribution o shareholders 3% ”T}Hﬂé%/ﬂ - - - - (32,977,600) (32,977,600 (60,188,873) (93,166,473
4. Others - - - - - - - -
(V) Intemal transfer within shargholders’ (X )M?& hgE
equiy - - - - - - - -
1. Capitl reserves transferred to 1+ ERLEEAAR(Y,
capital or shares) RE) - - - - - - - -
2. Surpus reserves transferred fo 2 BBLEEEEN(Y
capitl {or shares) iy - - - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BR0EREEE
losses - - - - - - - -
4, Changes in defned benefit L RERETEREL
plans carried forward to @% e
retained eamings - - - - - - - -
5. Other comprehensive income 5 EfaliasEdn
cartied forward to retained &
gamings - - - - - - - -
6. Other 6 £ft - - - - - - - -
(V) Special resene (n)2kRE - - - - - - - -
1. Approprieton n he period 1 K - - - - - - - -
2. Usage i the period 2 HBRR - - - - - - - -
(V) Other ()2 - - - - - - - i
V. Balance at the end of the year M FEEREE 412,220,000 605,043,091 309,414 160,727,215 550,263,661 1,728,563, 361 455,794.367  2,184,367,738
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

ABUtCRERE R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020%/Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 133 to 148 have been

signed by
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer
JEEREA FESFILIEBEA ¢
FEX TEK
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Wang Panzhou
Chief Accountant
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY

Prepared by: BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BREN IRREEEZEERNARLA

Item

|, Balance at the end of the prior period
Add:  Changes in accounting policies
Correction of prior errors
Others
Il Balance at the beginning of the period
IIl. Increase or decrease amount in the year

() Total comprehensive income
(Il Contribution and reduction of
shareholders’ capital
1. Ordinary shares contribution from
shareholders
2. Capital contribution from holders
of other equity instruments
3. Dividends payments recognized in
shareholders” equity
4. Others
(IV) Profit contribution
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general risk
reserve
3. Distribution to shareholders
4, Others
(V) Internal transfer within shareholders’
equity
1. Capital reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
2. Surplus reserves transferred to
capital (or shares)
3. Surplus reserves made up for
losses
4, Changes in defined benefit plans
carried forward to retained
eamings
5. Other comprehensive income
carried forward to retained
eamings
6. Other
(V1) Special reserve
1. Appropriation in the period
2. Usage in the period
(VI Other
V. Balance at the end of the year

&R

- HEERBE
: EHBREE
HAZEEL
Eff
2
AHEAZBER (A
[-J58510)
(HEFakaes
(DIRREAMEL AR

1 RREADERR

2 EfERTASE
ERAER
3 RO MHARR
BENEE
42
(F)FEsE
1 ROBHAE
2 RR-RERERE

3 HREROAE
4+ Hff
(m)BRESRNTLE

1 BALEERER
(&%)

2 RBNEEEEL
(35K%)

3 BHORERER

ot

>

6 Eit
(7)EBEE
1 TERE
2 KEFER
(~)Et
B AEERBS

Pl

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Amount unit; RMB
SBEMN A\RET

For the year ended 31 December 2020

02058

Other Total

comprehensive Undistributed shareholders’
Capital share ~ Capital reserves income  Surplus reserves profits equity

o ER0R Hib&RkE BHOE AOBAE  RRERAT
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 136,949,981 403,134,019 1,567,597,521
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 136,949,961 403,134,019 1,567,597,521
- - - 8,332,665 42,016,383 50,349,048

- - - - 83,326,648 83,326,648
- - - 8,332,665 (41,310,265) (32,977,600)

8,332,665 (8,332,665) -
- - - - (32,977,600) (32,977,600)
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 145,282,646 445,150,402 1,617,946,569
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY

N AR S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 2020 /&

PN /|\|:|/|\

P

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

Prepared by BEWING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

BB R REELEERNERAT

ltem ER

| Balance at the end of the prior period ~ — + LEEFRHE

Add:  Changes in accounting plicies i eHEEg

Correction of prior errors Eﬂﬁﬁifiﬁ
Others E

Il Balance at the beginning of the period = REEBE

Il Increase or decrease amount n the year = ~ A2 A 8128 (X

() Total comprehensive income

() Contribution and reduction of

shareholders” capital

1. Ordinary shares contribution from

shareholders

2. Capital contrioution from holders
of other equity instruments
3. Dividends payments recognized in

shareholders” equity
4, Others
(1) Profit contribution

1. Appropriation to surplus reserves

2. Appropriation to general risk

reserve

3. Distribution to shareholders

4. Others

(IV) Internal transfer within shareholders’

equity

1. Capital reserves transferred to

capital (or shares)

2. Surplus reserves transferred to

capital (or shares)

3. Surplus reserves made up for

losses

4. Changes in defined benefit plans
carried forward to retained

earnings

5. Other comprehensive income
carried forward to retained

eamings
6. Other
(V) Special reserve

1. Appropriation in the period

2. Usage in the period
(V1) Other
IV. Balance at the end of the year

1 BREADLER
2 EMERTESA

%T AER
BRI ARR
EnfEE

Currency RMB

SEEf: ARET
For the year ended 31 December 2019
019%K
Other Total
comprehensive Undistributed shareholders'
Capital share ~ Capital reserves income ~ Surplus reserveis _ profits eg\mty
A BRDE Eala BHBLE AANHE RERAT
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 129,348,659 367,699,729 1,624,561,909
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 129,348,659 367,699,729 1,624,561,909
- - - 7,601,322 35,434,290 43,035,612
- - - - 76,013,212 76,013,212
- - - 7,601,322 (40,578,922) (32,977,600)
- - - 7,601,322 (7,601,322) -
- - - - (32,977,600) (32,977,600)
412,220,000 615,293,521 - 136,949,981 403,134019 1,567,597 521

The notes as set out from page 149 to 375 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from page 133 to 148 have been

signed by

Li Jianwen
Legal Representative
EERFHA -
FEX
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Li Chunyan

Chief Financial Officer
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Wang Panzhou
Chief Accountant
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN

RISk I ot

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 &

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, with the approval by
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Company
(formerly known as “Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain
Company Limited”) was established and the registered capital
of the Company was RMB412,220,000. The company’s unified
social credit code is 91110000101782670P. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are located
at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the H shares issued by the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 26 February 2008, all the H
shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed trading. The
Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary shares as 31
December 2020.

The controlling shareholder of the Group is Beijing Chaofu
State-owned Assets Administration Company Limited (“Chaofu
Company”), which was established in China, and the original
name was Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company, and
renamed as “Beijing Chaofu State-owned Assets Administration

Company Limited” on 3 July 2020.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial
statements of the Company were approved by the board of

directors on 26 March 2021.

— ~ AREFER

IRREEFEEERGERAAT AR
) R—REPEARKEMBE(HEDF
e mBR AT - R2004511 A1 BB
ARERETEHEEERAR(ELNR
e R EREBmEHEGRAR DEILRT T
EREEEBETRY - xMERAAARYE
412,220,0007C ° EMEHE—EARB A
91110000101782670P - £ E A AL
EmEAGEIIREASH c AR REWBT
RENGHEAEEDFEREAEHBRN
TERMBEZEY -

20069 H25H « RARMAEITARE Y
BIRHIRTEBE BB A X S AR A A B ER
£ o R2008F2A26H - ARFIREERE
ShETINE R EBARHAR I BBl ERE A E
REEZ 5 - B ZE2020F12A31H L © &
NARFTBITIREEE 41,2228 % -

AEENZERBERARPEKZNIERARE
BEEEEEARARIPHAERAR]D  RA
ARMHERmHGRI RmA AT - 020205
TABREXAIILRHEREEETERRA
alle

KNP IERERELANRNAEEEHR202143 A
26 R REAARL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

BASIS FOR PREPARASTION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented on a going concern
basis. The financial statements are prepared based on the actual
transactions and events and in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” (issued by
Ministry of Finance No0.33 and revised by Ministry of Finance
No.76), 42 specific accounting standards, implementation
guidelines and explanations of enterprise accounting standards
and other relevant provisions issued on 15 February 2006 and
those updated afterwards (Hereafter collectively referred to as
“ASBE”), and the disclosure requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, the Group has adopted the accrual basis of
accounting. Except for certain financial instruments, the Company
adopts the historical cost as the principle of measurement in
the financial statements. When assets are impaired, provisions
for asset impairment are made in accordance with relevant

requirements.

150 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES-BASIC
STANDARD

The financial statements prepared by the Group have been

in compliance with ASBE and truly and completely reflect the

financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and the

operating results, cash flows and other relevant information of the

Company for the 2020.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1.

Accounting period

The Group adopts the calendar year as its accounting year

from January 1 to December 31.

Business period

The normal operating cycle refers to the period from the
purchase of assets for processing to the realization of cash
or cash equivalents. The Group regards 12 months as an
operating cycle and uses it as the standard for dividing the

liquidity of assets and liabilities.

Functional currency

RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment
where the Group and its domestic subsidiaries operate,
and the Group and its domestic subsidiaries used RMB as
the functional currency. The financial statements have been

prepared in RMB.

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

= EBEEESTENNESR

AEBERAENPBHRRTELEGTELN

2R - HE

- SEEEMb R ML T AN E|20204F 12

R 31888 BN & 20204F E 4 & AR M
RERESHHAEE °

m o EEERTRENE

1

ik

1

ik

&R
AEBM I FEANEFE - EF
1A1EEE12A3181E °

ERBEH

EREFBEMIRAEENRBERRM
ITHEEREBERASHIRASEBYN
Hif - AEE2EAER—EEXE
B WUEEREEMRENRIIEE

P -

FC AR 5
ARBRAEEREANFRARKENRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4. Accounting treatment method for business
combination under the same control and not under

the same control

Business combination refers to a transaction or event in
which two or more separate enterprises are combined to
form a reporting entity. Business combinations are divided
into business combinations under common control and

business combinations not under common control.

4.1 Business combination under the same control

The enterprises participating in the merger are
ultimately controlled by the same party or the same
multiple parties before and after the merger, and the
control is not temporary. It is a business combination
under the same control. In a business combination
under the same control, the party that obtains control
of other participating companies on the combining
date is the combining party, and the other participating
companies are the combined party. The merger date
refers to the date on which the combining party

actually obtains control of the combined party.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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C EESRBENG A (E)

1y

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

(Continued)

The assets and liabilities acquired by the combining
party are measured at the book value of the
combined party on the combining date. The difference
between the book value of the net assets acquired
by the merger and the book value of the combined
consideration paid (or the total face value of the
issued shares) is adjusted for the capital reserve (share
premium); if the capital reserve (share premium) is not

sufficient to offset, the retained earnings are adjusted.

The direct costs incurred by the merging party for the
business combination shall be included in the current

profit and loss when incurred.

Accounting treatment method for business 4 E—EHTHERD—ZHTEESH
combination under the same control and not under HEFEESE(E)

the same control (Continued)

4.1 Business combination under the same control (1) EA—EZE#HTLESGHFE)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)
IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EESTBERME & (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4~ E—EEITHER—ZHTEESH
combination under the same control and not under NENEESE(E)
the same control (Continued)
4.2 Business combinations not under common control (2) FE—ZHTLESH

Enterprises that participate in the merger are not
under the same party or the same multiple parties’
ultimate control before and after the merger, which is a
business combination not under the same control. For
a business combination not under the same control,
the party that obtains control of other participating
companies on the purchase date is the purchaser, and
the other companies participating in the combination
are the purchased party. The purchase date refers
to the date on which the purchaser actually obtains

control of the purchased party.

For a business combination not under the same
control, the cost of the combination includes the
assets paid by the purchaser to obtain control of the
purchased party, the liabilities incurred or assumed,
and the fair value of the equity securities issued on the
purchase date. Intermediary expenses such as audits,
legal services, evaluation and consulting, and other
management expenses are included in the current
profit and loss when incurred. The transaction cost
of equity securities or debt securities issued by the
purchaser as the merger consideration is included in
the initial recognition amount of equity securities or
debt securities. The contingent consideration involved
is included in the merger cost based on its fair value at
the date of purchase. If there is new or further evidence
of the existing conditions on the purchase date within
12 months of the purchase date and the adjustment

or consideration is required, adjust the merger
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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M- EESEBERAME G (&)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4~ RE—EHTHER—ZHTEEEHH
WETEEFEE)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(Continued)

(2) FEEA—1ZH TFRESGE)

accordingly reputation. The merger costs incurred by
the purchaser and the identifiable net assets obtained
in the merger are measured at the fair value at the date
of purchase. The difference between the merger cost
and the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of
the acquired party acquired on the acquisition date is
recognized as goodwill. If the merger cost is less than
the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the

acquired party acquired in the merger, first of all, the

EERBEROMAREBERE -
BHRARRE HHRGHHREE
TRBERAHRFEEAA(ER
MENEE EASBHE - 56
RANR A PRSI RBE T A
BRFEEAABENEN B
FHMEHRBET SBRAHRE
E AERIEABNAAEE
IAREHERANGEETER

BREE GHRAMD DR A G EF
MRBE T AR FEELAEE
MR - HEBEAZHES -

measured fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired party and the
measurement of the merger cost shall be reviewed. If
the merger cost is still less than the fair value share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets obtained in the
merger, the difference is included in the current profit

and loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EEETHEME AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4~ E—EFTHER-EFHTEEEH
combination under the same control and not under NENEESE(E)
the same control (Continued)
4.2 Business combinations not under common control (2) HE—ZHTEESHE)

(Continued)

If the purchaser obtains the deductible temporary
difference of the purchased party and fails to confirm
the deferred income tax asset recognition condition
on the purchase date, within 12 months after the
purchase date, if new or further information is obtained
indicating the purchase The relevant situation on the
day already exists. If the economic benefit brought by
the deductible temporary difference on the purchase
date is expected to be realized, the relevant deferred
income tax assets are recognized, and the goodwill
is reduced, and the goodwill is not offset enough.
The difference is recognized as the current profit and
loss; in addition to the above, if the deferred income
tax assets related to the business combination are

recognized, it is included in the current profit and loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

C EESRBENG A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4~ RE—EHTHER—ZHTEEEHH
WETEEFEE)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(2) FE—ZHTLEESGHE)
(Continued)

Business combination under different control
realized step by step through multiple transactions,
according to the “Notice of the Ministry of Finance

on Issuing the Interpretation of Accounting Standards

WiBERZ G FERIIER —F
HTRESO - BB BB
NP EAIREES TR
Y (B &R2012]1958) FId D2 & =t

HREIH— MU BREIER
T—IRER — BT 5 N HEE
E(2R AW - 52)) » FIETZ
“package deal” judgment criteria (see Note 4, 5(2)), to ZRRXGEEBN—EBFRS] -

BRI —ETFR5 I - 2ERE
7> B & BRI e AN EE R~ 11

for Enterprises No. 5” (Caihui [2012] No. 19) and
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.

33-Mergers” “Financial Statement” Article 51 on the

determine whether the multiple transactions belong to

“package deal”. If it belongs to a “package deal”, refer

to the previous paragraphs of this part and the notes [REAREIRE ETEREE T
IV.11 “Long-term equity investment” for accounting BRI—EFXZIH - EHER
treatment; if it does not belong to a “package deal”, BIS TR ANA OB Bk R ETTHERS
distinguish between individual financial statements and I RE

consolidated financial statements for related accounting

treatment:
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II/

M- EESEBERNE G (#)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4~ E—EFTHER-EFHTEEEH
NETTEESE(E)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(2) FE—ZHTLESHE)
(Continued)
ERERMEHREF UBERAZ

In the individual financial statements, the sum of

the book value of the equity investment held by the
purchaser before the purchase date and the new
investment cost of the purchase date is taken as the
initial investment cost of the investment; the equity
of the purchaser held before the purchase date If
other comprehensive income is involved, the other
comprehensive income related to the investment will
be accounted for on the same basis as the purchaser ’s
direct disposal of related assets or liabilities (ie, except
for Except for the corresponding share in the changes
caused by the net liabilities or net assets of the defined
benefit plan, the rest is transferred to the current

investment income).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4~ RE—EHTHER—ZHTEEEHH
combination under the same control and not under HEFEESE(E)

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control (2) FEE—ZHTEESHE)
(Continued)
In the consolidated financial statements, the equity of EeMPBHRER HRBEER
the purchased party held before the purchase date is ZAIFENHEEBEE FHORE 1%
remeasured according to the fair value of the equity BB EEEEAN AR BEET
at the purchase date, and the difference between the B E A BEEAHEKHERE
fair value and its book value is included in the current ENEREAATHRERS  BE
investment income; held before the purchase date A2 RISFEMEEE HORES R
If the equity of the purchased party involves other HEMiralaEs  BEMABENHE
comprehensive income, the other comprehensive el EERAEREE T E
income related to it should be accounted for on the EREMBEENAERR AR
same basis as the purchaser’s direct disposal of BITERTIEEA - BT IRBER
related assets or liabilities (ie, except for Except for the FERERNEEBE ENTERT
corresponding share in the changes caused by the net EmtElF AR FEESRNE
liabilities or net assets of the defined benefit plan, the B M EEMDENLSN  HREA
rest are converted into the current investment income BEHMEEBRIRE W)

of the purchase date).
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

=

M- EESEBERNE G (#)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 GHUBRRNERTE

(1) EHUBBEREBENEERA

5.1 Principles for determining the scope of

consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope in consolidated financial
statements is determined on the basis of control. The
control refers to the power to influence the investee
and participate in its operating activities to obtain
benefits, the amount at which shall be effected by
the power. The scope of consolidation financial
statements includes the Company and all subsidiaries.
The subsidiaries refer to the entity controlled by the

Company.

The company will conduct a reassessment, once
control related elements involved in the definition
involved in the above cause the relevant facts and

circumstances have changed.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

C EESRBENG A (E)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 EOHtHBHRRNERSEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) EHUBREEXRRE T %
statements
From the date of obtaining the net assets of the WG FRRIRFEENEELS

subsidiary and the actual control of the production
and operation decision, the Group began to include
it in the scope of consolidation; the inclusion of the
scope of consolidation is suspended from the date of
loss of actual control. For the disposed subsidiaries,
the operating results and cash flows before the
disposal date have been properly included in the

consolidated income statement and consolidated cash

RRNERIZHEZBE AR
BB EMASGEE  feRE
BRI HREIEMASGHE
B HRRENTFAR BEH
RIHEALRRNRESRECLEE
WEEEAHMNBERMAHRER
EXT  EHEBEMNTAR - T
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flow statement; Subsidiaries disposed of in the current
period do not adjust the opening balance of the

consolidated balance sheet.
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(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)
IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EESTBERME & (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 GHUBRRNERTEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BEOHBREREN T (E)

statements (Continued)

For subsidiaries that are not consolidated under the
same control, the operating results and cash flows of
the future purchases have been properly included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
cash flow statement, and the opening and closing
figures of the consolidated financial statements are not
adjusted. Subsidiaries that have increased business
combinations under the same control and those that
have been merged under the merger, the operating
results and cash flows from the beginning of the

current period to the date of consolidation have been

FR—ZFI T RERAFHENNTA
A EBERKROKCERRER
EREBCKHEE M BIELES HF
BAEMAHRERERT B
HEE GFI %R 0 B0 BN B
LEB o R — 12 TR A HHE N
B F R ERBUA G T A G
7o HEBAHERBNESHA
MEERRMRSRECKEE
BREAHNBERMEHRASRE
= W ERERABAS MR

properly included in the consolidated income statement TRV LR BT -
and consolidated cash flow statement, and adjust the
comparison of consolidated financial statements at the

same time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, if the accounting policies or accounting
periods adopted by the subsidiaries and the company
are inconsistent, the necessary adjustments shall be
made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting periods of the company. For subsidiaries
acquired from business combinations not under the
same control, the financial statements are adjusted
based on the fair value of identifiable net assets at the

acquisition date.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

m -~ EEERTBERME A ()

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 GHUBRRNERTEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BEOHBREREN T (E)
statements (Continued)
All major current balances, transactions and unrealized RAINFIBERTRHTE X5

profits in the company are offset when the consolidated

financial statements are prepared.

The shareholder’s equity of the subsidiary and the
portion of the current net profit or loss that is not
owned by the Company are separately presented
as minority shareholders’ equity and minority
shareholders’ gains and losses in the consolidated
financial statements under shareholders’ equity and
net profit. The portion of the subsidiary’s current net
profit or loss that belongs to minority shareholders’
equity is presented as “minority shareholder gains and
losses” under the net profit item in the consolidated
income statement. The loss of a subsidiary shared by a
minority shareholder exceeds the share of the minority
shareholder’s equity at the beginning of the subsidiary,

and it still reduces the minority shareholders’ equity.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204/
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)
IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EBEESTTREMNG AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 EOHtHBHRRNERSEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) EHUBREEREL T (E)

statements (Continued)

When the control of the original subsidiary is lost due
to the disposal of part of the equity investment or
other reasons, the remaining equity is re-measured
according to its fair value on the date of loss of
control. The sum of the consideration for the disposal
of the equity and the fair value of the remaining
equity, less the difference between the share of the
original shareholding and the share of the net assets
that the original subsidiary has continued to calculate
from the date of purchase, which is included in
investment income of loss of control in the current
period. Other comprehensive income related to the
original subsidiary’s equity investment shall be treated
on the same basis as the directly disposed of the
relevant assets or liabilities of the purchased party
when the control is lost, That is, in addition to the
re-measurement of changes in the net liabilities or
net assets of the defined benefit plan in the original
subsidiary, the rest will be converted into current
investment income. Thereafter, the remaining equity of
the part is subsequently measured in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the “Accounting Standards

for Business Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term Equity
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)
IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EESTBERME & (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5 GHUBRRNERTEE)
(Continued)
5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BEOHBREREN T (E)

statements (Continued)

Investment” or “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Instruments”. For details, refers to Note
V., 11 “long-term equity investment” or this Note IV. 8

“financial instruments”.

If the Company disposes of the equity investment in the
subsidiary through multiple transactions until it loses
control, it shall distinguish whether the transactions
dealing with the equity investment of the subsidiary
until the loss of control are a package transaction.
The terms, conditions, and economic impact of each
transaction for the disposal of equity investments in
subsidiaries are consistent with one or more of the
following conditions, and generally indicate that multiple
transactions should be accounted for as a package
transaction: DThese transactions are concluded at
the same time or with consideration of each other’s
influence; @These transactions as a whole can achieve
a complete business result; @The occurrence of a
transaction depends on the occurrence of at least
one other transaction; @A transaction alone is not
economical, but it is economical when considered
together with other transactions. If it is not a package
transaction, each of the transactions shall be partially
disposed of in the long-term equity of the subsidiary
in accordance with “without loss of control” (refers
to Note IV, 11, and (2) @. The accounting principle
is applied to the principle that “the control of the

original subsidiary is lost due to the disposal of part
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M- EESEBERAME G (&)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

BHMBBRERNERTGE(E)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements 5>

(Continued)

(2) EHHBBRRERNEE(E)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

of the equity investment or other reasons” (mentioned
in the previous paragraph). Disposal of the equity
investment in a subsidiary until the loss of control is a
package transaction, and the transactions are treated
as a transaction that disposes of the subsidiary and
loses control; However, the difference between the
disposal price and the disposal investment before
the loss of control and the share of the net assets of
the subsidiary is recognized as other comprehensive

income in the consolidated financial statements, and

B A B E RGN B IR

RHEBR—EFRHH - HEIEA
RHER—HRE T AR TRKE
BN ZETEERE  BR

ERAIEHIE S —REEER
HEEREHENZAZT ARF
BENENEZE  EAHMBR
KPR REMERA WS - R
RIE RS — GFE A BRIR IS
HIBas -

it is transferred to the current profit and loss of loss of

control when the control is lost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

6.

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise cash,
deposits that can be readily withdrew on demand, short-
term (usually within a period of 3 months from purchase
date on) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of change value.

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the dates of transactions, foreign currency monetary
items are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising
from the difference between the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on
initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized when the

Group becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 ERMIEAE)

(1) ZEEEHNTH - #RNTE

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets according to
the business model of managing financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets: Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income; financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial
recognition. For financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, the related transaction expense
is directly recognized in profit or loss; for other
categories of financial assets, the related transaction
costs are included in the initial recognition amount. For
the accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from
the sale of products or the provision of labor services
that do not contain or consider the significant financing
components, the Group determines the amount of the
consideration to be received as the initial recognition

amount.

AEERBEESHEENEHR
AMEMEENARRTRER
B BeREESNR - ABRK
AEENESREE  WRAABER
EREEHF ARMEARENE
BMEE  WAABENEAEEY
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CREEEVRRERRARAEE
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1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M- EESEBERNE G (#)

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 &@MITAEE)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

(1) ZEEEHNTH > BRANE

financial assets (Continued) (&)

LB AT BN B EE

8.1.1Financial assets measured at amortized cost @)

The business model of the Group’s management
of financial assets measured at amortized cost
is to collect contractual cash flows, and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of such
financial assets are consistent with the basic
lending arrangements, that is, the cash flow
generated on a specific date is only the payment
of the principal and the interest based on the
outstanding principal amount. The Group’s

financial assets are subsequently measured at

AEBEEEABBKAGE
MERMBEENEFEALIN
WHRERRERERBE
ABEeRmEENARRR
MERHBEEAGEERINA
— % AERSERRELD

HeRE  BEREXEMIN
AENATESELSERON

BRI - AEBEEHNULE
TREE KAERME

% RREBHRKAETRE
FTE HEHIUREELD

impairment are recognized in profit or loss. FIBIER - STAZ B -

amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The gains or losses arising from amortization or

170 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

M- EESEBERAME G (&)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8-TMITAE)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

(1) BEENSE - BRA:E
(%)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

URrnElEstE AEZEH
AR iz & Wt )2 B EE

8.1.2 Financial assets measured at fair value through @

other comprehensive income

The Group’s business model for managing such
financial assets is to target both the collection
of contractual cash flows and the sale, and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of such
financial assets are consistent with the basic
lending arrangements. The Group’s financial
assets are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The impairment losses or gains, exchange
gains and losses, and interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are recognized

in profit or loss.

ERRE

AEEEELBERMEEN
EBRABEAKEE RR
TRERBEFEXNLERE
7 ALESREENEAR
RenERBAENEER
B - AREHILES
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

8.1.2 Financial assets measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

In addition, the Group designates certain non-
tradable equity instrument investments as
financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group’s
related dividend income of such financial assets
is included in the current profit and loss, and
changes in fair value are included in other
comprehensive income. When the financial
assets are derecognized, the accumulated
gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are transferred from other
comprehensive income to retained earnings,

which are not recognized in profit or loss.
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 ERMIEAE)
8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of (1) 2HEENSEE > BREATE

financial assets (Continued) (&)

8.1.3 Financial assets measured at fair value through ® HarEE:E8EEE
profit or loss AB BB M EE
The Group classifies financial assets that are NG B g bt DA BR K AN FT
expect for amortized cost and fair value through ENSRMEEMUAREE
other comprehensive income are measured at AEAEEH AHEMES
fair value through profit or loss. In addition, in WamhemEEZINNES R
the initial recognition, in order to eliminate or BE  pBEANUAREMER
significantly reduce accounting mismatch, the SEHHZHFAEHERDY
Group designates certain financial assets as ERAEE W - EHIRTE
financial assets measured at fair value through RE - AEBE AT HKRIE
profit or loss. For such financial assets, the Group ZRALGELR > B35 e
adopts fair value for subsequent measurement, BMEERTERUAREMER
and changes in fair value are included in profit or EBHEHFAZHERN
loss for the current period. CREE - HRNULEeRE

EARERAALEGE
TREHE  DAEERD
PN T
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities
and other financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. For financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, the related transaction expense
is directly recognized in profit or loss. The related
transaction expense of other financial liabilities is

included in the initial recognition amount.

8.2.1Financial liabilities measured at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss, including financial liabilities (including
derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through

profit or loss.

Transactional financial liabilities (including
derivatives that are financial liabilities) are
subsequently measured at fair value. In addition
to related to hedge accounting, changes in fair

value are recognized in profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EBEESTTREMNG AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 EWMIAEE)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

(2) ZEEEHNTH > #ERANTE

(%)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)

KA (B EAAEB
AEHiEzma & 58 & (E)

WRERUAREBETER
through profit or loss, the change in fair value of HEHAAZHEZN SR
BfE ZABEBRLAEEEH
ERRREHSIENRILE
BEEFHT AR IS W
BRIERZEER @ 5T A
HitfraWmmasEAR

8.2.1Financial liabilities measured at fair value through @)

profit or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value

the liability caused by changes in the Company’s
own credit risk is included in other comprehensive
income. When this financial liabilities is
derecognition, the accumulated changes in fair

value arising from changes in its own credit

risk, which are included in other comprehensive REBS|BMEAREER
income, are transferred to retained earnings. The B EEARTFRE o K
remaining changes in fair value are included in MARBEEHH AL HIE

the current profit and loss. If adopted the method
mentioned before, the impact of changes in the
financial liabilities’ own credit risk will cause or
expand the accounting mismatch in profit and
loss, and the Group accounts for the entire
gain or loss of the financial liability (including the
impact of changes in the company’s own credit

risk) to the current profit and loss.

me AR EATAHZES
REENEFERERE
VHEETRIESERNKIE
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

m -~ EEERTBERME A ()

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8-EWMIAE)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

(2) ZEEEHNTH > #RANIE

financial liabilities (Continued)

8.2.20¢ther financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost, except for financial
assets transferred to financial assets and
financial liabilities, Gains or losses arising from
derecognition or amortisation are recognised in
profit or loss. The recognition and measurement

of transfer of financial assets

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets

The transfer of financial assets is conformed to criteria
of derecognition, when one of following conditions
are met: @ The termination of a contractual right to
collect cash flow from a financial asset shall terminate
the recognition of the financial asset. @ I the Group
has transferred almost all risks and rewards on the
ownership of financial assets to the transferee, it should
also derecognize the financial assets. ©) Although the
Group has not transferred or remained almost all risks
and rewards on the ownership of financial assets to
the transferee, they gave up the control of the financial
assets, thus, it should also derecognize the financial

assets.
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M- EESEBERAME G (&)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8 EWMIAEE)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

EHEEBBHRRKENGES

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial (3)

assets (Continued)

If the entity has neither transferred nor remained almost

all risks and rewards on the ownership of financial

(4E)
EEEMSAEBHLSAREDR
BEMBRELATHRENRRN

assets, and they do not give up the control of the W BAMEHZESBREED
financial assets, they confirm relevant financial assets THE) - BIRREE S AFMER

and financial liabilities in accordance with the extent
of continuing involvement in the transferred financial
assets. The extent of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial assets is the risk level faced by the
enterprise resulting from changes in value of financial

asset.

If the overall transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the difference between
the carrying amount of the transferred financial assets
and the combination of the consideration received from
the transfer and the accumulated changes in the fair
value of other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESEENE AR (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 &@MITAEE)
8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial 8) 2HEEBENERXEMER
assets (Continued) E(E)
If a partial transfer of the financial assets meets the CRIEEL D EEmE KL ERE
conditions for derecognition, the carrying amount of HH - SRESSREENKRE
the transferred financial assets is allocated between BEELIRRRARE L ERES
derecognized portion and non-derecognized portion ZHREBEN AR EBETS
based on respective fair values. In addition, the B WREEB MR R EA
difference between the carrying amount mentioned JED B KIEFERE D B RFTAH
above and the combination of the consideration iR A WmBN AR EEEH RTE
received from the transfer and the accumulated ZMES BN FRRE SR E5
changes in the fair value that are allocated to STAEHER -

derecognized portion and were recognized previously
in other comprehensive income is recognized in the

profit or loss.
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M- EESEBERAME G (&)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 ERMIEAE)

(3 THEEBBHNERRENES

assets (Continued) ZE(E)

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

For financial assets sold with recourse or endorsement
and discount of holding financial assets, the Group
has to determine whether almost all risk and reward
of ownership of these financial assets have been
transferred. If almost all risk and reward of ownership
of a financial asset have been transferred to transferee,
this financial asset is derecognized; if almost all risk
and reward of ownership of a financial asset have been
reserved, this financial asset is not derecognized; if
almost all risk and reward of ownership of a financial
asset have been neither transferred nor reserved, then
the Group has to further confirm whether the Group
keeps control of this asset, and carries out accounting
treatments based on the principles mentioned in each

paragraph above.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

m - EEEHBEME &)
8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 &@MITAEE)

EHE BT

8.4 The derecognition of financial liabilities 4)

Once the present obligation of financial liabilities (or
parts of them) has been lifted, financial liabilities (or
parts of them) of the Group has been derecognized.
The Group (borrower) enters into an agreement with
the lender to replace the original financial liabilities
in the form of new financial liabilities, and the new
financial liabilities are substantially different from the
original financial liabilities, and the original financial
liabilities are derecognition and a new financial liability
is recognized. The Group makes substantial changes
on contractual terms of original financial liabilities (or
parts of them), then they derecognize the original
financial liabilities and confirm a new financial liability in

accordance with the revised terms.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

8.4

8.5

The derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued) 4)

The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liabilities (or parts of them) and consideration paid
(including transferred non-cash assets or liabilities) is
recognized in profit or loss, when financial liabilities (or

parts of them) are derecognized.

Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities (5)

The Group has statutory rights to offset recognized
financial assets and financial liabilities, and currently
enforces this legal right, at the same time, the Group
plans to settle the financial assets on a net basis or
simultaneously and liquidate the financial liabilities,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in
the balance sheet at offsetting amounts. In addition,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented
separately in the balance sheet and are not offset in

the other situation.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

M EESTTERENE & E)
8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 &@MITAEE)

EHEEFNZHEEH AL EEE

8.6 Method for determining the fair value of financial (6)

assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
If the financial instructions have an active market,
the fair value will be evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market. Specifically, the quoted price in an
active market refers to price that are readily available
from exchanges, brokers, industry associations, pricing
services and others, and it represents the price of a
market transaction that actually occur in a fair trade.
If the financial instructions have no active market, the
fair value will be evidenced by a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Valuation
techniques include reference to the price used in recent
market transactions by parties familiar with the situation
and voluntary transactions, with reference to the
current fair value of other financial instructions that are
substantially identical, discounted cash flow methods
and option pricing models. When it is valuation, the
Group adopts valuation techniques that are applicable
in the current circumstances and that are sufficiently

supported by data and other information, which used

182 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

ET ik

AREE BETHLEELT
ERRENEFRSF  HE—
BEEMERESEER—BEEE
B MEEE - eRmIAFE
RIS AEEHRERM
BHRHREETEANEE -
RIS HRERE SR E R
SFT - Kem - TERE - TE
RGBS ESHER  BRER
TERFRGFTERELENTISER
SHER - ¢MITATFETR
WIS - ANEBRA G E RN
FHAREE HERNEES
EHBIERN AR HHE T &
THTISERSPEAOHER
2BEE FERNEMSRTAE
WAREE -  BerhEifii
MEEEERISE - EHER -
ARRARAEEMBR TERATE
BERAAFABENEMEBE

\\Xlﬁﬁrr

k

I



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8 ERMIEAE)

8.6 Method for determining the fair value of financial 6) =HEEMTHEBENAALEEE
assets and financial liabilities (Continued) EFHE(E)
to select the characteristics of the assets or liabilities FOMERN - EEET52H
to be considered in relation to the market participants’ EERBEEXBBENRSFME
transactions in the relevant assets or liabilities, and BHEEL B BRENE—BEE A
use the relevant observable input values as much as B WHEELFERAEEE
possible. However, unallowable values will be used, if R AE - ERBA B R AE
the relevant observable input values are not available ENEHIMENIEITNER
or are not practicable. T FRTAgAE -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.7 Equity instrument

Equity instrument refers to a contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group issues (including
refinancing), repurchases, sells or writes off equity
instruments as changes in equity. Transaction costs
associated with equity transactions are deducted from

equity.

The Group’s various distributions of equity instrument
holders (excluding stock dividends) reduce
shareholders’ equity. The Group does not recognize

changes in fair value of equity instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The financial assets that the Group needs to recognize
impairment loss are financial assets measured at amortized
cost, debt instrument investments measured at fair value
and whose changes are included in other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, which mainly includes notes
receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables,
debt investment, other debt investment, and long-term
receivables. In addition, for contract assets and parts of
financial guarantee contracts, impairment provision should
also be made and credit impairment losses recognized in
accordance with the accounting policies described in this

section.
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M- EESEBERAME G (&)

1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
EEMEEREE)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9

TEE RIS T

9.1 Recognized method for impairment provision (1)

Based on the expected credit losses, the Group
makes provision for impairment and recognizes credit
impairment losses for each of the above items in
accordance with its applicable expected credit loss
measurement method (general method or simplified

method).

Credit loss refers to the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets).
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EESTBERME & (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9 SREERMEE)
9.1 Recognized method for impairment provision (1) BEEEREES (&)
(Continued)

General approach for the measurement of expected
credit losses refers that the Group assesses whether
the credit risk of financial assets ((including other
applicable items such as contract assets, the same
below) has increased significantly since the initial
recognition on each balance sheet date. If the
credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss preparation
according to the amount equivalent to the expected
credit loss during the entire life period; if the credit
risk has not increased significantly since the initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss provision
based on the amount of 12-month expected credit
losses. The Group considers all reasonable and
evidenced information, including forward-looking

information, when assessing expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.1

9.2

Recognized method for impairment provision

(Continued)

For financial instruments with lower credit risk on
the balance sheet date, according to whether the
credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
confirmation, the loss is prepared based on the
expected credit loss amount in the next 12 months or

the whole life period.

Judgment criteria for whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition

If the probability of default of a financial asset on the
estimated duration of the balance sheet is significantly
higher than the probability of default during the
estimated duration of the initial recognition, the credit
risk of the financial asset is significantly increased.
Except for special circumstances, the Group uses
the change in default risk occurring within the next
12 months as a reasonable estimate of the change
in default risk throughout the life period to determine
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since

the initial recognition.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EESTBERME & (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

TREEREE)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9>

9.3 Combined method for assessing expected credit (3) HAEEBERTF A EHRERSY

risk based on portfolio

The Group evaluates credit risk individually for financial
assets with significantly different credit risks, such as:
receivables from related parties; and has disputes with
the other party or receivables involving litigation or
arbitration; there are clear indications that the debtor is
likely to be unable to meet the repayment obligations

of the receivables.

In addition to individual financial assets that assess
credit risk, the Group classifies financial assets into
different groups based on common risk characteristics

and evaluates credit risk on a portfolio basis.

9.4 Accounting treatment of financial assets impairment

At the end of the period, the Group calculates the
expected credit losses of various financial assets. If
the estimated credit loss is greater than the carrying
amount of its current impairment provision, the
difference is recognized as the impairment loss; if
it is less than the carrying amount of the current
impairment provision, the difference is recognized as

the impairment gain.
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C EESRBENG A (E)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
EEMEEREE)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9

(5) BEREFREGERZEHFELY

9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of

accounts receivable and other receivables BE R £

9.5.1Accounts receivable O EREEXK
For receivables that do not contain significant HRTEEANBERK D K FE
financing components, the Company measures WERR  AEEZRBRHEER

loss provision based on the amount of expected

credit losses equivalent to the entire duration of

BEFEHANERERAE
REBAEBRERES -

the life.

For receivables with significant financing HRBEBEEARMER D HE
components, the Company chooses to always WERR » NEEEZRRIE
measure the loss provision based on the amount BEZENRFERANESRER

i
bl
=
k>

IH

THATERAER -

of expected credit losses during the lifetime.

In addition to individual accounts receivable for br T BIEFTAE A RR A E

assessing credit risk, they are classified into YRR - ERHERRERRE
different combinations based on their credit risk B BEES A TRAS
characteristics:

Item Determine the basis for the combination

HH BEAE KIS

Aging of accounts receivable portfolio This combination is based on the age of receivables as a

credit risk feature.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESEENE AR (&)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9 TRMEERMEE)
9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of (5) FEWRZRAEMERZSHE,H
accounts receivable and other receivables BES % (4E)
(Continued)
9.5.20ther receivable © HpEKS

The Group measures the impairment loss based
on the amount of expected credit losses in the
next 12 months or the entire duration, based on
whether the credit risk of other receivables has
increased significantly since the initial recognition.
In addition to other receivables that assess
credit risk individually, they are classified into
different combinations based on their credit risk

characteristics:

7R R B K i E At FE MR
REEiaERREL DK
FREIBIN - RAMERKRE
12AR - REEFEHD
BHERABRANSRAER
BERX - BRTEERFGER
e gz 1 EL Ath FE RSN - E R
HEARBRES  HHEED

BTEES :

7

Item Determine the basis for the combination
= BEESHKE
Aging of other receivable portfolio This combination is based on the age of other receivables

as a credit risk feature.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Inventories 10 ~ 7K

10.1 Classification of inventories (1) HFEHSE
Inventories include goods in stocks, raw materials, FEXZREEGFAR  BRM
goods in product and low value consumables. B EERMEESE®D -

10.2 The measurement of inventories received and (2) HFERESHZLHYER L
issued
The inventory is initially measured at the actual cost; FEERSKZEBRKATE -
Inventory costs comprise costs of purchase, costs FERABFBEREBMKAR - MIK
of conversion and other costs. Cost of sales is ARFIE MR A o <8 FRANES R ER
determined using First in first out. REEALEREREFENER

BCAR e

10.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and (3) FEUSRE FENERNSKEER
measurement of provision for decline in value of HIEH 185 %
inventories
At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured BEBEEXRD  FERBRAE
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the AE#RFENEFE - EAAE
net realizable value of the inventory is lower than the FFEREMRKAR  RETFEK
cost, a provision for decline in value of inventories BEEE - nERFEREERT
is recognized. Net realizable value is the estimated BB FEMGGEEREM
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the FHEEERURAEREZY
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs T  EREFEMNAIEZRFE
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The RS EREBRAER
Group determines the net realizable value of inventories AREEFEFENENUAREE
based on solid evidence obtained and after taking BEXRBRBRBENTE -

into consideration the purpose for which the inventory
is held, and the effect of events occurring after the

balance sheet date.

2020 i%ﬁ& 191
FEBESEROARD



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Inventories (Continued)

10.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and
measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories (Continued)

For the inventory with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, the decline in value of
inventories is provided according to the type of
inventory; for other inventories, the decline in value of
inventories is provided at the difference of the cost of a
single inventory item exceeding its net realizable value.
After the provision of decline in value of inventories
is made, if the circumstances that caused the value
of the inventory to be written down below cost no
longer exist so that the net realizable value is higher
than the carrying amount, the original provision for
decline in value is reversed and the reversed amount is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

10.4 The stock count system for inventories is the

perpetual inventory system

10.5 Amortization methods of low-value consumables

Low-value consumables are written off in full when

issued for use.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Long-term equity investments

A long-term equity investment is the long-term equity
investment of the Group that is able to control, jointly
control or significantly influence on the investee. The long-
term equity investment of the Group that is not able to
control, jointly control or significantly influence on the
investee is recognized as the held-for-sale financial asset
or the financial asset measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The related accounting policies refers to Note IV, 7

financial instruments.

11.1 Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired by a
business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share of the carrying
amount of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in the consolidated financial statements of ultimate
controlling party at the acquisition date. For a long-term
equity investment acquired by a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. The
long-term equity investment through means other than

a business combination is initially measured at its cost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss

The long-term equity investment that is able to jointly
control or significantly influence in the investee adopts
the equity method. In addition, the financial statement
of the Company adopts the cost method for the long-
term equity investment that is able to control over the

investee.

11.2.1A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the cost method

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment, on its initial recognition, is measured
as cost and adjusted according to the amount of
additional investment or disinvestment. Except for
cash dividends or profits which include in actual
payment or consideration as the Group obtains
the investment but have not been paid, the
investment income for the period is recognized
according to cash dividends or profits declared to

distribute by the investee.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

11.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method

Under the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, no adjustment is made to the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment cost
is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, the difference is recognized in profit
or loss for the period, and the cost of the long-

term equity investment is adjusted accordingly.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

11.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes
its share of the net profit or loss and other
comprehensive income made by the investee
as investment income and other comprehensive
income respectively, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
accordingly; The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the portion of any
profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is distributed to the Group;
the share of changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution are recognized in the capital reserves
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group
recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss after making appropriate adjustments
based on the fair value of the investee’s individual
separately identifiable assets, etc. at the

acquisition date. Where the accounting policies
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11  REREREE)

11  Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(2) H#EFBREZERLL(E)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

Bm EZRENRYRERE

11.2.2A long-term equity investment accounted for @

using the equity method (Continued)

and accounting period adopted by the investee
are not consistent with those of the Group, the
Group shall adjust the financial statements of the
investee to conform to its own accounting policies
and accounting period, and recognize investment
income and other comprehensive income based
on the adjusted financial statements. For the
Group’s transactions with its associates and
joint ventures where assets contributed or sold
does not constitute a business, unrealized
intra-group profits or losses are recognized as
investment income or loss to the extent that those
attributable to the Group’s proportionate share of
interest are eliminated. However, unrealized losses
resulting from the Group’s transactions with its
investees which represent impairment losses on

the transferred assets are not eliminated.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

11.2.3Acquisitions of minority interest

When the Group prepares the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
long-term equity investment arising from the
acquisition of minority interest and shares of
the subsidiary’s net assets attributable to the
Company which are continuously calculated from
the purchase date (or the acquisition date) based
on new additional proportions of shares is used
to adjust capital reserves, if capital reserves are
not sufficient to be written down, the retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

11.2.4Disposals of long-term equity investment

In consolidated financial statements, when the
parent company disposes a part of a long-term
equity investment without losing power of control,
the difference between its disposal price and its
subsidiary’ net assets attributable to the Company
corresponding to the disposal of long-term
equity investment is recorded in owner’s equity.
For other circumstances of disposing of a long-
term equity investment, the difference between
its carrying amount and actual purchase price is

recorded in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation, or both, including rented land use
right, land use right which is held and prepared for transfer

after appreciation, and rented building.

The initial measurement of the investment properties shall
be measured at its actual cost. The follow-up expenses
pertinent to the investment properties shall be included
in the cost of the investment properties, if the economic
benefits pertinent to this real estate are likely to flow into the
enterprise, and, the cost of the investment properties can
be reliably measured. Otherwise, they should be included in

the current profits and losses upon occurrence.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties, and the depreciation
or amortization policies are consistent with that of building

and land use right.

When an investment properties is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current

period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EESTBERME & (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13 -BEIE&EE

13. Fixed assets
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13.1 Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognized when the related
economic benefits probably flow to the Group and the

cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially

measured at cost as well as taking into account the

effect of estimated disposal costs.

13.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives from the month after
they are brought to working condition for the intended
use. The useful lives, estimated net residual values and
annual depreciation rates of each category of fixed

assets are as follows:
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Annual

Residual depreciation

Useful life(year) value(%) (%)

Category EY] WEFR(F) BEE(%) FINEE(%)
Buildings B E REEY) 20-35 3-4 2.74-4.85
Machinery and equipment e 5-10 3-5 9.50-19.40
Office equipment NS 5 3-5 19.00-19.40
Vehicles ERRE 5-8 3-4 12.00-19.40

Estimated net residual value is the amount which
would be obtained from the disposal of the assets after
deducting of estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected

at the end of its useful life.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EBEESTTREMNG AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13 -BE&EEE)

13. Fixed assets (Continued)

13.3 Recognition, measurement method of fixed assets 3) BEFABEEENZEMREZERG
leased under finance leases Bk

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
Consistent depreciation policies are adopted to
finance leased fixed assets. Leased fixed assets are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives when it is
reasonably determined that the ownership of the asset
will be obtained after the lease term is over. Otherwise,
the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
period between the lease term and the estimated

useful lives of the assets.

13.4 Other explanations

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are recognized in the cost of fixed assets when the
associated economic benefits will probably flow
to the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured, and the carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognized. All the other subsequent expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which

they are incurred.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the
carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for

the current period.

(4)
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13.

14.

15.

Fixed assets (Continued)

13.4 Other explanations (Continued)

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end. A change
in the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset or the depreciation method shall be accounted

for as a change in accounting estimate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs.
The actual costs include various construction expenditures
during the construction period, borrowing costs capitalized
before it is ready for intended use and other relevant costs.
Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when

it is ready for intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expenses, amortization
of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses, exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings etc.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period

in which they are incurred.
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C EESRBENG A (E)

1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

15. Borrowing costs (Continued) 15 - BERERE)

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying
a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.

The qualifying assets to be capitalized are fixed assets,
investment properties and inventories which need to be
acquired, constructed or produced through a long period of

time, in order to become ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3
months. Capitalization is suspended until the acquisition,

construction or production of the asset is resumed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND M- EREEEEANETEE )
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
16. Intangible assets 16 - BELEE
Intangible assets include land use right, software BVEERFEIMERE RNEREE
development costs and distribution network software. D HARB AT I HE -
Intangible assets are initially measured as cost. When an ML EERKTETVIGSE - FAS
intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use, its mARKNEIEZEEGAIHREARE - ¥
original cost is amortized using straight line method over its HRELHEMHEASwARBESE
estimated useful life. D EE I -
For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the useful life X - HERASHARNEREENE
and amortization method shall be reviewed at the period FASmf#ER RETER - LWERE
end, and the adjustments shall be made if necessary. TTHE
The useful lives and the amortization method are as follows: mIEEEBREMNERASH REHE AN
T
Item Useful lives Amortization method
BH R B A%
Land use rights 33-50 years Straight line method
+ s A 33-50F HiE
Software 5-10 years Straight line method
PHFREE 5-104F HiRE
Operating rights of distribution network 5-10 years Straight line method
D IHAB AR A SR 5-10%F BiRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

17.

18.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but shall be amortized over the reporting period
and subsequent periods of more than one year long-term
prepaid expenses shall be amortized evenly over expected

benefit periods.

Long-term assets impairment

For non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed
assets, work in progress, intangible assets with a finite
useful life, investment properties measured at cost, long-
term equity investment of joint ventures and associated
enterprises and leases right-of-use asset etc., the Group
assesses if any of them is impaired at the balance sheet
date. If there is any evidence indicating that an asset is
impaired, recoverable amounts shall be estimated for
impairment test. Goodwill and intangible assets with a
uncertainty useful life and intangible assets which have not
reach work condition shall be tested for impairment annually
regardless of whether there is any evidence indicating that

the assets have been impaired.

RIS RaR By e

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18.

Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. An asset’s fair value is
determined based on the sales price agreed in an arm’s
length transaction. When no sales agreement but the active
market of an asset is available, its fair value is determined
according to a buyer’s bid. When no sales agreement and
the active market of an asset are available, its fair value
is estimated on the basis of best information which is can
be obtained. The disposal expenses include asset- related
legal expenses, relevant taxes, handling fees and direct
costs incurred for the asset intended sale. The present
value of expected future cash flows of an asset is the
amount that an asset’s expected future cash flows arising
from its continuous use and final disposal are discounted
at an appropriate rate. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognized on the individual asset basis.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group
of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to

generate independent cash inflows.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18. Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

18 - RMEERE(E)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or groups
of asset groups which are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the goodwill allocated,
is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that
is allocated to the asset group or group of asset groups,
and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other
assets within the asset groups or groups of asset groups in

proportion to the carrying amounts of other assets.

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in the subsequent period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESEENE AR (&)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Employee benefits 19 - B T 3 EA

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee

benefits, post-employment benefits and resignation benefits.

Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance
and benefits, employee benefits, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance, housing fund,
labor union running costs and employee education cost and
non-monetary benefits etc. Actual short-term benefits are
recognized as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render services and are charged into profit or
loss for the period or capitalized in costs of related assets.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined
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contribution plan. The amounts to be contributed under
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service and are charged into profit or loss for the period or B o

defined contribution plan are recognized as liabilities

during the accounting period of when employees render

capitalized in costs of related assets.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue 20 ~ WA

The revenue is recognized when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity, and the contract between
the Group and the customer meets the following conditions:
All parties have approved the contract and have committed
to perform their obligations; The contract identifies the
rights and obligations of the parties relating to the goods
transferred or the provision of services; The contract has a
clear payment terms associated with the transferred goods;
The contract has commercial substance, which means the
contract will change risk, time distribution or amount of
the future cash flows; The consideration that the Group is
entitled to for the transfer of goods to customers is likely to

be recovered.

From the effective date of the contract, the Group identifies
each individual performance obligations and allocates
the transaction price proportionally to each individual
performance obligation based on the relative proportion of
the individual selling price of the commodities promised by
each individual performance obligation. When determining
the transaction price, the impact of variable consideration,
major financing components in the contract, non-cash

consideration, and customer consideration are considered.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEEEEME AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA ()

For each individual performance obligation in the contract,
the Group will recognize the transaction price allocated
to the individual performance obligation as revenue in
accordance with the performance progress period during
the relevant performance period, if one of the following
conditions is met: the customer obtains and consumes the
economic benefits of the Group’s performance as the Group
perform it; the customer can control the products under
construction in the course of the Group’s performance;
The goods produced during the performance of the Group
have irreplaceable uses and the Group has the right to
receive payments for the portion of the performance that
has been completed to date. In addition, the performance
of the contract is determined by the input method or the
output method according to the nature of the transferred
goods. When the performance of the contract cannot be
reasonably determined, if the expenses incurred by the
Group are expected to be compensated, the revenue will
be recognized according to the amount of costs incurred
until the performance of the contract can be achieved

reasonably.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s BEEETTREMER AR E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)

If one of the above conditions is not met, the Group will
distribute the transaction price confirmation revenue of the
individual performance obligation when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity. When determining
whether the customer has obtained control of the
commodity, the Group will consider the following situations:
the Group has the current right to collect the goods, which
means that the customer has a current payment obligation
for the goods; the Company has transferred the legal title of
the item to the customer, which means that the customer
has already own the legal title of the item; the Group has
transferred the goods in kind to the customer, that is, the
customer has possessed the goods in kind; the Group has
transferred the main risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods to the customer, that is, the customer has obtained
the main risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
customer has accepted the goods. The other indications

that the customer has obtained control of the goods.

20.1 Revenue from sales of goods

The Group’s merchandise sales are mainly divided
into retail sales and wholesale sales. Revenues of
retail sales are recognized, when goods are sold to
customers, the customers receive the goods, and
the Group collects payments of goods or has a right
to collect payments of goods; in addition, revenue
of wholesale sales are recognized, when the goods
are sent to clients and the clients check, receive and
confirm the goods, and the Group collects payments

of goods or has a right to collect payments of goods.
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESEENE AR (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)
20.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued) (1) BREENRA(E)

As for the business that selling goods with award HRNEEERORRE TEP 25
credits for customers, when selling the goods, BMOWELE  CHERIRE K
the Group will apportion the purchase price or the SEEHENGSNENSERER
receivables of the goods between the income from TEA IR 7 i 38 & MU A B EE RN FE &
the sale of the goods and the individual sales price BENEBEE CRETHIE
determined by the award credits, and The amount of 1S &) B Rk U & RNk 22 E)
the purchase price or the receivables minus the bonus MO R B (E R D HER B
points shall be recognized as revenue. The award A BEESES BN ERER
credits shall be recognized as deferred income. AR ES ©
When a customer redeems the award credits, the BERPRAMBEERBES R - AEESK
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the [RET ANRIE IR 25 B0 B FT W 3R FE 9 4R
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue. B BRAWA - BRRI
The amount of revenue recognized is based on the AH) & 58 DA W R RO ER AR Y
number of award credits that have been redeemed in BOBRBRNTEEE LR ARG E
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of BB BEM O AER T EE
award credits expected to be redeemed. E e
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND cBEETTHEMEREE )

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)

20.2 Revenue from rendering of services (2) EBELHEUA

When the amount of revenue from rendering of services
can be reliably measured, the associated economic
benefits probably flow into the Group, the stage of
completion of the transaction can be measured reliably
and the costs incurred and to be incurred for the
transaction can be measured reliably, the revenue from

rendering of services is recognized.

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,
revenues are recognized to the extent of the costs
incurred that are expected to be compensated, and
the service costs incurred are regarded as the current
cost; if the service costs incurred are not compensated

as anticipated, no revenue is recognized.

Revenue from service of the Group mainly includes the
promotional activities. When the various services have
been provided and related economic benefit probably
flow into the enterprise, revenue from provision of

service is recognized.

HERHEBERANSRERA S
TE - AEANKENSRAER
ALE  ZXZHNTITRERAA
ST XZTEHRLENGH
AR AR E AT 80 0
RERHEBRANER -

INREBHREERZNERTEES A
Ffat - AR EHELEWTBAEE
MISRIFEM SRS BRI
HH BB A > XKD HENS
BRAEREHER - D8 BAE
B85 RSB A TR ET T RES Bl (B
B RITEERIA e

AEBENBSHRA T EBREREE
BUA - FEEBRAESHD
M BRBEMEEMBERA
BEMALER  EREHRAN

EH o

2020 F#f 213
I RRREEEEERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESBORNME AR ()

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (&)

20.3 Rental Income 3) HELYPA
The operating leases of the Group as a lessor AEBEAEETMKEEHEE X
mainly include leasing, sublease of properties and BEEHE BHEDERER
counters, etc., using the straight-line method or other CERBAESEAREMRSGS
systematic and reasonable methods to recognize the M BREHEENEEWR

lease receipts from operating leases as rental income
during each period of the lease term. The initial direct
costs related to operating leases are capitalized when
incurred and included in the current profit and loss in
installments on the same basis as the confirmation of
rental income throughout the lease period. Obtained
variable lease payments related to operating leases

that are not included in the lease receipts are included

in the current profit and loss when they actually occur.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group,
which do not include any capital contribution from the
government as an investor. Government grants include
government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income. The Group defines government
grants that are acquired for the acquisition or otherwise
formation of long-term assets as government grants related
to assets, and the rest of them are defined as government
grants related to income. If the government documents do
not have a specific classification, the grants will be divided
into government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income by the following methods: (1) the
government documents confirm the specific programme
of the grants, according to the proportion, which based
on the grants expend on assets and expenses separately
in the specific programme’s budget, it is used to divide
the government grants. Meanwhile, the division ratio will
be reviewed at each balance sheet date and changed it if
necessary. (2) The government documents do not confirm
the specific programme and only have a general explanation
for the programme, which will be regard as government
grants related to income. If a government grant is a transfer
of a monetary asset, it is measured at amounts received
or receivable, otherwise, a non-monetary asset will be
measured at fair value. If the fair value is not accurate, the
grant is measured at nominal amount and credited to the

current profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Government grants (Continued)

The government grants of the Group are normally
recognized and measured at the moment they are actually
received. However, if they have conclusive evidence to
prove that they can correspond the relevant provisions
of the financial support policies and they will receive the
financial support funds in the future, it is measured by the
amount of money receivable. The government grants that
measured by the amount of money receivable will meet
the following conditions simultaneously: (1) the amount of
receivables have been confirmed by the documents, which
issued by the related authorities of the government, or the
Group calculate reasonable receivables depending on the
relevant provisions of officially released Measures for the
Administration of Financial Funds, as well as, there is no
significant uncertainty about the amount; (2) According
to the regulations based on ‘Government Information
Disclosure Ordinance’ issued by local finance department
officially, the financial support project and Measures for
the Administration of Financial Funds should be initiative
publicly. The formulation of this management approach is
general and benefit for all enterprise, instead of a specific
enterprise, which means the company who meets the
specified conditions can apply it; (3) the approval of the
related grants has promised the disbursement period, and
the payment is guaranteed by the corresponding budget.
Thus, they have a reasonable guarantee about the grants

and will receive them within the prescribed time.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to assets is recognized as
deferred income, it is allocated to the profit or loss for the
period over the useful life of related assets reasonably and
systematically, or offset the book value of related assets.
For a government grant related to income, if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses and losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized
as deferred income and charged in the profit or loss over
the period in which the related costs are recognized, or
offset the related cost; if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses and losses already incurred, the grant
is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current

period, or offset the related cost.

At the same time, if the government grants contain both
assets related and income related, the accounting treatment
will depend on the different parts of government grants; if it
is difficult to distinguish, the whole government grants are

classified as the income-related government grants.

The government grants related to daily activities of the
Group relying on the essence of economic business,
the grant is recognized in other income or offset related
expenses of cost, otherwise, recognized in non-operating

income or non-operating expenses.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21. Government grants (Continued)

When the government grants that confirmed by the Group
required to be returned, if they have the balance of related
deferred income, they can offset the book value of them,
the other government grants are classified as current profits
and losses or adjust the book value of the assets. If not, the
government grants are included in the current profits and

losses directly.

22. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22.1 Current income taxes

At the balance sheet date, current income tax
liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid
(or recovered) according to the requirements of tax
laws. The taxable income used for calculation of
current income tax is calculated based on the current
period adjusted taxable profit in compliance with the

regulation of taxation law.
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M- EESEBERAME G (&)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 - EEFIEREE ELFEHERE
(Continued) (&)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(2) EBEEFEHEERELZEHERE

For temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax
base, or between the carrying amount of those items
that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their
tax base that can be determined according to tax laws,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using

the balance sheet liability method.

For taxable temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profits or
taxable income (or deductible losses), a deferred tax
liability is not recognized. In addition, for deductible
temporary difference arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group
shall recognize a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary difference except to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESEENE AR (&)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFIBREE ELEEHAR

(Continued) (&)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For deductible temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
losses), a deferred tax asset is not recognized.In
addition, for deductible temporary difference arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, the Group shall recognize a deferred tax
asset for other deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be deducted except to the extent that
it is not probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future or taxable profit will
not be available against which the temporary difference

can be utilized.

220 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

2

EEPEHEEREEFHE R
(%)

HETROEAS  HAERDD
FESFRBEMEATIEE(K
AEABR)NRZTEENEE
BB/ V) FER B B R A K0
EREMEZR T THRIAGHENE
EFBIREE - I HWERFRQ
Al BMECERAELEREMN
MO ATEMEEEER  RE
RHMEZEEANEIORETER
AREE D HERKAEZRALE
ESAREMNAT RN EERN
EMBIFTSE T THEREHN
BIEFTSHEE - B LA PIIME
Mo AREBE AR AT BEER S A SRR
AT REERNERATS
BRR  EREGAENERKE
ZRELMRLEMENEE -

R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

M- EESEBERAME G (&)

II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFTSHEE ELEMEHAE
(Continued) (&)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(2) EBEEFEHEERELZEHERE

(Continued) (&)
For deductible losses and tax credits that can be HReEMEE BT ERN A RIS

carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible losses

and tax credits can be deducted.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to
tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in

which the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred
tax assets to be deducted. Such reduction in amount
is reversed when it is probable that sufficient taxable

income is available.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

22.3 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Income tax is recognized as an income or an expense
and included in the income statement for the current
period, except to the extent that the current income tax
related to a transaction or events which is recognized
under other comprehensive income or directly
recorded in equity, deferred tax recorded under other
comprehensive income or equity, and deferred tax
arises from a business combination that have impact

on the carrying value of goodwill.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

22 EEFIBHEE ELEEHAR

(Continued) (&)

22.4 Offsetting of income taxes (4) FE#HpEE
When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net ERBLFBEENETEREN
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis BEBENNFHEEESINEEE -

or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities BEABBERBENTE  A£EE
HFEHREEREHMEHAEMN

IR FREIIR -

simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

ERANFREEEHMEHEE
REMABHRABNEEER -
BAEEREREERELEHREHE
B[R] — BB E B FTE R —

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred

tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income

==

g

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either Epd
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities EBEWM BTN E L
which intend either to settle current tax assets and RPN EEIEE - BERK

liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease

Leases are defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for

a period of time in exchange for consideration.

23.1 The Group as a lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that simplify processing and low-value

asset leases.

The right-of-use asset measured Initially at cost,
the cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise: @
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; @ any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; @ any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; @ an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The straight-
line method is used by the Group to withdraw
depreciation of the right-of-use assets based on the
lease term specified in the lease contract from the
lease start date; and the Group determines whether
the right-of-use asset is impaired in accordance with
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 8 — Impairment of Assets” and accounts for the
recognized impairment losses (refer to Note IV. 18

“Long-term asset impairment”).
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued) 23 ~MHE#E)

(1) FEEEREBALHEHEEY

23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued)

A lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Lease payments is the payments made by
a lessee to a lessor relating to the right to use an
underlying asset during the lease term, comprising the
following: @ fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives; @ variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; @ the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and @ payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. ®
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees. The Group calculates the
interest expense of the lease liability for each period
of the lease term according to a fixed periodic interest
rate, and it is included in the current profit or loss or

capitalized into the value of the relevant assets.
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II/

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND s EESEENE AR (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued) 23 - HE(#E)
23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued) (1) FEBEBERBEALFHEER
(&)
The variable lease payments that are not included in AEEBAMATHERGTENT
the measurement of the lease liabilities are recognised DHEENTECEREERGTAE
in profit or loss or related asset costs in the period in Higs AR B ER R ©

which they are incurred.

For short-term leases and low-value assets leases, the HREeHMHEEMEEBEEEMR
Group has chosen to simplify the processing and to CAEEEETUBMER -
include the relevant asset costs or current profits and FHERRNSERBRIRBESREX
losses in a straight-line method or other systematically HMESREGEN AT ARBEE
reasonable method during each period of the lease A E BifEas o

term.

When the lease scope, lease consideration, and lease ERERAGRABRZIINHEESRD
term change other than the original contract terms E - HEYE  HEHRMEE
occur, the Group will treat the lease change as a B AEBRBABHEZEE
separate lease or as a separate lease for accounting RIHBEMEE  NETER—
treatment. When it is not a separate lease, the HEBHEETSHER - RI1E
company re-measures the lease liability based on the R—EEBEER  AEBHTHE
present value of the lease payment and the revised ERFAMBIERBREERBEENK
discount rate on the effective date of the lease change, BEASE] TR R ENRESE
and adjusts the book value of the right-of-use asset M EHERE  HEARGH
accordingly. The book value of the right-of-use asset BEAENEREEE -THEEE
has been reduced to zero. However, if the lease liability MEEEECHARES - BHE
still needs to be further reduced, the Company will BEDFE—THARN  AEEH
include the remaining amount in the current profit and RIS REET AN E Bl -

loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND -EBEESTTREMNG AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued) 23 MHE(E)
23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued) (1) FEEEBRBEALFHEELE
(#&)

All lease contracts of the Group, as long as they
meet the scope and conditions of the “Regulations on
Accounting Treatment of Rental Concessions Related
to the New Coronary Pneumonia Epidemic” (Cai Kuai
[2020] No. 10), that is the lease consideration after
concession is reduced or basically unchanged from
before the concession; the concession is only for
the lease payments payable before 30 June 2021;
after considering qualitative and quantitative factors,
it is determined that there are no major changes in
other terms and conditions of the lease, the following
simplified methods will be adopted for rent reductions,
deferred payment, and other rent reductions since 1
January 2020:

Continue to calculate the interest expense of the
lease liability at the same discount rate as before the
concession and include it in the current profit and loss,
and continue to calculate the depreciation and other
subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset in
the same method as before the concession. The Group
treats the reduced or exempted rent as a variable lease
payment. When a concession agreement is reached
to relieve the original rent payment obligation, the
undiscounted cash amount will be used to offset the
relevant asset costs or expenses, and the lease liability
will be adjusted accordingly; if the rent is deferred. The
lease liability recognized in the previous period is offset
when the actual payment is made. For short-term
leases and low-value asset leases that adopt simplified

processing, the Group continues to include the original

REBP2HAHRAR  REF
TR AREEERSRES
FHEER T ) (BF&€[2020]105%) i
A& B AR (BD - RRE AR
EHEBRZEATR D RHEARTE
AR EET 202146 308 ATAIE
NHEEMNKE  GEZERTHERE
2 A =% R E /A BN (5
HEEREL)  HEdRE T
M NEHEERZE - 82020914
1ARBERBN TSR ARE

A B TR BLRGR BT — BV AT IR R &
FHERENNEBERYLAE
HiiEa - AEEIRIR BRI R AT — B
WJDRE MR EEITRI R
ESREME - AEEBR 2R
HeERmEHENNKE £
PO R h i 55 AR B R A & SN & 75
B BAFTRSEAEHEBEEE
RALER  RASHERAREE
B EHXNESYN - EEEREX
EHRATBRERNEERE -
HREABCRENEHHEEME
BEEERSE  AEEEERR
SRR AT — B A R & RIE
EERAMBEEXNARER
BRBEIERR BHEEMKE -

2020 F#f 207
I RRREEEEERNERAF]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued)

23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued)

contract rent in the relevant asset costs or expenses
in the same way as before the reduction, and uses
the reduced rent as a variable lease payment. Offset
related asset costs or expenses; if the payment of rent
is delayed, the rent payable shall be recognized as
payable during the original payment period, and the
previously recognized payable shall be offset when the

actual payment is made.

23.2 The Group as a lessor

28.2.1 The classification of leases

A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either
a finance lease or an operating lease, based
on the substance of the transaction at the
commencement date. A finance lease refers to
that a lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. An operating lease is the other lease that

except a finance lease.

23.2.2 Operating leases

A lessor shall recognise lease payments from
operating leases as rental income for each period
of the lease term on either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis. The initial direct costs
related to operating leases are capitalized as
incurred, and it is included in the current profit
and loss in the same period as the confirmed
rental income, during the entire lease period. The
variable lease payments that are not included in
the lease payments related to the operating leases

are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
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M- EESTBERME R (2)

1y

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued) 23 ~HHEE)

23.2 The Group as a lessor (Continued) (2) FEEERBHBEALRHEEELE

(%)
23.2.3 Finance leases ® HEHE
At the commencement date, the Group confirms REEHRARE - RSB R
the financing lease receivable and terminates the REWRERER - WL

recognition of the finance lease assets.

The finance lease receivables are initially measured
at the sum of the un-guaranteed residual value
and the lease receivables that have not been
received on the lease beginning date, based on
the sum of the present value of the leased interest
rate, which comprises the following: A. fixed
payments and in-substance fixed payments, less
any lease incentives payable; B. variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; C. the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; D. payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease; E. any residual value guarantees provided
to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the
lessee or a third party unrelated to the lessor that
is financially capable of discharging the obligations

under the guarantee.

RHEHEEE -

FEM B E T & AR ERER
BEAAE RSB B ARKE
WHERRERREERNS
MEFIRAIRE 2 FETH
ARt E - HEWRRERRE
AEGE A T 2 AT [ SE R
BLEBEENRE  FE
HERBY - HREEHE
HEAS R - B.EURRIE RIS
LR AR E N RE - &
RIBENGERBEEEE
AR IR B VIR BN L R E
CHEEZERNTEER
AR A& I8 1 E A A B 1T
Pz =R DA AITE
RIFHERERTINOR
18 - B R & H Rk &
TEARAITEL EHE R R
E.fAMEA - EHAHEABR
B —H A RE LB ET
ERBBHNBLE=FHE
HAREWERAE -

I
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

- EESHBERNE R AR ()

23. Lease (Continued) 23 - HE(#E)
23.2 The Group as a lessor (Continued) (2) FEEERHEALREEER
(%)

23.2.3 Finance leases (Continued)

The variable lease payments received by the
Group that are not included in the measurement
of the net amount of the leased investment are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

© BAHEHE)
AREDE HAMABER
FRABOTRAENK
SRR RN A S BIA

K

Zs o

they are incurred.
24. Changes in significant accounting policies and 24 - EEGHEEK - SFHEFHEE
accounting estimates
(1) Changes in accounting policies (1) EBFHEEE
None. |\ oo
(2) Changes in accounting estimates (2) EFEEE
None. F:i

230 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V. TAXATION

1. Major taxes and tax rates

Tax types

Value-added tax
BB

Consumption tax
HBH

City construction and maintenance tax

W R R

Education surcharge

HEENM

Local education surcharge

RISk I ot

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 &

A -HIR

1. FEBERBE

Tax basis

AHRAE

Note 1
Bl

Taxable sales subject to consumption tax

HERERBA

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
B meEH

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax
EX e

Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

Tax rate

RE

13%/9%/6%/5%/3%

5%

5%/7%

3%

2%

WA B R

Corporate income tax Taxable income See table below

REREH FEMM G FRTE
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V. TAXATION (Continued)

H-BIRGE)

1. Major taxes and tax rates (Continued) 1. FEBREBERBERE)
Tax rate of
Taxable entities Tax basis income tax
WBLERER TR Fri8HiBi=
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. Note 2 16.5%
X FA BT BBR AT 512
Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Note 2 16.5%
BB EMNBRAA 52
Chaopi International Trade (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Note 2 16.5%
HHBRE 5 (HB)BRAF 52
Others 25%
Hithg Al
Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the FE1: FEANISET AETER R A RS IER AR
output value-added tax after deduction of input value- fREE - BB ERBAET AR TR ERH
added tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a EREHE -
basis of sales resolved by relevant tax laws.
Note 2: The Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong 2 ARBZFARBIKFABTEERAA

Company Limited, Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company
Limited and Chaopi International Trade (Hong Kong) Co.,
Ltd. were registered and established in Hong Kong and
in accordance with Hong Kong taxation law its corporate

income tax rate was 16.5%.
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VI.

II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N A BRREETE

STATEMENTS

Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB. BREJFRHIN  RIERNSEEMHIARARKE

5T o

The following note items (including the main item notes of the UTHEBER(SEAFMBHREETEZEET
company’s financial statements) unless otherwise specified, BIRIEFRIEL - [F 4 1#520205F1 A1
“beginning of the year” refers to 1 January 2020, “end of the B [ RK]#E2020F12H318 [ EFF
year” refers to 31 December 2020, and “end of the period year” K IHE2019F 12 A31H ; [ A4 |$520204F
refers to 31 December 2019; “This year” refers to 2020, and “prior E ' [ L J482019F & -

year” refers to 2019.

1. Cash and Bank balances 1 E¥ES
2020 12 31 2019.12.31
—ECEF —E-NF
ltem EH +=ZRA=+—8° +ZA=+—H
Cash on hand BFRS 7,980,956 8,218,440
Cash in bank HRITIER 1,024,877,795 856,631,364
Other cash and cash equivalents ~ Efh S8 &4 (551)
(Note 1) 157,443,568 84,571,190
Total A&t 1,190,302,319 949,420,994
Including: Overseas deposits HA : FRUE RN FRIA RS
(Note 2) (7F2) 20,743,514 7,884,922
Note 1: As at 31 December 2020, the margin deposits with 51 R2020%F 128318 - $‘$@E’\]Fﬁﬁ?§§§'ﬂﬁ
restricted ownership of the Group were RMB157,443,568, FIWREFERL TR A ARNE157,443,568 -
of which the note margin deposit was RMB116,101,904 (31 FEERBSHFERAAREE116,101,9047T
December 2019: RMB84,571,190), and details please refer (2019F12A318 : AR¥84,571,1907T) °
to Note VI. 20 Notes payable. The loan guarantee deposit 28N - 20N RE - EFRFSHEX
is RMB41,341,664. RAREA1,341,6647T ©

Note 2: Bank deposits placed overseas are the money deposited 52 FRUIESEINNIRITF R AT A RIFAR R A A
by the subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. BERAERAAEFRNEBESRITAMAE K
in Hong Kong Bank and China Everbright Bank Hong Kong RBITEBDITHORIE - URBHIEERE S
Branch, and the money deposited by Chaopi International (BHB)BRARFERNESELRITHIE -

Trading (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. in Hong Kong Bank.

2020@&
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Notes receivable 2 EBWERE
Classification of notes receivable FEREEN 5 E
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—E-EF —E-NF
ltem THH +=—A=+—H +—-HA=+—8
Bank acceptance PRITAGIEE 5,117,315 -
Trade acceptance SE S 1,500,000 -
Total &5t 6,617,315 -
Note:  On 31 December 2020, The Company believes that the B M20206F12 A318 - RNARRAFFEAKE

notes receivable held by it does not have a major credit

risk, and will not cause major losses due to the default of

the bank or other drawers.

WREINFEERNERRR - TEERT
FEHMERARBHMEEEANEK -

3. Accounts receivable 3 EWERR
2020 12 31 2019.12.31
—E-EF —E-NF
ltem HH +=—B=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Accounts receivable FEUBR N 975,479,676 1,197,382,479
Total &t 975,479,676 1,197,382,479

(1) 31 December 2020

(1) 2020125318

Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEU AR FR D KR I 5
2020.12.31
“RCRETCASt-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
FESE EREXER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%) Net book value
Category EA ] HAl(%) €8 HREAIC) FEEE
Accounts receivable with single provision for - BIBHRERIEXEER
credit loss allowance Bl 2,563,822 - 2,563,822 100 -
Accounts receivable with credit loss RS RERARERN
allowance based on portfolio FElERR 1,005,651,410 100 30,171,734 3 975,479,676
Total At 1,008,215,232 100 32,735,556 3 975,479,676
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N BMEHRREEERE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERR(E)

(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (1) 2020%12H31H (#)

The aging of accounts receivable is as follows FEUT AR AR B I
2020.12.31
“BCBFTCA=T-H
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion% allowance  Net book value
Aging i 8 E (%) ERBXER REEE
Within 1 year TELAR 898,490,315 89 350,788 898,139,527
1-2 years 1208 44,250,206 4 1,544,304 42,705,902
2-3 years 2E3F 19,098,167 2 2,127,313 16,970,854
3-4 years REYE:3 9,238,468 1 2,326,916 6,911,552
4-5 years 4E55F 21,553,148 2 10,801,307 10,751,841
Over 5 years 5EM L 15,584,928 2 15,584,928 -
Total At 1,008,215,232 100 32,735,556 975,479,676
Credit loss allowance ERBRERENER
Change in this year
AEEBEH
Opening Recovery or Resale or Ending
balance Accrual reversal write-off balance
Category Lop] ENER iR WERER  EHARE ERGE
Payment =5 20,479,488 12,362,246 106,178 - 32,735,556
Total &t 20,479,488 12,362,246 106,178 - 32,735,556

In the portfolio, accounts receivable with allowance for Hewm - BREBRDWEIRER

credit losses based on the aging analysis method B EER R
2020.12.31
“E-EF+ZA=+—H

Accounts Credit loss

receivable allowance Proportion%
Aging BRiR FEUER ERBRKER TR A (%)
Within 1 year 1FELAA 898,139,527 - 0
1-2 years 1226 44,026,703 1,320,801 3
2-3 years 2E3F 18,856,504 1,885,650 10
3-4 years 3E4F 9,215,403 2,303,851 25
4-5 years 4555 21,503,683 10,751,842 50
Over 5 years 5F A E 13,909,590 13,909,590 100
Total CEl 1,005,651,410 30,171,734
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERMR(E)

(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (1) 2020%12H31H (#&)
Accounts receivable with single allowance for credit BRI ERBRERANEKIRER
loss

2020.12.31
SR-RFT-AZT-A
Accounts Credit loss

Company receivable allowance Proportion% Reason for provision
BU#R ERES  EREXER  FRUA(%) HRER
Beijing Dachu Xiaocai Hotel Co., Ltd. 49,465 49,465 100 Revoke the business license
IRAR R REERAT mIEERHR
Beijing Sanjin Fengya Catering Management Co., Ltd. 153,380 163,380 100 Revoke the business license
FR=ERRERERARAA mIEERHR
Beijing Flamenco Catering Co., Ltd. 1,452,861 1,452,861 100 Revoke the business license
I RTBEAPIRERERAR mIEERHR
Yizhiyao (Tianjin) Technology Development Co., Ltd. 574,292 574,292 100 Cannot be recovered
—HE(RE)HRERARAA CHRREENE
Tianjin Yonghui Supermarket Co., Ltd. 3,858 3,858 100 Cannot be recovered
REKEETARAT CRAEZRE
Fumanjia Group Co., Ltd. 14,070 14,070 100 Cannot be recovered
AR EEARAT CRAEZRE
Beijing Quanshi Life Technology Co., Ltd. 11,521 11,521 100 Cannot be recovered
EREBEEREERAT CRREZRE
Beijing Hualian Supermarket Co., Ltd. 35,383 35,383 100 Cannot be recovered
I RERGABTRAERAR CRREZRE
Beijing Hualian Supermarket Co., Ltd. Guiyang Branch 4,900 4,900 100 Cannot be recovered
TRERGARTRAERARNERH A CHRREANE
Datong Yiyang Commercial Co., Ltd. 264,092 264,092 100 Cannot be recovered
RREFEEERRA CREREERE
Total 2,563,822 2,563,822
At
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERR(E)
(2) 31 December 2019 (2) 20194125318
Presentation of accounts receivable by category FEMBR SR KA B
2019.12.31
ZE-NETZA=T-B
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
SRS ERERER

Amount Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)  Net book value

Category gl g | 5h1(%) 28 HERA(%) HEEE

Accounts receivable with single provision EIE2HE(E R Bk Bk ENES
for credit loss - - - - -
Accounts receivable with credit loss  E4AHEERBEEES

provision based on portfolio BWER 1,217,861,967 100 20,479,488 2 1,197,382,479
Total At 1,217,861,967 100 20,479,488 2 1,197,382,479
The aging of accounts receivable is as follows FEUTER AR B N
2019.12.31
ZE-NEtZA=T-H

Carrying amount Proportion%  Credit loss allowance Net book value
Aging TR ot £21(%) ERBEXEMR RHERE
Within 1 year B 1,131,410,849 93 - 1,131,410,849
1-2 years 1525 31,685,199 3 950,556 30,734,643
2-3 years PEXES 14,234,768 1 1,423,477 12,811,291
3-4 years REYE:3 23,314,230 2 5,828,558 17,485,672
4-5 years 4F5F 9,880,047 1 4,940,023 4,940,024
Qver 5 years 5L\ £ 7,336,874 - 7,336,874 -
Total &t 1,217,861,967 100 20,479,488 1,197,382,479

Credit loss provision ERBEXERENER

Change in this year
Recovery or Resale or
Opening balance Accrual reversal write-off  Ending balance
Category il EBE iR KE5Em EEh A FREAE
Payment £ 13,013,145 12,801,915 5,256,191 79,381 20,479,488
Total At 13,013,145 12,801,915 5,256,191 79,381 20,479,488
2020 %5 37
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2019 (Continued)

In the portfolio, accounts receivable with allowance for

- B BBRRERERE)

PEWERR ()
(2) 2019%12F31H(#&)
HEP o RERDITEAIRIER

3

credit losses based on the aging analysis method BREE R EYAR R
2019.12.31
—E-NAFt+=-A=+—H
Credit loss
Carrying amount allowance Proportion%
Aging BRHe FEUR AR K ERBREE FHEEEBI(%)
Within 1 year N 1,131,410,849 - 0
1-2 years 1224 31,685,199 950,556 3
2-3 years 2&E34F 14,234,768 1,423,477 10
3-4 years 3E4F 23,314,230 5,828,558 25
4-5 years 455 9,880,047 4,940,023 50
Over 5 years 5% AL 7,336,874 7,336,874 100
Total A&t 1,217,861,967 20,479,488

The top five accounts receivable of the ending

balance of the year aggregated by the owing party

31 December 2020

(8) BRAFBEENFRGHENEEZL

YRR ER
2020%F12A31H

Percentage of
total accounts

Ending amount
of credit loss

Company Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%) provision
EEWRT AR EREXER
B £R HASEBE k] £ 41(%) EReHE
Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. ("Wu-mart’) Independent third party 297,225,127 29 3,693,657
ErpEFaBTERAR (A THEE]) BiFE=h
Beiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (*Jingdong’) Independent third party 130,189,025 13 225,107
FRRREEEZERAF A TERE 7)) BUE=H
Beijing Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (*Yonghur’) Independent third party 40,743,964 4 47,528
KBREBRAF AT EREKE]) BiE=]
Shanxi MeetAll Chain Supermarket Co., Ltd. (*MestAll)  Independent third party 29,249,827 3 -
WEERIFEERTRAARARAUTEREEST]) BuE=H
Wuhan Watsons Personal Products Store Co., Ltd.
(“Watsons”) - Independent third party 28,028,708 3 121
REREREARRBAEERAAGTHRE RER])  BuE=H
Total At 525,436,646 52 3,966,413
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N

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL VAN
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) The top five accounts receivable of the ending
balance of the year aggregated by the owing party
(Continued)

31 December 2019

RO BEHRIERERE)

3 BWERMRE)

(8) BRHULEENFRGHENEELN
FBEWRR 157 (4E)

201912 A31H

Proportion of the
amount to the  Closing balance

total accounts of credit loss
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%)  allowance
o ‘ EENEREEN  EREXEE
B2 ERSERR 28 ELAI%) EReE
Wu-mart Independent third party 374,980,009 31 2,060,210
IES BUE=H
Jingdong Independent third party 156,215,407 13 166,330
RE BUE=H
Beiing Carrefour Gommercial Co. Ltd., (*Carrefour’) Independent third party 61,711,993 5 85,625
FRFEREEBRARATEHE RER)) BUE=H
\(onghui Independent third party 53,793,454 4 52,416
KiE BUE=7H
Watsons Independent third party 45,834,450 4 -
EER BuE=h
Total At 692,635,313 57 2,353,581

The Group normally allows a credit period of no more
than 90 days to its customers with a longer credit

period of 180 days granted to its major customers.

On 31 December 2020, the total accounts receivable
due from Wu-mart, Carrefour, Lotus, Jingdong, Tianjin
jumei.com Technology Co., Ltd, Vipshop, BHG and
MeetAll amounted to RMB183,096,337 (31 December
2019: RMB280,963,340) were limited by being factored

to secure certain bank loans of the Group.

FEM RN E BT RO0X - TBEF A
JERE180K o

20206612 A31H  H{YxE - R¥EEB - 5
VI - kB - RR - REREELREA
BRAR - MRE - EH - XETFOERKER
A5 AR #183,096,337 7L(20194F 12 A 31
B : AR#280,963,3407T)KIFT AR - EIA
H

n
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N AU BEREABERE)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERMR(E)
(3) The top five accounts receivable of the ending (8) BRATGEHENFRGEINEER

balance of the year aggregated by the owing party FEW AR 18X ()

(Continued)

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the RIS E B E B IRITRBENRE

Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for Wik EERITHASERHEDT
amount of not exceeding 70% of accounts receivable 8 18 JE YBR SRR IE £ BB 70% HY 8
factoring to the Group. HSBC collected the entire TER - BEERTUHEUENRRK
amount of accounts receivable and is only required 2EHEE  EMASERIZTEBA
to pay the Group any amount it collects in excess of ERSRBEHRIE - AXREERR

ERRERETRTE - ATHRI

the loan amount. As the Group has not transferred

specifically identifiable cash flows, fully proportionate Dot ARERETRSREN—
share of all or part of the cash flows or part of FLLOIKIR SR EFRREE Al #
specifically identifiable cash flows, the Group cannot REDE—ELLA - Bl - A&

BEETETTIRIZ A B MR AR

apply the derecognition model to part of the factored

accounts receivable.

Since factored accounts receivable is on full recourses
basis, the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating of these receivables, it
continues to recognize the receivables and has
recognized the cash received from the bank as

accounts receivable secured loan (See Note (VI) 19).

FEFR 4R P HERRARRY o

RETHZRENEEERZE
BRE AEEYREBBEZERE
Ust B 3K AT B R b KRR A ¥R
B EitEEERERER I
A AEERTT UL B B0 3R 2 HERR A I W BR
BRI E R (HIFEN ~ 19) ©

Factoring accounts receivable on

full recourses basis

BERENEYERRRE
2020 12 31 2019.12.31
+= H_+ H +-A=+—H
Carrying amount of transferred & EMWBREBE
assets 183,096,337 280,963,340
Carrying amount of related B ENREEE
liabilities 13,392,510 48,566,497
Net book value FEE 169,703,827 232,396,843
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

)

AN

RISk I ot

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

RO BEHRIERERE)

N

N\

Prepayments 4~ FENRIE

(1) Presentation of prepayments according to aging (1) FEIRCEZERRST
analysis

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
ZECERE+ZAZT-H ZZ-NE+ZA=T-H
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  Proportion(%)
Aging B Ex E (%) e ELAI(%)
Within 1 year 1EBLA 890,477,970 100 | 1,124,980,836 100
Total A3t 890,477,970 100 | 1,124,980,836 100
On 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, there 7202012 A31H K% 2019F12H
was no prepayment from shareholders who held voting 318 BRRIBEBFREENSFEAR
shares of more than 5% (including 5%). £ E5% (25%) bA_EFIRAERAD &Y
MRERBIFRIA ©

Top five entities with the largest balances of (2) BRENTUREEFERGHEILEN
prepayments ANFIER

31 December 2020

202012H31H

Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount Unsettled reason
BUEH HAKEEE 8 REERR
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 254,675,601 Haven't received goods
HELBRERHEBREEAF BUE=H mARKEEY)
Guizhou Moutai Wine Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 54,852,180 Haven't received goods
EMF R EHERRAR BUE=H mARKEIEY)
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 45,572,620 Haven't received goods
I RTAG M BREEREEAR BUE=H HARKEEY)
Yihai Kerry Food Marketing Co., Ltd. Independent third party 40,948,246 Haven't received goods
HERERMEHERAF BUE=H mARKEIEY)
Mondelez Shanghai Food Coporate Independent third party 34,897,399 Haven't received goods

Management Co.,Ltd
EHRmCRER(LE)BRAR BUE=7 HAKEEY)
Total At 430,945,946

2020 %5 941
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL A

STATEMENTS (Continued)

- B BBRRERERE)

4~ FENRIEGAE)

4. Prepayments (Continued)

(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of (2) EANHREEFARGEIEEN
PR (E)

201912 A31H

prepayments (Continued)

31 December 2019

Name of entity Relationship with the Groqp Amount  Unsettled reason

B et RASEBE SH ALERA

Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 281,127,061 Haven't received goods

HERRRERHEARALAT BuE=H HARMEIED

Guizhou Moutai Wine Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 118,342,190 Haven't received goods

EMFRBRERRAT Bug=H HARMEIED

Beijing Zhuolong Animal Husbandry Co., Ltd. Independent third party 77,179,746 Haven't received goods

IRERERERAT BuE=H HARMEIED

Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 53,487,727 Haven't received goods

IRTAHE SR ERELAT BuE=H HARMEIED

Mondelez Shanghai Food Coporate Management Co.,Ltd Independent third party 50,967,964 Haven't received goods

EHRRLCEER(LE)BRAE Bug=hH HARMEIED

Total ait 581,104,678
Other receivables 5 HhpEWKR

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
= —E-NE

ltem 18§ +=A=+—~H +=-A=+—-H
Other receivables HoAth e YR 200,158,379 191,243,003
Interest receivables FEURI B, - -
Dividend receivables FEM AR F - -
Total &5 200,158,379 191,243,003
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Other receivables (Continued)
Details of other receivables

(1) 31 December 2020

Presentation of other receivables by category

N B BRBRREEERE)

5 HtEWRE)
At 18R

(1) 2020%12H31H

HAtb YR B ER

2020.12.31
ZEIEETCAST-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REHE BRELER Net book
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category EAl ©E HA1(%) S8 HRIAI(%) REER
Other receivables with single allowance for credit BI85 AKX EEH
loss Hbh el 7,713,212 4 7,281,251 % 432,021
Other receivables with credit loss alowance  1REAFHEERBXEE
based on portfolio Hih el 202,119,099 96 2,392,741 1 199,726,358
Total At 209,832,371 100 9,673,992 5 200,158,379
Presentation of other receivables according to aging E G ARER T
analysis
2020.12.31
ZEZEE+ZA=1-H
Carrying Credit loss
amount Proportion% allowance  Net book value
Aging R k2 hl%)  EREXER REEE
Within 1 year LR 146,266,629 70 1,886,588 144,380,041
1-2 years 1208 51,762,589 25 2,167,755 49,594,834
2-3 years 2R3F 5,523,281 2 761,018 4,762,263
3-4 years 324F 1,623,101 1 633,881 989,220
4-5 years 4F5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5L 4,656,771 2 4,224,750 432,021
Total At 209,832,371 100 9,673,992 200,158,379
The detalil of credit loss allowance ERBXERENER
The amount change in this year
rERBLE
Recovery or Resale or
2020.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off ~ 2020.12.31
Category L<pil ENsE iR KEREE  EHSEH ERBE
Rent and promotion HeRRHE 5,058,124 4,677,518 7,605 54,045 9,673,992
Total At 5,058,124 4,677,518 7,605 54,045 9,673,992
2020 if& 243
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)
Details of other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued)

Other receivable with single allowance for credit loss

N AU BEREABERE)

Hitb R

K(#&)

HttERH1ER (&)

(1) 2020412531 H (%)
BIAFHRE AR EERN EMELR

Carrying Credit loss
Content of other receivables amount allowance Rate% Reason
ERAXE
RS AR REGE BeE AR ER
Beijng Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 4,656,771 4,224,750 91 Full bad debt provision for the part
FRERARMENSERLE unrecovered, according to the agresment
BEETHE - UANEHHHRERER
Beiing Flamenco Catering Co., Ltd. 1,883,838 1,883,838 100 Revoke the business license
ERMERFIRERERAR BHEXHR
Beiing Dachu Xiaocai Hotel Co., Ltd. 2,750 2,750 100 Revoke the business license
IRAENEEEER AR BHEXHR
Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 184,784 184,784 100 Cannot be recovered
BIIES 5( LB)ERAR CRAR LM
China Resources 49,289 49,289 100 Cannot be recovered
b CRAR LM
Dumex Baby Food Co Ltd 208,922 208,922 100 Cannot be recovered
SERENTRAAED [y e
Naaisi Lishui Sales Co., Ltd. 304,140 304,140 100 Cannot be recovered
WERBAHERRAT CRAREKE
Guangzhou Qunhe Cosmetics Co., Ltd. 200,000 200,000 100 Cannot be recovered
BNERARERAT CRARELM
Datong Lok Cheng Commercial Co., Ltd. 84,116 84,116 100 Cannot be recovered
AREREEXERLA CRARELM
Meiaisi Cosmetics (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. 143,662 143,662 100 Cannot be recovered
Bl (&M BR A CRARELE
Total 7,713,272 7,281,251

At
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(1)

31 December 2020 (Continued)

RISk I ot

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N B BRBRREEERE)

5 HAIEWER(E)

HttERH1ER (&)

(1)

In the portfolio, other receivables for which credit

loss allowance are made based on the aging analysis

20204 12H31H (&)

MeP - mEERD IR IRER
BRERNEMD R

method
2020.12.31
ZBEEETZAZT-A
Other receivables ~ Credit loss allowance Proportion%
Aging I HiEUR BREXEE FHRELAI (%)
Within 1 year 1ELA 144,380,041 - 0
1-2 years 1228 51,128,693 1,533,861 3
2-3 years PEXES 5,291,404 529,140 10
3-4 years REYES 1,318,961 329,740 25
4-5 years 435F - - 50
Over 5 years 5% F - - 100
Total = 202,119,099 2,392,741
Provision for bad debts BIREBRTIRIEN
The first stage The second stage  The third stage
£-[ER £ZBR EELEEE
Expected credit ~ Expected credit
loss for the entire loss for the entire
Expected credit duration (no  duration (credit
loss in the next  credit impairment  impairment has
Bad debt provision BRER 12 months occurred) occurred) Total
BEGENRSE REREDREG
AR1MEARSE REX(RBEER REX(EREGR
R#% W) B fit
Opening Balance EY5E 833,374 - 4,224,750 5,058,124
The beginning balance is in the current period )57 AR - - - -
- Move to the second stage —BAEZRR - - - -
- Move to the third stage —HAEZER (54,455) - 54,055 -
- Back to the second stage —BEE-ER - - - -
- Back to the first stage —H#EE—f25 - - - -
Withdrawal for this period REE 1,621,426 - 3,056,092 4,677,518
Reversal for this period KEER (7,605) - - (7,605)
Resell for this period piN:a 5 - - - -
Written off for this period REHH - - (64,045) (64,045)
Other changes b} 3) - - - -
Ending balance EXNE 2,392,740 - 7,281,252 9,673,992
2020 F3 oy 5
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VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2019

Presentation of other receivables by category

- B BBRRERERE)

Htt YR (&)
Hftt e 15X (&)

(2) 2019%12H31H

HAtb UK D R FR

2019.12.31
ZZ-AETZA=T-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REHE ERBXER Net book
Amount - Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category il £ ELA1(%) &8 FHEHLAI(%) RREE
Other receivables with single provision for - ETB:HEEREREBNEMTE
credit loss Wiz 5,051,377 3 4,224,750 84 826,627
Other receivables with credit loss provision 1RAAHEERIBLERN M
based on portfolio e 191,249,750 97 833,374 - 190,416,376
Total At 196,301,127 100 5,058,124 3 191,243,003
Presentation of other receivables according to aging Hib U BRI a0 T
analysis
2019.12.31
“E-N1F+=-A=t—8
Carrying Credit loss
amount Proportion% allowance Net book value
Aging KRR % Bloe) EREXERE FEERE
Within 1 year 1FARA 172,289,548 88 - 172,289,548
1-2 years 1225 15,180,649 8 455,419 14,725,230
2-3 years 2E3F 3,779,553 2 377,955 3,401,598
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4F5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5% E 5,051,377 2 4,224,750 826,627
Total Azt 196,301,127 100 5,058,124 191,243,003
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

@

31 December 2019 (Continued)

II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N AU BEHRERERE)

Hp YR (&)
Rt RS 1ER (&)

(2) 2019412H31H(4#)

The detail of credit loss allowance ERBXERENER
The amount change in this year
Recovery or  Resale or
2019.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off  2019.12.31
Category Ll FHIRE MR WEskER BHHGE 0 FARE
Rent and promotion HekiREE 4381644 703,129 6,274 20,375 5,058,124
Total Bt 4,381,644 703,129 6,274 20,375 5,058,124

Other receivables that are individually significant and

for which credit loss allowance has been assessed

individually

Content of other receivables

Hi YA

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd.

EREERRETSER LR

Carrying  Credit loss
amount  allowance

fERE%

FEHE  EEDE

5,061,377 4,224,750

FREBREMBRERNEM
& UK

Rate% Reason
AT
(%) 2

84 Full bad debt provision for the part
unrecovered, according to the
agreement

REEHHE - WRREEAHRE
RRRER

Other receivable with single allowance for credit loss at

end of the year

MEP  BERERDITARRIER
1B IR g Y HL A B UK

2019.12.31
“E-NET-AZt-B

Credit loss
Other receivables allowance Proportion%
Aging & E e EREREE SHRIAI(%)
Within 1 year 1ELAR 172,289,548 - 0
1-2 years 1206 15,180,649 455,419 3
2-3 years 2R3F 3,779,553 377,955 10
3-4 years 3R4E - - 25
4-5 years 435% - - 50
Over 5 years 58 F - - 100

Total At 191,249,750 833,374
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5 HhEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) BRI IER(E)
(2) 31 December 2019 (Continued) 2) 2019%12H31H (&)
Provision for bad debts EREBTRIER

The first stage  The second stage  The third stage
E-R& ERE E-R&
Expected credit  Expected credit

loss for the entire  loss for the entire

Expected credit duration (o duration (credit
loss in the next ~ credit impairment ~ impairment has
12 months oceurred) oceurred) Total

BEFRARAE BEFRARME
AR12EARS RER(REEE REX(ERLR

Bad debt provision SRER ERBX ARG ARE) At
Beginning Balance E%E 156,894 - 4,204,750 4,381,644
The beginning balance is in the current period ~ FAISEE AL - - - -
- Move to the second stage —BAEZRR - - - -
- Move to the third stage I (20,375) - 20,375 -
~ Back to the second stage —EEE-RG - - - -
~ Back to the first stage —#AE-ER - - - -
Withdrawal for this period REAR 703,129 - - 703,129
Reversal for this period e 4| (6,274) - - (6,274)
Resell for this period REEH - - - -
Witten off for this period TERH - - (20,375) 20,375)
Other changes Higs - - - _
Ending balance EXBE 833,374 - 4,204,750 5,058,124
(3)  Other receivables presented by nature (8)  HEHIAVEE SR A M EK
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—E-EH —T-NF
Nature of other receivable H GRS +=BA=+—H +=-HA=+—H
Promotional fee FEY R EE A 162,521,952 186,627,503
Security deposit and deposit FERRES RS 9,206,465 4,563,915
Current payment R 25,688,025 -
Other Hith 2,741,937 51,585
Total &5t 200,158,379 191,243,003
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

RISk I ot

AN

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 &

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2020

5 HtEWRE)

HttERH1ER (&)

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N B BRBRREEERE)

(4) BRHATEFFEMF RGBT ER
o FEA X
2020%F12A31H

Proportion of

the amount to  Closing balance

Nature of other the total other of credit loss

Company name receivables Closing balance receivable (%) allowance

HEMERGEE EREXER

e MEHE ER&H HLLHI(%) ERBE

L.SNOWTRADINGLIMITED Current payment 26,482,500 13 794,475
L.SNOWTRADINGLIMITED R

Mondelez Shanghai Food Coporate Management Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 15,997,499 8 -

EERmrFEE(LE)ERAR ;

Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 11,586,943 5 37,421
B5|IZE 5 (L8 ARAR RHE

Unicharm Living Products (China) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 8,983,228 4 -
LEEEERR(PE)ERAR R5E

Zhongshan Jiajian Living Products Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 5,772,685 3 90,752
FLEREERRERAR B8

Total fit 68,822,855 33 922,648

31 December 2019

Nature of other

2019%12H31H

Proportion of the
amount to the total
other receivable

Closing balance
of credit loss

Company name receivables Closing balance (%) allowance
o FERmIGEE  GREXER

Bh 21 FEHE EREH #ILL (%) FERBE

Mondelez Shanghai Food Goporate Menagement Co., Ltd. Service fee 11,081,715 6 -

EARMEEER(LE)ARAR RRHE

Beijing Alboxin Cosmetics Trading Company Manufacturer costs 6,933,375 4 -

FREEEAREEERAR BREBA

Henkel (China) Investment Co., Ltd.. Promotional fee 6,068,947 3 34,568

ER(PE)REABRAT 2

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. Receivables of 5,087,250 3 4,224,750
N prepaid rent

FREERRETRERAR ERES

Wrigley Candy (China) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 3,566,394 2 -

S R(PE)ERAR RHE

Total A%t 32,737,681 18 4,259,318
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. Inventories 6 FE
Presentation of Inventories by category FEDHE
2020.12.31
ZBCEET-AZT-H

Carrying amount Impairment  Net book value
Item A REHE BiERE REEE
Merchandise inventory BEA® 1,501,562,774 - 1,501,562,774
Raw material FRATEL 2,376,799 - 2,376,799
Goods in process EER - - -
Low-value consumables EESEM - - -
Total At 1,503,939,573 - 1,503,939,573

2019.12.31
“F-N\E+ZA=1-H

Carrying amount Impairment Net book value
Item EE REHE GEER REEE
Merchandise inventory ERES 1,663,777,817 - 1,663,777,817
Raw material B 10,456,299 - 10,456,299
Goods in process EER 201,280 - 201,280
Low-value consumables EESEM - - -
Total At 1,564,435,396 - 1,564,435,396
The Group is principally engaged in retail and wholesale AEEFZLEERATESTUENR
business of fast moving consumer goods, which are daily HHEM FTEERR  TATERE
necessities. Inventories could be realized faster, and the risk FRE /) - BEZE2020F12HA318 -
of inventory impairment is small. As at 31 December 2020, GFERAERY  ERERBRLERE
the inventory turnover was good, and the management R - Bt - NEEFHFERTFER
believes that there is no sign of impairment. Thus, there was GFEKELERE -
no need for accrual for impairment of the inventory at the
end of the period.
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, no 7 2020F 12 A31H %2019 12 A 31
inventories were pledged or guaranteed. B EARERERNEE
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7.

RISk I ot

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR BRREEERE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
Other current assets 7 HitbRBEE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—E-EHE —E-NF
ltem IH B +=—BA=+—H +=-—A=+—8
Deductible input value-added tax FIIEIET 111,275,389 118,208,231
Prepaid leasing expenses FEHeEH 2,352,891 1,707,767
Prepaid heating expenses FEHEER 3,354,425 4,144,498
Other prepaid expenses (Note) HuabF#E B 949,289 1,722,756
Receivable return cost FEWGRE R AR 11,073,233 10,134,315
Total A&t 129,005,227 135,917,567
Note:  Prepaid cooling fees, property fees, cleaning fees and i AEFBRERIZARENHLE -9

security fees, etc. are the primary expenses of other

prepaid expenses.

Other non-current financial assets

B REE

CRREE -

8 HittERBISRMEE

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —E-NF
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H”
Classified Financial Assets at Fair AR EETTEBHEH
Value Through Profit or Loss SAZHESNEREE 131,508,869 42,272,786
Including: Debt Instrument Hoh  EHITAERE
Investments - -
Equity Instrument EaTAREGE)
Investments (Note) 131,508,869 42,272,786
Subtotal /NEt 131,508,869 42,272,786
Less: Current Portion That Matures &, : —SF R Z|HIEE D
Within One Year - -
Total A&t 131,508,869 42,272,786

Note: Chaopi Trading, the subsidiary of the Company, subscribed for
the enjoyment of Wuliangye No. 1 fund products by monetary
funds RMB11.67 million with a fund share of 11,638,983.05 in
April 2018.

i ARFEZTFRAAEMEER2018F4 A
NEHEBS ARE1167TETREEE

HERIRESER

CBEMESNE

7%11,638,983.0517 °

ERRE
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL A

STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Investment properties

Investment properties under the cost method

31 December 2020

Item HE
I. Original carrying amount - EEERE
1.2020.1.1 1. F9e8
2.Increase in the period 2. RFHINEEE
(1) Revised carrying amount by (1) REEEEEA
the company
(2) Increase in business (2) EAGHEM
combination
3.Decrease in the period . AFRILEH
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BEABTEEE
(2) Transfer to intangible assets (2 BABKEE
4.2020.12.31 4. FREAE
Il. Accumulated depreciation and — CREENRE#E
amortization
1.2020.1.1 1. F9e8
2.Increase in the period 2. REFENNSRE
(1) Accrual or amortization (1) FHRs#sy
(2) Transfer from fixed assets (2) HEEEEEA
(3) Increase in business () ESMHEM
combination
3.Decrease in the period . AFRILEEE
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BARTEE
(2) Transfer to intangible assets (2) BMABFEE
4,2020.12.31 4. FRERER
Ill. Net book value = -REEE
1.Net book value as at 31 December 1. REEE(EE
2020
2.Net book value as at 31 December 2. E¥EREEE
2019

9

- B BBRRERERE)

REMEME

BREFTEEANREMFHE
202012H31H

Buildings
EEBR
EEY

139,248,884

139,248,884

60,029,897
5,257,362
5,257,362

65,287,259

73,961,625

79,218,987

Land use
rights

LA

122,900,708

122,900,708

23,205,496
3,433,202
3,433,202

26,638,698

96,262,010

99,695,212

Total

&t

262,149,592

262,149,592

83,235,393
8,690,564
8,690,564

91,925,957

170,223,635

178,914,199
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties under the cost method (Continued)

31 December 2019

ltem BB
I. Original carrying amount — RERE
1.2019.1.1 1.Fe8
2.Increase in the period 2. ARFIEINEEE
(1) Transferred from the fixed (1) REEEEBEA
assets
(2) Business mergers increased (2) EAGHEM
3.Decrease in the period 3. ARF R BT
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BABREEE
(2) Transferred to the intangible Q) BAEFEE
assets
4.2019.12.31 4. FREATE
Il. Accumulated depreciation and — CRFHITEMRTEE
amortization
1.2019.1.1 1. FYE5E
2.Increase in the period 2. RFIINEFE
(1) Accrual or amortization (1) FHZskEsH
(2) Transferred from the fixed (2 HEFEEHA
assets
(3) Business mergers increased (3) EAOHEM
3.Decrease in the period 3. ARFE RS R
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) EBARETEE
(2) Transferred to the intangible (2 BMABFEE
assets
4.2019.12.31 4. FREREE
Ill. Net book value = REEE
1.Net book value as at 31 December 1. FREEEEE
2019
2.Net book value as at 31 December 2. FYIREEE
2018

RO BEHRIERERE)

9 -

REMREME

BEATBEXHRE M EHE
2019%F12H31H

Buildings
FER
Y

139,248,884

139,248,884

54,770,944
5,258,953
5,258,953

60,029,897

79,218,987

84,477,940

Land use
rights

b R

122,900,708

122,900,708

19,772,294
3,433,202
3,433,202

23,205,496

99,695,212

103,128,414

262,149,692

262,149,692

74,543,238
8,692,155
8,692,155

83,235,393

178,914,199

187,606,354

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, there
was no investment properties that were pledged to secure

certain of the Group’s long-term bank loans.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, all land
use rights in the investment properties of the Group are

medium-term lease.

2020412 A31H 22019412 A31H -
ERAERTRAERERDORE LR

HIEE o

2020412 A31H 2019412 A31H -
RSB A B M EE P O 3 A D
BRHHMEE -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

kN

A

Bt BBRERERE)

10. Fixed assets 10 -BEEEE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —T-NF
ltem 18 H +=ZA=+—H +Z-A=+—H
Fixed assets EEEE 836,936,000 904,648,539
Disposal on fixed assets EEEEEE 17,605,694 17,605,694
Total &5 854,541,694 922,254,233
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) BZEEERBR
31 December 2020 2020%12831H
Electronic
Machinery and  devices and  Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
Item R EEREEN HERE ETRERIM Bl fit
I Original carrying amount - RERE
1, 2020.1.1 1. B8 1,056,215,236 864,850,461 188,986,400 49,633,861  2,159,685,958
2. Increase in the period 2. KEEMNE - 2153433 12,711,344 46950661 38,941,337
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 7,021,495 10,949,515 1,106,281 19,077,291
(2) Transferred from the construction () FRIEEA
in process - 14,512,837 1,761,829 3,589,380 19,864,046
(3) Transferred from the investment () RELRHEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased () BEATHEN - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. TERSD - 31725857 16,802,374 3555925 58,084,156
(1) Disposal or retirement () AERE - 31725857 16802374 3555925 58,084,156
(2) Transferred to the investment [ EAREEFEE
properties
4, 2020.12.31 4, FRBE 1,056,215,236 848,658,936 184,895,370 50,773,597  2,140,543,139
Il. Accumulative depreciation o RithE
1. 2020.1.1 1. FBE 429,862,978 650,493,113 137,786,473 36,894,855  1,255,037,419
2. Increase in the period 2. KEENE 36,438,928  37,764521 16570553 11348411 102,122,413
(1) Accrual (1) RE&HE 36,438,928 37,764,521 16,570,553 11,348,411 102,122,413
(2) Transferred from the investment () RELEHEEA
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased (3) BEAHEM - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 RERVE - 29428800  15830,008 8,202,805 53,552,693
(1) Disposal or Scrap () *ERE - 29,428,890 15,830,908 8,292,895 53,552,693
(2) Transferred to investment () EAREERHE
properties - - - - -
4, 2020.12.31 4 FRHE 466,301,906 658,826,744 138,526,118 39,950,371 1,303,607,139
IIl. Net book value = REEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. EXEEEE
2020 589,913,330 189,830,192 46,369,252 10,823,226 836,936,000
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2. EYIEEEE
2019 626,352,258 214,357,348 51,199,927 12,739,006 904,648,539
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

10 -BEEE#E)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

(1) Details of fixed assets (Continued)

31 December 2019

(1) BEZEBERRE)
201912 A31H

Electronic
Machinery and ~ devicesand  Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
ltem 13H REREEN BEEE ITRRREM Btk GEl
|. Original carrying amount - RARE
1. 2019.1.1 1. ENEBE 1,086,476,737 874,952,818 179,239,587 58,861,271 2,179,520,413
2. Increase in the period 2. RNEENE 10,222,452 20,519,334 24,785,899 10,646,384 66,173,009
(1) Purchase (1) B2 83,652 18,445,066 22,823,967 9,082,055 50,434,740
(2) Transferred from the construction () EBIEEA
in process 10,138,800 2,074,268 1,961,932 1,563,329 15,738,329
(3) Transferred from the investment (3) REURHEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased () tEAHEN - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 TERD 20,483,953 30,621,691 15,039,086 19,862,794 86,007,524
(1) Disposal () ~ERE 20,483,953 30,621,691 15,039,086 19,862,794 86,007,524
(2) Transferred to the investment () BARENRENE
properties - - - - -
4. 2019.12.31 4 ERHE 1,000,215236 864,850,461 188,986,400 49,633,861  2,159,685,958
II. Accumulative depreciation o EitE
1. 2019.1.1 1. EUHE 396,608,629 635,641,492 132,989,809 38,195,240 1,203,395,070
2. Increase in the period 2. NEENE 36860379  41,388677 17,648,763 14811365 109,718,184
(1) Accrual (1) RERHE 35,869,379 41,388,677 17,648,763 14,811,365 109,718,184
(2) Transferred from the investment () REMRHEEA
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased (8) BEAUEN - - - - -
3, Decrease i the perod 3, REFLE 2614930 26507056 12852009 16071750 5807583
(3) Disposal () FERE 2,614,930 26,537,056 12,862,099 16,071,750 58,075,835
(4) Transferred to investment () EAREREDE
properties - - - - -
4, 2019.12.31 4 FRHE 429,862,978 660,493,113 137,786,473 36,894,856 1,255,037,419
Ill. Net book value = REEE
1. Netbook value as at 31 December 1. £XEREEE
2019 626,362,208 214,357,348 51,199,927 12,739,006 904,648,539
2. Nethook value as at 31 December 2. EIEEER
2018 669,808,208 239,311,326 46,249,778 20,696,031 976,125,343

As at 31 December 2020, and 31 December 2020, no

fixed assets were restricted as they were been pledged

to secure certain of the long-term Group’s bank loans.

2020412 4310 2019512 431
B EmAAEEBERITROE
KEE IR X BIR 68 E &
= o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Fixed assets (Continued)

(1)

&)

Details of fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have

not been obtained as at 31 December 2020

[tem ER

Room1-201 Unit 13, Chenxin Garden, Datong ~ ARZZ/EE13-1-201EE

N AU BEREABERE)

10 BEEEEE)
(1) BEEZEREX(E)
R2020%F12 8318 » KL ERE

HENETETEEBR
Reasons for ~ Expected time
not obtaining of obtaining
certificates of certificates of
Net book value title title
RHEEE BAREER
REEE HERA RERE
383,520 In progress 2021
EEHEH

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have

not been obtained as at 31 December 2019:

Item 5H

Room1-201 Unit 13, Chenxin Garden, Datong ~ ARBE7EE13-1-201 B

R2019F12A318 » Kt ZERE
FEMNEBETEER

Reasons for Expected time
not obtaining of obtaining
Net book value  certificates of title  certificates of title

ABEER BithaER

RHE EERRA EER
389,452 In progress 2020
BT

Disposal on fixed assets

(2) BEELEEE

2020.12.31 2019.12.31

—EBECEF —E-NF

ltem 1HH +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—8
Housing warehouse FEEE 17,605,694 17,605,694
Total A&t 17,605,694 17,605,694
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N B BRBRREEERE)

Construction in progress 11 -EEIRE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —E-hF
ltem 1HH +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
Construction in progress EEITRR 138,005,745 141,980,011
Engineer material TIiRYE - _
Total &5 138,005,745 141,980,011
(1) Details of construction in progress (1) EBEIRHHAUT
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
Z3-REToAS-A TRNETCAST-R
Carrying Net book Carying Net book
amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value

ltem ER RAGE HERE RERE | BERE HEEE  BEEE
Shuanggiao Project BETR 50,232,654 - 50,232,654 | 50,232,653 - 50,232,693
Pingfang Project IEIR 43,859,815 - 43,859,815 | 43853852 - 43853852
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project IRREIR 9,617,821 - 0617821 | 9,617,821 - 0617821
Logistics center renovation MRPLEYR 3,276,959 - 3216959 | 6,079,348 - 6079348
System Software Project ZHaMEETR 28,542,459 - 28542450 | 31,857,631 - 31,857,631
Other EIER 2,476,037 - 2,476,037 338,706 - 338,706
Total a3 138,005,745 - 138005745 | 141,980,011 - 141,980,011
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VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

kN

Bt BBRERERE)

7N
STATEMENTS (Continued)
11. Construction in progress (Continued) 11 -EEZIRE)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EEHBEIBBEHAFTEERER
the current period
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205 E
Transferred
to fixed
assets,
intangible
assets or
long-term
Budget Increase in prepaid Other
amount 202011 theperiod  expenses  deduction 2020.12.31
T
E EVE
= ERESS  EH
Item BR%R RE®  -R-B AEEM B8R EHY TA=T-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note1)* ERTEG) 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
Pingfang Project (Note?) TRIRED) 73,695,986 43,853,852 5,963 - - 43,859,815
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project TRRETE 365,047,80  9,617,821 - - - 9,617,821
Logistics center renovation M LEY 10,492,267 6,079,348 3454804 6,257,283 - 3,276,959
System Software Project ZoEpTE 84334553 31857631 6,122,748 9437920 - 28542459
Others AfpRTE 88,607,653 338,706 41,580,608 36,478,222 2,965,114 2,476,038
Total fit 401125781 141,980,011 51,164,273 52173425 2,965,114 138,005,745
Amount injected as a Amount of
proportion of budget ~ Construction progress accumulated  Including: Capitalized  Interest capitalization
Project name amount (%) (%) capitalized interest interest in the period rate for the period (%) Source of funds
B AERS
ERER TRRAMEEELA(%) TREE(M)  AEEA(EHEE BALSE  AEFISEALEY) E4%E
Shuangqiag Project (Note1)* 46,09 46,09 3,000,000 - - Qwn funds and bank loans
SRIRGH) BEESRET—RER
Pingfang Project (Note?2) 59.65 59.55 425,988 - = Own funds end bank loans
FRIE(H) BEESRBT-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 2144 2144 - - - Qwn funds and bank loans
YRRELE BEESREKT—RER
Logistics center renovation 9087 9087 - - = Own funds end bank loans
iR BEESRBT-RER
System Software Project 45,04 45,04 - - - Own funds end bank loans
EEIR BEESRET—RER
Others R R - - = Own funds end bank loans
ApETE BEESREA-HER
Total 3,425,988 -
i
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBERREEERE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
Construction in progress (Continued) 11 -EEIRE)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EEHEIBEEFXFEERER
the current period (Continued) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 2019%F &
Transferred
to fixed
assets,
infangiole
assets or
long-term
Budget Increase in prepaid Other
amount 201911 theperiod  expenses  deduction 2019.12.31
NG
E ElE
) . ENE  ERREA - EnE
liem ER%LR BEE -A-R XN 48R AR ToA=t1-H
Shuangajao Project (Note1)* gEIE (}1) 108,986,036 50,232,653 - - - 50282653
Pingfang Project (Note?) IETE EE) 73,605,986 43,758,178 95,674 - - 43853852
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project TEREIR 3,047,286 9617821 - - 9,617,821
Airport Store-transform BEERY 1361640 1,193,428 108211 1193428 168211 -
Logistcs center transform miRLER 10,789,236 - TAR03 13426% - 6079348
System Software Project ZRBEIR 70,768,790 8688671 23,357,639 188,679 - 31857631
Others AfpERIR 58,453,284 061588 22,002,444 18410096 3,965,230 338,706
Total A 359,064,258 114,152,339 53096011 21,134,898 4133441 141980011
Amount injected as a
proportion of budget ~ Construction progress - Amount of accumulated mmmmwm Interest capitalization
Project name amount ?%] (%) capitalized interest  interest in the eﬁmod rate for the period(%)  Source of funds
CREF|E
ER4E TREAGEEHA) TRERM  EEKLEIAE CEBLAR  AEHBEAREM) E4NE
Shuan%gao PTOJeCt (Notet)* 46.09 46.09 3,000,000 - - Oun funds and bark loans
SRTEGH) BERSRET-REN
Pm fa ﬁPrqec (Note?) 50.54 59.54 425,988 - - Oun funds and bark loans
BEESRET-REN
Pm ar}%Rengeraory Project 2144 2144 - - - Own funds end bank loans
BEESRET-REN
Airpﬁon Store-transform 100.00 100.00 - - - Own funds end bank loans
Ll BEESRET-REN
Lo%s ics center trangform 68.79 £8.79 - - - Own funds end bank loans
RO BEESRET-RER
System Software Project 45.28 45.28 - - - Own funds and bank loans
ZgnIe BEESRET-REN
Others 38.86 38.86 - - - Own funds and bank loans
AfpERIR BEESRET-RER
Total 3,425,988 -
aif

According to the revised budget amount for subsequent

years/periods, the project budget and the proportions

of project investments of the total budget in respective

periods were restated.

ERRE

ZEIE B RER DA E S HRR
BRIRNAESHREMEANESR
MHENIEERERTREEAE

TAERLLS) -

2020 @%ﬁ 259

fEREEERNARA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b el

NAY

A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current period (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

260 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted
of land compensation cost. Due the change in
planning policies on the requisitioned land, the
Company has not obtained the land use right
certificate yet. Pursuant to the Land Requisition
and Compensation Agreement between the
Company and the People’s Government of
Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang District, Beijing
and its supplemental agreement, the amount
prepaid to the latter shall be refunded in full to the
Company in case of any change in policies or any
other situation that may affect land requisition of
the Company. Therefore, the management believes

that there is no risk of impairment for the project.

As at 31 December 2020, the costs of Pingfang
Project mainly consisted of civil engineering. The
Company was in process of obtaining the builder’s
license and predicted to start the project in 2021.
Therefore, the management believes that there is

no risk of impairment for the project.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 - EREEE

12. The right-of-use asset

31 December 2020

Buildings Total
Item BH EEREEY At
I. Original carrying amount - REARE
1. 2020.1.1 1, FY&E 1,312,314,066 1,312,314,066
2. Increase in the period 2. REBMEE 111,279,792 111,279,792
Asset lease BEMA 111,279,792 111,279,792
3. Decrease in the period 3. AERD 82,149,361 82,149,361
Early termination of asset lease BEMRARALLE 67,618,741 67,618,741
Lease change remeasurement HEZESHHE 14,530,620 14,530,620
4. 2020.12.31 4, ERBE 1,341,444,497 1,341,444,497
II. Accumulative depreciation = BiHE
1. 2020.1.1 1. F&% 174,651,779 174,651,779
2. Increase in the period 2. RELINGE 191,380,996 191,380,996
Accrual AEHR 191,380,996 191,380,996
3. Decrease in the period 3. KERDE 32,739,666 32,739,666
Termination of asset lease BEAALL 23,915,463 23,915,463
Lease change remeasurement HEZFEH:HE 8,824,203 8,824,203
4, 2020.12.31 4, FREBHE 333,293,109 333,293,109
I1.Net book value = REEAE
1. Net book value as at 1. FREREE
31 December 2020 1,008,151,388 1,008,151,388
2. Net book value as at 2. EVREEE
31 December 2019 1,137,662,287 1,137,662,287

20205128318
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. The right-of-use asset (Continued) 12 - FEREEEE)

31 December 2019

2019 12HA31H

Buildings Total
ltemn EH FEREEY A%
I. Original carrying amount - FERE
1.2019.1.1 1. Fe8E 1,165,139,003 1,165,139,003
2. Increase in the period 2. REHNNE 167,765,301 167,765,301
Asset lease BEBA 167,765,301 167,765,301
3. Decrease in the period 3. KERD 20,590,238 20,590,238
Early termination of asset lease BEBARARL 20,590,238 20,590,238
4. 2019.12.31 4. FREE 1,312,314,066 1,312,314,066
Il. Accumulative depreciation - EiHE
1.2019.1.1 1. 588 - -
2. Increase in the period 2. REEME 178,063,257 178,063,257
Accrual KEER 178,063,257 178,063,257
3. Decrease in the period 3. KEFDE 3,411,478 3,411,478
Termination of asset lease EEBALLE 3,411,478 3,411,478
4. 2019.12.31 4, ERBE 174,651,779 174,651,779
IIl.Net book value = [REEE
1. Net book value as at 1. FREEERE
31 December 2019 1,137,662,287 1,137,662,287
2. Net book value as at 2. FYREER

31 December 2018

1,165,139,003

1,165,139,003
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

13.

Intangible assets

31 December 2020

RISk I ot

AN

1y
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N B BRBRREEERE)

13

CEEEE

20205128318

Operation rights
of distribution
Land use rights Software network Total
Item HA THhfERE B SHRRCHE &t
. Original carrying amount - RHERE
1, 2020.1.1 1. ENBE 322,868,516 55,318,468 34,254,633 412,441,617
2. Increase in the period 2 AERNEE - 7,249,818 - 7,249,818
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 1,709,875 - 1,709,875
(2) Transferred from the construction in (Q ERIEEA
process - 5,539,943 - 5,539,943
(3) Transferred from the investment (3 REUEHEEA
properties - - - -
(4) Business mergers increase (4) DEAGHLN - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. REFILE - 2,041,726 - 2,041,726
4, 2020.12.31 4, ERHE 322,868,516 60,526,560 34,254,633 417,649,709
Il. Accumulated amortization — BiEH
1, 2020.1.1 1. ERE 67,818,579 28,552,452 26,322,484 122,693,515
2. Increase in the period 2. AEENEE 9,045,170 5,187,714 2,548,814 16,781,698
(1) Accrual (1) iR 9,045,170 5,187,714 2,548,814 16,781,698
(2) Transferred from the investment Q) REREHEEN
properties - - - -
(3) Business mergers increase (3) DEAGHEN - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 KERLEE - 2,041,726 - 2,041,726
4, 2020.12.31 4, FRHE 76,863,749 31,698,440 28,871,298 137,433,487
IIl. Net book value = REEE
1. Net book value as at 1. FXEAEEE
31 December 2020 246,004,767 28,828,120 5,383,335 280,216,222
2. Net book value as at 2. FYERER
31 December 2019 255,049,937 26,766,016 7,932,149 289,748,102
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Intangible assets (Continued)

31 December 2019

ltem

I Original carrying amount

1.
2.

3.
4.

2019.1.1

Increase in the period

(1) Purchase

(2) Transferred from the construction in
process

(3) Transferred from the investment
properties

(4) Business mergers increase

Decrease in the period

2019.12.31

II. Accumulated amortization

1.
2.

3.
4.

2019.1.1

Increase in the period

(1) Accrual

(2) Transferred from the investment
properties

(3) Business mergers increase

Decrease in the period

2019.12.31

IIl. Net book value

1. Net book value as at 31 December 2019
2. Net book value as at 31 December 2018

BH

-_—

RERE

1. E415%

2 REENMER
(1) BE
@ ERIEREA

(3) REMEHEEA

(4) BEAHED
3 KERVEE
4, ERHBE
g
1. EBE
2. KEEMEE
(1) i€
() REEEHEEA

(3) REAGHEM
3 KERHI 2R
4, FREAHE
REEE
1. FREEEE
2. FOKEER

N AU BEREABERE)

13 -BREE(E)
2019412 31H

Land use
rights
THERE

322,868,516

322,868,516

58,773,407
9,045,172
9,045,172

67,818,579

255,049,937
264,095,109

Software

ENG

54,436,463
882,005
693,326

188,679

55,318,468

23,825,078
4,727,374
4,727,374

28,552,452

26,766,016
30,611,385

Operation
rights of
distribution
network

DHBREHE

34,254,633

34,254,633

23,324,300
2,998,184
2,998,184

26,322,484

7,932,149
10,930,333

Total
&3

411,559,612
882,006
693,326

188,679

412,441,617

105,922,785
16,770,730
16,770,730

122,693,515

289,748,102
305,636,827

264 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

RO BEHRIERERE)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AN

STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Goodwill 14

Original carrying amount of goodwill

g

BERARE

Increase in the period Decrease in the period
AEEmM TERD
Business
2020.1.1  combination Others Disposal Others  2020.12.31
Name of the investee or item  HREBMLBALRBELN PEAH
resulting in goodwill Ebi ENHE it Hit RE it ERBE
Acquisition of Shouchao Group W EHEE 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788
Total At 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788

On 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the balance
was the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shoulian
Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shouchao Group”) as well
as Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited (Hereinafter

referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 11% (2019: 11%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2019: 3%).

720204 12 431 H % 20194 12 A 31
B ZBpEsKRBERET LA TR
(ATHEHEAIERBEE]) KL R R EH
REMRAR(ANERA RBEEN

HE -

AEBREEBEE R NBREHNEHE
et RBRNEBRETETEXRH
HENEEFR—AEEAAETRE
A ZEEABNTEDE -

%A AR A AT U S 6 RE AR R ELTE R R 2R
RemneEMRERE  REEHEENR
ERSF R BHEERE FOHRSR
EBRBIRETE - stEFEARRR SN
EREMAMNITIRER11% (20194 :
11%) ' 5FUAEMNR S MEMNLRER
3%(2019%F : 3%) °
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Goodwill (Continued) 14 -BEEB(E)

As at 31 December 2020, and 31 December 2019,
certain key assumptions are taken into consideration of
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of
Shouchao Group. Below are the key assumptions made
by the management in forecasting the present value of a
future stream of cash flows to conduct impairment tests of

goodwill:

Expected gross profit- The estimation of gross profit is
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year,
and then appropriately increased according to the increase

of expected efficiency and market expansion

Discount rate- Using the discount rate before tax which

reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks
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VL.

31 December 2020

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Long-term prepaid expenses

N

/\

RS el bE

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

RO BEHRIERERE)

15 - REIFHBER

20205128318

Other
Increase in - Amortization Other reduces
2020.1.1  the period in the period  deduction 2020.12.31 reasons
St 22 g 22
Item EH -fA-H REEN  FEEHEH HttHY +=A=1+-0 HtHIRE
Transferred from construction ~ E&BRABFEEHR I
in progress to leasehold
improvements 331,353,470 34,557,046 67,360,065 - 298,550,451 -
Total At 331,353,470 34,557,046 67,360,065 - 298,550,451
31 December 2019 2019% 12 A31H
Reason
Increase in - Amortization Other for other
2019.1.1 the period  in the period deduction 2019.12.31 deduction
“ENE / “E-nE
Item R -A-R RERN  AFREY figd TZR=T-8 E#ESREA
Transferred from construction ~ FEHMABTFEERRXE 381346700 26,508,017 76,004,182 497,065 331,353,470 =
in progress to leasehold
improvements
Total Bt 381,346,700 26,508,017 76,004,182 497,005 331,353,470
2020 @%&
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

(1) Deferred tax assets without offset

&)

N AU BEREABERE)

16~ ELEFEHEE BEMESHAR

(1) RABIE 35 89T FT 15 B B A

2020.12.31 2019.12.31

ZE-EE4ZR=+-8 | ZE-NFTZA=1-H

Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred tax temporary  Deferred tax
differences assets differences asset
TENEGRYE BERSH |THENEEE  EEAGH
ltem JEH 2 BE 2 BE
Deductible losses A MEE - - | 17,342,770 4,335,692
Taxable government grants [ERHBTRE 33,989,487 8,497,372 | 35683351 8,920,838
Unrealized profits from internal transactions &% F AR E I A 4,324,769 1,081,192 2,468,310 617,078
Implementation of the new lease standard ~ #11T7#178 & %8 55,988,494 13,997,123 - -
Total At 94,302,750 23,575,687 | 55,494,431 13,873,608

Deferred tax liabilities without offset (2) FACHERIELFEF B EHH
202012 31 2019.12.31
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred tax temporary  Deferred tax
differences liabilities | differences liabilities
TENEGEYE BERSH |THNEEE  ETAEH
Item HE ER B £R BE
Fair value adjustment of assets arising from ~ JFEEHEETHRBANEERR
non-monetary asset exchange BERE 10,406,513 2,601,628 | 11,472,952 2,868,238
Changes in the fair value of financial assets ’“ﬂ“ HHEEEEMAANE
that are measured at fair value and whose ~ HiEHHEREEN AL EBE
changes are included in the current profit 25
and loss 119,838,870 29,959,717 | 30,602,786 7,650,697
Capitalized interest adjustment of borrowing  EHEEF| 8 &0 A%
costs 375,739 93,935 1,925,761 481,440
Difference between the fair value and the B FARIEEEENLA EE
carrying amount of subsidiary merger and ~~ EZ&
acquisition 1,870,215 467,554 1,968,280 492,070
Total A3t 132,491,337 33,122,834 | 45,969,779 11,492,445
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR REETFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

16 EEFBHEE BEFMBHEME
(%&)

16. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(3) Net deferred tax assets or liabilities with offset
(3) KB EFERI T HEL T Z &
EXAE

Offset Amount

Offset Amount after ~ amount of  after offset
amount of offset of deferred tax  of deferred
deferred tax deferred tax ~ assets and ~ tax assets
assets and  assets and deferred tax and deferred

deferred tax  deferred tax liabilities tax liabilities
liabilities at liabilities at at the at the
the end of  the end of beginning of beginning of
year year year year

BREFAEHE HEREER BLEREHE HBRELH
ENEEFR SHEERE ENAEEFY SHEEIS

ltem HH EREE EERBE EREE EFEIHE
Deferred tax assets ‘LUJ’TH%,‘%EF 2,695,563 20,880,124 3,349,678 10,523,930
Deferred tax liabilities EXFAENER 2,695,563  30,427.271 3,349,678 8,142,767
(4) Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets (4) FEREEFSHEEHH

2020 12 31 2019.12.31

—EEHF —E-hEF
ltem 1B H +=HA=+-—8H +=—A=+—8H
Deductible temporary differences FIIEINERFIEZ R 43,289,841 25,537,612
Deductible losses GIE: %) opi=] 464,509,119 369,452,236
Total &5t 507,798,960 394,989,848

SEERBERRARNZRATEE

A AREN Eat eI A A AR
MERMEZENEMNTIEE
F bt R R LA B8 B BV IRIEFT1S AT
can be utilized. BE °

In the view of the management of the Group, deferred
tax assets are not recognized since it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences or deductible losses

2020@&
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

N AU BEREABERE)

16. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

16~ ELEFEHEE BEMESHAR

(#%&)
(5) Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred tax (5) RIERELFTEHEEN B AE
assets will expire in the following years BERUT EEZH
202012 31 2019.12.31
—EIERF —E-NEF
Year F1p +=B=+—8” +=-—A=+—8
2020.12.31 2020.12.31 - 39,299,786
2021.12.31 2021.12.31 70,528,769 70,528,769
2022.12.31 2022.12.31 69,530,694 69,530,693
2023.12.31 2023.12.31 80,759,119 80,759,119
2024.12.31 2024.12.31 109,333,868 109,333,869
2025.12.31 2025.12.31 134,356,669 -
Total &t 464,509,119 369,452,236
17. Provision for asset impairment 17 - BEREEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20206
Decrease in the year
rEHD
Increase in
2020 1.1 the year Reversal ~ Written-off 2020 12 31
- ? - 7 i - ? - ? E
Item R -F-H REL BE B T-B=t-H
Credit loss allowance ERBRER 25,537,612 17,039,764 113,783 54,045 42,409,548
Measured at fair value and its changes are LA % BB EREEHHAEHE
included in the current profit and loss BEBAENARRE
financial asset impairment provision - - - - -
Total A 25,537,612 17,039,764 113,783 54,045 42,409,548
For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &
Decrease in the year
$EM/
Increase in
2019.1.1 the year Reversal Written-off 2019.12.31
“E-h “ENE
Item 1R —A-H RELI £ BH T-A=T-A
Credit loss allowance EREXER 17,394,789 13,505,044 5,262,465 99,756 25,537,612
Measured at fair value and its changes are WA % BB EREEHHAEHE
included in the current profit and loss BEBAENAERRE
financial asset impairment provision 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 -
Total A 18,582,789 13,505,044 5,262,465 1,287,756 25,537,612
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AUN
STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Other non-current assets

18 ~ HMERBEE

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—E-EF —E-NEF
ltem pEl= +=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—8
Long-term receivables due from HEBEENRBARYIK
Shoulian Group (Note 1) (7E1) 135,600,000 135,600,000
Security deposit HEeRES 48,037,310 60,771,486
Prepaid construction fees FER TR 261,784 423,404
Total A&t 183,899,094 196,794,890
Note 1: As at 31 December 2020, such long-term receivables 11 R2020F12A31H « ZEREIEIGK

consist of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to

Shoulian Group due on 31 December 2022 as agreed

upon. The long-term receivables bear interest at 4.35% per

annum. Meanwhile certain buildings and land use rights

of Shoulian Group with a total fair value not less than the

balance of the long-term receivables have been pledged

for these long-term receivables in favor of Shoulian

Supermarket.

REBBTREBREBRENE SR
f& %Eﬁ’ﬂi%%’m%mzimﬂm

R HA PR R IR A R 22 4.35% 5t
B oo @H% CREREWFUAARBER
ERZERETHENEHERRER
T AR IRER -

19. Short-term borrowings 19 ~ BHIME R
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—B-EF —ZE-NEF
ltem pEl= +=ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—8
Accounts receivable secured loan FEU AR R IBE R (RET)

(Note 1) 13,392,510 48,566,497
Guaranteed loan (Note 2) REME K (GE2) 1,731,663,061 1,833,436,999
Unsecured loan (Note 3) ERER(E3) 579,062,520 350,000,000
Pledged Loan (Note 4) BIRER(5E4) 6,524,900 -
Undue interest payable REERFE A B 3,594,890 -
Total At 2,334,237,881 2,232,003,496

%2020 12 431 A 20194 12 A 31
A LB ERNFNEDRA
2.50%%E4.75% [ 3.90% %5.39% * B
B\ AFHED R HE R EENER -

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
short-term borrowings above bore annual interest rates
ranging from 2.50% to 4.75% and 3.90% to 5.39%

respectively without any due but unsettled ones.

2020@&
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VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

As at 31 December 2020, such short-term loan was
obtained by several accounts receivable factoring of the
Company totaling to RMB183,096,337 (31 December
2019: RMB280,963,340), and details were referred to Note
(V)3

As at 31 December 2020, such short-term loans include
RMB260,000,000, which was borrowed by Chaopi Trading,
a subsidiary of the Company, with a surety provided by
the Company; RMB41,889,858, which was borrowed a
subsidiary of the Chaopi, Trading with a surety provided
by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading; RMB29,000,000,
which was borrowed by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading
with a surety offered by the Company; RMB910,989,655
which was borrowed by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading
with a surety offered by Chaopi Trading, and another
RMB489,783,548 was borrowed by the Company with the
surety provided by Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2019, among such short-term bank
loans, RMB626,952,296 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; RMB50,000,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading; RMB40,900,000, which was borrowed
by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading with a surety offered by
the Company; and RMB815,584,703 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading; RMB300,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading.
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N AU BEREABERE)

B (4E)

202012 A31H + ZFEBER
RUAREE A T AR 183,096,337
(2019 £ 12 A31 H: AR
280,963,3407T ) & T JE W BR 50 1B
REZHES - BRI 3o

2020512 A318 « ZERBAERP
B AR #260,000,00070 BARA A ZF
RAAIREEOER - AARATHRER
FER - ARB41,889,858 T AFALE

B2 FREIMMEHR  AitEmEz A
AIRMRFBER - AR%29,000,0007T

ABHEE 2 TARMMBR - AARAR
REREFER - AR910,989,6557T
RBREE 2 FRRIMNMER - BEHE
BREREBER - AKK489,783,548
TURARAIMMGER - BB RER
FRER -

M2019F12A31 8 » ZERHERH
B ARM626,952,206 T AR QA Z T
RAAPEENER - ARDARE
REPER  ARH50,000,0007T /52
RAIZFARIBAMEENER - AH
HEE 2 FRARAREREER AR
40,900,0007T 5L B 2 F AR E
Ko AAREREBERBFER: ARK
815,584,703 T RFAMEE 2 F R A
B3 RPEEBRMRELER AR
#300,000,0007C &R A A HIER - B
BB IRMRBIER o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR REETFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued) 19 ~ EHIER(E)

Note 3: As at 31 December 2020, the credit loans included

RMB50,000,000, RMB200,000,000 and RMB100,000,000
respectively granted by China Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Sub-branch and China
Construction Bank Co., Ltd. Hujialou Sub-branch and
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd. Beijing
Air China Tower Sub-branch on an unsecured basis. The
credit loans included RMB50,000,000, RMB32,150,000,
RMB56,400,000 and RMB45,410,000 borrowed by the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted by
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. Beijing East Chang’an
Avenue Sub-branch, China Construction Bank Co., Ltd.
Beijing Hujialou Sub-branch, China CITIC Bank Beijing
Xidan Sub-branch, and Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Beijing
Chaowai Sub-branch on an unsecured basis. The
credit loans included RMB15,000,000, RMB8,000,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB12,102,520 borrowed by the
subsisiary of Chaopi that granted by HSBC Bank (China)
Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch, Bank of Beijing Jiulongshan
Sub-branch, Beijing Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Nanmofang Sub-branch, and HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch on an unsecured basis.

As at 31 December 2019, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000, RMB150,000,000 and RMB150,000,000
respectively granted by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd.
Beijing Branch and Industrial, Commercial Bank of China
Co., Ltd Beijing Chaoyang Sub-branch and Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Sub-branch on

an unsecured basis.

FF3: R2020F 128318 - EREZR+TAE

FRERBRITRHARAT=ZTHX
17 PEERBFITRHARRFTR
BT ETERITRD AR AR
REMAELZTRAARAR DRI KA R
S XA R #50,000,0007T © AR
200,000,000 7t & A B # 100,000,000
T BABZ S ER AR EEZ IR
BR APEBDERRITRHOBR AL
RERLTHIIT - PEERRITROAE
AR FRFRIEZIT - PERITE
RIS TAEERITRO AR AR
REHINITARAR Z FRAIAIEE
5 Bl B PR R2 BB KA R #550,000,000
7T AR #32,150,0000 © AR #
56,400,000 7t & A K # 45,410,000
T BRBEFERAARERERKIE
HER: AELYRIT(RE)ARAF
EFEHT - b RBITNELZT - b
REERITRMDARA R EERE LT
ELRIT(RE)ERRA LFDITA
BHEE Y FARBEMMESERA
R #15,000,0007T * A FR#8,000,000
gL+ AR # 10,000,000 7T B A R #
12,102,5207C + B AR % F &R AA
B ERITHIER

MR20195F 12 A31H « ERERFTEMH
BRIT(PE)ARAFIERHIT
B TERITRM AR AT RAG 1T
RABRZBIEITROER DA =TEX
TTRARRA RS BIEME R BAERARE
50,000,0007C + A K #150,000,0007C
K AR #150,000,0007T @ B ARFZSE
fER A AR EERIRHER -
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Short-term borrowings (Continued) 19 ~ EHIERR(E)
Note 4: As 31 December 2020, pledged loan is that Beijing Chaopi T4 1 202012 A31 8 « EiffE AL
Maolisheng Trading Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Chaopi BBz FARLRBAMKAAEERR
Trading, provided a pledge guarantee to Bank of Beijing RNEIAEEZ T2 5 A ARS,000,000
Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch with a time deposit certificate TCHE BT E AL RIRITIRD AR AR
of RMB8,000,000 under its name, and the loan amount EESTERERER SERSE
obtained was USD1,000,000, which was converted into 1,000,0003 7T * #2020 12 A31H
RMB6,524,900 at the exchange rate of USD to RMB6.5249 ENHARKEIERB.5249  FTAKA
on 31 December 2020. R 56,524,9007C °
20. Notes payable 20 ~ EIEE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—B-EF —ZE-NF
Category gEd +t=RA=+—H t-HA=+—H
Bank acceptances IRITRGESR 449,442,574 438,117,591
Total A&t 449,442,574 433,117,591
As at 31 December 2020, security deposit for the issuance R2020F12A831H » AMA LR
of bank acceptances above amounted to RMB116,101,904 TEHIEZNRESEFRAARE
(31 December 2019: RMB84,571,190). 116,101,9047T (201912 A318 : A

R#84,571,1907T) °

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within AREEMRTEHEZENEMEZR

one year. BHY o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR REETFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

II/

21. Accounts payable 21 -~ ERER

(1) Accounts payable are listed below according to the (1) ETERHENEMEES RO

nature of the amount

2020 12 31 2019.12.31
_ 7 —= ﬂE :%—j—bfﬁ
ltem EH +=ZRA=+—8H +ZA=+—H
Purchase BEE 720,957,209 907,047,722
Total A&t 720,957,209 907,047,722
(2) The aging of accounts payable is as follows (2) FEERFERREUT
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —E-NEF
ltem pEl= +=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
Within 1 year 1F LA 682,836,542 877,018,680
1to 2 years 1224 23,355,999 19,551,627
2 to 3 years 25 3F 6,533,160 2,339,944
Over 3 years 3FLAE 8,231,508 8,137,471
Total A5 720,957,209 907,047,722
Accounts payable with an age of more than 1 year are BRI EB1IENENERTIEAE
mainly the final payment due to suppliers. HEEENERER °
22. Payments received in advance 22 ~ EWFh1E
Details of Payments received in advance FAWEHIE R
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—g-2fF —E-NE
ltem pEl= +=A=+—H +-A=+—H
Rent received in advance U & 7,094,294 8,710,509
Total A& 7,094,294 8,710,509
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. Contract Liability 23 -AEAE
Details of Contract liability BEAEERL
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —E-NEF
ltem =R +=ZA=+—H +Z-A=+—H
Procurements received in advance TR ER 462,447,201 428,557,184
Total A&t 462,447,201 428,557,184
24. Payroll payable 24 ~ FE{TER T 57 M
(1) Details of payroll payable (1) FETBIHEM T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205 E
Increase in Decrease in
2020 1.1 the period the period 2020 12.31
- 7 —% $ - ? —= E
ltem EH -B—-H REE XEHS T=A=t-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 EEEMW 1,735,030 667,947,602 668,061,417 1,621,215
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 ~ BB 1A H- R TR 17412
contribution plans (Note 1) (1) - 41,612,644 41,612,644 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHRER - 965,345 965,345 -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 + —£E R Z|Ei&) E A2 - - - -
Total a3t 1,735,030 710,525,591 710,639,406 1,621,215
For the year ended 31 December 2019 2019%F €

Increase in Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31
“E-NF —EB-NE

Item BEE —A—H AR FERY tZA=1-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 HEM 1,741,169 677,515,884 677,522,023 1,735,030
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 - BB /2 18 7- e 2725

contribution plans (Note 1) - 69,710,878 69,710,878 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BREF - 3,330,574 3,330,574 -

4. Other welfare due within one year 4 ~ —ERE|EBEE B - - - -

Total CH 1,741,169 750,557,336 750,563,475 1,735,030
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR REETFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Payroll payable (Continued) 24 - BB IHM(E)
(2) Short-term remuneration (2) ERIF NS
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205 E
Increase in Decrease in
20201 A the period the period 2020 12 31
—_ 7 —-% $ — 7 —% i
ltem EH —-R—H KEEM XERHY T=A=t+-H
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, — 1% %% EEAEY
allowance, subsidies - 556,018,255 556,018,255 -
2) Staff welfare - BIGNE - 24,096,789 24,096,789 -
3) Social security = ieRkE - 38,735,829 38,735,829 -
Including: Medical insurance He: BERRE - 37,068,631 37,068,631 -
Work injury insurance TERKE - 814,437 814,437 -
Maternity insurance LYERKBE - 852,761 852,761 -
4) Housing funds LIRNE /N - 37,030,014 37,030,014 -
5) Labor union expenses and I TeRBRBIHERE
employees’ education expenses 1,735,030 12,066,715 12,180,530 1,621,215
Tota At 1735030 667,047,602 668,061,417 1,621,215
For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &
Increase in Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31
—ENE ‘ “E2NE
ltemn BH —R—H REREM KERS +ZA=1+—AR
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, —I& %% ZHAET
allowance, subsidies - 558,492,391 558,492,391 -
2) Staff welfare — BIENE - 21,340,618 21,340,618 -
3) Social security = ieRkE - 49,074,508 49,074,508 -
Including: Medical insurance Heh: BERRE - 43,903,963 43,903,963 -
Work injury insurance IBRRE - 1,662,634 1,662,634 -
Maternity insurance EERKRE - 3,507,911 3,507,911 -
4) Housing funds =N - 35,568,999 35,568,999 -
5) Labor union expenses and I ISEBNBINELE
employees’ education expenses 1,741,169 13,039,368 13,045,507 1,735,030
Tota At 1741160 677,515,884 677522023 1,735,030
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details of defined contribution plan

A

X ApB S HRRER R )

24 - BB IHM(E)

(3) REEFEIIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205 E
Increase in Decrease in
2020.1.1 the period the period 2020.12.31
= i i
Item EH -A-H AEIRM xERY t=A=1+-8
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 BREZRE - 39,766,572 39,766,572 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2. KERRE - 1,846,072 1,846,072 -
3) Annuity 3 REFRHE - - - -
Total At - 41,612,644 41,612,644 -
For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &
Increase in Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31
ZE-NF —T-nE
ltem J5H —A—8 REE AERY +TZA=+-H
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 BEREZRR - 66,757,466 66,757,466 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2 RERBE - 2,953,412 2,953,412 -
3) Annuity 3 REFEHE - - - -
Total At - 69,710,878 69,710,878 -
Note 1: The Group participated in social security contributions 1 NEEIRRTE 2 INB BT ER

and the unemployment insurance plan established
by government institutions as required. According to
such plan, the Group contributes 16%, 0.8% monthly
to such plans based on the employee’s basic salary
each month. Besides above monthly contributions, the
Group will not take responsibility for further liabilities.
Corresponding payment occurred shall be accrued in
current period profit or loss or related assets cost.

In the current year, the Group should contribute
RMB39,766,572 and RMB1,846,072 (2019:
RMB66,757,466 and RMB2,953,412) to social security
contributions and the unemployment insurance plan
accordingly. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there is no unsettled retirement insurance and the
unemployment insurance in the accounting period.
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR REETFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Taxes payable 25 - EXHE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—ECEF —E-NF
ltem HH +=RA=+—H +t=ZA=+—H
Value-added tax ER 26,751,143 79,927,439
Corporate income tax DEMRER 15,776,517 18,855,005
Personal income tax RAFTSH 1,063,588 915,904
City construction and maintenance tax 3 4 €2 & 5 1,005,167 1,060,573
Education surcharge HE BN 434,578 457,032
Stamp duty ENGER: 1,394,702 289,839
Local education surcharge 52 E B N 273,563 305,643
Other Hith 100,689 109,497
Total &5 46,799,947 101,920,932
26. Other payables 26 ~ HAhFERF R
(1) Presentation of other payables by the nature of (1) EHEMEI T
accounts
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—E-EE —ZE-NF
ltem 1HH +=—A=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Other payables H b RT3k 258,235,875 247,353,391
Interest payables JERTFE - 2,859,433
Dividend payables FE SR F) 6,389,222 5,251,507
Total &5 264,625,097 255,464,331

(2) EftEMFKER
AR E IR E AR R 5K

(2) Details of other payables

Presentation of other payables by nature of accounts

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
BB —E-NF
ltem 1HH +=—A=+—H +=—A=+—8
Construction fees payable FE TAZRK 62,781,161 45,296,344
Deposit e 94,912,141 64,445,135
Others Hith 100,542,573 137,611,912
Total &5 258,235,875 247,353,391
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Other payables (Continued) 26 ~ HttEER R ()

(3) Details of interest payables (3) FERFIEREL
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —E-NEF
ltem =R +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—8

Short-term debts interest EHEAE BT B

payables - 2,859,433
Total A&t - 2,859,433

(4) Details of dividend payables (4) FEMRAELR
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EBCEF —E-NF
ltem 1ER +ZRA=+—8H +=ZA=+—8

Other minority shareholders’ E b D ERT A F
dividend 6,389,222 5,251,507
Total A5t 6,389,222 5,251,507
27. Non-current liabilities due within one year 27 - —FREIBHERB AR

202012 31 2019.12.31
—ECEF —E-NF
ltem THH +=BR=+—H +—-A=+—H
Leases liability due within one year 1FANEBNEERE 158,537,320 196,274,668
Total &5t 158,537,320 196,274,668
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. Other current liabilities

28 - HfttRBEE

2020.12.31 2019.12.31

—ECEF —E-NF
ltem 1HE +=ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
Short- term financing bond (Note) EHEARNE 5 (5E) - 300,000,000
Refund payable R ER 12,283,410 11,654,063
Accrued expenses TEIRE A 9,145,519 16,866,558
Deferred income due within one year £ $4 TR 58 44,448,354 -
Total &t 65,877,283 328,520,621
Accrued expenses FIEEH

2020.12.31 2019.12.31

—ECEF —E-NF
ltem 1HE +=ZHA=+—H +=—A=+—H
Accrued interest expenses TERMEER - 9,165,000
Accrued rent expenses JEiRREE 163,331 34,268
Accrued audit expenses TEIRERTE 37,736 1,341,455
Others Hih 8,944,452 6,325,835
Total &5t 9,145,519 16,866,558

Note: On 21 March 2019, the Group completed the

issuance of corporate bonds with a value of

RMB300 million and a term of one year in China,

which approved by the China Association of Banking
Market Dealers (CPI No. [2018] CP153). The

issuance rate of the corporate bonds was3.90% and

the lead underwriter was Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd, on

24 March 2020, the short-term financing bonds have

been paid off.

3 EPRERTETSRIERE (PR
JE[2018]CP15635% ) #L /& + 7201943
A218  AEERKEFERENDH
BT AREIIET - IR A1FHEEH
MEH - BITHKR300% @ TEBEHE
RIAIERBITRGBER AT+ 202043

H248

JEm

F ZEHRESFDIAETE o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL A

STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Bonds payable

20 - EfES

- B BBRRERERE)

(1) Bonds payable (1) FEFESF
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—B-EF —E-NEF
ltem =R +=ZA=+—H +Z-A=+—H
Corporate bonds A AfEF(2019.8.26-
(2019.8.26-2024.8.25) 2024.8.25) 402,932,044 402,326,607
Total &5 402,932,044 402,326,607
(2) Changes in the bonds payable (2) FE(TEFAIZREE
Term of Issue in the
Bonds Par value Issue date  the bond Issue amount 2019.12.31 period
ZENE
ExFEE HfE IR BRER #78% T-A=T-H KHBT
Corporate bonds 400,000,000 2019.8.23 5 years 400,000,000 402,326,607 -
REE 5%
Total 400,000,000 400,000,000 402,326,607 -
At
Bond discount/
Accrued interest premium  Paid during the
for the period amortization period 2020.12.31
) HEEHE ‘ -g-%%
Bonds EHETE ME aiTEE KHEEE | t=B=t-H
Corporate bonds NG 5,288,329 2,356,285 - 402,932,044
Total At 5,288,329 2,356,285 - 402,932,044

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate

RPBEEES(ARN AL RRE

Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited” (Zheng
Jian Xu Ke [2019] No. 303) issued by the CSRC, on
26 August 2019, the Company issued the corporate
bonds aggregated to RMB400,000,000 with a term
of maturity of 5 years. The corporate bonds were
jointly secured by Beijing Chaoyang District National
Capital Operating Management Center, a state-owned
enterprise, bearing coupon rate at 3.77% per annum.
The issuance expenses of RMB3,150,943 had been

included in bonds payable.
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VI.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Lease liability

31.

(Unless otherwise specified,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

%3z M E

SR E Tl N
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z

the currency is RMB) (BR15 51 E8FS » £BEE NV BARKET)

N B BRBRREEERE)

1y

30 - HEEE

Increase in the period
REZM
Interest in Decrease in
2020.1.1  New lease this year Other  the period 2020.12.31
Item o EYHE  HEEE  AFRE 2 AEHS ERHE
Assets leased EERA 1,173,703,425 115,200,203 53,725,298 - 272,959,782 1,069,669,144
Less: Lease liabilities dus i : —FREIEMAEERE
within one year 196,274,668 43,148,939 1,976,863 121,420,996 204,284,146 158,537,320
Total At 977,428,757 72,051,264 51,748,435 (121,420,996) 68,675,636 911,131,824
Note:  For details of the changes to the implementation of the O BTHEEREAEHHAN RN
new lease criteria, see Note VI. 12 The right-of-use assets. N1 REEE
Government grants 31 ~ BUN#Bh
Details of government grants BT BB G R
Amount
included in
current profit
Classification Amount Presentation project and loss
FFAEHEEN
BEH €% JIFRER X
Government grants related to assets are 9,260,025 Other income 9,260,025
amortized this year
£ A FH ) BURT 468 B AN SR 85 E b as
Safe production environment upgrade 6,000,000  Non-operating income 6,000,000
LR EEIRE AR EEINIA
Ease the employment pressure 5,655,298 Other income 5,655,298
PRFR SRR 17 RL Hbas
Government reserve expense 3,342,022  Other income 3,342,022
BT B E B HAb e
Other 6,348,930 Other income 6,348,930
H 45 Rh HAb e
Total 30,506,275 30,506,275
Ait
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income 32 ~ EEW R
Increase in Decrease in
Item 2020 11 the period the period 2020 12 31 Reasons
—_ 7 —_ qi —_ 7 —_ E
HE —A—H AF BN rERFLS +t=ZA=+—HB FHEE
Government grants 35,950,018 7,349,494 9,260,025 34,039,487 -
IR T 4 B
Total 35,950,018 7,349,494 9,260,025 34,039,487
At

Including, the project related to Government grants:

Hep - S REBRTRBAIER

Included
non- Included
Increase in operating other Other Related to assets/
ltem 2019.12.31  the period income income change  2020.12.31  income
REFBHEY AFFAEE REGFARM
&EEA ENRE &8 MAEE Ki#e® it 8 EXABE HEE/WERAE
Agricultural Super Matchmaking Pilot 3,581,633 - - 1,050,066 - 2531567  Related to assets
Project
IRTEBEES I RTHBRER RS HEERD
HEBAHS
Chaoyang District Finance Bureau life 3,158,865 - - 421,182 - 2,737,683  Related to assets
service industry development guidance
funds
HERNBRLEL RN SR RIISES BEERD
Central Finance promotes the development 3,054,499 - - 840,706 - 2,213,793  Related to assets
of special funds for the service industry
(2015.01-2023.12)
hRGHEEREEEREEES HEERD
(2015.01-2023.12)
Logistics standardization pilot project in 2,807,364 - - 398,797 - 2408567 Related to assets
2017
017 F BB RERIRE BEERE
Logistics standardization pilot project in 2,667,871 - - 732,599 - 1,935272  Related to assets
2015
015FYEIBATR BN E (L HEERE
Other 20,679,786 7,349,494 - 5816675 - 22,212,605  Related to assets
E M BTHE BEERD
Total 35,950,018 7,349,494 - 9,260,025 - 34,039,487
At
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

Government grants include:

1)

Deferred income was the government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (15 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (11 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

N AU BEHRERERE)

32 ~ EFEWES ()
BT B R4E -

(1

R R 2005 4F [Z Uy B 4k R g
BB EZEGRIERTHEGRER
B BB R R AT A R 54,000,000
TR IS R A SR X
D EBEEBR O REEFR DL
MRERAERSHEENFEIEE
& o AN B 11 U B 5% B B SR B
BRELTE K - RBSBEREME
ENEGEASDIsFHITHS
W OBESHESASHRUNES
FAEAfIIE R o

KRB R2014F F W E L R
BZEEg ERmUEBERHL
FFARM14,186,7007C AR BB L
ESNREIEANEEES - K
2 B 72 5 B o B T B R B P R ST
Wi - RBEEAEEEENER
AT FEREFRITHY - &
HE BT AR R A FIRIE

o
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VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

®)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

)

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,310,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding
for logistics standardization project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB5,865,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
upgrading business facilities program. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

II/

RIS RaR By e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 RaR B et

II/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

7

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,080,000 from Beijing Chaoyang District
Finance Bureau as a special funding for renovation
of energy-saving lamps. The deferred income was
recognized upon receipt of the financial allocations,
meanwhile the deferred assets were divided by ratio of
the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be amortized in the estimated useful life (10
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2015, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB8,730,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

©)

In 2016, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
Chaoyang district Cailanzi project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life
(10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2017, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB12,647,900
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred
assets were divided by the initial entry value of assets,
and deferred income would be evenly amortized in
the estimated useful life (8 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued) 32 ~ R R ()

(11) In 2017, the Company received government grants (11) ARQFR2017 EE W EHL R 3

totaling RMB3,140,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong energy-saving emission
reduction technology innovation project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (8
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,011,200 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
Commercial circulation development of agricultural

ultra-docking project. The deferred income was

BRMREZEERALTARYE
3,140,0007T FA 74 X % & I8 & g8
RN SEEANBEEE S o
N E2 [ 72 Ui ) 5% B TE B o s e SRR
Wz RBEEAEEENTE
HEREmeFEITHE - Bl
Bt A B R AR G R HIRE -

ARABR2017 FEWE 4 =
TMRABZEGRAETARE
4,011,200t AR X RBERE
BHEEHANZELES - X5E
T2 Wz B 5% B T 938 0 B i SRR S R

CRBEEEEENTAER
OFEITHE - BESRIA
MM AR BRI R -

BX

recognized upon receipt of the financial allocations,

meanwhile the deferred assets were divided by the

il

initial entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (9
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

(13)

(14)

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,199,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Commercial convenience
service investment project. The deferred income was
recognized upon receipt of the financial allocations,
meanwhile the deferred assets were divided by the
initial entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (7
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,155,200 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Store renovation project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (8 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued) 32 ~ R R ()

(15) In 2018, the Company received government grants (15) AR B 20184 [F U B b i %

totaling RMB3,681,500 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy-saving technical transformation
project. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by the initial entry value
of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,211,820 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for Life
service industry development guidance project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,471,800 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income (Continued)

(18)

(19

In 2019, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,832,900 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2020, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,000,000 from Logistics Service Center
of Chaoyang District, Beijing as a special funds for Life
Service Employment Development Guidance Project.
The deferred income was divided by the initial entry
value of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2020, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,566,200 from Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Commerce as a special funds for Promote chain
operation projects. The deferred income was divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (5
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II/

BT FS R I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Deferred income

(21) In 2020, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,783,294 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

33. Share capital

N AU BEREABERE)

32 ~ RIEW ()

(21

) AR BEIR20204F F U |k R EA
BEHERMNEZEGRALT
1,783,294 T B BERTIRIE B &
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RERIEC K RS HEEE
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B BET AR R AR B B HIR

1B

o

H\

33~ RA&

Changes in the period
KR8
Capitalization
Opening ~ New issue of of surplus Closing
balance shares  Bonus issue reserves Others Subtotal balance
Item %R 2| LG R DESER i It ER8
For the year ended 31 December 2020 NNEE
. State-owned gal person shares 1. BEEASR
Chaofu Company BN 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal o state-owned legal person shares BB AER it 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-ouned shares 2. EfmERR
Shares held by domestic non-state owned BMHEEEAER
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5,210,428
Domestic indvidual shereholders BREMARE 57,439,764 - - - - - 57439764
3. Foreign listed shares denominated nRMB 3, 590 EATEJAR BN ERR 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares ks 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
For the year ended 31 December 2019 1958
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BEEARR
Chaofu Company ERE 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,400,808
Subtotal of state-owned legel person shares - E1EE ARt 167400608 - - - - - 167400808
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EmESR
Shares held by domestic non-state owned EREEELARR
legel person 5210428 - - - - - 5210428
Domestic indhvidual shareholders EMERARE 57430764 - - - - - BT4%9764
3. Forelgn listed shares denominated in AMB 3, 3800 LA AR VAR 182,160,000 - - - - - 182160000
Total shares g 412,220,000 - - - - - 42220000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. Capital reserves 34 - EXNTE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2020 &
Increase in  Decrease in
2020.1.1 the period the period 2020.12.31
“EBCEF “BCEE
Item EE -A-H KEREM XEHY +=A=1+-AH
Capital premium BAREE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority shareholders B F AR D ERERER 5
of subsidiaries (10,443,286) - - (10,443,286)
Other capital reserves HEALNE 5,695,493 - - 5,695,493
Total At 605,043,091 - - 605,043,091
For the year ended 31 December 2019 2019F &
Increase in Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31
—ENE —2NE
Item R —A—H RELEM FERS +ZA=1T—H
Capital premium RAEE 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction with minority shareholders EF A8 D ERERES 5
of subsidiaries (10,443,286) - - (10,443,286)
Other capital reserves HEARTE 5,696,493 - - 5,695,493
Total =} 605,043,091 - - 605,043,091
2020 if& 205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL NSO BRREEFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

35. Other comprehensive income 35 » Hf4RE Wi
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205 &
Changes in the period
REREE
Less: Amount
that is previously
included in other Attributable
comprehensive to the
income is shareholders  Attributable
transferred to of parent  to minority
Amount before  profit or loss for  Less: Income ~ company after  shareholder
20201.1 tax the period tax expense tax affertax 20201231

B AL
CRCRE REFRRNER GAUEENEN  H:FER RKBRNSL RRBEMOE  CR°%F
lem iR -A-H 1 £ &R Bl B% t2Bzt-R

Other comprehensive ncome that wilbe W& BEABEBRNEbEANE
reclassied to proft or loss - - - - - - -
Difierences of foregn curency firanci RS RNERE

statements convert 309,414 - - - - - 309,414
Total At 309,414 - - - - - 309,414
For the year ended 31 December 2019 20194 &

Changes in the period
RERLE

Less: Amount
that is previously
included in other

comprenensive Attioutable to
income i the shargholders ~ Attributable
transferred to profit of parent fo minority
Amount before orlossforthe  Less: Income  company after  sharefolder
2019.1.1 fax peiod  fex expense fax aftertac 20191231

%A

30E ONERHEA  WoMGR REEERSD REBEME IR
llem BB -F-A G Bt B® fzA=t-A
Other comprehensive icome that wilbe WA BEABEBRNEREANE
reclassffied to profit or loss - - - - - - -
Differences of foreign currency financil B RERTEEE
statements convert 82,125 437915 - - 201,289 210,626 309,414
Total it 82,125 437,915 - - 227,289 210,626 309,414
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN

RISk I ot

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N B BRBRREEERE)

36. Surplus reserves 36 - BHRAE
Opening Increase in  Decrease in Closing
balance the period the period balance
Item HH FO¥ KEEM FERD FRY
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205
Statutory surplus reserve FERBBLNE 160,727,215 8,332,665 - 169,059,880
For the year ended 31 December 2019 20195
Statutory surplus reserve EERBDLE 153,125,894 7,601,321 - 160,727,215

In accordance with Company Law and Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and
the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory
surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the paid

in capital.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for the

loss, expanding operation or increase the paid in capital.

BEBEARE AEEERMOMAE - K
EEIZFFEMI0%RIVETE BB ATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 #RaR I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Undistributed profits 37 ~ KA BRI
Proportion of
Amount appropriation
ltem BH ot ] 1R BN 2 B bk
For the year ended 31 December 20204 :
2020
Undistributed profits at the beginning 4145 At FE
of year 550,263,661
Add: Net profit attributable to the e ARFEEBRAERFIMA
shareholders of the parent & W FF)E
company for the year 56,304,490
Less: Appropriation to statutory W REVEE BB AR
surplus reserve 8,332,665 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends JRE A1 3 3 A AR
payable 32,977,600
Other Hith -
Undistributed profits at the end of the & Rk 2 Fo F/i8
year 565,257,886

For the year ended 31 December 20195 E :

2019
Undistributed profits at the beginning 414 % Bt FH
of year 537,907,146
Add: Net profit attributable to the m: AEEBREGRARE
shareholders of the parent HHFEHE
company for the year 52,935,436
Less: Appropriation to statutory B RBUATEEBATE
surplus reserve 7,601,321 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends AR
payable 32,977,600
Other Hith -
Undistributed profits at the end of the A 7 B Fll)E
year 550,263,661
(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be (1) BEAESEH EFFELEHENES
approved in the annual general meeting BRF
According to the notice of the annual general meeting M2020F6 230 - RIEALQFA
on 23 June 2020, a final dividend of RMBO0.08 per BRERZE - AAFDE2019F
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2019 was ERMAERARKC.08T « &5
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company. f&F) A AR ¥32,977,6007T °

The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB32,977,600.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be

2

approved in the annual general meeting (Continued)

According to the notice of the annual general meeting
on 24 May 2019, a final dividend of RMBO0.08 per
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2018 was
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.
The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB32,977,600.

On 26 March 2021, the directors of the Company
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMBO0.10
per share to shareholders in respect of year ended
31 December 2020. The proposal of dividend
distribution mentioned above is subject to be approved
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB41,222,000.

Surplus reserves of subsidiaries

On 31 December 2020, the undistributed profits of the
Group included surplus reserves of subsidies totaling
in the period RMB23,985,965 (31 December 2019:
RMB19,961,951).
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37 RO BWAB(E)

(1) BREASEHMEMELHENES

2

BF(E)

201985240 » REARQFEN
BEERE - KRFDB20184F
ERMATRARKEC.08T + A&
& F B AR #32,977,6007T ©

#2021F3H26H @ ARRINES
IRBDE2020F ERF - &
AR®010TT « R F 2B H L&
FERRAGHAE o ZRF IR
ERBEFAREGHIBHRE
BE X R EE R ARE
41,222,0007T °

FRACIERHEG L E
20209F12A318 * AEBEAXHER
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B RN 1E A AR23,985965
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EBHMERREETES)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

38 ~ BEIWATEZERA

38. Operating income and operating costs

(1) Operating income and operating costs (1) EFEWRARKE
2020 2019
20205 % 2019F %

Income Cost Income Cost
ltem BH KA BA WA AR
Principal operating (Note) FEEBGH 11,004,132,335  9,712,192,674 |10,555,189,765  9,135,867,075
Other operating B %R 979,665,600 8,713,912 | 1,108,032,165 11,826,711
Total At 11,983,797,935  9,720,906,586 |11,658,221,930  9,147,693,786

(2) Principal operating (classified by industry segments) (2) EEXEHK(7T¥)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019F %

Principal Principal
operating Principal operating Principal
income operating costs income  operating costs
ltem BE FEEBRA  FEEBAAR | FEEBUA FEEBRAE
Retall TE 4,287,437,692  3,652,264,461 | 4,104,864,637  3,382,667,386
Wholesale (Note) BEGH 6,701,445,455  6,145,905,219 | 6,411,758,686  5,723,158,666
Others Hit 15,249,188 14,022,994 38,566,542 30,041,023
Total At 11,004,132,335  9,712,192,674 | 10,555,189,765  9,135,867,075

The principal operating income mainly consists of
selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods,

beverages and wines etc.

TEEXBBATEZERHEERM
BlRam - BAEER - KBRMNE

SFIMEHHEA -

Note:  According to the relevant requirements of the i

newly revised “Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises No. 14-Revenue” in the “Cai Kuai
[2017] No. 227, the related wholesale business

transportation expenses (including: RMB130,219,144
in 2020 and RMB114,957,988 in 2019) incurred

before the transfer of control to the customer when

selling goods to customers will be reclassified from

Selling expenses” to “Principal operating costs”.

300 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

1R RN B & [2017]22 8% | 34 5
ERTHC G A 1455 —
WANHEBE R HHEFH
ERME ZHRERLE
B2 BB A e AE BE HE B 5 8
BE(HF 202008 BARE
130,219,144 * 2019F A AR
#114,057,988 ) HEEA |
BEHRGRE EEEBEA]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B ERREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

38. Operating income and operating costs (Continued) 38 ~ EEIWMAMEERAER(E)
(3) Operating income of the Group’s top five customers 8) RAFEEEFHEZEUAER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205 E

Proportion of the

total operating

income of the

Operating income Group (%)

AR EERA

ltem HE —E 3PN B9 EE 45 (%)

JD R 1,734,960,040 15

Wu-mart LIES 657,682,545 5

Vipshop Whe 334,411,603 3
Zhejiang Tmall Network AL RS B B R A A

Technology Co., Ltd. 266,183,115 2
Wal-Mart (China) Investment Co., KI5 (R E)IREBR DT

Ltd. 183,852,961 2

Total &5 3,177,090,264 27

For the year ended 31 December 2019 20195 &

Proportion of the

total operating

income of the

Operating income Group (%)

HRARIEEEHERA

ltem 1HE HEIA B L 171(%)

JD m_E 1,632,931,058 13

Wu-mart LB 874,291,966 7
Shanghai Tianyi E-commerce EBRBEFEEAERAA

Co., Ltd.. 328,494,407 3

Yonghui Commercial Co., Ltd.  KIBFgEER AT 184,534,575 2

Carrefour KR 148,829,777 1

Total &5 3,069,081,783 26

2020 %5 3()1
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N AU BEREABERE)

39 ~ i RN

39. Taxes and surcharges

2020 2019
ltem 1HH 2020%E 20195 [Z
Consumption tax SHE T 652,700 1,355,338
City construction and maintenance tax 3 1 4 2 % F7 20,680,225 283,470,290
Building tax FED 15,843,789 16,237,259
Land tax T AR 1,021,412 1,021,412
Vehicle and vessel use tax BEMERR 164,142 173,276
Stamp tax ENFERL 6,705,490 6,549,361
Environmental protection tax IRIBIRER 19,414 72,990
Others EHib 30,786 18
Total &5t 45,117,958 48,879,944
40. Selling expenses 40 - SHEEH
2020 2019
ltem 1HH 2020FE 2019F [Z
Wages and salaries B T 7 B 494,214,738 494,426,139
Depreciation and amortization WENEBEER
expenses 361,337,073 375,084,804
Promotional expenses SEEIHE 356,418,819 421,640,033
Service fee AR5 & 238,926,111 224,410,115
Utility fee IKE 2 61,318,278 68,630,295
Shipping fee(Note) BB () 43,580,487 57,543,584
Security fee REE 35,447,006 35,606,105
Repair fee (ESEE= 28,501,679 31,644,944
Lease expenses HEEH 16,639,154 16,148,175
Coal fee L 15,960,753 18,651,660
Advertising fee EEEEE 15,817,701 14,767,504
Warehousing fee BHER 15,756,917 17,183,401
Cleaning fee RRE 15,420,187 15,402,723
Property costs %%E 9,618,395 6,196,506
Telephone, postal and communication E:E - B2 M@
fees 5,983,433 7,615,386
Computer supplies FTEBFEM 4,856,247 5,436,941
Shop opening fee HIEEH 2,959,290 3,892,017
Travel expenses ERE 2,282,271 4,510,715
Labor protection fee LB REE 2,280,797 571,518
Insurance fee R E 2,219,308 2,533,216
Stationery printing fee pr@=NR1) k- 2,216,634 4,023,799
Packaging fee BEE 2,178,813 6,263,238
Commodity loss or loss HohRE s EE 1,921,720 2,540,309
Low value consumables EESER 196,980 142,933
Book information fee ZRERE 174,584 152,435
Meal fee REE 33,081 80,796
Others Hith 6,059,941 2,193,442
Total &5t 1,742,320,397 1,837,292,733

Note: For the relevant changes in the implementation of the new

revenue standard, please refers to Note VI. 38 Operating

Income and Operating Costs for details.
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II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AR REETFEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

41. Administrative expenses 41 -EERER
2020 2019

ltem HH 2020F & 2019 E
Wages and salaries B3k T 357 BM 213,971,952 250,531,255
Depreciation and amortization TEREHER

expenses 11,133,993 11,535,206
Inventory count loss FEEIEX 5,287,888 3,755,817
Audit fees EE 2,957,263 3,949,342
Low value consumables KESER 2,760,118 3,538,356
Consulting fee EaE k= 2,216,777 4,410,637
Business hospitality EBBEE 1,986,327 4,201,474
Service fee REE 1,970,411 2,907,941
Dismissal benefits BHRAE T 965,345 3,330,574
Telephone, postal and communication F:% - B2 A E

fees 901,586 433,204
Utility fee KEE 725,753 581,518
Repair fee BIRE 700,422 2,129,956
Conference fee e@HE 659,728 1,138,999
Travel expenses %5&% 475,931 1,318,233
Insurance fee R B 435,571 380,273
Heating costs HiES 288,657 205,665
Office fee PWNE 245,318 601,620
Others HAith 2,613,092 6,118,039
Total &5 250,296,132 301,068,109
Financial expenses 42 - B E A

2020 2019

ltem ERE 2020 & 2019%F &
Interest expenses MBS 172,552,843 195,455,144
Including:Lease liability interest B FHEAEFESH

expense 53,725,298 54,613,270
Less: Capitalized interest expenses B FBER e 50,428 57,317
Interest income FB2UA (17,639,348) (13,444,260)
Bank charges RITFEE 11,820,270 15,172,691
Exchange losses (gains) (ERi=E 4,878,243 (448,065)
Total A&t 171,561,580 196,678,193
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Other income

(1) Details of other income

N AU BEREABERE)

43 ~ Hilhi
(1) Emze4040T

The amount
included in
the current

year non-

recurring

gains and

2020 2019 losses

FFABFIE

EEMEEE

ltem 1HH 2020 E 2019%F E oot

Government grants BT B 24,506,275 | 18,295,011 24,506,275

Total &3t 24,506,275 | 18,295,011 24,506,275

(2) Details of government grants (2) BFHBIBEA

2020 2019

ltem HE 20205 & 20195 [F

Government reserve expense BRI e B AR ARG 3,342,022 783,000

Ease the employment pressure  4Efi# 5k % 8% /) B 5,555,298 3,569,376
Asset-related government grants & 7 A8 B8 & T #8 B AR 4

amortization for the current e

year 9,260,025 9,197,474

Other H Ak 6,348,930 4,745,161

Total &t 24,506,275 18,295,011

44. Investment income 44 ~ BEW R

2020 2019

ltem 1HH 2020&E 2019 [Z
Investment income from short-term B NEENERIEE W

financial products 33,984 525,874
Investment income of financial assets A AR (EETE B EE& T
measured at fair value through profit A ZHliEHMSRMEELL

or loss during the holding period HH AR E s 1,163,898 942,758

Total A&t 1,197,882 1,468,632

304 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N A RRIAR TR (E)

II/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 - PREES KRGS

45. Gains from changes in fair values

2020 2019
Sources of gains from changes in  E4 QA BEZ S E IR
fair values 2020 & 20194 [Z
Trading financial assets RHMEREE 89,236,083 27,689,141
Including: classified financial assets Hm : /“*ﬁﬁ’&ﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ )
at fair values through ATABHERNEREE
profits or losses (exclude (MEIEFEE’] NrfEE
gains from changes in BRI
fair value of derivative
instruments) 89,236,083 27,689,141
classified financial assets NEARAAEEFEAEY
at fair values through I ABHESNERMERE
profits or losses (gains (MTETBTAELNAR
from changes in fair EEZEHNE)
value of derivative
instruments) - -
Total CEl 89,236,083 27,689,141

46. Credit impairment loss

46 ~ ERARERX

2020 2019

ltem 1HE 20205 E 2019 [F
Credit loss of note receivable and  FEURZEIE &% fE UK IB{Z T8k

accounts receivable (12,240,380) (7,545,724)

Credit loss of other receivable E Gz Bk (4,615,868) (696,855)

Total &t (16,856,248) (8,242,579)

47. Gain on disposal of assets 47 - EEREBEWH

The amount included

in the current year

non-recurring gains

2020 2019 and losses

EH\”‘E?FW B

ltem =S 2020 E 20194 & BEEHE

Gain on disposal of FRBEERE W
non-current assets 7,184,727 515,005 7,184,727
Total =18 7,184,727 515,005 7,184,727
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Non-operating income

(1) Details of non-operating income

N A HRARIAR TR (E)

48

EE 3L ON
(1) EXEIMRABHUT

The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains
and losses for the

2020 2019 year
AFAEFIELE N
ltem 1HE 2020F & 20195 E B e
Total gains on spoilage and E 814 2 R IE IR
obsolescence of non- FMEEE
current assets 623 34 623
Including: Gains on Hr o BEEERE
spoilage and WENE
obsolescence
of fixed assets 623 34 623
Government grants BT 18 BN 6,000,000 5,750,000 6,000,000
Compensation for breach ofi 41 {E 4
contract 2,639,328 7,736,960 2,639,328
Tax rate adjustment MEFABDOZRIEA
underpayment 3,296,036 3,305,879 3,296,036
Disposal of waste materials JZIERE E¥E 637,168 604,400 637,168
Others Hih 4,839,273 4,975,022 4,839,273
Total A&t 17,412,428 22,372,295 17,412,428

(2) Details of government grants

(2) BB EA

2020 2019
ltem UE= 20205 & 20194 [F
Safe production environment &2 £ EREFF A ()
upgrade subsidy (Note) 6,000,000 5,750,000
Total A&t 6,000,000 5,750,000
Note:  according to Chao guoziwen[2020] No.152, “Approval it ARIBHIEE XX[2020]1525% B
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

49. Non-operating expenses

50.
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N AU BERRER BRE)

49 ~ BEIZH

The amounts
included in non-

recurring gains and

2020 2019 losses for the year
FFAEFIELEMN
ltem == 2020F & 20194 & BEEHE
Total losses on spoilage IERENE ERIBRE
and obsolescence of non-  #B%&5t
current assets 1,888,862 4,037,672 1,888,862
Including: Losses on spoilageE & : ETE & ERIE
and obsolescence of fixed IREFEK
assets 1,888,862 4,037,672 1,888,862
Fine Hikea 1,446,099 1,979,531 1,446,099
Others Hib 7,062,737 3,887,224 7,062,737
Total &t 10,397,698 9,904,427 10,397,698
Income tax expense 50 - IS EH
(1) Details of income tax expenses (1) FE#HERAZ
2020 2019
ltem ERE| 2020FE 2019F &
Current income tax expense & #iFFSTHER 67,979,995 65,284,144
Deferred income tax expense EIEFTEHE A 11,928,310 16,431,508
Total S 79,908,305 81,715,652
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B FRRIBR FEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

50. Income tax expense (Continued) 50 - FRASBER &)

(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and (2) EFFIEEEHERARARE

accounting profits is as follows

2020 2019
ltem 1HH 2020FE 2019F &
Total profit lbERCkE 165,878,731 178,802,243
Income tax expenses calculated at AR/ ERRERAE

statutory/appropriate tax rate KIFT5 5 & A 41,469,683 44,700,561
Effect of subsidiary companies to adapt A &)@ F -~ R F & #y

different tax rates T 657,358 818,038
Effect of adjusting the previous years’ FAZARTHIBFTEHAY

income tax ga (13,497) 931,361
Effect of non-taxable income JEERIM AR E (945,090) (889,804)
Effect of non-deductible costs, DAMRIMAAR - BA

expenses and losses MERH 2 3,109,826 12,814,762
Effect of using deductible losses of {3 3 AT HA R FEFRIEIL AT

previously unrecognized deferred tax 187 & E R A K HE

assets BHEE (825,880) (1,418,759)
Effect of deductible temporary RERERBELEFTIST

difference or deductible losses of BEMIENEET

unrecognized deferred tax assets in =& s} A[ K HEEA

the period -z 36,455,905 24,759,489
Total CEH 79,908,305 81,715,652

308 ANNUAL REPORT 2020
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

7% 2= MY

B A5 R R MY 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

N AU BERRER BRE)

1y

STATEMENTS (Continued)

51.

51 ~ FRE
A6 [ 5 R TR (RE A AT &

Net profit

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

18
Notes 2020 2019
ltem HH k=3 20205 E 20195 [F
Cost of goods sold 727 om S B A AR (VI) 38 9,712,192,674 9,135,867,075
Depreciation of investment WEUEHETE V1) 9
properties 8,690,564 8,692,155
Depreciation of fixed assets EEBENTE (V) 10 102,122,413 109,718,184
Depreciation of right-of-use FABEERE (VI 12
assets 191,380,996 178,063,257
Amortization of intangible assets 7 & &= 85 (V) 13 16,781,698 16,770,730
Amortization of leasehold CEHRAETEEERR (V) 15
improvements X H# 67,360,065 76,004,182
Total of depreciation and TEREHEE
amortization 386,335,736 389,248,508
Net losses on disposal of non- 3ERBIEEEE FIEK (V) 47,48,49
current assets (5,296,488) 3,622,633
Net rental income of investment 1%& 14 E i & F K
properties A (13,752,415) (20,874,221)
Staff costs BIZWER (VI 24 710,525,591 750,557,336
Including:Directors and Hp &%  E=Me
supervisors’
emoluments 4,548,227 5,741,182
Other staff costs: HAth 8 TRA -
Wages or salaries and TE - Hrekit
social security costs BIRFER A 666,477,919 678,388,909
Basic retirement EARBERRE
insurance 39,499,445 66,427,245
Audit expenses EiTEH 2,957,263 3,949,342
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

/N

52. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

diluted earnings per share

=L

fr %%

WRIBBEEE)

52 - EXBRUENHESRKSENTE

BE

While calculating basic earnings per share, net profit FTEEAGREER - BERTERR
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the current year is RHEHFFNER
as follows
2020 2019
ltem IH B 2020 E 20195 E
Net profit attributable to ordinary FENETRRERD
shareholders for the current year = Eﬁ pelbE 56,304,490 52,935,436
Including: Net profit from continuing ~ H& : BEBRISELSENFH
operations bS] 56,304,490 52,935,436
While calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator AEEAGRIRER - 2 AEITEN
is the weighted average number of ordinary shares LmpenE a8 - SERENT
outstanding and its calculation process is as follows
2020 2019
ltem 15 H 20205 E 20195 E
Number of ordinary shares outstanding %77 7E 59 & 38 A% B1 412,220,000 412,220,000
Earnings per share (=24 €
2020 2019
ltem B H 20205 & 20195 E
Calculated based on net profit and EEBIRER Tﬁxﬁﬁﬁ/\%ﬂﬁ
net profit from continuing operations ~ MERER A IR EMIFE
attributable to shareholders of the I FRERTE
parent company
Basic earnings per share NSl 0.14 0.13
Diluted earnings per share GRS N/A i A N/A TiE A
At date of report, the Company had no dilutive potential
. HEREFR  AAEEEHEENEL
ordinary shares.
LEAR -
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N AU BERRER BRE)

1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

53. Items in the cash flow statements 53 -HEREXREHR

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

(1) WERMEELTHEBYRE

2020 2019
ltem EH 20205 & 201952
Income of rent HeWA 175,862,415 213,227,101
Income of scrap sales REmUA 3,181,236 2,873,907
Income of franchise JIEESON 1,181,041 1,599,547
Income of government grant BT 8 B A 28,595,744 9,685,101
Recovered deposit Y Bl & 10,146,229 12,732,939
Transportation fee income FEEFEFHE - 5,000,000
Others HAh 4,248,154 6,045,424
Total &5t 223,214,819 251,164,019

(2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities (2) FENEMELEIHEHNES
2020 2019
ltem 1HE 2020 E 20195 [F
Selling expenses (except rent) HEBR(TEHES) 667,747,423 674,118,918
Administrative expenses EEEH 23,947,716 43,122,300
Rent S 17,654,335 8,589,532
Deposit and margin AR NRES 6,311,348 7,151,700
Bank charges RITFEE 11,499,109 15,168,584
Others Hith 4,925,965 7,556,403
Total S 732,085,896 755,707,437

(3) Receive other cash related to investment activities (3 WUIRMHEREZBHEBRE
2020 2019

ltem 1HH 2020 & 2019 [F
Financial product ZRRES 75,229,714 91,621,277
Total a5t 75,229,714 91,521,277
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VL.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7N
STATEMENTS (Continued)

53.

Items in the cash flow statements (Continued)

(4) Paying other cash related to investment activities

5

(6)

53 -HEREXRER (&)

- B HMBHRRIAR TEE)

(4) XANEMEREZBEBNEE

2020 2019
ltem THH 20205 20194 &
Financial product FIBRE 101,200,025 43,410,184
Total AFF 101,200,025 43,410,184

Receive other cash related to fundraising activities

ltem

Chaoyang SASAC operating
turnover funds
Issuing bonds

A H
PEREZ 2 EABES
BITES

(5) UEERMBEZELZZBHEHNEE

2020
2020

2019
20194 fE

400,000,000
695,649,057

Total

1,095,649,057

Paying other cash related to fundraising activities

(6) XTRMEZLZHEHNEE

2020 2019
ltem 18 B 20205 & 20194 [Z
Chaoyang SASAC operating PEHELZEERAEES
turnover funds - 400,000,000
Repayment of lease liabilities BEESAEERS RS
principal and interest 221,843,310 217,187,125
Repayment of bonds EL%% 300,000,000 300,000,000
Current Borrowings IR - 23,443,588
Total &5t 521,843,310 940,630,713
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N A RRIAR TR (E)

54. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

54 ~ Iﬁ.ﬁulbéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

(1) BRERBEXBHAEH

2020 2019
Supplementary information BRER 2020F & 2019F &
1. Reconclliation of net profits and cash 1. B FFEAS ACLEDHHS
flow from operating activities: ME
Add: Provision for impairment losses on m: FROEEREER
assets - -
Credit impairment loss ERRERXE 16,856,248 8,242,579
Depreciation of fixed assets ETEENE 102,122,413 109,718,184
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE 191,380,996 178,063,257
Depreciation of investment REUFEHENE
property 8,690,564 8,692,155
Amortization of intangible assets BIVAESE 16,781,701 16,770,730
Amortization of long-term prepaid ROGHERSH
expenses 67,360,065 76,004,182
Net Losses on disposal of fixed REETEE  BREE
assets, intangible assets and REMRBEENTE
other long-term assets % (7,184,727 (515,005)
Losses arising from the scrapped EEEERERL (s
fixed assets AT — 573851 1,888,239 4,037,672
Losses (Gains) on Changes in fair AnEEEYEL(KE
value LAl — J5%3E51)) (89,236,083) (27,689,141)
Financial expenses BEER(SELER) 172,502,415 196,678,193
Losses arising from investments REBK (1,197,882) (1,468,632)
Amortization of government grants 1 B AR A AV TR A 1R B
related to assets i (9,260,025) (9,197,474)
Decrease in deferred tax assets EEFMEREERNRD (10,356,194) 9,702,363
Increase in deferred tax liabilities ERFEHARSEM 22,284,504 6,729,145
Decrease (Increase) in inventories FEMRD 60,495,823 104,488,215
Decrease in operating receivables i EOE R AR 440,822,978 (96,361,479)
Increase in operating payables i ETIE B A5 (214,292,343) (262,700,799)
Net cash flows from operating activities %«%E@jﬁémiﬁém;@%ﬁ 855,629,118 418,280,736
2. Net changes in cash and cash 2. BaRBLSEMILEYER:
equivalents: 1,032,858,751 864,849,804
Closing balance of cash BEOERSE
Less: Opening balance of cash B RENFIRE 864,849,804 1,014,227,924
Net increase in cash and cash BeRASSEMFEM
equivalents ERL 168,008,947 (149,378,120)
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1y

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 7N
STATEMENTS (Continued)

54. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement (Continued)

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

- B HMBHRRIAR TEE)

54 -RERBRATER(E)

(2) RERBETEEBYHEL

2020 2019
ltem 1HH 2020&E 20195 [F
Cash e
Including: Cash on hand Hep: EFRe 7,980,956 8,218,440
Bank deposits on A RERS AR A Y

demand RITIER 1,024,877,795 856,631,364

Closing balance of cash and cash IJR& MR & SEMEHEE
equivalents 1,032,858,751 864,849,804

55. Net current assets 55 - BREBEE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—ECEF —T-NF
ltem IHE +=—A=+—H +=—A=+—8H
Current assets MENVEE 4,895,980,459 5,163,380,275
Less: Current liabilities B mEBAE 4,511,640,021 4,893,352,084
Net current assets FIMENEE 384,340,438 270,028,191
56. Total assets less current liabilities 56 - MEERABEE

2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—ECEF —E-NF
[tem B H +=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Total assets BEHE 8,068,631,469 8,501,557,971

Less: Current liabilities BooREBaE
Total assets less current liabilities & ERIRBI & &

4,511,640,021
3,556,991,448

4,893,352,084
3,608,205,887
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

57. Assets that ownership or usufruct is restricted

Carrying amount at
31 December 2020

N A RRIAR TR (E)

57 - B RSERAEZIRFNEE

Restriction reasons

Item A FRIEEEE ZRER
Cash and bank BEEES () 157,443,568 Restricted as a margin deposit
balances (Note) VEBIRE S 17 3 X EIR &
Accounts receivable JEUERZX 183,096,337 Bank loans are obtained through factoring
arrangement that are restricted
E AR R B IR IR 2 PR 1S IR 1T 8 5k iM 52 2IBR il
Total &t 340,539,905

Note: Restricted deposits are classified as deposits of
RMB116,101,904 as bank acceptance bills and
RMB41,341,664 as margins of financing nature.

58. Foreign currency monetary items

ltem ER

Cash and cash balances ~ E%E%

Including: USD b X
EUR B
HKD %75
GBP it
NZD HE#

i ZRFENRES - DEAEARRITEAN
[EZMIRFS ARE116,101,904 7T F1
BERRES AREES41,341,6647T ©

58 ~ M EMMIER

2020.12.31 2019.12.31

It ;R ZE-NETZA=T-B
Closing balance in Closing balance | Closing balance in Closing balance in
foreign currency Exchange rate inRMB | foreign currency Exchange rate RMB
HesE fEEEX  HEARMHE hEsE HEEEX  FEARWHE
26,461,976 12,846,374
3,274,240 6.5249 21,364,092 1,181,638 6.9762 8,243,340
131,096 8.0250 1,052,043 366,858 7.8155 2,867,175
1,251,879 0.8416 1,053,631 1,945 0.8958 1,742
93 8.8903 823 193 9.1501 1,762
635,789 4.7050 2,991,387 368,798 46973 1,732,355

VIl. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

On 9 September 2020, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the

Company, established a wholly-owned subsidiary Chaopi

International Trading of (Hong Kong) Company Limited (hereinafter

referred to as “International Trading Hong Kong”) into the scope

of consolidation for this period.

- AOHENRE

MR2020F9H9H - ARAIZFARIHIEE
RERIZETRAAAMBERE S (HHE)E
RABATERE : [EEESES ) AEH
AGHEE -
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VIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES N> EHMERPHER
Equity in subsidiaries EFAFFHER
(1) Components of the Company (1) EEEEHEA

Proportion
Place of Nature of ~ Registered of ownership
Subsidiary Type incorporation ~ busingss  Capital Scope of busingss interests (%)
FARER #i7gE it #ikE  oRER QeEE ERiLA%)
Befing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Lid. Limted company ~ Langfang, PRC ~ Retal 80000000 Reta of general merchandise 100
(Jingkelong Langfang)
IRRER(BARRAGVREGRERS)  AREEDY WS £33 2ERE ERRD ARG MR
Beiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co,, Ltd. Limited company ~ Befjng, PRC ~ Refal 29000000 Real of general merchandise 100
(Jingkelong Tongzhou) )
FRRREATERERAA(NTER RERRN])  RREEDD AR 2R TERE BERD A0 DERE

Beiing Xinyang Tongli Commercil Faciiies Co, Lt Limited company ~ Befjng, PRC ~~ Manufacture 10,0000 Production of plastic packing materils and 50.66
(Kinyang Tong) installation and maintenance of commercia

equipment
IRAERMERREERAAORRINGR)  AREEDY 4R $ix III3E: 8 BRERGH EHARY
e
Befing Jngkelong Shouchao Commercil Co, Lid Limted company ~ Bajing, PRC ~ Retal 308423439 Retal of general merchandise 10
(Shouian Supemarke) y .
IRREERRERRRANOTER ARER )  BRREDM R 22 RERs DRRD A0 fERE
Beiing Jingkelong Haotian Hot! Management Co., Lid. ~ Linted company ~ Befjng, PRC ~ Hospitdlly 5000000 Hotel management, ood and beverage, and 100
(Haotien Hote) leasing
IRREREREEERERDANTRRIZREE)  AREEDT 4R ERRRE ERER BMEZ LAARAR
Beiing Jingkelong Vocafional Training School Insftutonal Beijng, PRC ~ Training 500,000 Training of shop assistant 100
.ﬂ raining Sphoo\] Orgnization .
IR TEREREERZ RSN TERIGIS0) 22 i sl B
Beiing Lianchao Company Limited Limted company ~ Befing, PRC ~~ Retal 10,000,000 Sales of day necessties, Wujnjaodian, such 100
(he “Lianchao Limtted') as neecle textles
HBREZRRAT (N TR BEAA) BREEN 4R £33 JHERRR  ARE HAnS
Beiing Chaopi Trading Co., Lid. (Chaopi Tracing) Limited company ~ Befjng, PRC ~ Wholesale 500,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 7985
IREHEERNERAA TR B1AE ) BhERAA 4R #55 #5A% BRRR AR GERE
Beiing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales Co, Ltd. Limted company ~ Befjng, PRC~ Wholesale 110,160,000 Wholesele of beverages i
(Cheopi Shuanglong® ‘
FRIBHERERHEEREALAAVTBRIBHEE ) RREADD R 425 PR
Beiing Chaopi Huaging Beverage Co, Ltd. Limited company ~ Befjng, PRC ~ Wholesde 80,000,000 Wholesale of cinks and food 066
(Chaopi Huaging|* .
IREHERERRRLAA AR EY SR RREEND R 155 HEER  BHE(RRERETY
L)
Befing Chaopi Flavourings, Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Flvouring” ~ Limted company ~ Befjng, PRC~~ Wholesale ~ 50,000000  Wholesale of ecible of and food 20
IRTEMRRERREEADO AR ARG AREERT 4R #55 HhEhER ER0 SRR Bin

LEEREGLERDEELY)
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VIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EEMFEBRNERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRARIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) THEEBEHERL(E)
Proportion  Proportion o~ Whether
Place of Natureof ~ Registered of ownership  voting power  Consolidated

Subsidiary Type incorporation ~ business  Capital Scape of business interests (%) (% ornot Notes
e FhagE it $HeE  iREx G26E BRI RAEMA() RARKER A&
Bjing CheapiJngong O s Co_Ltq. (Chaopi Of Sales|” Limited company ~ Bejing, PRC~~ Wholesde 36,000,000 Wholesale of ediol ol AR 528 Yes
TRRREREREERAAUTER B ARAE]) RREALD AR 453 HERAEERD  EARARERRR #
Shijazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Tracing Co, Ltd." Limited company ~ Shijazhuang, PRC Wholesale 5,000,000 Wholesele day necessites, food, 798 100 Ves

Wojinjaoctan, efc. (except for fems thet
fiave not obtained specil pemits

RRASHARERRR LT BREAND  RfE 13z #EBRRE RE LEREE(AMEE £
BTHERRA)
Qingdao Chaopi Jirlong Trading Co, Lid.* Limfed company ~ Qngdao, PRC ~ Wholesae 5,000,000 Wholesale a necessits, food, 198 10 Yes
Wajinjaoctan, efc. (except for fems thet
fiave not obtained specil pemit)
BRI BRRTERLT EREMNT %R iz #EBRRE RE DEREE(AMEE £
TATHEE R
BemngChaop\ZhongdeTadmg Co,Lid. 1Chaop\Zhongde)* Limted company ~ Befing, PRC ~ Wholesale 93,000,000 Wholesa\eoconsumersamtaryproduc 7985 10 Yes Note 5
FrnEEE AR R BRE]) EREMLA 17 1a% #ERRE RE 040 THEZREE 7 i
Ehed i%
Taiyuan Chaopi Tracing Co, Ltd. (Chaop! Taiyuan)’ Limted company ~ Taiyuan, PRC ~ Wholesale 15,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 198 10 Yes
RREHEEARAT U T ERIAR) RREAAT AR 3z #AEREAR HRAE iﬁ%“ﬁ 7
B RHIHRERENRRRR
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co,Lid" Limted company ~ Tianjn, PRC ~ Wholesale 15,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 198 100 Ves Note 3
REBYEERRLT BREfRE A2 G+ #%BRRE ARG TeREE(RNEE # i
THTHERR)
Befing Chaopi Yul Tracing Co, Lt (Chaopi Yull™ Limted company ~ Befing, PRC ~~ Wholesale ~~ 24000,000  Wholesale of packag senvice, packed food 03 0 Yes
) and storage senice
AR RAE S ARAR N TR BaA ) BREEAT 4R 3% #A0RAE  EERRE S
Befing Chaogi Fangsheng Trading Co,Lid.™ Limted company ~ Bejing,PRC ~ Wholesale 20,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 59 0 Yes
KRB pEERERA" EREEAT 4R 3% #AERAE MHRn  RARERRRE
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co, Lid. (Chaopi Jinen]* Limted company ~ Jnan, PRC~ Wholesale 26,000,000 Wholesale of package senvice, packed food 5190 g Yes
and storage senvice
EERNEREERL AV AR SR BREAND B 13z #EBRAE 2Bk
Befing Chaooi Shenglong Trading Co, Lid. Limtedcompany ~ Bejing,PRC ~ Wholesale 20,000,000 Wholesale of package senvice, packed food LAl 58 Yes
(Chaopi Shenglong ) and storage senvice
KR ARERERAR (T ER Sh k] BREELD AR 155 HERBRRD 0B  2RRE
Bejing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Tianhwe"  Limted company ~ Befjng, PRC~~ Wholesale 20,000,000 Wholesalg of package semice, packed food 1266 843 VYes
and storage senvice
KB REEBERD AV TR AL RREALD 4R 153 #ERREAR 0B ERRE
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co, Lt (Chaopi Datong)* ~ Limitectcompeny  Dafong, PRC~ Wholesale 26,000,000 Wholesele of package Senice, packed food 5% 0 Yes
and storage senvice
KRB RE S ARAA (TR AR ) GG 5z #ERREAR - DR - 2ERE £
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N-EHMERPHERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRATIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) EXEEFHEAL(E)
Proportion  Proportion of ~ Whether
Place of Nafwre of  Registered of ownership  vofing power  Consolidated
Subsidiary Type incorporation ~ business ~~ Captal Scope of business interests (%) (%) ornot Notes
FARER FhmgE it EHeE  iRER feuE BRIA) mABRAY) RASHER B
Datong Chaopi At Trading Co, Ltd. (Chaop Anfj™ Limited company ~ Dafong, PRC ~ Refal 5000000 Retal depariment stores, food, dally 590 100 Yes
g foceris, Warehousing Services, efc.
KRS REEEERAA (N THR S ER ) BREEDE AR - SRR A0 RRED RUREEE ?
Tangshan Chaopi Beishun Trading Co, Lid. Limted company ~ Tangshen, PRC~ Wholesale 30,000,000 Wholesale dlly necessits, pre-packaged 66.12 8155 Yes
(Chaopi Baishun]* food, general freight, domestic conference
and exnibiton senices, efc.
HIELEE RN B E BREFDE R 753 %tt?%ﬁﬁuu BARRL BHSE R
%&EE ﬁw
Befing Chaopi Maolsheng Trading Co, Ltd. (Chaopi Limtedcompany ~ Befing,PRC ~ Wholesale 75,000,000 Wholesale daly necessiies, kniting textes, 590 B Yes
Maolsheng Clothing, Wujinjaodian, chemical products
(excluing hazardous chemicals), efc.
PRBHAAREERRAAONTER SAAAR ) RREEDD AR 753 HEBRR 4R Bk 185 £
LIER(FarRIERE
Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Co, Lt (Chaopi Hong KongJ™ ~~ Limitec compeny ~ HongKong, ~ Wholesde ~~ HKD0000  Merchandise tracing 208 10 Yes
PRC
BEEHTIERLA T ER S E ) BREEND  E #55 BRI FoRR b
Beiing Chaopi Hongchen Trading Co,, Ltd Limtedcompany ~ Befing, PRC ~~ Wholesale 1000000 Wholesale of cosmefics 590 g Yes
(Chaopi Hongehen)* .
KRBAREEERLA (VRSN RR ) BREEND R bkt fhasEs %
Beiing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co, Ltd. Limited company ~ Befjng, PRC ~ Wholesde 25,000,000 Wholesale of cosmefics efc. 590 B Yes
(Chaopi Shengshi
KA EEERLA( TRt ) BREADE R ik lhmitas ?
Beiing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Co, Lid Limtedcompany ~ Befing, PRC~ Wholesale 72,000,000 Wholesale dall necesstis, kniting textes, 7985 10 Yes Note 6
(Chaopi Znaoyang)* Clothing, Wujinjaodian, chemical products
(excluing hazardous chemicals), efc.
FRBHEREERTERERLACIT AR SHER)) RREEDD R 753 HERRA SRR BE T4RE ? il
LIER(FarRIER)S
Befing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen Food Co,, Ltd. Limtedcompany ~ Befing, PRC~ Wholesale 40,000,000 Sale offood, wholesale of pre-packaged a9 60 Yes
(Kinyishanghen]® food, dalry products, efc. )
IREHFRYARARAINTERIAZAM))  RREERD AR 153 HERD HERRARD YEn% 7
Befing Shengzhen Food Co, Lid. (ShangzhenFood)™ ~ Limted company ~ Befing, PRC~~ Wholesale 5,000 Proclucton of roasted seeds and nuts a9 10 Yes
products and nut products (roasted and
fried), candied fut, fut products (ced
frit products), efc.
YRRy REERATNTER RY RG] BREEND AR #55 EEPERRRERERYE) 25 K %

BRETERE
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II/

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EEMFEBRNERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRARIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) THEEBEHERL(E)
Proportion  Proportion o~ Whether
Place of Natureof ~ Registered of ownership  voting power  Consolidated
Subsidiary Type incorporation ~ business  Capital Scape of business interests (%) (% ornot Notes
FiasR FhagE it RHME  GRER SedE BRIA) EARMAW RAGHER B
Tangshan Chaopi Shangzhen Food Co, Lid. Limited company ~ Tengshan, PRC ~ Manufactre 4000000 Fruit, nut, vegetable processing; convenience a9 10 Yes Note 1
(Tangshan shangzhen) and other food manufacturing, food sdles;

conference senices; exnbiton display
senices; design, production, road general
cargo frensportafion, efc.

Bl Ry ARERAT( P ERIEL D)) RREAAD AN iz 1EHER ﬁ* IT:7BERREE & £ #
3E: 430K ESERER 2
o iﬁ_%%ii%ﬁm
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co,, Lt Limted company ~ HongKong, ~ Wholesde ~ HKD10000  Import and export rade, cosmeics, food, 5190 10 Yes
(Veolsheng Hong Kong) PRC medical equipment, design, warehousing,
gectonic products
BHRHRERERAT N TR AR AR RREAAT AR 3z ARION0  BENRE e KR BREA R S
i 86 E7ER
Beijing Chaopi Tianshi Information Technlogy Co, Ltd. ~ Limied company ~ Beiing, PRC~~ Wholesale 20,000,000 Wholesale of cosmeics, food and general 7985 10 Yes
(Chaopi Tianshi* merchandise
IRBERRRENAERAAUTRRIMAAR ) RREALD 4R 15z BElhR  BRE 203 £
Chaopi Intemafional Trading (Shanghal Co., Lid Limted company ~ Shanghai, PRC ~ Wholesae 9,800,000 Goods and technology import and export 798 10 Yes
(internafional Tracing Shanghal busiess and food ciculafon
SHERER(LEERAA(NTRRIERER LE))  AREAAT LS 15z HEEnRREELNEE S
BRiAE
Beijing Chaopi Jushengmingpin Trading Co,, Lid Limted company ~ Befjng, PRC ~ Wholesale 30,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 798 10 Yes
(Chaopi Jusheng)
IRREAREERRAAUTRR RG] RREALD 4R 15z HERRR AR BE XERR 7
Rl
Beiing Chaopi Huansheng infemational Trading Company ~ Limitectcompany ~ Befjng, PRC~ Wholesde 15,0000 Wholesale, reta food, heatth food; import end LN 5 Yes
Limited (Chaopi Huansheng) expon goods mport end export agents
IRRREERERERAAUTRRIBARE))  RREELD AR 155 #% ZERE RERR: EMELD: 1 2
il
Baoding Chaopi Trading Co., Lid (Baoding Chaop] Limted company ~ Baoding, PRC ~ Wholesale 10,000,000 Sale offood!, cosmetics, household 590 0 Yes Note 2
, ‘ ‘ appliances, dally sundris, efc.
REEHEEARATI T ER Red ) RREEAT  RE 5z HEam loim FRER S i
ik
Chgopi nternational Trading (Hong Kong Co,, L. Limited company ~ Hongkong, PRC Wholesale ~ HKD5,000,000  Engaged in the import and export of goods 7985 10 Yes Note 4
(nterational Trding Hong Kong) and fechnology, food cistrbution, efc.
SHERER(BRERAAVITERIERESEE])  ARERAT  F i AES000000 (EShRAGARLORE 7 Rl
RS
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VIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N-EHMERPHERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRATIPHER(E)
(1) Components of the Company (Continued) (1) BEEFHEL(E)
Note: =
* Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity interest of * ZENRIBPAMN BB BIB50% M E
those companies which are deemed to be the subsidiaries. As W UWHRTERALFEZFRA
the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi Trading, the holding BRARAEEFAAILEE79.85%
percentage is different with the voting rights percentage. iR - AR RIBRTH A B MR
B E R AW F AR L ] SRR R A L T
A o
**  Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary holds more than 50% of the * RENGHRTFHREZFARERRBR
equity interest of those companies which are deemed to be 50% Mz - WHARTEAPMRBE 2
the subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi FRBZFRAR - HRARFBEERE
Trading, the holding percentage is different with the voting AR E79.85% M - AR FBE
rights percentage. BN EEEREZSE R RNFRL

DIERKIRELLHIRE -

The details of the movement in registered capital of RARERRE - FRANFMEERNUK
subsidiaries and the proportion changes of ownership ZIN/NESIES I S/NCIES T YN 95 = s A =k =i
interests and of voting power held by the Company in BB ¢

subsidiaries during the accounting period are as follows:

Note 1: On 19 April 2019, Xinyi Shagnzhen the subsidiary of 51 R2019F4 A19R AR Al 2 T2 a8
the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading, established HHEZFRBNLHEKILEZETF
Tangshan Shangzhen as a wholly-owned subsidiary, NEFWLEE - FREAA100% -
with registered capital of RMB4,000,000. The Company Eiaft&E A A AR 4,000,0007T °
indirectly holds 47.91% equity of Xinyi Shagnzhen through AQRRBEANE B EEREE WL
Chaopi Trading. Tangshan Shanzhen has obtained Z4791% W= - B ILHME 2 RE
business license with NO. 91130229MAODG50L1E. On 31 91130229MAODGS50L1ES: T & %%
December 2019, Xinyi Shangzhen has been fully paid. BB o £2019F 12 A HI ZHEME

I %3271 & 4,000,0007T * 2 R EEHLT
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

On 16 August 2019, the subsidiary of the Company,
Chaopi Trading, established Baoding Chaopi with registered
capital of RMB10,000,000, which accounts for 70%. The
Company indirectly held 55.90% equity of Baoding Chaopi
through Chaopi Trading. Baoding Chaopi has obtained
business license with NO. 91130605MAODXUBKA4L.
As at 31 December 2019, Chaopi Trading has paid
RMB7,000,000 for Baoding Chaopi, which has been paid
fully.

Due to operational management needs, Tianjin Chaopi
Trading was cancelled on 1 June 2020, and the company
was absorbed and merged into Chaopi Zhongde as a

whole

On 9 September 2020, the subsidiary of the Company,
Chaopi Trading, established Chaopi International Trading
(Hong Kong) Company Limited (International Trading
Hong Kong) with registered capital of HKD5,000,000,
which accounts for 100%. The Company indirectly held
79.85% equity of International Trading Hong Kong through
Chaopi Trading. International Trading Hong Kong has
obtained business license with NO. 2975910. As at 31
December 2020, Chaopi Trading has paid HKD5,000,000
for International Trading Hong Kong, which has been paid

fully.

On 27 August 2020, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading contributed additional registered capital amounted
to RMB28,000,000 into Chaopi Zhongde. The registered
capital of Chaopi Zhongde increased from RMB65,000,000
to RMB93,000,000, all of additional registered capital
amounts has completed by Chaopi Trading. Upon
completion of the capital increase, the Chaopi Trading
directly held 100% equity interest in Chaopi Zhongde, and
indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi Trading as
to 79.85%.
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

(1) Components of the Company (Continued)
Note 6: On 26 August 2020, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi

Trading contributed additional registered capital
amounted to RMB28,000,000 into Chaopi ZHaoyang.
The registered capital of Chaopi Zhaoyang increased
from RMB44,000,000 to RMB72,000,000, all of additional
registered capital amounts has completed by Chaopi
Trading. Upon completion of the capital increase, the
Chaopi Trading directly held 100% equity interest in Chaopi
Zhaoyang, and indirectly held by the Company through
Chaopi Trading as to 79.85%.

(2) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries and the main

financial information

Proportion
of minority - Profits and losses attributing
interests (%) to minority interests
) SHRESR
Name of subsidiaries FRALHE Lhl%) FBRPERRMUE(BX)
2020 2019
2020FE | 20195F%
Chaopi Trading and its B3 E R E 20.15 (Note)
subsidiaries TR (3) | 28,449,865 | 43,358,906

N EHMERPNES(E)

EFARPHER(E)

(1) LHEEBEHERL(E)
56 1 R2020F8H26H AR A ZFRAEH
MEEYHEETARAIRBEEMNE
‘@ AR #28,000,0007T © #5# #LFA RS
85 & A< B A R ¥ 44,000,000 7 18
% 72,000,0007T © WE REH -
BEERE  BHEENEEREHE
100% K - BIAREIBBHAIEE
G A SR AEI579.85% /iR o

b3S

Dividends to minority
interests

ALY BRR D ERH

2020
202058

58,357,634

2019
2019

59,302,028

2) EEWHH2EFATGHBERFEHNKEE

Minority interests

SBRRER

2020.12.31
ERGE

417,749,604

2019.12.31
8

447,657,338

Note: The proportion of ownership interests and voting of the

minority shareholders of subsidiaries are of equal.
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) J\ S TEE A B b A ()

II/

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRARIPHER(E)

(2) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries and the main

2) EENHZEFRAGHBERFEFEHHKE

financial information (Continued)

BT (&)

Significant assets and liabilities FEEEARE

2020.12.31 2019.12.31

—ECEHF —E-hEF
ltem 155 +=A=+—8 +=-FR=+—H
Current assets mBNEE 4,140,369,063 4,445,997,469
Non-current assets EMENEE 668,011,698 708,607,690
Current liabilities mEALE 3,542,257,327 3,678,604,993
Non-current liabilities EmEalE 342,599,730 492,626,152
Financial performance and net cash flow BERRRIREFRE

2020 12 31 2019.12.31

—ZT-EF —E-NF
ltem =S +=—B=+—H +=ZRA=+—H
Operating income EEPN 7,728,124,552 7,551,299,510
Operating cost and other expenses BERARER 7,712,528,705 7,473,868,199

Net profit and total comprehensive
income

FAE &:ﬂ'\/\”kﬁﬁlz@ %A

35,448,046 45,633,094
Cash flows from operating activites K& EHREFRE 507,913,258 114,797,378
Cash flows from investing activities KREEHREFRE 32,020,336 37,958,459
Cash flows from financial activities EEREPRLFRE (408,619,055) (253,182,080)

ERRE
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT hEEemT AEERNRR

The Group’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash and
bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables, short-
term investments, available-for-sale financial assets, other non-
current assets, other non-current assets due within one year,
accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable, notes payable,
short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings due within one year
and long-term borrowings. Details of the financial instruments
are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies on how to mitigate
these risks are detailed as below. These risk exposures are
managed and monitored by the management to ensure that such

risks are within a limited range.

Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of achieving
an appropriate balance between risks and returns, where the
negative effects of risks against the operating results of the
Group are minimized, in order to maximize the interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on such objective of
risk management, the fundamental strategy of risk management
of the Group is to ascertain and analyze various risks exposures,
establish appropriate risk tolerance thresholds, carry out risk
management procedures and monitor these risks in a timely
and reliable manner, thus to confine risk exposures within a

prescribed scope.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1 Market risk

1.1.1

1.1.2

Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of losses
due to changes in exchange rates. All transactions
within the Group use RMB as the standard currency
for bookkeeping. As of 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, the balance sheet of the Group
was denominated in Renminbi, except that the
monetary funds of approximately RMB26,461,976
and RMB12,846,374 were in foreign currencies. The
management of the Group believes that exchange

rate changes will not have a significant impact on the

Group’s total profits and shareholders’ equity.

Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

The risk of changes in fair value from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change mainly
relates to fixed interest securities (see Note (VI) 28
Other current liability). The Group’s policy has not taken
any action to eliminate fair value risk from fixed interest

securities.

The risk of changes in cash flows from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change mainly
relates to floating-rate bank loans (see Note (VI) 19
Short-term borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to
maintain floating interest rate of these loans in order to

eliminate fair value risk due to interest rate change.
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II/

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT h-EEMT AHEENERRE)

(Continued)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) RiEEEEMBER(E)

1.1 Market risk (Continued) 1.1 HEERE)

1.1.2 Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows ©2) FIRE - R nEZEER(E)

(Continued)
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based on the FERRBRSREDTERNBRTIS
assumption that a change in market interest rates =B BN ENEEMIAR
would have an impact on interest income or expense FEWALER

of floating-rate financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group’s exposure AEEEBERERAAEBE LR
to interest rate risk in bank deposits is not significant, TEROMNERREITTER - B
therefore did not disclose the sensitivity analysis of b AR 7 U 2 BR R 1T 17 B A R R
bank deposit interest rate. On the basis of the above BENEDHT o 20204 [ K 2019
assumption and supposing that other parameters FEALOABENERE  £H
remain constant(Without regard to the influence of i ETEMBER T (TERER
capitalized interest), an 1% increase/(decrease) of BRANMEMTE)  Fxigmn/
interest rate would lead to a (decrease)/increase of (R 1% EHiEE RIRFRE
RMB23,342,379and RMB22,320,035 (before taxation) sNHAFEIHRORL) /18
in current profit or loss and shareholders’ equity in A R#23,342,3797T M AR
2020 and 2019 respectively. 22,320,0357T °
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT h-EERMT BEBENEREE)

(Continued)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) ElEEEZEMBER(E)

1.2 Credit risk 1.2 =HEE

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
largest credit risk exposure related to a potential financial
loss mainly derived from the failure in performance of
contractual obligations by counterparty, which would result
in a loss in financial assets, and the guarantees provided
by the Group, including: the carrying amount of financial
assets recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The
carrying amounts of the financial assets, which are recorded
at fair value, represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a

result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, balances of
accounts receivable are monitored on an ongoing basis
to ensure that the Group’s exposure to credit loss is not

significant.

72020412 A 31 H %20194 12 A 31
B - AlRgslE R BB B EANRAE
RRBHEADFEZRERERS —FTREE
BIRBMERAEECRMEEESN
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RIEEERRRAEEEEERAN
EERIFNFE=NTETRS - RRAE
BHRR - FYAEEREAERTN
EITRFNEFPETERER - B
REBHBURRGEETIFEERR
NHERAEEARABREANERBERE
B o

2020 F#f
I RRREEEEERNERAF] 827



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R M ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

1y

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT hEEmT EEBENERRE)
(Continued)

[ B B B RAMBER (F)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 HAERE)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the management believes
that the Group’s exposure to credit risk has been effectively
monitored and managed. The Group has adopted necessary
policies to ensure that all customers have a good credit
record. At 31 December 2020, except for the amounts
included in account receivables top five (Note (VI) 3) and
individual significant long-term receivables, the Group has

no other significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group’s working capital is deposited at banks with
higher credit ratings, and hence the credit risk in working

capital is insignificant.

Maturity analysis of the financial assets overdue but

A - AEERESEEERBERAEZ
F-BHRUGHEIYER - AR
ERDIRF IR E D MERBRE
o At - ARBERERANEEM
AENEREREREINEREE - K
SERBTUENBRERMBEEFY
BEBERFMERLCHE - R2020%12 A
31 AN - SR REMSREA RS
J& W BR 5k e B 22 B oK) R B FE MRS
AEBEEMERNERETRR

AEENRBDESFREREBIRES
BIRTT - BABESHNERERKE -

EERBRACABERBRENSRE

unimpaired: ENHRSTIT

31 December 2020 2020%12H31H

Overdue but unimpaired

SRR E
Within 1
month 1-3 months Over 3 months Total
BEIEAR BE1-3A BWHBMEAMUL &%

Accounts receivable FEUL AR X 129,435,528 10,814,454 105,305,573 245,555,555
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2

1.3

Credit risk (Continued)

31 December 2019

Within 1 month
BHEA1E A R
Accounts receivable  FEUER R 103,909,573

1-3 months

B EA1-31E A

50,124,653

o EERT BMEENEEE)

EkERE B EMBEE)

1.2 ERAERE)
2019412318

Overdue but unimpaired

B BRI (E
Over 3 months Total
H3ME AL - At
65,971,630 220,005,856

On 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Other receivables that
were past due but not impaired related to other amounts
payable to the Group as a prevailing party in litigations.
Based on past experience, the Group believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Liquidity risk

In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains and
monitors cash and cash equivalents that are adequate in
the opinion of the management, to meet the needs of the
Group’s operations and mitigate the impact from cash flow
fluctuations. The management monitors the utilization of
bank loans and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking instruments to meet

short-term funding needs.

M2020F12 A31H KX2019412HA31H ' B
BHERRENEURFEXENMAEE
EREXGEENBUEFARH - A -
2 BME RBUE ) E AL B R AR SR B R 1S
Bsar ey A R IR B BE - IRIBIATE &8 -

MR EREERELEEABCADEARR/A
2REWE - ARERSEREHLRRELE
e

1.3 FEEE

EERDERE  AEBERFEEER
RRAINRENREFEYLH AL E
B UnEAKEEERE - ARE
RenE8NBNEE - AKEEEEY
RITR AN ERIERAETTEEAL FERE
STERE o Ry - AEBRMARITT
ARmRENESHRK
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT hEEmT EEBENERRE)
(Continued)

[ B B B RAMBER (F)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 1.3 FEREER(E)

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers both the
maturity of its financial instruments and the projected cash

flows from the Group’s operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current liabilities
amounted to RMB314,242,618 (31 December 2019:
RMB494,545,918). The Company uses bank loans and
bonds as its major sources of funding. As at 31 December
2020, the Company had unutilized bank loan facilities of
RMB16 billion. Based on the Company’s unutilized bank
loan facilities, profitability and cash flow forecast within
the next 12 months, the management believes that the
Company will have adequate funds in the future for timely
repayment of the existing debts and maintaining its normal

business activities.

The following is the maturity analysis for financial liabilities
held by the Group which is based on undiscounted

remaining contractual obligations:
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o EERT BMEENEEE)

II/

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Rk EE B RMBEE)

Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Ulbyﬁﬁ(ﬁt)
2020F12A31H

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

31 December 2020

Within 1 Year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over 5 years Total
155 R 1828 2B5% 5ELE CH
Bank loans (including interest) RITER(EFE) | 2,334,237,881 - - - 2,334,237,881
Notes payable ES 449,442 574 - - - 449,442,574
Accounts payable ERER 720,957,209 - - - 720,957,209
Bonds payable (including interest) ﬁfa%’(ﬁ'l g) - - 402,932,044 - 402,932,044
Other payables (excluding rent received in R (RS
advance) %EWE%) 163,323,734 94,912,141 - - 258,235,875
Lease payment RENFE 214,689,894 190,533,754 494,198,899 447,920,860 1,347,343,407
Total it 3,882,651,202 285,445,895 897,130,043 447,920,860 5,513,148,990
201912 A31H
31 December 2019
Within 1 Year 1-2 years 2-5years  QOver 5 years Total
1ELAR 1526 2555 5 E At
Bank loans (including interest) FATER(EME)  2,287,176,357 - - - 2,287,176,357
Notes payable ES 433,117,591 - - - 433,117,501
Accounts payable LS 907,047,722 - - - 007,047,722
Bonds payable (including interest) ENER(EHE) - - 402,326,607 - 402,326,607
Other payables (excluding rent received in EtEAR(FERER
advance) %) 162,016,145 17,101,886 78,235,360 - 247,353,391
Lease payment RERZTE 226,575,141 194,408,979 501,347,697 561,446,493 1,483,778,310
Total = 4,005,932,956 211,510,866 981,909,664 561,446,493 5,760,799,978
2020 i%&
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1y

X. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE + - RAABENEE
The available-for-sale financial assets(Note (VI) 8 (Note)), fair value NWARBEAEEEZSH T AZHEZNS
of which determined in accordance with quoted market price of BEE (MN8N EREBNESE
investee’s stock, are classified as Level 1, known as quoted price mMEMS EAREEARABEBRAAE
(unadjusted) of similar assets and liabilities in active market. B ENFE1EL  RBEEXBEETR

M5 CREFHE)NRE -

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial REBEERERE @ MBWMEPZRERKAE
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized costs in the ENEREEReRAENREEBEER
financial statements approximate their fair values. ZEBENBENAREE -
XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BERAIRBBHS
TRANSACTIONS
1. Parent of the Company 1 AEENEAFER
Proportion

of the  Proportion
entity's of the The

Registered  ownership entity's  ultimate

capital (10 interests  voting power  controlling
Name of the parent Place of Legal thousand ~ held by the  held by the  party of the Uniform social
company Type incorporation  representative  Nature of business yuan)  parent (%)  parent (%) Company credit code

BAEYAL BAR¥AL
AMER ZNERIS XORAEL  ALREK

BARER bl e EARE ERHE (Br) (%) Blee)  £57 G-HERARE
Chaofu Company State-owned  Beijing Zhao Yanchuan  Sales of food and ~ 72,000.00 40.61 40.61  Chaofu 9111000010163706X9
oll products Company
ELEVNG] 2REES LR ezl HERRIEAZR HEAT
2. Subsidiaries of the Company 2y AEENTFLFER
Please refer to Note (VIII) Equity in subsidiaries for the FRWEN - EFRBIRMER -

details of the subsidiaries of the Company.
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction

(1) Related party’s lease transaction

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

- BT R 5 ()

3

BB 5 BN

(1) BHEAREXR

Pricing basis
Type of of related party

Lessor Leasee lease transaction Notes 2020 2019
A #RA RHEE AR S ERKE izt 2020 & 20195
Amount Amount
it &8
Chaofu Company The Company Rental Price negotiated Note 1 618,282 618,282

HEAH AR itk REH HEHnER 1
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

334 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

On 30 April 2004, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading leased several properties in Beijing
from Chaofu Company, pursuant with annual rent
incremental on every five years for a term from 1
January 2004 to 31 December 2023. From 2006
to 2009, the Group entered into lease contracts or
supplemental agreements on several properties. As
30 June 2011, the annual rents under the contracts
with Chaofu Company were RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively for the Company and
its subsidiary Chaopi Trading. On 30 June 2011,
except for the properties used by 10 stores of the
Company (including 5 properties still owned by
Chaofu Company and 5 properties for which lease
agreements were terminated), the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Beijing Chaoyang District (“SASAC Chaoyang”)
approved the transfer of the land and properties
used by the Company from Chaofu Company to
Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE Management Company
Limited (“Hongchao Weiye”). The Company continued
to lease the properties owned by Chaofu Company
for its 5 stores at annual rent of RMB162,758 with
incremental once every five years. On 18 June
2012, the Company entered into a property lease
supplemental agreement with Chaofu Company,
pursuant to which the annual rent for the aforesaid
five properties were adjusted to RMB1,111,933
effecting from 1 July 2012 with incremental by 3%
every five years; and 1 additional property was leased
at annual rent of RMB214,412 with incremental
by 3% every five years for a term from 1 July
2012 to 31 December 2023. According to relevant
agreements and documents, since 1 January 2015,
the company’s annual rental expenses for Chaofu
Company were restored to the lease agreement
signed before 18 June 2012.
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II/

XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continueqd) 3 BEIRZBR(E)
(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued) (1) BHHEERER(E)

On 1 July 2011, the Company entered into lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye to renew the leasing
of properties under the original contractual terms at
annual rent of RMB7,344,499 effecting from 1 July
2011. On 1 July 2012, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to which
the annual rents for such properties were adjusted

to RMB26,997,108 effecting from the same day with

incremental by 3% every five years.

On 1 July 2011, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading entered into lease contracts with Hongchao
Weiye to renew the leasing of properties under
the original contractual terms at annual rent of
RMB920,853 effecting from 1 July 2011. On 1 July
2012, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading
entered into supplemental agreements to the aforesaid
lease contracts with Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to
which the annual rents for such properties were

adjusted to RMB2,808,259 effecting from the same

day with incremental by 3% every five years.
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 18 December 2013, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering the
Company paid relevant construction fees on the rebuild
project of certain of the properties in previous years
and the renovation project conducted by the Company
on behalf of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao Weiye will
compensate the Company for the cost of construction
costs and related taxes paid (“agent construction fees”)
on property renovation project and re-build project of
RMB86,742,211, including RMB41,265,838 recorded
in other receivables and RMB45,476,373 recorded in
long-term receivables. Meanwhile, agent construction
fees receivables of RMB22,197,108 recorded in other
receivables will immediately offset the rent payable to
Hongchao Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed by both
parties. From the 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2023, the fees on the rebuild project of certain
properties in previous years and the renovation project
conducted by the Company on behalf of Hongchao
Weiye will offset the rent to the Hongchao Weiye at

end of every year.
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

)

On 25 November 2014, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements again to terminate the
two supplemental agreements assigned on 1 July
2012 and 18 December 2013 respectively. From 1
July 2014 to 31 December 2023, the annual rents
of such properties were adjusted to revert to the
amount in the agreements on 1 July 2011, which
were RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively
with incremental by 3% every five years. Meanwhile,
for the rest of agent construction fee amounted to
RMB58,164,490 on 30 June 2014, Hongchao Weiye
won’t take the responsibility of paying the funds
back when the original agreement and supplemental
agreements are executed efficiently. The aforesaid rest
of agent construction fee is undertaken and amortized

by the Company.

Compensation for key management personnel

- BT R R 3 ()

BB S ER(E)
(1) BHHEEEX(E)

2014411 5258 » R&EEH3)
HEER LMASERBAER
o U Fili20124F7 A1 H
K&2013F 12 A18H D BT M
MR - B2014F7A1HE
2023%12A31H » LilfAEWE
FREWREK2011F7 A1B%E]
MHEEER<E S RIAAR
¥ 7,344,499 I A R 920,853
T BRFES3% o B - &Y

M EIIRAN20145F6 A30H
# %8 A R #58,164,4907T * 5L #H
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(2) FBREZEANSHH

2020 2019
ltem THE & 20205 & 20196 2
Compensation for key RAREIE A BB -
management:
Short-term employee benefits EEEE A 6,734,829 8,899,303
Post-employment benefits RIRIEEF 441,845 535,794
Total BET 7,176,674 9,435,097
2020 i%ﬁ& 337
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

- BBAIRBES(#E)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BEIXZER(E)

(2) Compensation for key management personnel (2) FRREENSHH(E)

(Continued)

BREEASEREEMNTEE S
authority and responsibility for planning, directing TETE - IEEMNEH B EIEHH
BEES  EFREMT
FREUBEBENAE - T4
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management HAREEAENRMBIEREAT
& RERBIBHM -

Key management members are personnel having

‘ﬂ]]n

and controlling the activities of the Group, including

directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise

includes wages or salaries, bonus, allowance,

subsidies.

IRBREBEIMES EMRARE
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock BREEN - FREEREF N
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, emoluments of T

According to the requirements of Company Ordinance

directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) I ITEFEH
The fees paid to independent non-executive FEALINBYIIERTES
directors during the year were as follow wamr
RMB’000
ARET T
Independent non-executive 2020 2019
directors BT EE 2020 201948
Onward Choi B22E 155 155
Chen Liping PR 7 42 42
Wang Liping F I 42 42
Total A&t 239 239

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during 2020

and 2019.
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

AN

RISk I ot

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

t- BABIRBEBIS(E)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

3 BEHRRIBER(E)
(2) BREZEASHH(E)

b) BITEF  HFHTEF B

supervisors and the chief executive FRAAETE
RMB’000
ARETT
Salaries, Post-
allowances Performance employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses * contributions Total
e ®£e
EEREY
2020 2020 & Be &R ENEe BAREANHR ol e
Executive directors: #{TES :
Li Jianwen FEX - 462 183 39 684
Shang Yongtian &2k H - 384 205 30 619
Li Chunyan THRK - 400 208 39 647
Li Shenlin ZEM - 68 164 8 240
Zhang liwei RIE - 421 208 39 668
Subtotal NEE - 1,735 968 155 2,858
Non-executive FEHIT
directors: R
Li Shunxiang [ pes - - - - -
Zhang yan RE - - - - -
Subtotal NEE - - - - -
Supervisors: Ex:
Liu Wenyu 23 H) - 400 164 39 603
Niu Hongyan AT - 278 52 35 365
Li Chunyi *Hn - 279 97 39 415
Chen Zhong PRi2 35 - - - 35
Fu Yanjun OF:35 35 - - - 35
Yang Baoqun e - - - - -
Subtotal NEt 70 957 313 113 1,453
Total &5t 70 2,692 1,281 268 4,311
2020 if& 339
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

- BB A REMR S (&)
3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BEIXZER(E)

(2) Compensation for key management personnel (2) FRREENSHH(E)

(Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b) #ITEF - FPTEF - E
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) FR AT (48 )
RMB’'000
AREFT
Salaries, Post-
allowances  Performance  employment
and benefits in related benefits
Fees kind bonuses *  contributions Total
e #e -
EUREY
2019 2019 F ok & FEEer  RIKEMES wmEe
Executive directors: #{TE % :
Li Jianwen FREX - 340 646 50 1,036
Shang Yongtian 77Kk H - 340 646 50 1,036
Li Chunyan FER - 262 497 50 809
Liu Yuejin 2R - 52 41 23 116
Zhang Liwei KRR - 159 - 23 182
Subtotal Nt - 1,153 1,830 196 3,179
Non-executive FEHTT
directors: EE:
Li Shunxiang E[pes - - - - -
Zhang Yan KE - - - - -
Subtotal INEF
Supervisors: EE:
Liu Wenyu 23 %) - 262 519 50 831
Niu Hongyan 44T - 163 50 45 258
Li Chunyi =5 - 168 125 40 333
Chen Zhong 553 35 - - - 35
Fu Yanjun E:3E 35 - - - 35
Yang Baoqun IHER - - - - -
Subtotal INEt 70 593 694 135 1,492
Total &t 70 1,746 2,524 331 4,671

Y OREFESREREEAR
MEBEMESEREAA L
—FHNBREED -

Performance related bonuses of these executives
and supervisors are related to the profit of the

Group of last year.
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)
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3

(2) Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(c)

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

In 2020 and 2019, there was no arrangement

under which a director or a supervisor waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration, and no

remuneration was paid by the Group to a director

or a supervisor as bonuses or unemployment

compensations for their entry to the Group.

Five highest paid employees

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid

BHRISERE)
(2) BREZEASHH(E)

b) BITEF  FHTEF  E
FRABACTE ()
R2020F E 20196 & + &
EREERERELRER
ZEEAME  MEETES
e FTES  BF - UE
RMBEESMBEBEZE
B AE TIERMHE -

©) IlrREFHHaER B2
AEERN - AfuBEHESR

employees during the year are as follow FEFES TN
RMB’000
AREFIT
2020 2019
ltem 1HH 20205 E 20195 &
Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥4 - 884  EILEY
in kind & 5,368 5,450
Performance related bonuses EiEe 5,354 3,994
Post-employment benefits BRIRE TR
contributions 201 262
Total &&t 10,923 9,706
2020 if& 341
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND - BEAIREBEIZ (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued) 3 BEIXZER(E)
(2) Compensation for key management personnel (2) FRREENSHH(E)
(Continued)
(c) Five highest paid employees (Continued) () HEfuzEEHNAIESHME
(#)
The number of employees whose remuneration FWAR T EEEEEB &
fell within the following bands is as follows =
2020 2019
20205 2019 &
HKD1,000,001 to 1,000,001 1,500,000 7
HKD1,500,000 3 1
HKD1,500,001 to 1,500,001 % 2,000,000/ T
HKD2,000,000 - 1
HKD2,000,001 to 2,000,001%2,500,000/8 7T
HKD2,500,000 - 2
HKD2,500,001 to 2,500,001 % 3,000,000/ 7T
HKD3,000,000 - 1
HKD3,000,001 to 3,000,001 %3,500,000/8 7T
HKD3,500,000 1 -
HKD5,500,001 to 5,500,001 %6,000,000/8 7T
HKD6,000,000 1 -
Total A&t 5 5
The above related party transactions under L+ — 3P RMBEE R ZEA( LT
paragraph 3 of Note (X|) constitute continuing BADBUAZBE TARBINRFERH RS -
connected transactions of the Company under ZERBEUABZHE(LETRADEI4AET
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are fully ErxERCETREMNLE FEEBRME
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual WEHE ©

review and all disclosure requirements under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

4. Receivables and payables of related parties 4 - B L EWEMARIE
The Group had no receivables or payables balance with 7202012 431 H & 20194 12 A 31
related parties 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. B - ANEE YRR S E U S BT R
THERFE o
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XI. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Related party commitments

The Company had signed a lease contract with Chaofu

Company for operation and storage.

The anticipated future rent by the Group

[tem IEH

15! year subsequent to the balance EEBEBEXRHBEF1F

+- B REABX S (F)

5 BAEET AR

ARARIHEBERARRII TEEMRE
[ - ARPIERIEE o

AEBBEARAREFEINOES S

2020 -12.31 2019.12.31
—2-%F —FNEF
+t=R=+—H +t=ZA=+—~H

sheet date 618,282 618,282
2nd year subsequent to the balance &AEABERAEF24F

sheet date 618,282 618,282
3 year subsequent to the balance BEREXBERFEIF

sheet date 618,282 618,282
Subsequent periods LAEFE - 618,282
Total CEll 1,854,846 2,473,128

The above related party transactions under paragraph 3 of
Note (XI) constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and
all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

ERE+— 3SR ZEK
(ETRADFBIAABIR AR A NFE
MRS ZERFEEBISE(LET
RADFEVIAZT TEZEARETEIRY
- FEEAMMBREMRE

2020@&
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XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES T2 EERBEEE
Significant commitments 1 BERXERSE
Capital commitments BXRE
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
g 3 —T—hF
ltem 1HE +=A=+—H +-F=+—8H
Acquisition of fixed assets BEBETEE
Authorized but not contracted ERERREL 378,533,388 359,743,503
Contracted but not provided BRLBREE 206,772,913 209,264,504
Total At 585,306,301 569,008,007
Contingencies 2 HBEHE

As 31 December 2020, the Company has no major

contingencies that need to be disclosed.

XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE

Acquisition of Real Estate located at Huairou district

On 11 January 2021, the Company held an extraordinary
general meeting and passed the resolution of the Huairou
Real Estate Acquisition Agreement signed by the company’s
subsidiary Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co.,
Ltd. and Beijing Shoulian Commercial Group Co., Ltd.,
which is located in Beijing No. 46, Kaifang Road, Huairou
District, City, with a construction area of 10,762.04 square
meters. The total purchase price for this purchase is
RMB101,735,130 (tax included). As at the date of this
report, the real estate is in the process of transferring,
Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial Co., Ltd. has paid
40% of the real estate price in accordance with the payment
progress stipulated in the acquisition agreement, and the
remaining 60% will be fully paid after the transfer of the real

estate is completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE (Continued)

2,

Matters of Related party composition

On 9 July 2020, the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District
issued the “Notice on the Merger and Reorganization
of Chaofu Company, Hongchaoweiye and Jinchaoyang
Company” (Chaoguozi Wen [2020] No. 134). According to
the provisions of the notification document, 100% equity of
Beijing Hongchaoweiye State-owned Assets Management
Co., Ltd. (“Hongchaoweiye”) held by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Chaoyang
District; Beijing Jinchaoyang State-owned Capital Operation
and Management Co., Ltd. (*Jinchaoyang” for short) held by
Baojiaheng Company) 100% of the equity was transferred
to Chaofu Company (the parent company of the company)
free of charge. After the completion of the free transfer,
Hongchaoweiye and Jinchaoyang became subsidiaries
of Chaofu Company. Hongchaoweiye and Jinchaoyang
completed the relevant industrial and commercial change
procedures on 22 January 2021 and 7 February 2021
respectively. So far, Hongchaoweiye, Jinchaoyang and the
Company are under the control of Chaofu Company and

constitute the related parties of the Company.

Prior to the completion of the aforementioned free transfer
of equity, Hongchaoweiye and Jinchaoyang had respectively
entered into lease agreements with the Company to
lease properties to the Company. Therefore, after the
completion of the above-mentioned equity transfer for free,
the continuing transactions of these leases will constitute
connected transactions between Hongchaoweiye and

Jinchaoyang and the Company.
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XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER
BALANCE SHEET DATE (Continued)

3. Other significant non-adjusting event after balance

sheet date

Except for the issues disclosed in Note (VI) 37, no other
significant non-adjusting event should be disclosed by
the Group by the end of the approval date of the financial

statements.

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS

1. Disclosure of fair value

On 31 December 2020, The Group, using the assets at fair
value, subscribed the fund products of Junxiang Wuliangye

No.1 for subsidiary Chaopi Trading

1.1 Assets measured at fair value

1= BERBERARSBEE)

3. HEEMNEERERAREARS
|
R bt IR R MRS - 37PTIR R E IR
Sh o BEAMBHERIER - AEBEE
HiBERBENEERBERARER -

o HEREE

1 ARBEENESR
R2020F12A31H  AEEUARE
B EMEEAKRARZ FARBAIE
ERENEZARRIFESER

O HUAREEFABHEE

The end of the fair value
ERQINEE
First level Second level Third level
fair value fair value fair value
measurement measurement measurement Total
F—BRAARE F-BRAIAE F=ZEBRAIAE
ltem HE Bt & Bt & B2 a5
Continuous fair value HER AR
measurement EEFE - - - -
Other non-current HEm®s
financial assets TREE 131,508,869 - - 131,508,869
Total assets EEN R
consistently EET=
measured at fair R EER
value | 131,508,869 - - 131,508,869
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

1. Disclosure of fair value (Continued)

1.2 Basis for determining the market price of

continuous and non-sustainable first-level fair value

measurement projects

The market price of the project is determined based
on the transaction statement provided by the securities

company.

2. Segment reporting

For the purpose of management, the Group classified the

operations into three segments according to the product

and service:

(@)

The retailing segment mainly engages in the distribution
of food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and

cigarettes, hardware and household appliances;

The wholesaling segment mainly engages in the
wholesale supply of daily consumer products, including
food, untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and

daily necessities;

The “others” segment comprises, principally, selling
plastic packing products, hotel services and school

training services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating

segments separately aiming at making decisions about

resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment

performance is evaluated based on the reported segment

profit.
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

th HMEEEHE)

Segment reporting (Continued) 2 DEHEE)
The segment report information is disclosed according to DEREEERES S EHMEEERE
the accounting policies and measurement standard adopted RNERANSHBRMERERTE - &
by each segment when reporting to the board of directors L ERAMERUAVBERRGNE
and these principles of measurement should be consistently PR BT S A RF—H -
with the accounting policy and measurement standard of
this financial statement.
All the assets and liabilities have been allocated to FIBEENMBBEYRREEDHEEEE
respective segment, no unallocated asset and liability which F AN ERASESR—EENEEM
are centrally managed by the Group. afE -
The transfer pricing of inter-segment is based on the market LEHHEMERZTEE  2EMSRE
price as well as the actual transaction price. BRZHEHHERERETT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2020 20205
Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others offset Total

Item EH 2E BRtE Hth¥%  ARBEEER B3
Operating income EEA
External revenue HIZBUA 4,635,876,200 7,327,462,780 20,458,955 - 11,983,797,935
Inter-segment revenue PEERZWA 24,498,349 403,264,903 23,477,967 (451,241,219 -
Total A% 4,660,374,549 7,730,727,683 43,936,922 (451,241,219)  11,983,797,935
Total prof fimas 69,327,543 98,680,047 (2,128,859) - 165878731
Income tax expense FEHER 17,610,067 62,174,981 123,257 - 79,908,305
Net profit EHE 51,717,476 36,505,066 (2,252,116) - 85,970,426
Total assets BERE 3,994,713,448 4,803,028,315 303,816,792 (1,032,927,086) 8,068,631,469
Total liabilities Elerits 3,033,941,349 3,857,547,597 37,083,592 (1,038,401,891) 5,890,170,647
Supplementary information: BHES
Depreciation and FENEHER

amortization expenses 295,599,784 87,147,444 3,588,508 - 386,335,736
Credit impairment loss ERAERL 555,641 16,300,607 - - 16,856,248
Capital expenditure BRMER S 160,126,829 31,027,309 (135,295) - 191,018,843
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1y

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) TR HaEEEEE)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2 DEHRE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 2019%F &

Inter-segment

Retailing Wholesaling Others offset Total
Item EH ZE BmitE EthxE  HEEEERR ait
Operating income ELIUN
External revenue HIZFRA 4,511,162,015  7,101,964,766 45,095,149 - 11,658,221,930
Inter-segment revenue AHERHUA 23,009,897 433,285,811 14,478,694 (470,864,402) -
Total = 4534261912 7535250577 59,573,843 (470,864,402)  11,658,221,930
Total profit e 61,377,676 112,617,087 4,807,480 - 178,802,243
Income tax expense FEHER 16,764,135 63,396,895 1,554,622 - 81,715,652
Net profit N 44,613,541 49,220,192 3,252,858 - 97,086,591
Total assets EERS 4,150,982,077 5,138,764,949 305,568,944 (1,093,757,999) 8,501,557,971
Total liabilities REES 3,235,154,829 4,140,864,538 43295888 (1,102,115,022) 6,317,200,233
Supplementary information: % {EE :
Depreciation and FENEHEER
amortization expenses 301,833,541 78,041,685 9,373,282 - 389,248,508
Credit impairment loss ERAERL 99,149 8,053,152 90,278 - 8,242,579
Capital expenditures ERMT 90,843,973 202,193,093 252,439 - 293,289,505
The Group’s businesses principally comprise retail and REEFELFEARLAMBE R HLEE
wholesale in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China. The mEEEMPEE  FTEAIHREEHIMR
majority identifiable assets are all located in Beijing. LR ©
Main customers of the Group are as follows AEENEEREFPIBFERNT
2020 2019
20205 20194
Proportion of the Proportion of the
total operating total operating
Operating income of the income of the
income Group (%) |Operating Income Group (%)
IEEEEERAL EEBEZEFRAL
ltem 1BH EERA (%) EERA 11(%)
Customer 1 = 1,734,988,736 14 1,5632,931,058 13
2020 if& 349
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR435IaH855) - £AEE B RET)

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian

Group

[tem IEH

Interest income from borrowings BEEIEF L
A

Lease expenses HEEH

Note 2

th HMEEEHE)

3 AEMEEBREE RS KGR

(1) FEEEEHEFENTEIZUNT

2020 2019

20204 20194
5,494,003 5,946,761
3,000,000 3,000,000

Note 1: Interest income from borrowing is derived from
interest expenses charged on the borrowing of
Shoulian with reference to loan interest rate stipulated

by bank for the same period.

Note 2: On 1 January 2009, the Company leased a property
and land located at Kaifang Road, Huairou District,
Beijing (“Huairou Hypermarket”) from Shoulian with
annual rent of RMB3,000,000 for a term from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2028.

On 1 January 2009, Shoulian Supermarket leased a
property and land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing
District, Beijing from Shoulian Group with annual rent
of RMB1,134,088 for a term from 1 January 2009 to
31 December 2028. On 24 December 2010, Shoulian
Supermarket was acquired by the Company and the
lease contract remained valid. On 30 September 2017,
the Company acquired the Lianchao Company, the
subsidiary of Shoulian Group, which owned a property
and land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing District,

Beijing.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, the recognized lease expenses was

RMB3,000,000 and RMB3,000,000 respectively.
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II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 &

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable and accounts payable between

the Group and Shoulian Group

ltem 5 H

Long-term receivables (Note(Vl) 18) KEAFEU R (FizEsS
Prepaid rents* e

tH HEttEREH(E)

3 ARMEEBREE RS RGEE)

(2) FEEEEHEELERRENL

HT
2020 12 31 2019.12.31
+= H_+ =} +=-—A=+—H”
+18) 135,600,000 135,600,000
9,000,000 12,000,000

The amounts are associated with one-off prepaidrents
for 15 years by the Group to Shoulian Group under the
lease contract of Huairou Hypermarket. That prepaid
rents are disclosed in long-term prepaid expenses
and other current assets as at the relevant balance
sheet dates. Details are referred to Note 2 of the major

transactions between the Group and Shoulian Group.

Lease
(1) The Group as lessee

@  Right-of-use and lease liabilities refer to Note (VI)
12, 30.

Y REFREASERBERIRE
SHREARYEKREE —RIEE
MsFENFEERSER - AhiR
NEeBREEAREREERARE
RARMGEERLAEMRDE
Ef - 2R bl AR EE E
EENTIER S22 -

4 HE

(1) FEBEREEA

O #FHEELE HEBEEBXR
LRE KBNS 12 230 °
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

4. Lease (Continued)

(1) The Group as lessee (Continued)

@

Details of included in the current profit and loss

and related asset costs

th HMEEEHE)

4~ HEE#E)

(1) FEEEBEBA(E)

Q FAXFRzmHIEEEEK
ZN: =

Included in the current

profit and loss

Included in related asset costs

FFARFEZE FFARBEERAR
Presentation Presentation
item Amount  item Amount
ltem I8 H Hl|FRIEH ©%  FRE\EE -]
Short-term lease YHITHE  Selling expenses 17,644,335 - -
expenses (applica- EMA(E HEEH
ble to simplified) At
#)
Lease fees for low- (KEEZE - - - -
value assets HEEA
(applicable to (A
simplified) {LEEIE)
Variable lease RKWATHE - - - -
payments not BEHE
included in AT &7
lease liability SRR
measurement
Income from EF A  Other operating 33,018,783 - -
sublease of right- EERE  income
of-use assets R EMEBUA
Sale and leaseback &#EME - - - -
transaction 2
Note: The “short-term lease expenses” in the table e ERPIEHBEEERIT

above do not include lease-related expenses with

a lease term of less than one month; the “low-value

asset lease expenses” do not include the short-

term lease expenses of low-value assets included

in the “short-term lease expenses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

4.

Lease (Continued)

(1) The Group as lessee (Continued)

®

AN

RISk I ot

1y

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br435Ia8855) - £ABE W BN RET)

4 ~

Lease-related cash flow outflows

tH HEttEREH(E)

HE#E)
(1) FEEEBEBA(E)

Q@ HBEEHBNHEERERH

=
Amount for
Types of cash flow the year
ltem 1HE RERELE7 KELEE
Cash paid for principal and EEHEBELRS A E Cash outflow 225,070,185
interest on lease liabilities i fSeRe of financing
activities
- BEEDRERLY
Payments for short-term HEHHENMEEBREE Cash outflow 15,611,078
leases and low-value assets SRR R ER GE A A S from operating
(applicable to simplified) L&) activities
R ERe R
Variable lease payments paid TRMARMNAHERED Cash outflow -
that are not included in the AREENKE from operating
lease liability activities
"LETEESRS R
Total &t 240,681,263
Other information @ EmiE
Nature of lease activity HEEZBHEE
The main leased assets in this period are RETEHNHEABEEAEERE

houses, which are basically used in retail stores

and commodity warehouses. The lease term is

generally 5-20 years, and no lease renewal option

is stipulated in the lease contract.

E EARREEMEMD
mERE - HEHR KA
5-20% - HEARFTHKRL

EEMEEE -
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1y

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) TR HEMEEEEE)
4. Lease (Continued) 4~ FHEE)
(1) The Group as lessee (Continued) (1) ZFEFERERBEAE)
® The impact of the simplified treatment of rent © A (GG 1 %
reductions related to the COVID-19 BB 2
The Group adopts simplified treatment methods AEBHR2HBFE(TE
for all lease contracts that meet the applicable [2020]105% ) @& 3 5 B 1 1§
scope and conditions of (Cai Kuai [2020] No. 10) HHEEER - RAGEE
(Details refer to Note IV, 23 “Lease”). B E(FERMFED - 2317
gl -
The simplified treatment mentioned above R B EE T EBE
caused that the Group’s sales expenses for AEE22020FEHEEA
2020 decreased by RMB3,206,270 and “net J8 4 3,206,2707C ~ [ BFE R
profit attributable to shareholders of the parent 7 A AR R A F FDE 13 N
company” increased by RMB3,206,270. 3,206,2707T °
(2) The Group as lessor (2) ZFEBEEZHEA
Information related to operating leases B EHERBAMNER
@D  Included in the current profit and loss O  FAEXFBZREL
Included in the current profit and loss
FEARFIEE
Presentation item Amount
ltem ERE| HI¥RIAE k-
Rental income (Note) AEWA(GGE) Other operating 168,296,399
income
HAbZBBIA
Revenue related to variable EAMAHER KA EN
lease payments that are not A& F S FREEAEE AU
included in the measurement A
of lease receipts - -
Total a5t 168,296,399
Note: Which including RMB33,018,783 of income from i HReEEEeREsE
sublease of Right-of-use asset, please refers to H 1§ #9 W A 33,018,783
‘Note XIV, 4, (1), @ Details of included in the T SR 4
current profit and loss and related asset costs (1)~ QFFAXRFERFIA
B EKRANIER]
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) 0 HEESE ()

4. Lease (Continued) 4 ~
(2) The Group as lessor (Continued)

@  Collection of lease payments

ltem B

15t year subsequent to the balance sheet BEBEXRBEE14F

HE#E)
(2) FEBERBHBEAE)

Q@ HEWHERWIER

Amount of undiscounted
lease payments to be
received

5 Y B ) R I IR TH E UK AR

date 74,892,210
2nd year subsequent to the balance BEABERAKE2F

sheet date 47,525,464
3 year subsequent to the balance BEEBEKXBREEIF

sheet date 31,499,577
4" year subsequent to the balance BEBERBREREIF

sheet date 17,438,219
5% year subsequent to the balance BEBEBERARKESF

sheet date 9,343,826
Subsequent periods FerFE 18,959,168
Total a5t 199,658,464

®  Other information Q@ AftEE
Nature of lease activity HEEHNIEE
The main leased assets in this period are houses AMEBZNHLEEREE
(BiEgBERELAMBAR

(including the lease of own property and the
sublet of leased property). The lease term is
generally 3-10 years, and no lease renewal option

is stipulated in the lease contract.

EEM) HEHR—%KA
3-10F - HEAR+PHERY

EEHREE -
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

5.

Matters of Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company
Limited

Basic situation:

Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company Limited (refers to “Jinan
Chaopi Company”) is a secondary subsidiary of the Group,
Since the establishment of Jinan Chaopi Company, its
financial statements have been included in the consolidated

scope of the Group.

Because there is an unresolved dispute between the
minority shareholder of Jinan Chaopi Company (formerly
the general manager of Jinan Chaopi Company) and the
major shareholder Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited
(the first-level subsidiary of the Group, refers to “Chaopi
Trading”), Since November 2019, minority shareholders
have refused to hand over items and materials such as the
company’s business license, bank account opening permit,
company seal, special financial seal, financial account books

and vouchers that they originally controlled.

The above-mentioned actions of the minority shareholders
have resulted in the inability to guarantee the completeness
and accuracy of the data related to Jinan Chaopi Company
in the Group’s 2020 consolidated financial statements, at
the same time, part of the audit procedures, such as letter
certificates and inspection vouchers, that the auditors need
to perform on Jinan Chaopi Company for the purpose of
expressing audit opinions on the Group’s 2020 financial
statements cannot be performed. Therefore, the auditor
has issued a qualified audit report on the Group’s 2020

consolidated financial statements on this matter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

5.

Matters of Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company
Limited

Basic situation: (Continued)

2020 continued to affect:

As of the date of approval of this financial statement, the
fact that the minority shareholders of Jinan Chaopi Company
illegally possessed the company’s items and materials is still
in a state of continuity. Chaopi Trading has adopted legal
means to require minority shareholders to return the above-

mentioned illegally owned items and materials.

Introduction to the main financial status of Jinan Chaopi
Company:

According to the financial statements for 2020 provided by
Jinan Chaopi Company, the company’s total assets and net
assets incorporated into the group’s consolidated financial
statements for the period 2020 are RMB89.485 million
and RMB -4.0681 million respectively, which account for
1.11% and -0.19% of the corresponding amounts in the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet on 2020; The operating
income and net profit included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the period 2020 are 29.0561
million and -9.5358 million respectively, which account
for 0.24% and -11.09% of the corresponding amounts in
the consolidated income statement for the period 2020

respectively.
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R E AR AR A 2020F 81 15
WE - ZAREHHMAKREE2020F
BHIBRENEERBEMFEES
#8,948.508 JLM-406.81 8 T * 154
EE2020FAMHEERBRTPEES
BEOLO S B A1.11%HM-0.19% : &
B4 A AR £ B 2020 F & BB 15 3R & 1
EEWAFFERNE S 5 /52,905.618 7T
#1-963.588 7T * 1H ALK E2020F & HF
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II/

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued) tTH-HEtEEEEE)

5. Matters of Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company 5 BREEBMMWERERRATSEE)

Limited
Basic situation: (Continued)

Introduction to the main financial status of Jinan Chaopi

Company: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of Jinan Chaopi
Company is 89.485 million, which mainly is prepayable
60.7855 million, accounts receivable 14.5844 million,
other accounts receivable 5.0738 million, inventory 6.4251
million, the total liabilities is 93.55631million, which are
mainly other payable RMB90.2325 million, which is mainly
the RMB62.0168 million loan from the major shareholder
Chaopi Trading, contact liability is 3.3146 million; net assets
is RMB -4.0681 million, which is consist of paid-in capital
RMB26 million, surplus reserve RMB0.5066 million, and
undistributed profit RMB -30.5747 million.

In addition, before November 2019 (that is, before the
minority shareholders illegally took possession of the
company’s goods and materials), Jinan Chaopi Company

had no asset mortgage guarantees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

6.

The impact of the COVID-19 epidemic on the Group

In 2020, COVID-19 epidemic in the international and
domestic had been serious. As always, the Group adhered
to the original mindset of “products + services”. During the
coronavirus pandemic, the Group committed to overcome
difficulties with all sectors of society, spared no effort to
maintain supply and price. Relying on the advantages of our
live and fresh produce base and our own logistics system,
the Group mobilized materials and guaranteed supply to
ensure the needs for “the rice bag” and “the vegetable
basket ” for the people in the capital city, as well as for
epidemic prevention and sanitation products, are met. The
Group actively responded to the “Ensure supply, Stabilize
prices, and Continue operations” initiative on the retail
industry jointly initiated by National Chain Store & Franchise
Association under the guidance of the National Development
and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Commerce to
stabilize the basic livelihood needs in Beijing. Meanwhile,
the Group strictly implemented various epidemic prevention
and control measures, provided employees with safe
workplaces and customers with safe shopping environment,
and fulfilled the corporate social responsibility. In the face
of the impact of the epidemic, the downward pressure
of the international environment and the related trends of
rationalization of consumption, the Group has demonstrated
its commitment to continuous innovation and optimization
of management to improve resilience. Under the epidemic,
chain supermarkets with self-built logistic and distribution
center and live and fresh produce base have become
important carriers to stabilize prices and ensure supply and
protect people’s livelihood. Besides, people’s demand for
contactless shopping for daily necessities such as live and
fresh produce, rice, wheat flour and edible oils is rapidly
increasing. To seize this opportunity, the Group relied on
physical stores, leveraged the online sales channels and
experience accumulated in recent years, and made use
of our own APP and third-party platforms to continuously
enrich the variety of online products and improve the ability
to fulfill orders. During the Reporting Period, the online

business volume of the Group increased significantly.
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBBERTEHAGEE
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

1. Accounts receivable 1 EWERR
(1) 31 December 2020 (1) 2020%125318
Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEW AR 7 25 1% 75
2020.12.31
—E_EF+-B=1-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
RESE EREXER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category bl kit HAl (%) 8 HREEA(%) REEE
Accounts receivable with BT 21=H
single provision for BREED
credit loss IR - - - - -

Accounts receivable with 1RAA FHEE
credit loss allowance K EE
based on portfolio ) U BR R 65,313,274 100 - - 65,313,274

Total A 65,313,274 100 - - 65,313,274
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHEBEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1.

Accounts receivable (Continued) 1 EWERRR(E)
(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (1) 2020%F12H31H (%)
The aging of accounts receivable is as follows JEW AR AR A0 T
2020.12.31
—EZEF+=A=+—H
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion (%) allowance  Net book value
Aging R &8 EE51(%) FERIBXRER IREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 65,313,274 100 - 65,313,274
1-2 years 1824 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4B55F - - - -
Over 5 years 5% E - - - -
Total &t 65,313,274 100 - 65,313,274
Accounts receivable of related parties JEYSBERS 5 9B 40 T
Proportion of the
Relationship between total accounts
other related parties and receivable of the
Company name the Company Amount Company (%)
IHEW R A
BuER EEAR 1 R BAR o 9 EE 51(%)
Jingkelong Langfang Subsidiary 21,867,056 33
RERE RS FRA]
Shouchao Group Subsidiary 7,433,210 11
HiBEE FAF
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 3,434,355 5
REREEIMN TR
Total 32,734,621 49
a5t
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued)

)

TR PR BHRRETERBZRE)

1 BRERM(E)

(1) 2020%12531H (%)

In the portfolio, accounts receivable with credit losses

MEFP - RS ITAIEIEA

allowance based on the aging analysis method TR B FENAR L
2020.12.31
—EB-EF+=-A=+—H
Accounts Credit loss Provision ratio
receivables allowance (%)
Aging BRiER FE UK BR X FERIBXRERE sHREEBI(%)
Within 1 year 1ELA 65,313,274 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3&E4F - - 25
4-5 years AB55F - - 50
Over 5 years 5F A+ - - 100
Total A% 65,313,274 -
31 December 2019 (2) 2019%12H31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category FEUAR FR D FE I B
20191231
ZE-AETZA=T-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
FHRE BRBXER
Net book
Amount - Proportion (%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category 15 £ £ f71(%) &% FHELAI(%) FHEE
Accounts receivable with single ERHRERERERNEIER
allowance for credit loss ‘ ) - - - - -
Accounts receivable with credit loss  RAAHRERBLEENERER
allowance based on portfolio 79,981,805 100 - - 79,981,805
Total At 79,981,805 100 - - 79,981,805
The aging of accounts receivable is as follows JEY IR BRE 20 T
2019.12.31
“E-NF+=-A=1-H
Carrying Proportion  Credit loss Net book
amount (%) allowance value
Aging Fik 8 %) EREXER FEEE
Within 1 year AR 79,981,805 100 - 79,981,805
1-2 years 1526 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3B4F - - - -
4-5 years 4E5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5FLAE - - - -
Total A5t 79,981,805 100 - 79,981,805
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHEBEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1 EWERR(E)
(2) 31 December 2019 (Continued) (2) 2019%412H31H(%&)

Accounts receivable of related parties JFEY B 77 Y FRIBLA T
Relationship between Proportion of the total
other related parties and accounts receivable of

Company name the Company Amount the Company (%)

) RN B e B

BAIHE =PI/ 7R ©F B L 171(%)

Jingkelong Langfang Subsidiary 34,842,761 44

REE R FRA]

Shouchao Group Subsidiary 9,710,811 12

BEEE FARA]

Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 5,308,547 7

REREEM FRA]

Total 49,862,119 63

&5t

In the portfolio, accounts receivable with credit losses HeF @ BREDITETIRER

allowance based on the aging analysis method B EUERK

2019.12.31
—E-NFt+ZA=1+—H
Accounts Credit loss Provision ratio
receivables allowance (%)

Aging ARES FEUARFR EREREE FHREEDI(%)

Within 1 year 1A 79,981,805 - 0

1-2 years 1226 - - 3

2-3 years 2E3F - - 10

3-4 years 3E4F - - 25

4-5 years 4EBF - - 50

Over 5 vyears 5F A+ - - 100

Total a5t 79,981,805 -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

3

Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable

31 December 2020

Relationship with

TR PR BHRRETERBZRE)

1 EWERRGE)
(3) BRI ERERNFREFBEF B & B
FEWRERF 18R
2020%F12H31H
Proportion of the

amount to the Closing balance
total accounts of credit loss

Name of entity the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
HEVRRAE SERABXERSF
BuAR B QT BR &8 B EE il (%) REHE
Jingkelong Langfang Subsidiary 21,867,056 33 -
REREEBY FAR]
Beijing Chaoyang District Independent third 8,726,437 13 -
Detention Center party
bR meEABE BT BUIE=F
Shouchao Group Subsidiary 7,433,210 11 -
BiREE S
Chaoyang Branch of Beijing Independent third 3,898,067 6 -
Municipal Public Security party
Bureau
IRTRALRAGS B BNE=F
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 3,434,355 5 -
RERERM FRA]
Total 45,359,125 68 -
&5t
31 December 2019 201912 A31H
Proportion of the
amount to the  Closing balance
Relationship with total accounts of credit loss
Name of entity the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
IERMERR R (ERBKERF
BHTE HARAAIRE ] B9 6 £71(%) NEHE
Jingkelong Langfang Subsidiary 34,842,761 44 -
REREEY FAF]
Shouchao Group Subsidiary 9,710,811 12 -
BiREE S
Beijing Chaoyang District Independent third 7,993,740 10 -
Detention Center party
5@ E T AT BYE=F
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 5,308,547 7 -
RN FAR]
Beijing Haidian District Independent third 3,766,125 5 -
Detention Center party
ERE TP BYE=F
Total 61,621,984 78 -
&t
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHEBEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables 2 v HfhFEEWR
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—ECEF —E-hF
ltem 1HH +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8~
Other receivables E{th 8 W R 501,300,499 550,830,771
Interest receivables JEYLAI B - -
Dividend receivables JE L AR F - -
Total &5t 501,300,499 550,830,771
Details of other receivables BB 1ER
(1) 31 December 2020 (1) 20204 12H31H
Presentation of other receivables by category HAb R D H 5
2020.12.31
ZECEETIAST-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
FE#E EREXER
Net book
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category g5l £ $f1(%) S8 HREA(%) kEEE
Other receivables with single credit loss BIERERBAEENA E
allowance W 4,656,771 1 4,224,750 91 432,021
Other recelvables with credit loss alowance AR ERELEEHE
based on portfolio e 500,868,478 99 - - 500,868,478
Total At 505,525,249 100 4,224,750 501,300,499
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows Efth R RBREC AT
2020.12.31
SE-RFt-A=T-A
Carrying Credit loss Net book
amount Proportion% allowance value
Aging ik 8 (%) ERBXER EHEE
Within 1 year S 500,868,478 99 - 500,868,478
1-2 years 1508 - - - -
2-3 years 2%3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4Z5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5FPAF 4,656,771 1 4,224,750 432,021
Total A&t 505,525,249 100 4,224,750 501,300,499
2020 %5 365
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEEBZEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)
(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (1) 2020F12H31H (#)
Other receivables with single provision for credit loss FARBIEFHRERBEREH HAb
allowance at 31 December 2020: e
2020.12.31
SESRFTSAZT-A
Carrying Credit loss
Content of other receivables amount allowance Rate (%) Reason
HitEW AR REAE ERE%SHE HRWAI%) B
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market 4,656,771 4,224,750 91 Full bad debt provision for the
Company Limited part unrecovered, according
to the agreement
LREEBRLETEERAR REEHHE  HRUE PR
EREXER
In the portfolio, other receivables for which credit e - BRERSTETIRER
loss allowance are made based on the aging analysis 1BR AR I E At FE UK
method
2020.12.31
—E-EF+=-H=+—H
Other Credit loss
receivables allowance Proportion%
Aging IR H e X ERIEXRER sHREEHI (%)
Within 1 year 1F LA 500,868,478 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4Z55F - - 50
Over 5 years 5F AL - - 100
Total A&t 500,868,478 -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHEBEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) BB 1EE (&)
(1) 31 December 2020 (Continued) (1) 2020%12H31H (4)
Provision for bad debts EREETIRER
The first  The second The third
stage stage stage
E-Ra E-RE Y2
Expected

Expected  credit loss
credit loss for the entire

for the entire duration

Expected duration (credit

credit loss in (no credit  impairment

the next 12 impairment has
months occurred) occurred) Total

REFENE EEFENR
BERRLX  AERR%
AR12BAE  (RBEER (CREER

Bad debt provision BRER MEREX HE) HE) &t
Opening Balance FN%E - - 4224750 4,224,750
The beginning balance is in the current FOBREREAH
period
- Move to the second stage ~BAE[EH - - - -
- Move to the third stage -BAZ=RE - - - -
- Back to the second stage —EEE L - - - -
- Back to the first stage ~BRE[&5 - - - -
Withdrawal for this period KERIR - - - -
Reversal for this period KEER - - - -
Resell for this period KEBHE - - - -
Written off for this period AEZH - - - -
Other changes HinEE) - - - -
Ending balance ERBE - - 4224750 4,224,750
Other receivables of related parties o fth EUR BB 75 MO FRIBIA T
Relationship between Proportion of the total
other related parties other receivables of
Company name and the Company Amount the Company (%)
IhE AR R AR RE
BuHE B BIBAR X 9 EE 1l (%)
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary 450,962,834 90
it FRA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 9,296,201 2
@M FRA]
Training School Subsidiary 140,353 -
B FATA]
Total 460,399,388 92
&t
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)
Details of other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2019

Presentation of other receivables by category

TR PR BHRRETERBZRE)

2~ HAEWEK(E)

AR ER ()

(2) 2019%F12/H31H
Hp RN B R

2019.12.31
ZE-NETZAZT-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
BHRE [EREXER
Net book
Amount - Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%) value
Category 15 Exi £.071(%) 2% FHRA(%) BHER
Other receivables with single credit loss ERHRERERERNAME
allowance e 5,061,377 1 4,224,750 84 826,627
Other receivables with credit loss alowance  RAAMIREREXEBNEL
based on portfolio R 550,004,144 9 - - 550,004,144
Total fit 555,055,521 100 4,224,750 550,830,771
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows H b WG ERER 0 T~
2019.12.31
“E-NETZA=T—H
Carrying Credit loss Net book
amount  Proportion % allowance value
Aging il Ec thlon) EREXER REER
Within 1 year 1R 550,004,144 99 - 550,004,144
1-2 years 1226 - - - -
2-3 years 283F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4E - - - -
4-5 years 4E5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5EE 5,061,377 1 4,224,750 826,627
Total GH 555,055,521 100 4,224,750 550,830,771
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STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

@

31 December 2019 (Continued)

Other receivables with single credit loss allowance at

31 December 2019:

Content of other receivables Carrying amount ~ Credit loss allowance
AR AD REHE ERE%EH
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale 5,061,377 4,224,750

Market Company Limited

IREERRBENEERDT

T RRMBHRREIERBZREE)

2 HfbFEWR(E)
BB ER ()
(2) 2019%F12A31H (&)
FREEMEERBRERBNEM
MR

Rate (%)  Reason
SHRLOI%)

84 Full Credit loss allowance for the
part unrecovered, according
to the agreement

REEF Bz - HRWERA
RERBXER

In the portfolio, other receivables for which credit

loss allowance are made based on the aging analysis

MEP  BERERDITARRIER
1B IR A g Y EL A B UK

method
2019.12.31
—E-NEF+ZA=+—H
Other Credit loss
receivables allowance Proportion%
Aging ARES H A FE UK ERERERE FTHREERHI(%)
Within 1 year 1FE LA 550,004,144 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3ZE4F - - 25
4-5 years 4E55F - - 50
Over 5 years 5F LA - - 100
Total &t 550,004,144 -
2020 %5 339
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEEBZEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)
Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)
(2) 31 December 2019 (Continued) (2) 2019F12AH31H (&)
Provision for bad debts ERRERBIHRIEN

The first ~ The second The third
stage stage stage
£—BE FRRER R
Expected Expected

credit loss credit loss

for the entire  for the entire

Expected duration duration

credit loss in (no credit (credit

the next 12 impairment  impairment
months occurred) has occurred) Total

REGENE BEFEHRE
HEREL  BERERX
AR12EAR  (REEER (EHLER

Bad debt provision ZHER HEREX E) E) =1
Opening Balance FBE - - 4224750 4,224750
The beginning balance is in the current FOBREELRY

period - - - -
- Move to the second stage ~BAEREE - - - -
- Move to the third stage N = - - - -
- Back to the second stage -ERE-EE - - - -
- Back to the first stage -BEE—AH - - - -
Withdrawal for this period KEFR - - - -
Reversal for this period AFER - - - -
Resell for this period AEEH - - - -
Written off for this period RERZ - - - -
Other changes A5 - - - -
Ending balance ERBE - - 4224750 4,224,750
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHEBEEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HthpEEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) BB 1EE (&)
(2) 31 December 2019 (Continued) (2) 2019 12H31H (#&)
Other receivables of related parties H YRR 5 SRR T
Proportion of
Relationship between the total other
other related parties receivables of the
Company name and the Company Amount Company (%)
16 E A FE W AR SR 5
BRI HE EVA/NTS] 7R Gk B9 L 171(%)
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary 500,000,000 91
I E FRA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 16,864,628 3
REREBM FRA]
Training School Subsidiary 201,370 -
BRI FRa
Total 517,065,998 94
&t
(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature (3) BHEMEITHEMBENRL
2020.12.31 2019.12.31
—EDEF —E-NF
Nature of other receivables HoAth lE RS +=A=+—H +-—A=+—H
Receivables of promotional FEURSH B
activities 29,801,281 28,445,648
Receivables of related parties JFE W BEHE: 5 SR8 460,399,388 517,065,998
Others Hith 11,099,830 5,319,125
Total a5t 501,300,499 550,830,771
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Th AR BEBRRETZEETER(E)
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HiEWRE)

(4) BXFGERHFRGHEINLEL

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2020

Nature of other

Bt ER 157
2020%12H31H

Proportion of the
amount to the total

Closing balance of

Company name receivables Closing balance other receivables (%) credit loss allowance
AR
B %E MERE FREH BENLBI%) EREBXAERERRE
Chaopi Trading Receivables of subsidiary 450,962,834 90 -
borrowing

HAREE FRABR

Jingkelong Tongzhou Current account 9,296,201 2 -

REEREM R

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Receivables of prepaid 4,656,771 1 4,224,750
Company Limited rent

IREERRBETSERAR EiHg

Beijing Yuquan Xingye Investment Current account 3,000,000 1 -
Management Company

FREFEEREERNA (TN

Meituan Takeaway Current account 1,647,563 - -

FENE HRR

TOtil 469,563,369 94 4,224,750

Az

[=)]

31 December 2019

Company name

Nature of other receivables

Closing balance

201912 A31H

Proportion of the
amount to the total
other receivables (%)
HE BN

Closing balance of
credit loss allowance

BhAHE FORME FREE BENLH%) EREXREEFRAE
Chaopi Trading Receivables of subsidiary 500,000,000 91 -
borrowing

PHES FRAEK

Jingkelong Tongzhou Current account 16,864,628 3 -

REEBM R

Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Receivables of prepaid 5,087,250 1 4,224,750
Company Limited rent

TREEARBENSERAA litiika

Beijing Yuquan Xingye Investment Current account 3,000,000 1 -
Management Company

TREREEREERNA R

Beijing Urban and Rural Housing Current account 800,000 - -
Construction Development Co., Ltd.

TR BRERREEBRRELNA R

Total 525,751,878 96 4,224,750

At
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STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3.

Long-term equity investment

31 December 2020

REBERE
202012A31H

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

Accounting Initial Change
Investee methods investment cost 2020.1.1 in the year 2020.12.31
ZECEE ZECEE
GH e RERE NmRERE -fA-H BHE® T-A=t-H
Long-term equity investment in subsidiaries
HTARRARERE
Jingkelong Langfang cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
REEES RAEE
Chaopi Trading cost method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
HEE K%
Xinyang Tongli cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
R5EN RAE
Shoulian Supermarket cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
5 e RAE
Jingkelong Tongzhou cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
REEBNM K%
Training School cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
EAIER RAE
Lianchao Limited cost method 268,955,702 268,955,702 - 268,955,702
BT KA
Total 1,246,991,571 - 1,246,991,571
At
Description
of the
difference Provision for
Proportion  Proportion between the Provision for  impairment Cash
of ownership of voting  formerand  impairment of assetsin  dividend in
interests (%)  power (%) the latter of assets the year the year
ERREEN
ERREEN BREHIER
EHREEN  RAELH RELAR- REFRHE
Investee BREEMN BRELB(%) (%) BHH AEEE B RERSAR
Long-term equity investment in - {FARIREARERE
subsidiaries
Jingkelong Langfang REERYS 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading B Eg 79.85 79.85 - - - 31,940,720
Xinyang Tongli REEEN 55.66 55.66 - - - 667,893
Shoulian Supermarket BEEm 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBN 100 100 - - - -
Training School EHIER 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited NG| 100 100 - - - -
Total ait - - 32,608,613
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1y

(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (BR4ZFIzE855) » £ 588 (v BA R T)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3.

Long-term equity investment (Continued)

31 December 2019

TR PR BHRRETERBZRE)

3

REKRERE(E)

2019%12H31H

Accounting Initial Change
Investee methods investment cost 2019.1.1 in the year 2019.12.31
—Z-N\E “Z-NE
BREEN BERE M RERA —-A-A RS TZA=t-H
Long-term equity investment in subsidiaries
HFRERARERE
Jingkelong Langfang cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
REEEY RAE
Chaopi Trading cost method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
b RAE
Xinyang Tongli cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
E#N A%
Shoulian Supermarket cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
ERET RAA
Jingkelong Tongzhou cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
REBERM RAE
Training School cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
HEr RAE
Lianchao Limited cost method 268,955,702 268,955,702 - 268,955,702
TN RAE
Total 1,246,991,571 - 1,246,991,571
At
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion  Proportion of  between the  Provision for - impairment of
of ownership  voting power ~ former and impairment of ~ assets in the Cash dividend
interests (%) (%) the latter assets year inthe year
ERREEN
EmREEl BhifIEE
ERREEN  RAELH RELHIA- RERRE
Investee RREEN FRREL A1) G0 EBEEH OHEER B RFRDAN
Long-term equity investmentin -~ {FARIRERERE
subsidiaries
Jingkelong Langfang REERS 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading HHER 79.85 79.85 - - - 31,940,720
Xinyang Tongli REEEN 55.66 55.66 - - - 1,113,155
Shoulian Supermarket BEEm 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBM 100 100 - - - -
Training School EIER 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited N 100 100 - - - -
Total ait - - 33053875

M 202012 A31 B 20194 12 A 31
BARRBEHREBRERE ZHEE
BAUEAAREBESHNENKRZIIR
il o

On 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, no
restriction appeared on the capability of transferring fund

from investee to the Company.
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

II/

RISk I ot

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 20204 /Z
(Unless otherwise specified, the currency is RMB) (Br43FIz%E855) » £ 8B BA RS T)

T RRMBHRREIERBZREE)

4. Operating income and operating costs 4~ BEWA - EERK
2020 2019
20205 201958
Income Cost Income Cost
ltem EH KA 2 WA A
Principal operating TEEH 3,995,073,149  3,385,623,417 | 3,821,290,698 3,229,407,062
Other operating Hin %% 316,604,848 10,768,059 | 364,298,997 11,689,919
Total At 4,311,677,997  3,396,391,476 | 4,185,589,695 3,241,096,981

The Company’s business principally comprises retailing, so

the top five customers are not disclosed.

The principal operating income mainly engages in the

distribution of food, untagged food, daily necessities,

ARRIEEXEHEERT

BEAIDRER -

EEXH - HUOR

FEEBKWRATZAHEHERD 8RR

o BREEMS

BURHRNE F BV By UL

beverage and wine. A e
Investment income 5~ REWS
2020 2019

ltem BH 20205 20196 &
Investment income from distributed ﬁJZZK/X% TR AR E

dividend of subsidiaries. 32,608,613 33,058,875
Investment gain from buying financial iiﬂﬁﬁuu&ﬁﬂﬂl?\

products - 209,807
Total A&t 32,608,613 33,263,682

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, no

significant restriction appeared on the Company’s remittance

of investment income.

XVI. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements and the financial
statements of the Company were approved by the board of

directors on 26 March 2021.

R2020F12 831 H & 2019412 A 31
B @ AARIREWRER T FEER

PR -

TR MRz

ARRA G R AR BHERN202143 A
6HEREARRREREHAE

ERRE

2020 @%ﬁ 375
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
I ERE

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the WU NABEBAEERNBEREYTRFEE 2 ¥4E
Group for last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s H&E&E - BEEBRAZHE :

annual reports, is set out below:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EC-EF “E-NF —E-N\F “E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFTL AREFTL ARETT ARETL

Results £
Revenue FTEERIA 11,004,132 10,555,190 10,445,548 10,786,227 10,847,005
Profit before tax fBEsE 165,878 178,802 177,590 148,189 134,450
Income tax expense FriEHER (79,908) (81,716) (71,213) (63,347) (69,129)
Net profit EFE 85,970 97,086 106,377 94,842 75,321

Attributable to shareholders of the EBR B ARIEENZE

parents E 56,304 52,935 63,312 47 485 26,686
Minority interests PERRERE 29,666 44151 43,065 47,357 48,635
85,970 97,086 106,377 94,842 75,321

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

—ECEF “Z-NEF —2-N\F 2+ F ZT-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR%ETR AREFT AREFT ARETT AEETT
Assets, Liabilities and Equity EE - BERRE

Non-current assets ERDEE 3,172,651 3,338,178 2,277,604 2,433,597 2,371,224
Current assets mYARE 4,895,980 5,163,380 5,410,196 5,266,655 6,011,224
Current liabilties MHEE (4,511,640) (4,893,352) (5,444,706) (5,486,421) (5,463,543)
Net current assets/(liabilties) RBEE/(AE)FE 384,340 270,028 (34,510) (219,766) 547,681
Total assets less current liabilitles #EERTEAR 3,556,991 3,608,206 2,243,094 2,213,831 2,918,905
Non-current liabilities FRBaRE (1,378,530) (1,423,848) (66,094) (62,205) (800,627
Net assets FEE 2,178,461 2,184,358 2,177,000 2,151,626 2,118,278
Equity attrioutable to shareholders BRI LA REZE

of the parents 1,751,890 1,728,563 1,708,378 1,669,689 1,643,354
Minority interests DERRER 426,571 455,794 468,622 481,937 474,924
Total equity BRA 2,178,461 2,184,358 2,177,000 2,151,626 2,118,278

Note: The data of 2016 to 2020 is prepared in accordance with Accounting & @ 2016-2020FF EH#HE - A AHRR B E S ERIR
Standard for Business Enterprise. il o
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